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o Launched the “Speed Remittance” services with
ICBC in China.

o Achieved the award of “The Highest Growth
Rate 2007 in Merchant Purchase Volume -
Hong Kong” from MasterCard Worldwide.
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o Awarded the “5 Years Plus Caring Company”
status by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service.
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o Acted as one of the mandated coordinating
arrangers of the HK$6 billion syndication loan
to Wheelock and Company Limited.

« Hosted an Investment Seminar on “Cross
Border Financial Investment Opportunities”.

o Signed a Cooperation Agreement with the
Aoyuan Group to provide mortgage financing
service to buyers of its project named [ 74 [
HRVE 5 fE R | located in Panyu.
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Launched Xplore Visa Platinum Card.
Launched the “Account Opening Witness”
service in cooperation with designated branches
of ICBC for those customers who want to
open Renminbi account in Mainland China.
Launched a joint promotion with Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited for its project named
“MOD 595” by offering a special mortgage loan
plan to selected buyers.

Lined up with the Longhu Group to provide
mortgage financing service to buyers of a
prestigious villa project named [ It % Wi 1L 5T
[ | located in Beijing.
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2008 Event Highlights
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Acted as one of the mandated coordinating
arrangers of the HK$2,954 million syndicated
loan to The Champion REIT for the acquisition
of the Langham Place.

Opened the new Aberdeen Branch with
Securities Investment Centre.

Sponsored Caritas Folk Song Concert.

“The Development of Banks in Shanghai
and Hong Kong” exhibition was completed
successfully on 26 May 2008. Over 130,000
visitors attend the exhibition in the previous six
months.

In order to aid the Sichuan earthquake victims
and reconstruction of the affected areas, our
staff and customers raised a donation of over
HK$2 million and sent via Hong Kong Red
Cross to the victims.
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Joined hands with Zurich Insurance Group
(Hong Kong) to launch “Zurich Dual Currency
Card”.

Signed an agreement with the Sun Hung Kai
Properties Group to provide special mortgage
loan plans to buyers of its project named
“Harbour Place”.

Lined up with the Shui On Group to provide
mortgage financing service to buyers of its high-
end project named [ FR I R FEA |, situated
near Xin Tian Di in Shanghai.

Sponsored a concert of the Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra for which a number of
underprivileged people from several charity
organizations were invited to attend the
concert.
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Sponsored and officiated the Caritas TV Show.
Launched Dual Currency Visa Platinum Card
and Platinum MasterCard.

Relocated the Jordan Branch to a premier
location with the opening of an “Elite Club”
Wealth Management Centre.
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Relocated the Tsim Sha Tsui Branch to a
premier location with the opening of an “Elite
Club” Wealth Management Center.
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Acted as one of the mandated coordinating
arrangers of the HK$20.38 billion syndicated
loan to Hong Kong Telecommunications.
Acted as a coordinating arranger of the US$1.18
billion syndicated loan to finance the second
phase of the China-Kazakhstan Natural Gas
Pipe Line.

Opened the new Ngau Tau Kok Branch with
Securities Investment Centre.
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Act as one of the mandated coordinating
arrangers of the HK$2.2 billion syndicated
loan to the Shanghai Industrial Investment
(Holding) Co. Ltd.

Launched “Elite Club” Platinum MasterCard.
Sponsored the reconstruction of a primary
school in mountainous area of Yunnan
Province. The new school building enabled
the children to study in a safe environment
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and at a permanent site. In late October, our
staff and the volunteers of “Sowers Action”
visited the school and also the students’ home
to understand more about their learning and
living conditions.
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o Actively participated in the Caritas Raffle Ticket
Sales and Bazaar by all level of staff, in order to
raise funds for Cartias - Hong Kong.
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o Launched a thematic advertisement for
promoting our reliable image with the support
from ICBC.

« Signed a Cooperation Agreement with the Agile
Group to provide mortgage financing service
to buyers of its project named [ & 4457 ik |
located in Zhongshan.
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In 2008, the once-in-a-century financial crisis hard hit the global economy, which had unprecedented
impact on the financial industry. In 2009, the management and all employees of the Group are confident

T %k 15 about the future. We will continue to strengthen cooperation with the parent company to effectively
= leverage on the strategy of “effectively serving both Hong Kong and the Mainland” and seize new
business opportunities brought by growing economy in China, with an ultimate goal of generating better

returns for customers and shareholders.
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Company Profile

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC (Asia)”), being a group member of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(“ICBC”), enjoys ample support in various areas such as funding, settlement, information technology and credit card business.

ICBC (Asia), formerly known as Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited, was established in Hong Kong in 1964 and publicly listed in 1973 (Stock Code: 349).
Over the years, the Bank offered advanced and diversified banking services to its customers. The Bank changed its name to “Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Asia) Limited” on 21 August 2000 following it became a member of ICBC.

In July 2001, ICBC injected the corporate banking business of its Hong Kong Branch into ICBC (Asia). By doing so, it expanded ICBC (Asia)’s customer
base, improved its deposits and loans portfolio and also diversified its product mix. Such transfer of business therefore led to a substantial enhancement of
the competitive edge of ICBC (Asia). Since then, the Bank has become the flagship of ICBC in developing overseas business.

ICBC (Asia) acquired Fortis Bank Asia HK’s retail and commercial banking operations on 30 April 2004. Fortis Bank Asia HK was renamed Belgian Bank
and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia). In October 2005, Belgian Bank, Hong Kong Branch was legally merged into ICBC (Asia). In 2005,
ICBC (Asia) acquired Chinese Mercantile Bank which becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary and focuses on RMB banking business.

On 6 June 2007, ICBC (Asia) was assigned A2/Prime-1 long-term/short-term deposit ratings and C- Bank Financial Strength Rating (BFSR) by Moody’s
Investors Service.

With the nationwide branch network, leadership and expertise provided by ICBC, ICBC (Asia) will continue to offer a range of banking and financial
services, including various types of deposits and loans, trade finance, remittance, settlement, commercial and industrial finance, syndicated loans, inward
and outward bills of exchange, China business advisory and financial services, asset management services, securities business, trustee services and bullion
brokerage services as well as insurance agency services.
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)
Wang Lili (Vice Chairman)
Chen Aiping (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)
Wong Yuen Fai (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Zhang Yi (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, SB.S.,J.p.
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD
(Independent Non-executive Director)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Tsang Mei Kuen

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s.B.S.,J.P.

(Independent Non-executive Director & Chairman)
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD
(Independent Non-executive Director &
Alternate Chairman)
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD

(Independent Non-executive Director & Chairman)
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S.,J.p.

(Independent Non-executive Director)
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec

(Independent Non-executive Director & Chairman)
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD

(Independent Non-executive Director)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Wang Lili (Non-executive Director & Chairman)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Fung Siu Ming (Deputy General Manager & Chief Risk Officer)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE
Chen Aiping

(Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer & Chairman)
Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)
Wong Yuen Fai (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.5.5., J.P.

(Independent Non-executive Director)
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD

(Independent Non-executive Director)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chen Aiping (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)

Wong Yuen Fai

(Director & Deputy General Manager)
Zhang Yi (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Fung Siu Ming

(Deputy General Manager & Chief Risk Officer)
Leung Ming Hym, Peter

(Assistant General Manager & Chief Financial Officer)
Cheng Yiu Lung

(Assistant General Manager & Chief Operation Officer)
Jiang Yisheng

(Assistant General Manager)

SOLICITORS
Herbert Smith

23/F., Gloucester Tower
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2845 6639
Facsimile: 2845 9099

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young

18/F., Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2846 9888

Facsimile: 2868 4432

REGISTRARS

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong
Telephone: 2980 1888
Facsimile: 2810 8185

REGISTERED OFFICE
33/F., ICBC Tower

3 Garden Road, Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2588 1188
Facsimile: 2805 1166
Telex: 73264 ICBCA HX
Post Box: GPO Box 872
SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

This Annual Report can be accessed through the internet at:
http://www.icbcasia.com/eng/investor/report/report_a.shtml
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TEZR)NEM R 2008 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

R MA Net Interest Income

PR S A A A Net Fee and Commission Income

FHAt & S Other Operating Income

BE Operating Expenses

BFIRE R Write-back of/(Charge for) Impairment
[l (2 8) Losses on Loans and Advances

R i Vi ) Profit before Tax

i 1A Tax

IS SR A i 1) Profit Attributable to Equity Holders

2,998
663
91
1,252

(409)
1,064
95
969

2,388
676
115

1,135

115
1,952
343
1,609

25.5%
-1.9%
-20.9%
10.3%

-455.7%
-45.5%
-72.3%
-39.8%

B Loans and Advances

B AE Total Assets

A Total Deposits

JBe o 4 The Equity Holders” Funds

ERTT R LR (KB Capital Adequacy Ratio (Adjusted)
PR RE E a2 R Average Liquidity Ratio for the Year
ARSI R Cost to Income

BT LR Loans to Deposits

137,083
194,564
142,496

13,938

13.6%
37.0%
33.3%
72.9%

121,704
192,304
141,236

15,008

13.0%
43.9%
35.6%
61.9%

12.6%
1.2%
0.9%

-7.1%

AN A IR Final Results Announcement

AT B Posting Date for Annual Report

WA By Closing Period of Register of Members
BT

JB AR AR R g H 1 Date of Annual General Meeting

S UREE H 10 Dividend Payment Date

“EFNE=A A

CEFNENA A

S e REA
2=+ ZH
CEFAERA A
“EFNEASA AN
sk

24 March 2009
22 April 2009
15 to 22 May 2009

22 May 2009
on or about
26 June 2009
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FiAR BAES DL FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
ZAE(HEWIT) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
FALE WA Net Interest Income 2,998 2,388 1,853 1,316 1,275
IR PR ON Net Fee and Commission Income 663 676 562 403 271
HoAth g S Other Operating Income 91 115 182 314 99
CE S Operating Expenses 1,252 1,135 945 890 744
FRE R Write-back of/(Charge for) Impairment

IEH% (3 8H) Losses on Loans and Advances (409) 115 (132) (6) 22
R i i ] Profit before Tax 1,064 1,952 1,603 1,208 936
i 18 Tax 95 343 357 227 176
& SR A 25 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 969 1,609 1,246 981 760
Bt (o) Per Share (in HK$) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
g LA f5 R Basic Earnings per Share 0.77 1.41 1.11 0.91 0.80
(533 9= Dividend per Share 0.46 0.86 0.66 0.53 0.45
WAERSH (HEEIT) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
E‘%’}( ) Loans and Advances 137,083 121,704 75,648 70,406 62,740
I AR Total Assets 194,564 192,304 146,392 115,782 99,344
A7 AL Total Deposits 142,496 141,236 109,893 70,341 63,404
TR 4 AR Total Equity Holders’ Funds 13,938 15,008 11,085 9,870 8,541
T e % Financial Ratios 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
BARTUR LR (K %) Capital Adequacy Ratio (Adjusted) 13.6% 13.0% 16.0% 15.7% 17.4%
AAPETE i B G R Average Liquidity Ratio for the Year 37.0% 43.9% 44.1% 36.5% 37.8%
PR LR Loans to Deposits 72.9% 61.9% 68.6% 97.4% 94.9%
TG R MU R Loans to Total Assets 70.5% 63.3% 51.7% 61.0% 63.2%
WEER ANBAEFK LR Impaired Loan/NPL Ratio 0.65% 0.53% 1.18% 0.97% 1.27%
Zﬂ/a\ IR R Collective/General Provision Coverage* 0.9% 0.9% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8%
JRAS SN He A Cost to Income 33.3% 35.6% 36.4% 43.8% 41.9%
IRB. Dividend Payout 61.5% 64.3% 59.5% 60.6% 62.0%
S [l R Return on Average Assets 0.5% 1.0% 1.0% 0.9% 0.9%
S48 788 P AR [ % Return on Average Common Equity 6.8% 13.6% 12.4% 11.0% 10.3%
* FLAE TR E A ) * Including “Regulatory Reserve”

AR K el 2 BB R A JBe 3 ME AV e A
Operating Profit Before Impairment Losses/Provisions Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
[EF Yo7 [ER T
HK$ million HK$ million

2,600
2,400
2,200
2,000
1,800

+22%
2,500

1,800
1,600
1,400

1,200

1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200
0

+24%
2,044
+45%
1,652
+27%
1,143
+13%
901 I

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

1,000

800

+46%
760

+27%
1,246

+29%
981

-40%
969

2004

2005 2006

2007 2008
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FER Deposits
1. s s 1. ByType 2008 2007
53 Current 3.6% 3.9%
% Savings 14.5% 12.0%
g
JE 1] Fixed 81.9% 84.1%
Gt Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. IRERSINH 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2008 2007
PSR I RV RR A 22 Repayable on Demand 18.3% 16.1%
=X EAYa Three Months or Less 73.7% 82.0%
—AEE AN E R =E A One Year or Less, but Over Three Months 8.0% 1.7%
AR DA N H A — A Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 0.0% 0.2%
i Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. WSS 3. By Currency 2008 2007
#I HKD 44.1% 57.3%
BN UsD 46.9% 36.6%
HoAth Others 9.0% 6.1%
Al Total 100.0% 100.0%
Foftn s BN Other Operating Income
HAbEEBA Other Operating Income 2008 2007
AL WA B35 72 DA Net trading income and net loss on financial
AN TAB (AR R R R assets and liabilities designated
MRl 7 at fair value through profit or loss
=t -wat] 77! 47.1% 78.2%
R H &R g BB Dividend income from financial investments 16.3% 3.3%
EHARA Management fee income 8.2% 6.8%
LIE LEEATON Rental income 0.1% 0.8%
TEYEMRBIRA Rental income from investment properties 2.5% 0.8%
HoAth Others 25.8% 10.1%
Gt Total 100.0% 100.0%
jagze kil 1k B
Total Assets Total Deposits
[ER: XV HEWIT
HKS$ million % % HKS$ million

200,000
180,000
160,000
140,000
120,000
100,000
80,000
60,000
40,000
20,000

0

+26%
146,392

+17%
115,782
+32%
99,344 |

+31% 1
192,304 194,564

2004 2005 2006

2007 2008

160,000

140,000

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

0

¥29% — +1%

141,236 142,496

+56%
109,893
+11%
+50% 70,341
63,404

2004 2005 2006 2007

2008
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1. ARSI 1. By Industry Sectors 2008 2007
TER W 2 B Loans for Use in Hong Kong
ENEYE A Industry, Commercial and Financial
VB9 Property Development 6.1% 5.7%
%%Tﬁ % Property Investment 14.7% 14.4%
SR Financial Concerns 5.1% 4.2%
Hﬁ%ﬁzﬁ:ﬁ Stockbrokers 0.0% 0.1%
B R FE Wholesale and Retail Trade 3.8% 3.1%
iﬂiiﬁa Civil Engineering Works 0.2% 0.3%
e Manufacturing 2.9% 3.2%
SRR D S R A Transport and Transport Equipment 5.9% 6.5%
) SR Electricity and Gas 0.0% 0.0%
ERHE Information Technology 1.1% 1.7%
3 42 5 ) Recreation activities 0.0% 0.0%
s - e R R Hotels, Boarding House and Catering 0.6% 0.8%
HoAth Others 4.1% 3.9%
A Individuals
WE [ EA LR Loans for the purchases of
[FAN 22 e e Bt flats in Home Ownership Scheme,
K [HFE L ER S Private Sector Participation Scheme
B 2 AR and Tenants Purchase Schemes 0.3% 0.3%
H AT Loans for the purchase of
W2 AR Other Residential Properties 8.6% 9.7%
15 R Credit Card Advances 0.1% 0.1%
FoAs Others 1.5% 1.1%
B 5 & Trade Finance 16.4% 22.8%
e s LA 2 Bk Loans for Use outside Hong Kong 28.6% 22.1%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. HRERSYH 35 2. By Remaining Maturity 2008 2007
R SR Iy RV 7 Repayable on Demand 10.0% 7.3%
—AEB LN One Year or Less 32.0% 33.6%
FLAREL LA H A —4F Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 38.3% 37.1%
3 T AF Over Five Years 19.7% 21.7%
Slf 4 R 44 Undated 0.0% 0.3%
araf Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. WL 3. By Currency 2008 2007
It HKD 59.8% 60.2%
e USD 30.7% 31.4%
HAth Others 9.5% 8.4%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
Total Loans and Advances Impaired Loan/NPL Ratio
AT A"
HKS million Lross %
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In 2008, the once-in-a-century financial crisis hard hit the global economy. Due to this financial crisis which was originated from
and had unprecedented impact on the financial industry, stock values of investment banks decreased by approximately 80% on
average, while capitalization of other financial institutions generally reduced by similar extent. Meanwhile, global economies
entered into the most difficult time since the “Great Recession”, with GDP of major developed countries slowing down or even
reporting negative growth. Hong Kong as an international financial hub was also facing the same tough situation, with GDP
growth decreasing month-by-month and unemployment rate increasing, while small and medium enterprises were confronting
with another severe challenge since the “Asian Financial Crisis” and the “SARS”. Nevertheless, the financial crisis has not changed
the fundamentals of the economy in Mainland China, where the economy achieved stable and relatively fast growth in 2008. The
supporting power of consumption is starting to be prominent and China’s macro-economic control policies are beginning to take

effects, with annual GDP growth amounting to 9%.

ICBC (Asia) as a listed bank in Hong Kong is inevitably affected by the significant fluctuation of the financial market. However,
being confronted with such tough situation, the Bank has faced it calmly by adhering to its conservative operating strategy
and has fully leveraged on its unique advantage of being a member of the ICBC Group. Effectively serving both Hong Kong
and the Mainland, it has devoted full efforts to building up a financial service platform linking China and Hong Kong to offer
comprehensive services to prime customers from the Mainland and in Hong Kong, so as to alleviate the impact of the financial
crisis on the Bank’s operation. In short, the operation strategy of “Based in Hong Kong, backed by the Mainland, eyeing the world”
has provided sufficient buffer for the Bank during the financial crisis. Despite the decline in performance, revenue structure and

customer structure have been enhanced, while risk control has further been strengthened.

Consolidated profit after tax of the Group for 2008 was HK$969 million, a decrease of HK$640 million or 39.8% as compared to
2007. Consolidated net interest income amounted to HK$2,998 million, an increase of 25.5% as compared to 2007. Overall net
interest margin increased from 1.47% in 2007 to 1.55 %. The Bank will continue to enhance its customer structure, improve its loan
portfolio, and further expand the net interest margin while ensuring the quality of assets and increasing its overall profitability.
With sluggish stock market as a result of the financial crisis, net fee and commission income of the Group were HK$663 million, a
slight decrease of 2% as compared to 2007. The overall cost to income ratio of the Group dropped from 35.6% to 33.3%. Return on

average common equity was 6.8% while return on average assets was 0.48%.

As at the end of 2008, consolidated total assets of the Group was HK$194.6 billion, a growth of 1% as compared to 2007, of which
loans grew by 13% to HK$137.1 billion. As for deposits, consolidated customer deposits and certificates of deposits amounted to
HK$142.5 billion, a decrease of 0.9% as compared to 2007.
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For the quality of assets, the Group has implemented various stringent risk management policies with the impaired loan ratio
staying at the low level of 0.65% in 2008. The combined coverage ratio of individual and collective impairment allowance for
impaired loans increased to 74.4% from 51.9% of 2007, in which collective impairment allowance increased from HK$210 million to
HK$379 million; the coverage ratio of the total of individual impairment allowance and the value of the collaterals to total impaired
loans increased to 92% from 88% of 2007. By upholding the principle of prudence, the Group made provisions for the full amount
of HK$611 million in respect of the bond investment in the three largest banks in Iceland. Meanwhile, the Bank also reviewed
and made a corresponding adjustment to the bond portfolio and the risk management mechanism with a view to minimizing

investment risks.

For corporate banking business, although the syndicated loan market had contracted to a significant extent, the Bank still arranged
and participated in various major syndicated loan projects during the year, in respect of which the Bank ranked the eighth in the
Hong Kong market. In particular, the Bank assisted Mainland prime enterprises in developing overseas markets to proceed with
the global expansion. The Group will make efforts devotedly in developing businesses related to the capital market and continue to

provide advisory and financing services for corporate acquisitions and mergers.

For the retail banking business, the Group has fully implemented business transformation focusing on “wealth management” to
increase value contribution of the retail banking business. In 2008, one third of ICBC (Asia) branches adopted the new design and
decoration and established wealth management centres to offer quality and efficient services for retail customers. We also launched
Private Banking business in June 2008 in order to provide comprehensive wealth management services for our high net worth

customers.

The Bank fully relies on its wholly-owned subsidiary, Chinese Mercantile Bank, to explore the Mainland market and to provide one-
stop cross-border financial-related services for customers. In 2008, Chinese Mercantile Bank, with the RMB banking business as the
core, fully leveraged on the synergistic effect with the Bank and ICBC in the Mainland. With the strategies of “effectively serving
the local markets” and “effectively serving both Hong Kong and the Mainland”, Chinese Mercantile Bank offered comprehensive
services to prime customers in Hong Kong and the Mainland. It realised considerable development amidst intense market

competition. Profit after tax for 2008 was HK$215 million, an increase of 1.53 times as compared to 2007.

In addition, being a listed bank in Hong Kong, ICBC (Asia) enthusiastically fulfilled the social responsibility and was awarded the
“Caring Company” status for 7 consecutive years. In 2008, the Bank and its employees raised charity funds to subsidise the re-
construction of a primary school for the Shuitun Village located in the poor mountainous area of Zhaotong, Yunan. Following the
earthquake in Sichuan, the Bank together with its employees and customers swiftly raised charity funds of more than HK$2 million
which were remitted to the disaster area through Hong Kong Red Cross. Besides, to promote the development of music culture, the
Bank sponsored the excellent performances by Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra and Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra, and invited

underprivileged groups from various charitable organizations to attend the concerts.
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Looking ahead to 2009, the challenges are unprecedented but crisis and opportunities co-exist. The management and all employees
of the Group are confident about the future. We will continue to strengthen cooperation with the parent company to effectively
leverage on the strategy of “effectively serving both Hong Kong and the Mainland” so as to provide integrated financial services for
customers in the Mainland and Hong Kong as well as increasing their loyalty. Meanwhile, we will further implement the strategy for
diversification to enhance the overall contribution of customers, to provide comprehensive financial services for customers, and to
increase both the overall revenue and the income from intermediary businesses, with an ultimate goal of generating better returns

for customers and shareholders.

Dr. Jiang Jianqing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2009
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OVERVIEW

In the last quarter of 2008, we experienced the severeness of the financial tsunami, which badly hit many developed countries in the
world. As one of the major financial centres, Hong Kong also suffered from a negative GDP growth and surging unemployment
rate. This put us to another major challenge since the establishment of the Hong Kong SAR.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group achieved a consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of HK$969 million for the year ended 31 December 2008,
representing a decrease of 40% as compared to HK$1,609 million in 2007.

Net interest income for the year ended 31 December 2008 increased HK$610 million or 26% to HK$2,998 million. The
improvement was attributable to the slight improvement of overall net interest margin from 1.47% to 1.55% given lower cost of
funds resulting from US interest rate cuts in 4Q 2008.

Net fee and commission income decreased slightly by 2% to HK$663 million from HK$676 million in 2007. The decrease was
mainly due to a slowdown in local stock market, impacting the commission income derived from stock broking business. Overall,
the ratio of total net fee and commission and other operating income to the total operating income decreased to 20%, as compared
to 25% in 2007.

Operating expenses increased HK$117 million or 10% to HK$1,252 million from HK$1,135 million in 2007. The cost to income
ratio dropped from 35.6% to 33.3%, mainly due to the increase in total operating income, together with effective cost control over
the year.

The consolidated impairment losses increased by HK$1,077 million to HK$1,211 million in 2008. This included HK$721 million
impairment losses on bonds issued by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. (HK$77 million) and three Icelandic banks (HK$611million)
and on notes issued by structured investment vehicles (HK$33 million). For 2008, HK$409 million impairment losses were made
for loans and advances to customers as compared to a write-back of HK$115 million in 2007. For equity investment, HK$81 million

impairment loss was made on the investment in Alibaba shares.

The Group incurred HK$202 million losses from disposal of investment securities, as compared to a disposal gain of HK$17 million
in 2007.

Share of profits from associates reduced to HK$0.66 million from HK$11 million in 2007.
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BALANCE SHEET

The consolidated total assets of the Group reached HK$194,564 million as at 31 December 2008, representing a slight increase of
HK$2,260 million or 1% as compared to HK$192,304 million as at 31 December 2007.

Consolidated total loans and advances increased by HK$15,379 million or 13% to HK$137,083 million as at 31 December 2008, as
compared to HK$121,704 million as at 31 December 2007.

Total customer deposits amounted to HK$138,183 million, as compared to HK$137,530 million as at 31 December 2007.

Total certificates of deposits issued amounted to HK$4,312 million, representing an increase of 16% as compared to HK$3,705
million as at 31 December 2007.

Loans Composition 2008 Income Composition 2008

Indivduals - Others 2% Foreign Exchange and Other Income 2%

Industrial,

Trade Finance 16% 24% Commercial & Financial Net Fee and Commission 18%

Property Development &
Other Property

20% Investment 80% Net Interest Income

Loans for use
outside Hong Kong  29%

Indivduals -
9% Residential Mortgage

CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

At the end of 2008, the capital adequacy ratio for the Group was 13.6% (2007: 13.0%). The Group maintained an adequate level of
capital in 2008. The average liquidity ratio amounted to 37.0% (2007: an average of 43.9%).

ASSET QUALITY

Consolidated impaired loans increased by HK$242 million to HK$889 million as at 31 December 2008, as compared to HK$647
million as at 31 December 2007. As a result, the consolidated impaired loan ratio was up slightly from 0.53% to 0.65%.

As at 31 December 2008, the cumulative loan impairment allowances aggregated to HK$661 million (2007: HK$335 million).
This included HK$282 million (2007: HK$125 million) of individual impairment allowance and HK$379 million (2007: HK$210
million) of collective impairment allowance. The increase of the impairments allowance was mainly due to the drastic slowdown of

the global economy, impacting the credit environment of the financial markets.

Overdue loans increased from HK$104 million as at 31 December 2007 to HK$292 million as at 31 December 2008, which
represents 0.2% of advances to customers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below are the summaries of the performance of our individual business operations in 2008 and their respective outlook for 2009.

RETAIL BANKING

Our Retail Banking business experienced a challenging year in 2008. The
outbreak of the global financial tsunami in the third quarter of 2008 had
led to a sharp downturn of the economic and market conditions in Hong
Kong. In particular, the Lehman Brothers’ minibond incidents caused
serious and extensive impact on the banking industry. As a result, profit
contribution from our Retail Banking business shrunk significantly to
HK$189 million as compared to HK$336 million in 2007.

Property prices suffered a decline since the end of the first quarter of
2008, which fell even further after the occurrence of the financial crisis in

September 2008. The residential mortgage market was adversely affected ~ ICBC (Asia) hosted an Investment Seminar on " Cross Border Financial
Investment Opportunities

by a reduction in transaction volume of the property market. Also, the
upsurge of inter-bank rates during mid 2008 had eroded profit margin of
the prime-based mortgage loan portfolio. Despite of such difficulties, we were still able to grow our mortgage loan portfolio during

2008 by approximately 8% as compared to the end of 2007.

On the other hand, we achieved a close to 10% increase in our customer deposits during 2008 as compared to 2007. This contributed

to a reduction in funding cost, which partially offset the negative effect of the upsurge of inter-bank rates.

We continued our branch network rationalization projects and set up the first new branch since 2006. In order to strengthen the
geographic coverage of our branch network, we opened our Aberdeen Branch in May and our Ngau Tau Kok Branch in September.
We also relocated our Jordan Branch in July and our Tsim Sha Tsui Branch in August to expand our business scope and scale in the
locality. By the end of 2008, we had 43 branches in which more than one-third of branches adopted the renowned branch design
theme. Meanwhile, we continue to study the expansion or renovation of our current branch premises in order to strengthen our

competitive edge.
The other important developments of our Retail Banking business during the year are as follows:

Securities and brokerage

Amid the downturn in the stock market, our securities and brokerage business was adversely affected by poor investment sentiment.
Despite the weak market environment, we strived to promote our securities and brokerage business through competitive marketing
campaigns and cross-referral mechanism, which led to an increase in our number of securities customers. While the overall

profitability shrunk much compared with 2007, our market share slightly increased.
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Wealth Management

Throughout the earlier months of 2008, we had been making discernible progress in developing our “Elite Club” wealth
management service. Unfortunately, the momentous financial tsunami since September, leading to the collapse of several global
financial institutions, completely wiped out those advances. As a consequence of the maelstrom, investors’ risk aversion rocketed
and slowed down wealth management related businesses. However, toward the year-end, there appeared encouraging sign of steady

clients’ acquisition (i.e. for Elite Club members), even in a volatile business environment.

Private Banking
In order to acquire more high net worth customers, we launched our Private Banking services in June 2008, which focus to provide

high quality, dedicated and comprehensive wealth management service.

Asset Management
We completed the acquisition of Worldsec Asset Management Limited on 1 September 2008, which subsequently changed its name
to ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited.

Bancassurance
We continuously follow the philosophy of providing comprehensive financial services to our customers to satisfy their investment
and protection needs. In the adversity, we continue to provide different kinds of insurance products (life & general) as well as

tailored-made insurance products to meet the needs of our customers.

Hire Purchase and Leasing
We remained as an active market player in taxi and public light bus (PLB) financing business in 2008. While our business revenue
continued to increase, the overall profitability declined due to fierce price competition, which resulted in the tightening of interest

margin.
The outlook of our Retail Banking business for 2009 is summarised below.

Due to the likely economic downturn in 2009, we expect that it will be difficult to achieve any significant growth in the Bank’s retail
deposit, loan and investment business. The severe competition in the form of price war will continue and lower the Bank’s interest
margin. Increase of credit risk along with the worsening economic and market environment will have negative impact on the Bank’s
mortgage, taxi and PLB hire purchase and other retail loans. Fee income from stock brokerage would be adversely affected following

the slowdown in local stock market.

Despite of all these unfavorable factors, we shall continue to expand our Retail Banking business as a long run strategy. We shall

continue our branch network rationalization projects in the coming year and expand our branch network.
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We shall also enhance our electronic channel services including improving the existing Personal Internet Banking Services and

offering new Internet Securities Services functionalities, Automated Phone Securities Services, and Commercial Internet Banking.

Above all, the Bank will keep on upgrading the IT system platform, improving the new Customer Relationship Management
System and Sales Target Management System to raise our marketing capability and quality, and to provide more comprehensive,

convenient and quality banking services to our different segments of customers.

TREASURY AND MARKETS

In 2008, our Treasury & Markets business experienced a turbulent year. In the first three quarters of the year, our treasury business
was in an expanding stage and the operating results were encouraging. The net interest income set a record high. The proprietary
trading as well as cooperative business operation with ICBC Head Office and branches in Mainland China achieved fruitful results.
New products, such as interest rate futures, interest rate swap and digital option, were launched. In the meantime, we strengthened
the capacity of new product development and risk management, revised the policies and procedures, and upgraded the computer

systems to be commensurate with the latest business needs.

Our bond portfolio inevitably suffered from the outbreak of the financial tsunami in September 2008. Fortunately, we had already
shifted our focus on sovereignty and utility sectors in the first half of the year. The losses from bond investment were therefore much
limited. In 2008, we made a further impairment of HK$33 million for SIV investment. In addition, we had 100% write-off against
our bond investment of HK$689 million (about 3.5% of our bond portfolio) in the collapsed Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. and
three Icelandic banks. As a result, our Treasury & Markets business recorded a loss of HK$96 million in 2008 as compared to a profit
of HK$280 million in 2007.

In 2009, we shall continue to respond quickly to market changes and remain focused on executing our proven strategy. At the
same time, in addition to the development of customer services and proprietary trading businesses, we shall continue to take
opportunity to cross sell investment products across ICBC network and to provide excellent financial solutions to our customers.
Simultaneously, we shall continue to make our efforts on the implementation of risk assessment and control by bringing in

advanced technology that will assist us in the upgrade of market risk analysis and monitoring.

COMMERCIAL BANKING

Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (SMEs) in Hong Kong were under pressure as a result of the slowdown of the global and
local economy as well as the inevitable credit crunch on SME lending. As a result, the delinquency for SME loans has caused much
concern to the banking industry. Notwithstanding the difficult environment, profit contribution from our Commercial Banking
business declined only slightly to HK$718 million as compared to HK$740 million in 2007. In addition, we managed to maintain a

below market average loan impairment ratio.
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By offering tailor-made banking and financial services to customers, our Diamond Trade Finance, European Banking and Indian
Banking continued to enjoy good reputation in the Hong Kong banking sector. Furthermore, our cross-border co-operations with
ICBC had achieved great success and generated significant contribution to the business growth. Such co-operations will continue

and we aim to collaborate with more ICBC branches in future.

In 2009, we shall continue to provide tailor-made and “one stop” banking facilities to our customers to strengthen our competitive
position in the market, by investing in human resources and business outlets. Also, we shall expand our professional relationship
management team to actively pursue new businesses and to serve our existing customers. We shall enhance our e-banking solutions

and to promote IPO, trade finance and factoring services that will generate stable non-interest income and enhance interest income.
CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANKING

Our Corporate and Investment Banking business has been focusing in providing financing solutions to prime corporate customers
in the Greater China region with the aim to enhance overall yield without sacrificing assets quality and to enlarge our deposit
base. In 2008, we continued our strategy to diversify our income base to non-traditional corporate banking business. We also
strengthened our competitiveness through product innovations. Along with our client relationship, resources were designated
to foster debt capital market product development aiming at providing comprehensive and innovative financing solutions to our

clients.

2008 was a challenging year for credit risk management as well. Amidst the deteriorating economic environment and shrinking
market liquidity, we adopted a prudent approach in expanding new businesses. For existing asset portfolio, we conducted periodic
review and monitoring and reacted promptly to reduce or even avoid any potential loss. Though it might not be possible to
eliminate credit loss completely, we endeavored to minimise it and to maintain a non-performing loan ratio well below that of the

bank or even the industry average.

Despite the challenge of the turbulent financial market, profit contribution of corporate and investment banking marked a slight
growth of 2% to HK$497 million as compared to HK$488 million in 2007, driven by both surge in fee income and widening of
interest spread.

In addition to traditional bilateral facilities, we continued to take active roles in the syndication market. Although syndication
activity in the region slowed down remarkably, we took leading roles in many prominent deals, including the HK$20.38 billion
syndicated loan to Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Ltd., the US$1.18 billion syndicated loan to finance the second phase
of the China-Kazakhstan Natural Gas Pipe Line, the HK$6 billion syndication loan to Wheelock and Company Limited, the
HK$2.2 billion syndicated loan to Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited, the US$2.23 billion and GBP796
million syndicated loan to Borse Dubai and the HK$2,954 million syndicated loan to the Champion REIT for the acquisition of
the Langham Place. We also concluded a HK$2.1 billion facility for GZI REIT and a HK$1.8 billion facility for Yue Xiu Enterprises
(Holdings) Ltd. on club deal basis.
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Besides playing an active role in the primary markets, we also acted strategically in loan assets trading, which not only enhanced our

yield and increased fee income but also paved the way for effective portfolio management.

We continued to leverage on our wholly owned subsidiary, Chinese Mercantile Bank, in Mainland China to provide one-stop
cross-border financial services to existing and potential clients. We established our presence in the RMB syndication market in
Mainland China by acting as advisor to a RMB2.7 billion acquisition financing for an enterprise in Mainland China. We received
overwhelming response from local and international banks for such acquisition financing. Our cross border solution in cash

management have earned interest from prime customers and enlarged our RMB deposit base in Mainland China.

The challenge that we shall face in 2009 will not be less than that in 2008. But opportunities still exist in certain strategic industries
in China and in areas including financial advisory and M&A activities in the Greater China region. We shall continue our prudent
risk management approach in asset selection and monitoring and will leverage our established network and competitive edge to

overcome any challenge.

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

In 2008, our Financial Institutions business achieved excellent results especially for trade finance related products through our
close cooperation with various branches of ICBC, which ranked us one of the leaders in the market. In addition, other transactional

banking services such as cash management also contributed significantly to our profitability.

The transaction volume of trade finance related products with ICBC is likely to decline in 2009 in view of the reducing demand
from end customers in Mainland China. We shall therefore focus on the financial institutions market, but in view of the intense

competition, we shall continue our strategy to diversify our client base and to enhance our quality of service to customers.

CREDIT CARD BUSINESS

During 2008, our Credit Card business recorded further growth. Total revenue was approximately 80% higher than the past year.
Average monthly borrowing balance was up by 12%, which could be attributed to the success of our borrowing stimulation strategy
and the cross selling of installment loans. Merchant business continued to grow very fast at the rate of 65%. All these remarkable
records resulted from a combination of marketing strategies including all-year-round purchase privileges, monthly spending
programs, anti-attrition programs and customer segment promotion. New products such as Platinum Card and Zurich Co-brand
Card added momentum to the business growth. We also spent a lot of effort in improving the delinquency and risk management of
both the card issuance and merchant business, typical examples of which include the issuance of the EMV card, adoption of more
sophisticated roll-over model, strengthening of collector performance measurement and introduction of daily turnover ceiling for

each merchant.
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In spite of the predicted economic downturn in 2009, we still see opportunities in our Credit Card business. We shall aim at
expanding the market share by taking a more aggressive approach in card acquisition. A number of co-brand cards with different
themes are under preparation. Our basic card features will also be enhanced. Titanium Cards will be launched. A closer linkage with
our Retail Banking business will be established in both card acquisition and utilization to gain synergy effect between credit card
and retail products. Meanwhile, more concrete actions in delinquency and collection management improvement will be adopted to

support the aggressive marketing activities and to cope with the expected deterioration in economic environment.

CHINESE MERCANTILE BANK

In 2008, Chinese Mercantile Bank (“CMB”) achieved
remarkable results. According to Hong Kong Accounting
Standards, its profit increased by HK$130 million or
153% to HK$215 million in 2008 as compared to HK$85
million in 2007. Net interest income increased by
HK$191 million or 165% to HK$307 million as compared
with HK$116 million in 2007. Net fee and commission
income increased by HK$16 million or 100% to HK$32
million as compared with HK$16 million in 2007. Total
assets of CMB was HK$10,398 million as at 31 December
2008, representing an increase of 30% over the end of
2007. Total customers’ loan and deposit balance as at 31

December 2008 was HK$8,826 million and HK$4,217
Chinese Mercantile Bank opened its Guangzhou Branch in February 2009 million respectively.

CMB focuses to provide one-stop cross-border financial services to existing and potential clients through close cooperation with the
Bank. These include traditional services such as trade finance and remittance service, as well as more sophisticated products such as
M&A financing. In this regard, CMB completed a RMB2.7 billion acquisition financing for an enterprise in Mainland China during
2008, in conjunction with the Corporate and Investment Banking team of the Bank.

During 2008, CMB successfully upgraded its core banking system in order to cater for future business growth. Also, the China
Banking Regulatory Commission approved the opening of its Guangzhou Branch at the end of 2008. Looking forward, CMB will

continue its branch network expansion in the Pearl River Delta region in 2009.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The number of staff of the Bank as at 31 December 2008 was 1,454. During 2008, measures were in place to enhance our position
to attract, develop, and retain the knowledgeable and skillful employees. These included active and flexible recruitment and
selection effort, emphasis of business-oriented training programs, promotion of job skills development, a more productive work

environment for employees, and closer communication with employees to better understand their needs.

At the same time, we offer support to our Staff Association to organise and promote various recreational and social gathering
activities for staff, such as picnics, buffet gatherings, interest classes and sports events, in order to maintain and promote good

employer-employee relationship and a better work and life balance for employees.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service awarded the Bank with the Caring Company ‘5 Year Plus Award Logo’ in recognition of
Bank and its staff’s contribution and commitment to the community over all these years. The Caring Company Logo is to recognise

private companies with business operations in Hong Kong that demonstrated good corporate citizenship.

The Bank was honored to be appointed again as the
Chairman of the Caritas Fund Raising Committee for the
year 2008-2009. The Bank and its staff volunteers were
committed to support Caritas-Hong Kong by soliciting
donations from business associates and customers through
various fund raising activities including donation boxes at
branches, television charity show, walkathon, sales of raffle
tickets and bazaars. The Bank also donated to Caritas-
Hong Kong part of retail spending revenue from the jointly
issued affinity card, Caritas-HK MasterCard.

The Bank sponsored the reconstruction of a primary

ICBC (Asia) and s staff sponsored the reconstruction of a primary school in school in mountainous area of the Yunnan Province. The
mountainous area of Yunnan Province new school building enables the children to study in a
safe environment and at a permanent site. In late October
2008, our staff and volunteers of “Sowers Action” visited
'm the school and also the students’ home to understand more

about their learning and living conditions.

The Bank, our staff and customers also raised the donation
of over HK$2 million to aid the Sichuan earthquake
victims. The donation was sent via Hong Kong Red Cross

to the victims.

In respect of contribution to cultural development,
the Bank sponsored a concert of Hong Kong Chinese

Orchestra while a number of underprivileged persons from

e

ICBC (Asia) together with its staff and customers made donation via Hong Kong Red Cross
to aid the Sichuan earthquake victims and reconstruction of the affected areas

several charity organizations were invited to attend the
concert. We also sponsored another concert of Hong Kong
Philharmonic Orchestra in order to promote appreciation

of philharmonic music in Hong Kong.

In 2009, the Bank will continue to contribute to the
community service and demonstrate good corporate

citizenship towards a harmonious society.






to its conservative (_)peratin:g 's.'I
of being a member of the ICBC




50 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Annual Report 2008

Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management

Board of Directors

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Dr. Jiang Jianging (Chairman)

Ms. Wang Lili (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Chen Aiping (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer) S 7 5 4 6 8

Mr. Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Wong Yuen Fai |

(Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive) ]

6.  Mr. Zhang Yi , -y
(Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive) | B 2 1 3

7. Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S.,J.P.
(Independent Non-executive Director)

8. Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)

9. Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD

(Independent Non-executive Director)
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Dr. Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)

Dr. Jiang, aged 56, was appointed as the Chairman and a Director of the Bank in June 2000. Dr. Jiang graduated from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics, and received a Master’s Degree in engineering and a Doctorate Degree in management,
respectively after finishing postgraduate and doctorate courses at Shanghai Jiaotong University. Dr. Jiang has over 30 years of
banking experience and he is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited, the Vice Chairman of China Banking Association, the Vice Chairman of China Society for Finance and Banking
and a tutor to the PhD students of Shanghai Jiaotong University.

Ms. Wang Lili (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Wang, aged 57, was appointed as the Vice Chairman and a Director of the Bank in December 2002. Ms. Wang is the Senior
Executive Vice President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, primarily responsible for matters relating to the
assets and liabilities management, international business, financial market business and legal affairs. Ms. Wang graduated from
Nankai University and received a MBA Degree from the University of Birmingham of United Kingdom. Ms. Wang has over 33 years
of banking experience and was awarded a Certificate of Competence for Professor in the banking field. She is also the Chairman of
the Board of Directors of ICBC (London) Limited.

Mr. Chen Aiping (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen, aged 50, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in December 2002 and re-designated as the Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank in July 2008. Mr. Chen was also appointed as the Chairman of Chinese Mercantile Bank, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, in November 2008 and a Director of certain other wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank,
namely, ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited and ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company
Limited. He is also a Director of China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited, an associate of the Bank, and the Vice
Chairman of ICBC International Holdings Limited, a Director of Xiamen International Bank, ICEA Finance Holdings Limited and
The Tai Ping Insurance Company, Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Wuhan University and a Master of
Business Administration (International) Degree from The University of Hong Kong. He has over 23 years of banking experience
and was previously the General Manager of International Business Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Limited and the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Luxembourg S.A..
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Mr. Hu Hao (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Hu, aged 46, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in November 2008. Mr. Hu holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from
Hunan University and a Doctorate Degree in Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. He has over 24 years of
banking experience and is the General Manager of International Business Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited. He is also the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Luxembourg S.A. and a Director of The Tai Ping

Insurance Company, Limited.
Mr. Wong Yuen Fai (Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Wong, aged 53, joined the Bank as a Deputy General Manager in July 2004 and was appointed as a Director and an Alternate
Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2004. Mr. Wong was also appointed as a Director of ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited
and ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, and a Director of China Ping An Insurance
(Hong Kong) Company Limited, an associate of the Bank, in July 2004. Mr. Wong was also appointed as a Director of Chinese
Mercantile Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, in August 2005. Mr. Wong is an associate member of The Chartered
Institute of Bankers (UK) and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK). He holds a Master’s Degree in
Applied Finance from the Macquarie University, Australia. Mr. Wong has 35 years of banking experience. Prior to joining the
Bank, Mr. Wong was the Chief Executive Officer of Standard Chartered Bank, China from January 2001 to June 2003. Mr. Wong
is currently a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority, a member of the Hong Kong Town Planning Board, a member of the
Disciplinary Panel A of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Banking Advisory Committee
and the Chairman of Friends of the Earth (HK).

Mr. Zhang Yi (Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Zhang, aged 46, joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager in January 2003 and was promoted as a Deputy General
Manager of the Bank in December 2003. Mr. Zhang was appointed as a Director and an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank
in March 2005. He is also a Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank, ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited and ICBC (Asia)
Investment Management Company Limited, all are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai
University of Finance & Economics with a Master’s Degree in Money & Banking and qualified as a Senior Economist. Prior to
joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang was the General Manager of Financial Planning Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of

China Limited, Shanghai Municipal Branch.
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Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., ].P. (Independent Non-executive Director)

Professor Wong, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in July 2000. Professor Wong is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Professor Wong graduated from University of Chicago with a Bachelor’s and
a Master’s Degrees in Economics and also a Doctorate in Economics. Professor Wong is the Deputy Vice-Chancellor and Chair of
Economics of The University of Hong Kong. He has been active in advancing economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China. Professor Wong was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government of the HKSAR

for his contributions in education, housing, industry and technology development.
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Tsui, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in August 2000. Mr. Tsui is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Bank. Mr. Tsui graduated from University of Tennessee with a Bachelor of Science Degree
and a Master of Engineering Degree in Industrial Engineering. He has completed the Program for Senior Managers in Government
at the John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University. Mr. Tsui is currently the Chairman of WAG Worldsec
Corporate Finance Limited and also the Vice-Chairman of China Mergers and Acquisition Association. Prior to his current
appointment, he was the Adviser and Council Member of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from July 2001 to June 2002 and was the
Chief Executive of Regent Pacific Group Limited, a Hong Kong listed investment company, from August 2000 to February 2001. He
was also the Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Institute from December 2001 to December 2004. He joined The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited in 1994 as an Executive Director of the Finance and Operations Services Division and became the Chief
Executive from 1997 to 2000. He was also the Chief Operating Officer of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from March
2000 to July 2000 and the General Manager (Finance, Technology & Human Resources), and then Assistant Director (Licensing),
and at the same time the General Manager (Human Resources) of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong from
1989 to 1993. Mr. Tsui also involved in numerous government and community activities, including being a former Chairman of
the Supervisory Committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong and the Organizing Committee of Independent Commission Against
Corruption Professional Ethics Programme for the Securities, Futures and Investments Sectors, a former member of the Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform, the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Financial Services Advisory Committee,
The Community Chest of Hong Kong Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme Organizing Committee (Banking
and Finance Group), the Banking and Finance Industry Training Board of the Vocational Training Council and the Investment

Sub-Committee of the Government Committee of the Beat Drugs Fund Association.
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Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yuen, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2003. Mr. Yuen is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and the Alternate Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Yuen is currently an
independent non-executive director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited and LeRoi Holdings Limited. Both are Hong
Kong listed companies. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors) in Economics and
Political Science. Mr. Yuen had attended post-graduate studies in marketing management at the International Marketing Institute,
Cambridge, Massachusetts, U.S.A. and had completed the Hong Kong Administrators Course (commissioned by the Hong Kong
Government) in public administration and international relations at Oxford University, the United Kingdom, and the International
Executive Program in INSEAD, France respectively. In June 2003, Mr. Yuen was admitted to the Leadership in Development
Program organised by Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University. In June 2004, Stanford University, California, U.S.A.
had also invited Mr. Yuen to participate in its “Corporate Governance” forum and in early 2006 the University awarded a fellowship
to Mr. Yuen as a non-profit leader at its Centre for Social Innovation. Mr. Yuen had been Chief Executive of The Better Hong Kong
Foundation for nine years since September 1997. Prior to his joining the Foundation, he was the Assistant Director/Acting Deputy
Director of the Information Services Department of the Hong Kong Government. Mr. Yuen plays an active role in organizing
international business conferences in Hong Kong and also takes part in numerous government and community activities, including
being a board member of the East-West Strategic Development Commission. Mr. Yuen was the Panel member of the Central Policy
Unit of the HKSAR Government on the Pan-Pearl River Delta between 2003-2007. Mr. Yuen is currently a member of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Guangxi Autonomous Region, China; an advisor of the Institute of Finance and Trade
Economics; Chinese Academy of Social Sciences; an advisor of The Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences, China; an advisor of The
Board of International Investment of Guangzhou Municipality, China and a Special Advisor of the China National Committee for
Pacific Economic Cooperation (PECC China). Mr. Yuen is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the British
Institute of Management and the Institute of Marketing, United Kingdom, and was also commended by the former U.S. President,

George W. Bush for his efforts in support of coalition’s campaign against global terrorism.
Mr. Fung Siu Ming (Deputy General Manager and Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Fung, aged 56, was appointed as the Chief Risk Officer of the Bank on 10 October 2005, the appointed day for the merger of
the Bank and Belgian Bank, Hong Kong Branch, and was promoted as a Deputy General Manager of the Bank in January 2006.
Mr. Fung is also a Director of ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. Mr. Fung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and Law from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Fung has over 34 years of local banking

experience specialised in bank lending and credit risk management.
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Mr. Leung Ming Hym, Peter (Assistant General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Leung, aged 46, joined the Bank in July 2001 and was appointed as an Assistant General Manager and the Chief Financial
Officer in March 2007. Mr. Leung is also a Director of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, namely, ICBC (Asia)
Investment Holdings Limited, ICBCA (C.I.) Limited, ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited and ICBC (Asia)
Asset Management Company Limited. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Financial Analysis from University
of Newcastle upon Tyne, UK and a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from University of London, UK. Mr. Leung is an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and serves on its Members’ Advisory Panel. He is also a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (UK).
Mr. Leung has over 17 years of experience in corporate finance.

Mr. Cheng Yiu Lung (Assistant General Manager and Chief Operation Offficer)

Mr. Cheng, aged 53, joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager and the Chief Operation Officer in March 2007. Mr. Cheng
was also appointed as a Director of ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, in August 2007.
Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business Administration and a Master’s Degree of Electronic Commerce from The Open
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng has over 34 years of banking experience, specialised in operations management and control.

Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Cheng was the Alternate Chief Executive of Wachovia Bank, N.A., Hong Kong Branch.
Mr. Jiang Yisheng (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Jiang, aged 42, joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager in April 2007 and oversees the overall development and
operation of Corporate Banking Department and Debt Capital Markets Department of the Bank. Mr. Jiang graduated from Xi’an
Jiaotong University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering and a Master’s Degree in Economics. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr.
Jiang was the General Manager of International Business Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited,
Guangdong Branch and President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Zhuhai Branch. Mr. Jiang has over 13 years

of banking and finance experience.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) has pleasure in submitting its annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Bank and the Group (the Bank together
with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and other
financial related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in
Note 35 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and geographical
segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 86.

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK$0.28 per ordinary share, totalling
HK$355,599,000 which was paid on 10 October 2008.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.18 per
ordinary share, totalling approximately HK$231,348,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Bank during the year are set out in
Note 42 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$1,751,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group and the Bank during the year are set out in Notes 31 and 32
to the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of the movements in share capital and warrants of the Bank are set out in
Note 41 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Bank at 31 December 2008, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$2,323,181,000.



Rl
Report of the Directors

A B B A
DA 74 4 T o R B A 2 A~ Y T A i o

H TR SRAT (S5) PR /A W » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 57

TUEE)\AEAEH. » Annual Report 2008

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out below.

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
T AR RN AR T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
'S Results
B BRI A v A Profit attributable
to equity holders 969,023 1,608,788 1,245,592 980,601 760,391
g &=L Assets and liabilities
W M Total assets 194,564,109 192,304,060 146,391,759 115,781,677 99,343,650
A A Total liabilities 180,626,331 177,295,921 135,306,456 105,911,823 85,454,003
JBEH A e A Capital and reserve
Pt attributable to equity holders 13,937,778 15,008,139 11,085,303 9,869,854 13,889,647
194,564,109 192,304,060 146,391,759 115,781,677 99,343,650
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BANK’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Bank has not redeemed any of its listed securities. Neither
the Bank nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Bank’s listed
securities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Dr. Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)

Ms. Wang Lili (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Chen Aiping (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hu Hao

Mr. Wong Yuen Fai

Mr. Zhang Yi

Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S, J.p. *

Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec *

Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George *

* Independent Non-executive Director



ZEZ\FFH » Annual Report 2008

Rl
Report of the Directors

B @)

A ZELENFE—A =+ IUH > Damis Jacobus Ziengs 5&/E &
EARBATHERATEDE o« REedEn —FF/ FLH -+
H BT A RAT 35 S M0 AS P B AT AR - BREPSRAER =%
FNFELH A H B AR T I AT o AT i AR AR
HHRBATEARER - HI Se A ih R N\FE—H = H R AT
BARGRAT AT S -

TR S M R TRAT B AR SRAT 2 H 3 BOAR I A SRAT
ZARETERE AN EE 93 MR AR A ARBRAT 2 B Jimh SR SR 4T
Ky DR (E SR - ZEEIW L - Raked LEawt
A SRR AR AT 2 AL AR SR AN IS 94(1) S 94(2) R HLE
A I i PG RO A K AR R AR (5 9R o BT AR AT S AT
B A S A A R i A BRI K & L ST o

AGRAT 2 AT E S S B S AT S AR R AR - B
JEARYEAS $RAT 2 AL A, 3 A0 S A P RO 4F K 8 B w5 2R
LA o

B Sr IR P T H S oL

ARERAT TR 4 S T T AR B I 5 2 5 AT TR
o) (T J) ws J5 b BRI (T B i ) 28 3.13 feAi
AT BB L 2 AR SR o ARYRREMERT M AR
TTRTAS 2 BORE - ASSRAT R0 I A7 M8 57 AT 3 25 4 Jog A 57
At e

HHRZ B

B0 T PR AR AR Ky b IS AT 2 W o SUAS SRAT A AT
SEEHRERT S — A A JE I A LR TR T SO A (— iR E
EERRAN) Z IRBF B4

EHRZ AR

AGRATBHAERL A )~ B 2 ) B % O o 2 ) 37 206 2
TS BEUAC AR [ S5 A K BRI T AR 4 B2 465 R I B AR 4 BE
AT IR 0 A0 A 2L AR AT 8 0 O A TR i
HREH -

58 B TRGERAT (BEH) fTFR/A % » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

On 24 January 2008, Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs resigned as Non-executive Director
of the Bank. Mr. Zhu Qi resigned as the Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank on 22 July 2008. Mr. Chen Aiping has been re-designated from
Non-executive Director to the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Bank on 22 July 2008. Mr. Hu Hao was appointed as Non-executive Director of the
Bank on 3 November 2008.

Mr. Hu Hao, being appointed as a Director of the Bank during the year will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Bank in accordance with Article 93
of the Bank’s Articles of Association. Dr. Jiang Jianqing, Mr. Zhang Yi and Mr. Yuen
Kam Ho, George will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with Articles 94(1) and 94(2) of the Bank’s Articles of Association. All
retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject to the retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bank’s Articles
of Association.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Bank has received from each Independent Non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Based on such confirmation and the information
available to the Bank, the Bank considers all of its Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has any existing or proposed service contract with the Bank which is
not expiring or terminable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank
or any of its holding company, subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing connected transactions

During the year and in the normal course of business, the Group entered into a
number of transactions which, in the opinion of the Directors, constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. The transactions were with Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”), the ultimate holding company of the
Bank, and its fellow subsidiaries (collectively the “ICBC Group”) and the details of
these transactions are as follows:

1. Inter-bank lending and borrowing transactions

As part of the Bank’s day-to-day business, inter-bank placements are made
to and inter-bank deposits are taken from the ICBC Group. During 2008,
approximately HK$2,968,986,000 (2007: HK$2,210,922,000) of inter-bank
placements were made by the Bank to the ICBC Group. The interest income
attributable to these placements in 2008 was approximately HK$57,484,000
(2007: HK$64,864,000).

During 2008, approximately HK$13,214,977,000 (2007: HK$12,117,878,000)
of inter-bank deposits were placed with the Group by the ICBC Group.
Included in this balance is an amount of HK$3,100,040,000 (2007:
HK$1,560,160,000) representing utilisation of a standby credit facility of
US$2,500,000,000 (2007: US$3,000,000,000) granted by ICBC to the Bank for
working capital purposes. The interest expense attributable to these deposits
in 2008 was approximately HK$548,069,000 (2007: HK$458,562,000).

2. Derivatives transactions

The Bank entered into various derivatives transactions with the ICBC Group,
including but not limited to interest rate swaps and various options contracts
for the purpose of balance sheet and/or interest rate risk management or
hedging against customer-driven transactions.

The total notional amount of the outstanding derivatives transactions
between the Bank and the ICBC Group during 2008 was approximately
HK$4,018,305,000 (2007: HK$8,022,596,000). The interest income and
expense attributable to these transactions in 2008 were approximately
HK$185,841,000 (2007: HK$405,116,000) and HK$220,062,000 (2007:
HK$508,007,000) respectively. Net option premium expense attributable
to these transactions in 2008 was approximately HK$101,000 (2007:
HK$781,000).

3. Foreign exchange transactions

The Bank also entered into foreign exchange contracts with the ICBC Group
for the purpose of foreign exchange risk management and in response to
customer-driven transactions in a similar manner as mentioned above for
derivatives transactions. The total contractual amount of the outstanding
foreign exchange transactions with the ICBC Group during 2008, including
spot, forward and swap transactions, was approximately HK$17,826,688,000
(2007: HK$8,663,742,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Inter-bank capital markets transactions

The Bank entered into the following inter-bank capital markets transactions
with the ICBC Group for the purpose of portfolio and risk management and
compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements. The transactions could
also provide long term funding to the Bank and its subsidiaries for general
working capital:

(a)  buying and selling debt securities (either issued by independent third
parties or the ICBC Group) from and to the ICBC Group in the primary
and secondary markets;

(b)  buying and selling debt securities on behalf of the ICBC Group; and
(c)  selling debt securities issued by the Bank and its subsidiaries.

Approximately HK$217,003,000 (2007: HK$277,532,000) of debt securities
were sold to the ICBC Group, in primary and secondary markets in 2008. On
the other hand, no debt securities (2007: HK$6,433,000) were purchased from
the ICBC Group.

The Bank issued and subscribed by ICBC fixed rate certificates of deposit
with nominal value of US$100,000,000 (2007: US$100,000,000). The interest
expense attributable to these certificates of deposit in 2008 was approximately
HK$42,749,000 (2007: HK$179,458,000).

In addition, the Bank issued subordinated floating rate notes totalling
US$975,000,000 and HK$1,000,000,000 (2007: US$775,000,000 and
HK$1,500,000,000) and were fully subscribed by ICBC. The interest expense
attributable to these notes in 2008 was approximately HK$292,565,000 (2007:
HK$424,241,000).

Capital markets transactions

The Bank entered into various capital markets transactions with the ICBC
Group, which include arranging of participation/sub-participation in
loans, acquiring and disposing of interests in syndicated or individual
loans, subscribing to and/or issuing of debt securities and tax efficient
financing. Approximately HK$130,793,038,000 (2007: HK$405,138,954,000)
of the Bank’s interest in loans including syndicated loans was disposed
of to the ICBC Group and approximately HK$24,178,687,000 (2007:
HK$112,357,231,000) of the ICBC Group’s interest in loans including
syndicated loans were purchased by the Bank in 2008. Total fee attributable
to the above transactions of approximately HK$48,745,000 (2007:
HK$10,858,000) was paid by the Bank to the ICBC Group in 2008.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

6.

Trade finance transactions

The Bank entered into trade finance transactions with the ICBC Group which
included buying and selling interests in certain trade finance products only
in relation to bills of exchange secured under letters of credit, inwards and
outwards collection, and trade loans. Approximately HK$30,006,247,000 of
the above trade finance transactions with the ICBC Group were entered into
in 2008 (2007: HK$24,533,036,000).

Pursuant to a master agreement dated 14 December 2007, the Bank has
entered into the ongoing banking transactions with the ICBC Group as listed
above under items 1 to 6. A waiver from strict compliance of the Listing Rules
for disclosure requirements for the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions between the Bank and the ICBC Group has been granted by the
Stock Exchange in November 2007.

Dividend services

Pursuant to a dividend services agreement dated 4 June 2007, ICBC (Asia)
Trustee Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, was
appointed by ICBC to provide services in relation to the distribution and
payment of dividends payable by ICBC to the holders of its H shares of
RMB1.00 each (the “ICBC Shares”) and such services include, but are not
limited to, facilitating the payment of dividends by ICBC to the holders of
the ICBC Shares through the bank accounts of the Bank and handling any
unclaimed dividend payments in respect of the ICBC Shares that arise from
time to time.

Total service fee received by the Group from ICBC in 2008 was approximately
HK$457,000 (2007: HK$319,000).

Custodian and trustee services

Pursuant to a custodian and trustee services agreement dated 4 September
2007 (as amended and supplemented by supplemental agreement dated 16
May 2008), the Bank was appointed by ICBC to provide custodian, settlement
and clearing services to ICBC in relation to the investments outside the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in certain investment products
held by the customers of ICBC in connection with the Qualified Domestic
Institutional Investor scheme of the PRC.

Total service fee received by the Group from ICBC in 2008 was approximately
HK$6,274,000 (2007: HK$961,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Data processing services

Pursuant to a service levels agreement dated 21 February 2002 (as amended
and supplemented by supplemental agreements), ICBC through its overseas
data centre agreed to provide data processing and other related services to
the Bank, including (amongst other things) a new on-line application system,
inter-bank deposit and fund transfer application, customer information
application, bank cashier’s order application and an up-graded operating
system to the Bank. On 19 February 2008, the Bank entered into a renewed
service levels agreement with ICBC to extend the data processing services
period for a further term of one year from 1 January 2008 to 31 December
2008. On 30 December 2008, the Bank entered into a renewed supplemental
service levels agreement with ICBC to extend the data processing services
period for a further term of three years from 1 January 2009 to 31 December
2011.

During 2008, the total service fee paid by the Bank to ICBC was approximately
HK$14,289,000 (2007: HK$13,079,000).

On 19 March 2008, Chinese Mercantile Bank (“CMB”), a bank established
in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, entered into a CMB
service levels agreement with ICBC whereby the overseas data centre of
ICBC agreed to provide data processing services including a data storage
server, application server, on-line application server, storage facilities and
network facilities to CMB for the period from 25 March 2008 and expiring
on 31 December 2010, and is renewable for a further one year period subject
to the consent of both parties as well as compliance with relevant regulatory
requirements.

During 2008, the total service fee paid by CMB to ICBC was RMB453,750
(equivalent to approximately HK$516,000) (2007: Nil).

Acquisition of loans from ICIC

On 4 August 2008, the Bank entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Industrial and Commercial International Capital Limited (“ICIC”,
now known as ICBC International Holdings Limited and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ICBC) under which the Bank acquired, amongst other things,
certain loans advanced by ICIC to its borrowers and their related securities at a
cash consideration of approximately HK$1,507,400,000 in order to expand the
loans portfolio of the Bank. The acquisition was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Bank at an extraordinary general meeting of the Bank held
on 3 September 2008.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

11.

12.

Management service to the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC

Under a collaboration agreement between the Bank and ICBC dated 3 July
2001, the Bank agreed to undertake all the banking business then undertaken
by the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC (other than its treasury operation and
specific loans and deposits retained by the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC)
or which was within the scope of the type or category of banking business
previously undertaken by the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC. On 13 February
2008, the Bank entered into a renewed collaboration agreement with ICBC
whereby the Bank agreed to continue to undertake the aforementioned
banking business then undertaken by the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC and
to provide management services to the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC. The
renewed collaboration agreement commenced from 1 January 2008 and
expiring on 31 December 2010.

ICBC agreed to reimburse the Bank for the time costs of its personnel in
providing the management service and associated expenses and overheads. In
addition, ICBC agreed to pay a monthly fee of HK$120,000 for the services,
with such fees to be reviewed on a quarterly basis.

During 2008, the total service fee received by the Bank from ICBC was
approximately HK$6,000,000 (2007: HK$6,000,000).

Management service, premises income, premises expense and fee expense

The Bank entered into the following types of agreements with the ICBC
Group:

(a)  providing services such as management, administrative and marketing
functions in respect of the credit card business of ICBC pursuant to a
credit card service levels agreement with ICBC dated 21 February 2006.
On 30 December 2008, the Bank entered into a renewed credit card
service levels agreement with ICBC to extend the term of the services for
a term of another two years commenced on 1 January 2009 and expiring
on 31 December 2010;

(b)  receiving services rendered by ICBC branches for assisting the Bank in
the PRC loan business;

(c) granting a licence for ICEA Services Limited (“ICEA”), a company
indirectly owned by ICBC, to occupy the premises of suites 2504-5, 25th
floor of ICBC Tower pursuant to a licence agreement dated 15 July 2008
for a period from 15 July 2008 and expiring on 31 May 2010;

(d)  granting licenses to occupy premises of suites 2501-2, 25th floor, the
whole of the 26th floor and portion of floor area of 28th floor of ICBC
Tower to ICBC Group pursuant to licence agreements dated 30 May
2007 and 31 May 2007 respectively, with expiry dates both on 31
December 2009; and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Management service, premises income, premises expense and fee expense
(continued)

(e) renting a portion of the first floor of No. 9 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong as the Central Branch of the Bank pursuant to a tenancy
agreement dated 31 July 2006, with expiry on 31 December 2008. On 31
December 2008, the Bank renewed the tenancy for another three years
commenced on 1 January 2009 and expiring on 31 December 2011.

The total service fee income received from the ICBC Group in respect of
(a) above in 2008 was approximately HK$1,500,000 (2007: HK$375,000).
The service fee expenses paid to ICBC in respect of (b) above in 2008
were approximately HK$993,000 (2007: HK$77,000). In respect of (c) and
(d) above, the total premises income received from the ICBC Group was
HK$23,831,000 (2007: HK$16,443,000). In respect of (e) above, the total
premise and management fee expenses paid to the ICBC Group in 2008 were
approximately HK$5,400,000 (2007: HK$6,431,000).

B IEATE RO FBIE N R 2 B S MR The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
G225 TR B AT connected transactions as disclosed herein were conducted in the following manner:
1) #EXH): (1)  Such transactions were:
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(i)  entered into by the Bank in the ordinary and usual course of its
business;

(ii)  entered into on an arm’s length basis, as applicable;
(iii) conducted either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal

commercial terms, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the
Bank and the independent shareholders are concerned; and

(iv) entered into either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions; or (b) (where there are no such
agreements) on terms that are no less favourable than those available to
or from independent third parties, as applicable.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

(2)  The annual aggregate value of each of the relevant categories of the connected
transactions has not exceeded the annual upper limit or specified threshold, as
applicable.

The auditors of the Bank have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
carried out during the year:

(i)  have received the approval of the Board;

(ii)  are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Bank if the transactions
involve the provision of goods or services by the Bank;

(iii) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the previous announcements (if
applicable).

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

During the year, the Group had made Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group in
the ordinary course of the Group’s banking business which, in aggregate, exceed
8% under the assets ratio as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Bank is under a general obligation to disclose the details of the
Relevant Advances and therefore the disclosure below is made in compliance with
Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2008, the types of the Relevant Advances and the balances of the
relevant outstanding amounts due from, and all guarantees given on behalf of, the
ICBC Group were as follows:

FlL
HK$°000

A B £k 80N Type of the Relevant Advances
BT B LR ERAT AR 2 R O K R R) Trade loan to ICBC Group outstanding 15,533,243
PR 5t v B P SRAT A R CREER) Confirmed ICBC standby letter of credit outstanding 645,570
7 B LR SR AT SR I B TS R CRAEDR) Money market placements to ICBC Group outstanding 2,830,937
Vi vl T AT A I 5% 1 2 A B ARk A Total Relevant Advances to ICBC Group 19,009,750
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES (continued)

The interest rates charged for the Relevant Advances mostly are floating interest
rates based on the prevailing inter-bank offer rate, except for money market
placements whose interest rates are set by the ICBC Group and based on the
prevailing interbank bid rate. The Relevant Advances are repayable in full at
maturity, and the maturity date for the Relevant Advances generally ranges from
overnight to one year, or longer than one year for capital market instruments and
standby letter of credit. The Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group are not secured
by any collateral.

The Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group were made by the Group in the
ordinary course of the Group’s banking business, and on normal commercial
terms commensurate with customers of the Group having similar credit ratings or
financial strengths.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests of the Directors and chief executives of the
Bank in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Bank and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (the “Associated Corporations”) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Bank
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules were as follows:~

i 2 W B AT

it IR BE 4 v 4 Be

ey ¥ H B2 A8 Approximate %

Name of ERgER B Capacity in which Number of Total of total issued

HP A Director 250 interests are held shares held Interests share capital
E e nn Dr. Jiang Jianqing TaHEA A Beneficial owner 14,985 14,985 0.0012%
JREESEAE Mr. Zhang Yi fEETE 2N Beneficial owner 2,175 2,175 0.0002%
waEWEA Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George FEa A Beneficial owner 19,069 19,069 0.0015%

Al A VRHE SR W I AR o ARARASRAT H2 75 Ir MW B R 005
352 MR A7 B G Re il - i L AFE+ =+
H o> IR e o

e B pr ez #40 > R FE /AL A =41 AR
FT45 S ul R AT BN B sl 2 Mk 18 3 UL F 2 T2
AL SEAEA5Z BT 0 T 0 M AR BRAT B AT AT AR T 125 T 2 A A T
BB Z MR - T ZE RO AR 8 25 S e 91 352520
TAFE G R BRSO R A ERA T BB AP o

AR B Z RER

AGRAT ~ HEEWA T~ 2 Wb 28 R el 1R 2R B 4 R 4R
TRV ART IR ) ML SOE 5T S7 A AT 22 B - B3{0 AR SR 2 < Tt 5
ARGRAT B A 5 A A 2 PR A B i A o

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December 2008, no
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Bank or their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted, or had exercised, any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt securities
of the Bank or any of its Associated Corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Bank and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding company, or its
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, so far as the Board was aware, the following persons (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Bank) were interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Bank
which would fall to be disclosed to the Bank under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO:-

s ek 2
FefbiR 2 5y o< AR 4 o
Capacity in ey ¥ H B2 84T Approximate %
3 & which interests Number of Total of total issued
Name of shareholder are held shares held interests share capital
e TR SR AT JEETX SN 925,903,979 925,903,979 72.04%
ARRA O
Industrial and Commercial Beneficial owner
Bank of China Limited®
UG 3 A R ZREE A 925,903,979 925,903,979 72.04%
FALAH O
Central SAFE Investments Interest of controlled
Limited® corporation
rh N\ R AN B S TR AR 925,903,979 925,903,979 72.04%
Ministry of Finance of the Interest of controlled
People’s Republic of China® corporation
Bt - Note:

1. FF B TR R AT 0 A RS W) (R B R ARAT 1) A AR R AT
925,903,979 &% B2 A A N o i P JUE 4 BUE AT TR
AR A] ([ p g 1) K vbaie AR 0 B B ([ BABGHR 1)
A A RERS P TR ERAT 2 RO & AT P AT =40
2 A B BERE b S B B BRI
MR o

Al A VRHE SR I AE A o ARARASRAT $2 75 I W B R 005
336 MR A7 B 2 S re Bl - i — % E+ A =+ —
H o> AR ek o

Ve B pr e gg #5500 > IR FF /EF A =+ —H > i
ARARTN L (ARERAT 2 3 0 SR mAT O B BRA1) W R A SR
AT > WA AR 8 I B B A0 091 585 XV 98 2 A0 SR ) AR SR AT ¢
2 BRI A GRAT 152 78 75 B 1 B 155 336 IR ZEAF B 2 BT
Ay 2 AR SR A7 B B B 073 2 il i R Y

1. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”) is the legal owner of
925,903,979 ordinary shares of the Bank. Each of Central SAFE Investments Limited
(“Central SAFE”) and the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (the
“Ministry of Finance”) is interested in such shares as a result of Central SAFE and the
Ministry of Finance being entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, one-third or
more of the voting power at general meetings of ICBC.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December 2008, no
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the Bank had not been notified by
any persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Bank) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Bank which
would fall to be disclosed to the Bank under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the Share Option Scheme, disclosed in accordance

with the Listing Rules:

1. HM 1.
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Purpose

To provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Bank
and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees.

Participants

The Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, the Directors and any full-time
employees of the Bank or its subsidiaries.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme together with the percentage of the issued share capital as at
the date of the annual report

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Bank, if any, must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue on 10 May 2007 (the date of the passing of the
resolution approving the Share Option Scheme), that is, 112,125,921 shares
(representing approximately 8.72% of the issued share capital as at the date of
the annual report).

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
(granted and to be granted, whether exercised, cancelled or outstanding)
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Bank to each participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Bank then in issue.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an option

Such period as shall be prescribed by the Directors to each grantee, and in
the absence of such determination from the date upon which the offer for
the grant of option is accepted but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period for
which an option must be held, any performance targets that must be achieved
and any other conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

7. Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and the
period within which payments or calls must be made or loans for
such purposes must be repaid

A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of the grant
of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from the date of
the offer of the grant of the option.

8.  Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any option granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the Directors but it must be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares.

9. Remaining life

Subject to early termination and approval of the shareholders of ICBC, the
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted by
resolutions of the shareholders of the Bank in its general meeting.

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Bank at the
annual general meeting held on 10 May 2007. The adoption of the Share Option
Scheme is subject to the approval of the shareholders of ICBC, the holding company
of the Bank. During the year, no option has been granted (2007: Nil).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or existed during the
year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30%
of the total of interest income and other operating income of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Bank has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Bank and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Bank.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices and also follows the module set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual
entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions”
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) on 21 September 2001.
Details of the Bank’s corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 72 to 83 of its 2008 Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE) RULES

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules effective 1
January 2007, which have superseded the supervisory policy manual on financial
disclosure issued by the HKMA. The Banking (Disclosure) Rules set out the
minimum standards for public disclosure which locally incorporated authorised
institutions must disclose in respect of the income statement, state of affairs and
capital adequacy. The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2008 have been fully complied with the applicable disclosure provisions as set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors of the Bank (including Executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors) on named basis are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements of the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the following Directors of the Bank
had declared interests in the following entities which businesses are considered to
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Bank during the year:

Dr. Jiang Jianqing is the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited.

Ms. Wang Lili is the Chairman of ICBC (London) Limited.

Mr. Chen Aiping was the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Luxembourg S.A.. He is also a Director of both Xiamen International Bank and
ICEA Finance Holdings Limited.

Mr. Zhu Qi was the Deputy Chairman of ICEA Finance Holdings Limited and
the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial International Capital Limited (now
known as ICBC International Holdings Limited). Mr. Zhu resigned as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 22 July 2008.

All of the above companies provide an extensive range of financial services.

The Board of the Bank, including three Independent Non-executive Directors,
provides independent views to the Board in making the Board’s decisions. The
Audit Committee of the Bank, with majority of the members are Independent
Non-executive Directors, meets regularly to assist the Board in reviewing the
financial performance, internal control and compliance systems of the Bank
and its subsidiaries. The Bank is, therefore, capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of the above companies
in which Directors have declared interests.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. Ernst &
Young were appointed as auditors of the Bank by the Board to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2006. There have been no
other changes of auditors in the past three years.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Jiang Jianqing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2009
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The Bank is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices and also follows the module set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual
entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions”
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on 21 September 2001. The Bank has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)

throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2008, except for the deviations
from code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 which are explained in the relevant paragraphs
below.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A.1 The Board
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has the collective responsibility
for leadership and control of the Bank and be collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Bank by directing and supervising the
Bank’s affairs. The Board sets strategies for the Bank and monitors the
performance and activities of the senior management.

The Board meetings are held at least once every quarter, such regular
Board meetings will normally involve the active participation, either
in person or through other electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors entitled to be present. Special Board meetings will
be held when necessary.

The Board of the Bank held four meetings in 2008. The attendance
records of individual Directors are as follows:

W ik
Number of
Meetings
WPRH Name of Director Attended
L L Dr. Jiang Jianging 4
(EMEFIERATES) (Chairman and Non-executive Director)
TRERE &L Ms. Wang Lili 4
(AR FHFEMITES) (Vice Chairman and Non-executive Director)
PR SZF-5E A Mr. Chen Aiping 4
R —FF/4FEA -+ 2H (re-designated from Non-executive Director to Managing Director and
B IR T T 2 Chief Executive Officer on 22 July 2008)
A A T AR )
KEpSeE Mr. Zhu Qi 2
ORZ=FF/FELH T HEHE (resigned as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer on 22 July 2008)
R AR A T AR
AT ek Mr. Hu Hao 1
(A ZRE)\E+—H = HE (appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 November 2008)
ZAL AR PUTH )
HE IR SEE Mr. Wong Yuen Fai 3
(BUTHEF) (Executive Director)
TREEEA Mr. Zhang Yi 4
(HUATH E) (Executive Director)
FETFWHSZ > sBS. » kT4t Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S.,].P. 3
BSLIEHITHE ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
(ES % e Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 3
(B IR AT ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
e Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 4
BSLIEHITHE ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
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On 24 January 2008, Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs resigned as Non-
executive Director of the Bank.

The Directors of the Bank are consulted to include matters in the agenda
of its regular Board meetings. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist him/her in
discharging his/her duties to the Bank. The Directors also have access to
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure due compliance
of the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations.

Notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors by the Company
Secretary at least two weeks before the date of the meeting to provide
sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Under
special circumstances, the Company Secretary will promptly contact
all Directors by way of telephone. Agenda and accompanying papers
containing analysis and background information are circulated to all
Directors not less than 3 business days before the intended date of Board
meeting.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Board committees have
been recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees, decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed. Draft and
final versions of the minutes of the Board and the Board committees are
sent to all Directors or members of the Board committees (as the case
may be) for their comments and records respectively.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Corporate Governance Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank
are kept by the Company Secretary. Minutes of the meetings of the
Remuneration Committee and other Specialised committees (as listed
under Section D.2 of this report) are kept by the appointed secretary
of each committee. Minutes of the meetings of the Board and all the
Board committees are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which
the Board has determined to be material, the relevant matter will be
dealt with at a Board meeting in accordance with the requirements as set
out in the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Bank.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Jiang Jianqing is a Non-executive Director and the Chairman
of the Board. Mr. Chen Aiping is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Bank. With the support of the experienced senior management, Mr.
Chen assumes the responsibility to supervise the daily management
and operations of the Bank, including the implementation of major
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board from time to time. The
roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank
are segregated, with a clear division of responsibilities.

With the support of the Executive Directors and the senior management,
the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Bank consisted of nine
Directors comprising three Executive Directors, three Non-executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. All the
Directors are expressly identified by such categories in all corporate
communications that disclose their names. The Bank has received
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence by reference to the guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Bank considers all of them to
be independent.

The Bank benefits from the substantial business, banking and
professional experience of its Directors. Biography of the Directors is set
out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section under the Bank’s 2008 Annual Report.

Dr. Jiang Jianqing is the chairman of the board of directors of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”, the substantial
shareholder of the Bank), Ms. Wang Lili is the senior executive vice
president of ICBC, Mr. Hu Hao is the general manager of International
Business Department of ICBC, and Mr. Wong Yuen Fai is the deputy
general manager of ICBC, Hong Kong Branch. Save as disclosed
above, the Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject
to the retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings in accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association. Save
for the Managing Director of the Bank, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest but not exceeding one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and any Director appointed by
the Directors to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting. All the retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election.

In compliance with Article 93 of the Articles of Association of the Bank,
Mr. Hu Hao will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Bank and shall then be entitled for re-election.

In compliance with the requirements of code provision A.4.2 and
Articles 94(1) and 94(2) of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Dr.
Jiang Jianging, Mr. Zhang Yi and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George will offer
themselves for retirement at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Bank and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Save for the above-mentioned retiring Directors, who will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Bank, as at the date of this report, no Director held office for over
three years.

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice.
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The Nomination Committee was established on 20 January 2005 with
specific Terms of Reference, which state clearly with its authority and
duties. The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee have
included the specific duties set out in paragraphs A.4.5 (a) to (d) of the
Code, with appropriate modifications when necessary. It is responsible
for assessing the suitability of the candidates and recommending to the
Board all new appointments of Directors and senior executives (such
as chief executive officer, alternate chief executives, deputy general
managers, chief risk officer, chief financial officer and chief operation
officer, etc.). The Nomination Committee reports directly to the Board
and meets at least once a year.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee consists of
three members, comprising two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Chairman) and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho,
George, and a Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Hu Hao. On 22 July
2008, Mr. Chen Aiping ceased to act as a member of the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee of the Bank held two meetings in 2008 and
the attendance records of the individual members are as follows:

W Rk
ZHAZHELA Name of Committee Member Number of Meetings Attended
RETE oA Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 2
(g7 FEFUITHEHIEESE) (Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman)
Rk et Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 2
B IEHATH ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
TSR Mr. Hu Hao 0
(AL N\FE+—H=H (appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 November 2008)
BT RFPITESF)
PRV tE Mr. Chen Aiping 0
A —ZFF/FELH —+H (re-designated from Non-executive Director to Managing Director
M I T AT A and Chief Executive Officer on 22 July 2008)

AR TR )
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A AC B REAT B o ASERAT E £ A I
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B RS 2 B e K T B BT B AR
S Sy A ERAT HE S AR A I R A T B AR
R o I AR T S A

B Baltsh > ARRITZ P24 Z BB IO RS AR
A7 Z ALBRIRNE > 25 1 M 1a) 35 30 6 H B 42 24 W00
S AR RAT IR BT -

During the year, Mr. Chen Aiping has been re-designated from Non-
executive Director to the Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank. Dr. Jiang Jianging, the Chairman of the Bank, has
discussed the re-designation with each member of the Nomination
Committee, where recommendation for re-designation of Mr. Chen
Aiping as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Bank has been obtained from the committee members. Such re-
designation was subsequently approved by the Board of the Bank.

Apart from the above, the Nomination Committee of the Bank has
also reviewed the organization structure of the Bank, considered and
recommended to the Board in respect of the nomination of Mr. Hu Hao
as a Non-executive Director of the Bank.
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Responsibilities of Directors

The Bank regularly reminds all Directors of their functions and
responsibilities and updates them of the legal and regulatory
developments. Through regular Board meetings and circulation of
regular financial reports and other materials (such as minutes of the
meetings of the Board, Board committees and Specialised committees,
where appropriate), all Directors are informed of the business operation
and financial situation of the Bank.

The functions of the Non-executive Directors of the Bank as set out in
the Terms of Reference of the Board include the functions as specified
in code provision A.5.2 (a) to (d) of the Code (with appropriate
modifications when necessary).

The Bank has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. The Bank confirms that, having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2008.

Supply of and Access to Information

The Directors have given rights on fully and timely access to all relevant
information of the Bank so that they can make an informed decision
in discharging their duties and responsibilities as Directors. The Board
and each Director is entitled to separate and independent access to the
management of the Bank.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

B.1

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 January 2005
with specific Terms of Reference, which state clearly with its authority
and duties. It oversees the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Bank to ensure that their remuneration is
appropriate for their duties and consistent with the Bank’s culture,
strategy and control environment. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for recommending to the Board on the Bank’s
remuneration policy framework. The Remuneration Committee
reports directly to the Board and meets at least once a year.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists of
four members, comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George (Chairman), Professor Wong Yue
Chim, Richard, $.B.S., J.P. and Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec, and one Non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Hu Hao. Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs
and Mr. Chen Aiping ceased to be members of the Remuneration
Committee on 24 January 2008 and 22 July 2008 respectively.
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The Remuneration Committee of the Bank held one meeting in 2008
and the attendance records of the individual members are as follows:

W ik
ZHEAZHMA Name of Committee Member Number of Meeting Attended
A Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 1
B I AT B3R 1) (Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman)
FETFWHIZ > sBS. » KP4+ Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S., J.p. 1
(BSLIEHITHE ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
TRIREE S Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 1
(B IR AT ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
A SR Mr. Hu Hao 0
(A ZFE/NE+—H=H (appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 November 2008)
METAT Fy BT ES)
RV tE Mr. Chen Aiping 1
(R —ZEZ/)FLH_+ZH (re-designated from Non-executive Director to Managing Director
1 JE AT AT and Chief Executive Officer on 22 July 2008)
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Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2008 is set
out in Note 17 to the financial statements of the Bank.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee considered,
recommended (where applicable) and approved the allocation of
performance bonus of the Group (including discretionary annual bonus
of the Executive Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2007. The
Remuneration Committee also considered the performance bonus of
senior management and recommended to the Board on the Directors’
fee of the Non-executive Directors for the year ended 31 December
2007.

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 Financial Reporting

Monthly reports on financial results are submitted to the Board for
ongoing monitoring. Business performance and financial situation of
the Bank are reported to the Board at each Board meeting to assist the
Board to have a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the
Bank’s performance, position and prospects.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Bank. As at 31 December 2008, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Bank on a going concern basis.

A statement by the external auditors with respect to their financial
reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 84 and 85 of the Bank’s 2008 Annual Report.
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C2 WHBEEE C.2 Internal Controls
HHGEBEARPITZ ATEERS > WiERA The Board is responsible for the system of the internal controls and
SRATRRIEZ 5 2 BT ~ BUR K RFL » FHIAER the review of the effectiveness of the Bank and its subsidiaries through
17 RILBR G A 7 2 8505% - ST A S well-established procedures, policies and systems of the Bank. The
BEVE > GRS L - I S P A S T LU review covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
K I RE compliance controls and risk management functions.
T B RGBT 1 BT AN AR SR AT 2 IR B 2 > i i The Internal Audit Department evaluates the Bank’s internal controls
GRERAINNRE: 2 = Red iR gl AT - on an on-going basis and reports to the Audit Committee at least 4 times
EEFMAE N o FE BT GRA B BIARTR each year on significant findings on internal controls. Copies of the
kR ERGLMESH - minutes of the Audit Committee meetings will also be sent to the Board
for information.
C3 ®EZH® C.3 Audit Committee
ARATEMSL LR B G > WL A The Bank has established an Audit Committee with specific Terms of
ZIRMERE I - VRS LI RE S BT, o AR Reference which state clearly with its authority and duties. The Terms
BB 7 B A [ ) G S B SR €33 AT of Reference of the Audit Committee have included the duties set out in
2R - MR T AR - FEE code provision C.3.3 of the Code, with appropriate modifications when
o 2 [ AT % R T B A% L B T s i R S necessary. It reviews the effectiveness of both the external and internal
Ml Z AR audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation.
ARG FEEEehUAEEHE As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of four
WMo BE =AW AT E R T TR members, comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors,
S.B.S.» KTt (F) - Bl sed: kit namely Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.8..,J.p. (Chairman), Mr.
s DL RIERUATE I A o i T \E Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, and a Non-executive
THAZTZH s B P RERMEEREREGE Director, namely Mr. Hu Hao. On 22 July 2008, Mr. Chen Aiping ceased
Ho to act as a member of the Audit Committee.
REITZ HBEBEIR _FFFEERT TR The Audit Committee of the Bank held four meetings in 2008 and all
Bk AT Z AN BT R A TRk - the meetings were with the participation of the external auditors of the
2B BRI Bank. The attendance records of the individual members are as follows:
R Erd ik
ZHAZALA Name of Committee Member Number of Meetings Attended
T FWiEd% > sBS. - KTl Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S., .. 4
RSz I AT SR 1) (Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman)
RaeWA Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 4
(R S7 FE AT HE HIEEAT E) (Independent Non-executive Director and Alternate Chairman)
ThRBEE A Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 4
(RS IFATE ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
TSR Mr. Hu Hao 0
(A =L /\FE+—H=H (appointed as Non-executive Director on 3 November 2008)
T FEIATHE)
PRV tE Mr. Chen Aiping 0
(h—FENFELHA -+ _H (re-designated from Non-executive Director to Managing Director
M I T AT A and Chief Executive Officer on 22 July 2008)

ARSI ST R
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During the year, the fees paid to the external auditors of the Group for
the audit services and non-audit services amounted to HK$5,134,000
and HK$1,595,000 respectively. Details of the non-audit service

J/I assignments and the fees paid were as follows:
L XER=di]
El273:0)% 3 iR Nature of Non-audit Service Fees Paid
B IRBS Tax service 631,000
TR Hh A A R Review of interim financial statements 777,000
B BRI Regulatory review 187,000
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During the year, the works performed by the Audit Committee of the
Bank are summarised as follows:

- Met with external auditors to discuss the general scope of their
audit work;

- Reviewed external auditors’ management letter and management
response;

- Reviewed the external auditors’ 2008 audit plan;

- Reviewed the external auditors’ reports and findings and the
management response;

- Reviewed the internal audit plan for the year of 2008;

- Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of
internal controls;

- Reviewed the independent assessment report on the effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal control system;

- Reviewed the audited financial statements and final results
announcement for the year of 2007;

- Reviewed the Interim Report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2008;

- Reviewed the works performed by Legal and Compliance
Department of the Bank for the year of 2008.

D. DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

D.1 Management Functions

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Bank and delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to the senior management. The Board sets up clear guidelines
as to the powers to the senior management, in particular, with respect
to reporting mechanism and the matters that shall be subject to the
approval of the Board (such as substantial changes in the management
structure, the business objectives, strategies and business plans, the
policies and manuals which may substantially affect the financial and
risk management of the Bank).
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D.2 Board Committees

Apart from the Audit Committee (particulars are disclosed under
Section C.3 of this report), the Nomination Committee (particulars
are disclosed under Section A.4 of this report) and the Remuneration
Committee (particulars are disclosed under Section B.1 of this report),
the Board has also established the following two Board committees to
assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the management of
the Bank:

1.  Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee was established on
14 August 2008 with specific Terms of Reference, which state
clearly with its authority and duties. It oversees and promotes a
high standard of corporate governance practices, with the aim
to strengthen the corporate governance framework of the Bank,
including but not limited to risk management and internal
controls enhancement. The Corporate Governance Committee
also continuously reviews the appropriate Board structure,
enhances the effectiveness of the independence of the Board,
enhances the corporate transparency and quality of information
disclosure and keeps abreast of changes in regulations, with the
aim to maximise sustainable corporate values and shareholders’
interests. The Corporate Governance Committee reports directly
to the Board and meets at least twice a year.

As at the date of this report, the Corporate Governance
Committee consists of five members, comprising two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chen Aiping (Chairman) and Mr. Wong
Yuen Fai, a Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Hu Hao and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Professor Wong
Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S,,J.P.and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George.

2. Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors
The Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors was
established on 13 March 2008 with specific Terms of Reference,
which state clearly with its authority and duties. It formulates
risk management principles, basic policies, guidelines and risk
appetite of the Bank and monitors and reviews the effectiveness
of the risk management systems of the Bank from time to time.
It oversees matters pertaining to the management of risk which
shall include credit, market, operational, interest rate, legal,
liquidity, strategic and reputation risks. The Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors reports directly to the Board
and meets on a quarterly basis.

As at the date of this report, the Risk Management Committee
of Board of Directors consists of five members, comprising two
Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Wang Lili (Chairman) and
Mr. Hu Hao, two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George and the
Chief Risk Officer of the Bank, namely Mr. Fung Siu Ming.
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Apart from the Board committees, the Board has also established
the following five key Specialised committees which comprise
Executive Directors and other senior executives of the Bank from
relevant areas:

Executive Committee (formerly known as General
Management Committee)

The Executive Committee was established on 24 September 2001
to supervise the overall operation of the Group. The Chairman
of the Executive Committee is the Chief Executive Officer, and
the other committee members consist of the Alternate Chief
Executives, Deputy General Managers, Chief Risk Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Operation Officer and the Assistant
General Managers designated by the Chief Executive Officer. The
Executive Committee meets at least once a month.

Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee was established
on 12 July 1999 to closely monitor the mix of liquid assets and
funding channels, and the exposure to movements in interest
rate and foreign exchange. The Asset and Liability Management
Committee also meets to review the optimal liquidity level in
response to internal requirements and external market indicators.
It comprises the Chief Financial Officer (the Chairman and
Secretary), all Deputy General Managers, the designated
Assistant General Managers in charge of business units, the
Chief Risk Officer, the Head of Market Risk of Risk Management
Department and the Head of Treasury & Markets Department.
The Asset and Liability Management Committee reports to the
Executive Committee and meets on a monthly basis.

Senior Executive Risk Management Committee (formerly
known as Risk Management Committee)

The Senior Executive Risk Management Committee was
established on 5 September 2002 to review and report on the
adequacy and efficiency of risk management procedures, policies
and systems of the Group. It focuses on credit risk, interest rate
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation
risk and legal risk. The Senior Executive Risk Management
Committee comprises the Chief Risk Officer (Chairman), the
Chief Executive Officer, Deputy General Manager in charge of
Treasury & Markets, Deputy General Manager in charge of Retail
Banking, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Operation Officer,
the Head of Treasury & Markets Department, the Head of Credit
Analysis and Administration Department, the Head of Market
Risk of Risk Management Department, the Head of Systems & IT
Department and the Head of Legal and Compliance. The Senior
Executive Risk Management Committee reports to the Executive
Committee and the Risk Management Committee of Board of
Directors and meets on a quarterly basis.
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(iv)  Credit Committee

The Credit Committee sets up credit related policies, guidelines
and procedures in order to maintain the quality of the credit
portfolio of the Bank. It reviews and approves large credit
exposures, manages credit risk concentration, accepts or rejects
new credit strategies and responds to deteriorating credits. The
Credit Committee consists of the Head of Credit Analysis and
Administration Department (Chairman), the Chief Risk Officer
and the Deputy General Managers or Assistant General Managers
in charge of business lines. The Credit Committee reports to the
Executive Committee and meets from time to time.

The Chief Risk Officer reports to the Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors on credit related matters on a
quarterly basis.

(v)  Operational Risk Committee

The Operational Risk Committee was established on 25 July
2007 to focus on operational risk management. It reviews the
adequacy of operational risk management policies, procedures
and systems for the Bank. It also evaluates the effectiveness of
existing policies, and the need for other risk control tools as
to mitigating operational risks; makes recommendations or
decides on amended/increased/decreased operational control
policies, procedures and measures of the Bank. It comprises the
Chief Risk Officer (Chairman), Chief Operation Officer, Head
(or Deputy Head) of Human Resources Department, Head (or
Deputy Head) of Internal Audit Department, Operational Risk
Head and representative from Retail Banking Department. The
Operational Risk Committee reports to the Senior Executive Risk
Management Committee and meets on a quarterly basis.

Each of these key Specialised committees has specific written terms of
reference, which state clearly with its authority and duties. The Audit
Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors are required to report their decisions
or recommendations to the Board. Material matters are reserved for
the approval of the Board according to the terms of reference of such
committees.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E1

E.2

Effective Communication

A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman of the Meeting
of the 2007 Annual General Meeting in respect of each separate issue
including the re-election of the retiring Directors. The Bank organises
press conferences and analysts’ meetings to explain its annual and
interim results in detail. The website of the Bank www.icbcasia.com
contains the “Investor Relations” and “About Us” sections which
offer timely access to the Bank’s publications, press releases and other
business information.

The Chairman was unable to attend the 2007 Annual General Meeting
due to other important business engagements. The Board members
(including the Chairman or the Alternate Chairman or the respective
committee members of each of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees) attended the 2007 Annual General Meeting
of the Bank to answer questions from shareholders.

Voting by Poll

The procedures for voting by poll, which comply with the Listing Rules
and the Articles of Association of the Bank, are set out in every circular
sent to shareholders of the Bank during the year of 2008. The Bank
undertakes to ensure that the shareholders are familiar with the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll as required under the Listing Rules.



ZEZE\AEAEHR » Annual Report 2008

B3 > % B i o
Independent Auditors’ Report

Elf FRNST & YOUNG
T &

B PR TR RAT (i) AR A ]
R

R it At Mz A9 A R4 )

FAM 2 58 BUHRAZ O 565 86 7 225 B 14 o B LR 4RAT (S ) A
PR H] ([ 18R4T 1) AR5 R E B IR BRI — N
TR S FARE R R R ORAT R A R
W B IEE ARSI R - SRR B R M AR e 8
U AN R B ORI K AR AR o

U 2 R R B AT

TLERAT T S 70 A SO 7 v o R AN 119 7 s P
e B Y O GRS 2 B BT T M B R % S
Bk o a TR AR RE! - B B Ml SR Y R ORI 4
T H B i B 5 AT R B oA PR > DA A R AR AE
b A YRR B R T P TR B R RO 5 2SR R T
ORI B2 & LS Y T RV (R B ik T i

U Y B A

FRA I FAL AR TRAM 10 B A5 R ARt B L - 41
AR TR 14 A BUE > BAM S i 1E i AT B A M
FOHRE o BRUCEIAD > FAM B0 3 35 1 ol AR HAG T2 - 3
PIREA G AR A A B A A L B ORI
R -

FAM O AR 7 s Bl A A 199 7 s 0 S S AT
K% o 15 SE Y J) R TR <Y A LA o R B R AT
A% o DG B 2 U 4 A5 R R 15 AN A7 A A o T B R

3k o

84 B TRGERAT (BE) fTFR/A % » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF
CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) set out on pages 86 to 225, which comprise
the consolidated and Bank’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors” judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor,

Two International Financial Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central,

Hong Kong

24 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

BEZZLZN\EFEL A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
BT T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
FLB A Interest income (6) 7,753,857 8,845,058
FE S Interest expense (6) (4,755,554) (6,457,053)
RO Net interest income (6) 2,998,303 2,388,005
&Y EA L TN Fee and commission income 7) 756,268 719,362
Wi B AR 4 S Fee and commission expense (7) (93,166) (43,647)
W8 B A 4 N 3 Net fee and commission income (7) 663,102 675,715
BRI Net trading income (8) 273,441 185,592
TR LA HEERH G RAMRZ Net loss on financial assets and liabilities designated at
S RE E S B AR 1R fair value through profit or loss ) (230,640) (95,708)
AR H & A& 2 R A Dividend income from financial investments (10) 14,859 3,800
HoAth & ZE A Other operating income (11) 33,246 21,281
BREBA Operating income 3,752,311 3,178,685
wEIH Operating expenses (12) (1,252,119) (1,134,895)
RABRWA IR 2 8w Operating profit before impairment losses 2,500,192 2,043,790
BEFEAE (F28H) Il 43 (Charge for)/write-back of impairment losses
on loans and advances (14) (408,629) 114,866
R 22 e E Write-back of impairment losses
JAE ] 4% on held-to-maturity financial investments (28) 156 3,131
R B S Rl BUE U EIR SS Charge for impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial investments (802,880) (251,929)
HIERMALER 2 2 e A Operating profit after impairment losses 1,288,839 1,909,858
HEAERCEYZER (HHS) U] Net revaluation (loss)/gain on investment properties (31) (498) 2,761
R B LB &Ll Net gain from disposal/reversal of revaluation
FH A b % - s R RE deficits of property, plant and equipment
T At 4 2 Wi g R AR and leasehold land and land use rights (15) 5,513 11,102
A B E R Loss on disposal of loans and advances (28,710) -
LS S R G Net (loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale
({85%) weF A financial investments (201,962) 16,616
e Operating profit 1,063,182 1,940,337
JRE A s 28 2 )3 ) Share of profits of associates (29) 655 11,297
I 52 1 it ) Profit before tax 1,063,837 1,951,634
BiIE Income tax expense (16) (94,814) (342,846)
I SR B AR i A Profit attributable to equity holders 969,023 1,608,788
JBe L — Dividends - Interim dividend paid during the year (18) 355,599 262,114
— R ZAEZ AR - Underprovision of final dividend in
respect of the previous year (18) 9,358 -
—HEIRA S - Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date ~ (18) 231,348 772,350
596,305 1,034,464
IR A — HA Earnings per share - Basic (19) HK$0.77 HK$1.41
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2008 2007
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
o Assets
B 4 B AE $RA T R] S Bl Cash and balances with banks and
HoAth 4 e 2 5547 other financial institutions (21) 28,678,778 43,666,354
TESRAT S HoAth 45 Bl Placements with and advances to banks and
ALK other financial institutions (22) 844,358 1,005,234
FRERS 2 R 4 il & Financial assets held for trading (23) 52,051 54,256
658 AR E Financial assets designated at fair value
BIB R RAIRZ & RE E through profit or loss (24) 1,488,003 1,754,742
A TR Derivative financial instruments (25) 2,308,702 1,213,738
5~ GRAT I HoAth Loans and advances to customers, banks and
SRR 2 K other financial institutions (26) 137,082,721 121,703,671
SRIE - Financial investments: 19,379,478 18,640,728
— it & - Available-for-sale (27) 17,403,075 15,326,911
— 22 ~ Held-to-maturity (28) 1,976,403 3,313,817
RIS A T 2 & Investments in associates (29) 184,854 184,054
TR S LAt ST 5 Goodwill and other intangible assets (30) 1,032,938 1,043,582
' <L//ES Investment properties (31) 40,126 40,624
LUE VG Tii] Property, plant and equipment (32) 276,074 257,753
FELEE b % - st fif P A Leasehold land and land use rights (33) 43,860 44,604
HATRITE Current income tax assets 130,988 -
3 FIL T T Deferred income tax assets (38) 151,619 -
Hofth ¥ e Other assets (34) 2,869,559 2,694,720
ag Total assets 194,564,109 192,304,060
£ 1 Liabilities
SRATIR] 3 S H At Deposits from banks and
A5 BB A7 AR I G B other financial institutions 20,056,756 20,235,806
A TR Derivative financial instruments (25) 3,296,670 1,351,698
B Deposits from customers (36) 138,183,332 137,530,227
— 6 E DA THEE A RAMR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss (37) 301,216 298,274
— DAESH LA — At amortised cost 137,882,116 137,231,953
[BRL ZRREE Gk Certificates of deposit issued 4,312,361 3,705,396
— R LA PEE R RAR ~ Designated at fair value through profit or loss (37) 3,489,361 3,105,399
— LAMRSH A — At amortised cost 823,000 599,997
858 A B RS 45 R AR Debt securities in issue designated
Z BEETES at fair value through profit or loss 37) 3,146,399 3,119,872
HATRLUE A & Current income tax liabilities 10,113 134,378
R AR VE A 1 Deferred income tax liabilities (38) 14,072 336,256
DABR S AR AS AR 2 AR MBI Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (39) 8,556,348 7,545,620
HA & Other liabilities (40) 3,050,280 3,336,668
A Total liabilities 180,626,331 177,295,921
JBe R i Equity
Jili&N Share capital (41) 2,570,536 2,451,904
£ 7 v | Retained earnings (42) 3,290,741 3,481,533
HoAtfeti s Other reserves (42) 8,076,501 9,074,702
JBe S it 4 7 Total equity 13,937,778 15,008,139
JBe SRR 2 K% £ 3 A8 Total equity and liabilities 194,564,109 192,304,060
L Bk % - gy LB Jiang Jianqing Chen Aiping Wong Yuen Fai Tsang Mei Kuen
L HHAACTE HHE VAL /= Chairman Managing Director & Deputy ~ Company Secretary
BT Vol hsi Director & General Manager
Chief Executive

Officer
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2008 2007
R 3T T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
HE Assets
B 4 B AE $RA T R] S Bl Cash and balances with banks and
HoAth 4 e 2 5547 other financial institutions (21) 27,649,423 43,160,520
TEGRAT S HoAth 4 it A Placements with and advances to banks and
ALK other financial institutions (22) 1,660,123 1,620,813
FRERS 2 i 4 il & Financial assets held for trading (23) 52,051 54,256
658 A AR EAS Financial assets designated
i RARZ S RHEE at fair value through profit or loss (24) 1,488,003 1,754,742
firA 4 T H Derivative financial instruments (25) 2,308,702 1,226,446
BF 81 &ﬂﬁﬂﬁ% il Loans and advances to customers, banks
e 2 B and other financial institutions (26) 128,285,852 114,877,082
SRRE Financial investments: 19,378,861 18,640,065
— it & - Available-for-sale (27) 17,402,458 15,326,248
— 22 ~ Held-to-maturity (28) 1,976,403 3,313,817
RIS A T 2 & Investments in associates (29) 152,646 152,646
WM A 2 3 Investments in subsidiaries (35) 1,908,750 1,874,432
PR I HLAth ST Goodwill and other intangible assets (30) 642,109 681,744
EXS-LV/ES Investment properties (31) 25,200 26,000
EN G Property, plant and equipment (32) 185,878 166,690
FELE b, % - b fi A Leasehold land and land use rights (33) 43,860 44,604
BUTRLIEE Current income tax assets 128,586 -
AR SE R TE Deferred income tax assets (38) 151,619
HAt & Other assets (34) 3,095,070 3,279,274
A Total assets 187,156,733 187,559,314
fifi Liabilities
SRATIR) 2 R At <5 Pl Deposits from banks and
i PREE &S other financial institutions 17,001,164 16,230,140
A T B Derivative financial instruments (25) 3,324,174 1,351,698
EARpEE Deposits from customers (36) 137,636,067 139,973,358
— 5 LA PEESHE R RARR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss (37) 301,216 298,274
— DA A — Atamortised cost 137,334,851 139,675,084
CEA T Certificates of deposit issued 4,312,361 3,705,396
— BB DA TEE A RANR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss (37) 3,489,361 3,105,399
— DAESH A - At amortised cost 823,000 599,997
HATHIIE A & Current income tax liabilities - 108,597
MR GE Rl IH £ Deferred income tax liabilities (38) - 324,717
DA B A AN 2 AR MB A5 0A Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (39) 8,556,348 7,545,620
HAt &7 Other liabilities (40) 3,101,794 3,719,621
L1054 Total liabilities 173,931,908 172,959,147
JBe SR A Equity
JieAs Share capital (41) 2,570,536 2,451,904
L7 s A Retained earnings (42) 2,885,298 3,282,967
3 \ﬁﬂ{%ﬁﬁ Other reserves (42) 7,768,991 8,865,296
JBe B 2k 478 Total equity 13,224,825 14,600,167
JBe SRHE 2% % £ 1% AR Total equity and liabilities 187,156,733 187,559,314
E380 1 Bl % 1 W =B Jiang Jianqing Chen Aiping Wong Yuen Fai Tsang Mei Kuen
B HHBACHE HHEE VAT /=3 Chairman Managing Director & Deputy ~ Company Secretary
BT Vol Director & General Manager
Chief Executive

Officer



) TR 4RAT (35) A BR/A W » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 89
TBA\AEAEH » Annual Report 2008

,%/T (=] ﬁﬁ%@bi@

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WEZFL/NFH A=+ —HIMFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
R 3T T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
—H— B Z R 45 g Total equity as at 1 January 15,008,139 11,085,303
SRATISE AL A R Revaluation surplus on bank premises (42) 7,289 22,666
HHLEHE SR E Changes in fair value reserve of available-for-sale
AN FE (R E) financial investments (42) (3,419,922) 951,098
FIVEB & v 2 A B (R 22 ) Changes in fair value of cash flow hedge (42) 7,853 -
IR R (PR 2 1 Transfer from available-for-sale financial
B 4 AR A A investment reserve to the income
LLYNEETES statement on impairment (42) 819,504 234,024
HEERAT Y ZE AN it Release/(recognition) of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
S5 < 5 oA (et A in revaluation reserves on bank premises and
], (hEaR) IR AEBLIE available-for-sale financial investments (42) 443,982 (221,319)
&G (B
[ifE b0, 25 %A Exchange differences (42) 72,778 74,319
IR E LS R NFERR 2 Net (losses)/profits not recognised in the income statement (2,068,516) 1,060,788
(Hs18) U A 5 48
J SROME A s A Profit attributable to equity holders (42) 969,023 1,608,788
R EIREE S Dividends paid during the year (42) (1,137,307) (777,893)
u A EBEATH AR (5 Shares issued in lieu of dividends (41) 868,160 504,816
AT RR R R A T Y A A Shares issued on exercise of warrants (41) 298,400 1,526,826
%ﬁ’ﬁﬂxfﬁi:lu Share issue expenses (41) & (42) (121) (489)

At A= BZ IR A Total equity as at 31 December 13,937,778 15,008,139
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEZZLZN\EFEL A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
EETE ) Operating activities
R il i A1) Profit before tax 1,063,837 1,951,634
R 22 S RE Write-back of impairment losses on held-to-maturity
(NI 3 financial investments (28) (156) (3,131)
BB AE S8, (1438 Charge for/(write-back of) impairment losses
on loans and advances (14) 408,629 (114,866)
P8 5 A AR I B TE O Charge for impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial investments 802,880 251,929
ST e Y Amortisation of intangible assets (12) 46,835 48,629
A6 1 M £ Amortisation of leasehold land (12) 744 734
e Depreciation (12) 47,595 43,243
DABESH A AR Z Interest paid on subordinated
15 M8 B TR S S debts measured at amortised cost (6) 292,565 424,241
1Az [e] % 4 Bk Recoveries of loans and advances written off (14) 11,594 63,719
G ELE V& ] Net gain from disposal/reversal of revaluation
At s At 2 Wi g YRR deficits of property, plant and equipment (15) (5,513) (10,249)
L -t K% - bt P Write-back of impairment losses
AR [ 458 on leasehold land and land use rights (15) - (853)
HAREYZE TR (i ) Net revaluation loss/(gain) on investment properties (31) 498 (2,761)
LS & SR Net loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale
B (i Fl) A financial investments 201,962 (16,616)
R 1 Loss on disposal of loans and advances 28,710 -
JRE Ak M 55 2 ) 3 )9 Share of net profits of associates (29) (655) (11,297)
A _ETHRER S A& Dividend income received from listed
S E 2 B financial assets held for trading (10) (1,133) (409)
KA LT ESRRE 2 Dividend income received from listed
R A available-for-sale financial investments (10) (9,747) =
P EE S Dividend income received from unlisted
S E 2 R available-for-sale financial investments (10) (3,979) (3,391)
2,884,666 2,620,556
BEEE WM, ED (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
FHAEAR A DL b2 Treasury bills maturing beyond three months 847,211 (1,508,330)
A= A8 A R 2 897 Placements with and advances to banks and other
T LAt 4 AR 2 A7 R e R financial institutions maturing beyond three months 1,589,593 (327,407)
Rl BRI M EREE Held-to-maturity financial investments 490,359 819,134
FHER G k& & E Financial assets held for trading 2,205 2,212
a8 LA HEER H A R Financial assets designated
AR 2 4 flE at fair value through profit or loss 266,739 (50,393)
M Lo B & R Available-for-sale financial investments (5,731,364) (3,324,784)
B~ SRAT M H A4 Rl Loans and advances to customers, banks and other
B S A financial institutions and other assets (15,810,098) (47,517,853)
A 4 R T HL Derivative financial instruments (1,087,111) (443,970)
BEARENED) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
B =18 H YA b2 $RAT Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
A 45 Rl AR 2 A7 S S 45 A maturity beyond three months (1,430,820) 6,080,482
B A7 Deposits from customers 656,772 39,507,492
SR IEVESCivx Certificates of deposit issued 606,965 (6,616,639)
a8 A HEERH AR Debt securities issued designated
MNIRZ B #1712 at fair value through profit or loss 26,527 122,068
HoAth B i Other liabilities (405,124) 1,454,496
[ 4Rl T E Derivative financial instruments 1,944,972 522,016
FRBLRTE LT B) Net cash outflow from operating
Z Bl AR activities before tax (15,148,508) (8,660,920)
EAE RSB 1 AH Net Hong Kong profits tax paid (335,533) (334,870)
AN b6 G REiE | Net overseas tax paid (48,242) (46,401)
IR E) 2 A A Net cash outflow from operating activities (15,532,283) (9,042,191)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

BEELN\EF A= —HIREE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
BETES) Investing activities
1 o \ﬂ Purchase of a subsidiary (43) (18,786) -
[ 3= ¥ =g/ Purchase of an associate - (138,138)
Wi B AT Purchase of intangible assets (16,439) (32,217)
L=/ E V&I i Purchase of property, plant and equipment (32) (62,014) (50,803)
B ) 2 AR T A Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 121 8,542
A BT AFESS 5 i il Dividend income received from listed financial assets
ErE 2 BEA held for trading (10) 1,133 409
& b T A R A R Dividend income received from listed available-for-sale
2 B BEIRA financial investments (10) 9,747 -
RE kT e Dividend income received from unlisted available-for-sale
S E 2 BB A financial investments (10) 3,979 3,391
G TG B 2 B4 AR Net cash outflow from investing activities (82,259) (208,816)
2l g {ﬁ & Financing activities
AT A8 AR A MR 2 12 fE A T Issuance of a subordinated debt measured at amortised cost 1,550,020 -
Eﬂ’ IE] DS RUAS A R 15 A H Redemption of a subordinated debt measured
at amortised cost (500,000) -
AT GRS S5 B A T O A A Issuance of shares on exercise of warrants (41) 298,400 1,526,826
%?ﬁﬂxﬁl\iia Share issue expenses (41) & (42) (121) (489)
DABESH A AR Interest paid on subordinated debts measured
R RAETER B S at amortised cost (6) (292,565) (424,241)
A A 2 B R Dividends paid on ordinary shares (41) & (42) (269,147) (273,077)
il 0 ) 2 B T AR Net cash inflow from financing activities 786,587 829,019
T b, ZE R 2 7 2 Effects of foreign exchange differences 67,330 94,616
B4} 55 Im Bl TH H Net decrease in cash
W AR and cash equivalents (14,760,625) (8,327,372)
M—H—HZB e KRB 4HE  Cashand cash equivalents at 1 January 43,694,357 52,021,729
WHZA=t—HZ84%& Cash and cash equivalents
Je 2w Bl T H at 31 December 28,933,732 43,694,357

MEFEBlER BRI S - Bla B e%REF ST
FUREN I A 5 =8 SR 2 458

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following balances with original maturity of three months or less:

A
Group
2008 2007
T#T THT
HK$’000 HK$000
B & K TEGRA T B H Ath £ Tl Cash and balances with banks and other financial
Wt 45 (MG 21) institutions (Note 21) 9,182,552 1,598,983
TESRAT B HoAth & AR IS 2 473K Placements with banks and other financial
institutions 19,751,180 42,095,374
28,933,732 43,694,357




92 B TRGER4T () FFR/A % » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZE)\4EAEHR » Annual Report 2008

B 285 e Mt

Notes to the Financial Statements
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and
other financial related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
shown in Note 35.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Bank is a licensed bank incorpocated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business at 33/F, ICBC Tower, 3
Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosures
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain buildings modified by
the revaluation, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
and financial liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7  Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement and HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures-Reclassification of
Financial Assets

HKEFRS 2-Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19-The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum

Funding Requirements and
their Interaction
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

(a) Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures-Reclassification of Financial Assets
The amendments to HKAS 39 permit an entity to reclassify a
non-derivative financial asset classified as held for trading, other
than a financial asset designated by an entity as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition, out of the fair
value through profit or loss category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term, if specified criteria are met.

A debt instrument that would have met the definition of loans
and receivables (if it had not been required to be classified as
held for trading at initial recognition) may be classified out of
the fair value through profit or loss category or (if it had not
been designated as available for sale) may be classified out of the
available-for-sale category to the loans and receivables category
if the entity has the intention and ability to hold it for the
foreseeable future or until maturity.

In rare circumstances, financial assets that are not eligible for
classification as loans and receivables may be transferred from the
held-for-trading category to the available-for-sale category or to
the held-to-maturity category (in the case of a debt instrument),
if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term.

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its fair value on the date
of reclassification and the fair value of the financial asset on the
date of reclassification becomes its new cost or amortised cost,
as applicable. The amendments to HKFRS 7 require extensive
disclosures of any financial asset reclassified in the situations
described above. The amendments are effective from 1 July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial instruments,
the amendments have had no impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Group.

(b) HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2-Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby an employee
is granted rights to the Group’s equity instruments to be
accounted for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the Group buys
the instruments from another party, or the shareholders provide
the equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also addresses
the accounting for share-based payment transactions involving
two or more entities within the Group. As the Group currently
has no such transactions, the interpretation has had no impact on
the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2

2.3

Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(c) HKIFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 applies to service concession operators and
explains how to account for the obligations undertaken and the
rights received in service concession arrangements. No member
of the Group is an operator and, therefore, this interpretation has
had no impact on the financial position or results of operations of
the Group.

(d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19-The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under HKAS
19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or a reduction
in future contributions in relation to a defined benefit scheme
that can be recognised as an asset, including situations when
a minimum funding requirement exists. As the Group has no
defined benefit scheme, the interpretation has had no effect on
the Group.

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKEFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRSs and
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements-Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate!

HKFRS 2 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKERS 2 Share-based Payment-Vesting

Conditions and Cancellations '

HKERS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations*

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments '

HKERS 8 Operating Segments '

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements '

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements*

HKAS 32and HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and

Amendments HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements-Puttable Financial

Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation '

HKAS 39 Amendment ~ Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement-Eligible Hedged Items *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate !

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation *
Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners *

Transfer of Assets from Customers >
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2 R EORMELE @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs* which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective
for the annual periods on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
although there are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

L H S EEJUAE— H — H 82 1% B R 0 4F B 1 4] : Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
2 ﬁ%gz JUAEE A — H a2 12 BA fh 19 45 2 14 1] 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
8 ﬁlj%gzl\ﬂ: £ H — H 82 1% B Uh B 45 B 1 1] 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
g i%gz‘:/\@ T H — H s 12 B f i 45 B 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

2k

A s B S 1 v ) 0 O S S R T I A
R A HERI S 555 - 795 > BETTINE S
EEFERISE 1% - S8R - 1098 - 169k - 5B
1845 ~ 551998 ~ 52055 52355 » SH2755 -
28455 ~ H529%% - H5319% - HF34 5% H36 9k
3849% ~ %539 5% ~ 5540 YRR 41 55 o

& B &

A FHUE ISR 27 SRAE AT AR B A 1 B T
On )~ W ) S IR 42 o B Y A B 2R A
Tl A B $R AR 1R 4 2 P R, o BB RT AR R
M o 7 s A5 i ot Y R 2 1 BRI B RT A
T EE U R AN A A5 A U 2 ) 4 A
I B 5 2 LU 1 6w BT A% A (B
MR (L LA IRAS - R BB A 7] ~ T
25 T B ] P B A R o AR SR P TR AR —
TRIUFE—H — HER AT G w5 27 9%
IERTAS o BEAFAERTAS B B W3 R 7 iU
B o i AR SR S I T UCHR AN A T S A
R > WO v B i MR VB 1 BRI B T ARSI AN 8
PR ALER

T A i BB 2 A T AR 4 7 ) DB o
1 Jo MRS W0k 1 B AR B A o AT EC ARG 25
e B A 1 o A T S O S A B
MR BB TE R TT EE K 48 M oK R & - UZEABR
B 7 R o AR S [ N0 MR 57 B AR i R Ak 1
JBe 3 ST RHE PR RS B R S T RE B B4
ST 5 B IR A A (T RS2 o

s A E LR 3 5% (REMERT) 5| A Z AT B
SRS A e RTINS T - RS AR
LA 0 o R ) A~ SR AT 0 ] 2 PR A
Be P A% BRI SERUE UL 2 -

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7,
HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20,
HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36,
HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.

The HKAS 27 Amendment requires all dividends from subsidiaries,
associates or jointly-controlled entities to be recognised in the income
statement in the separate financial statements. The amendment is
applied prospectively only. The HKFRS 1 Amendment allows a first-
time adopter of HKFRSs to measure its investment in subsidiaries,
associates or jointly-controlled entities using a deemed cost of either fair
value or the carrying amount under the previous accounting practice
in the separate financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
HKAS 27 Amendment from 1 January 2009. The amendments have
no impact on the consolidated financial statements. As the Group is
not a first-time adopter of HKFRSs, the HKFRS 1 Amendment is not
applicable to the Group.

The HKFRS 2 Amendments clarify that vesting conditions are service
conditions and performance conditions only. Any other conditions
are non-vesting conditions. Where an award does not vest as a result
of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that is within the control
of either the entity or the counterparty, this is accounted for as a
cancellation. The Group has not entered into share-based payment
schemes with non-vesting conditions attached and, therefore, the
amendments are unlikely to have any significant implications on its
accounting for share-based payments.

HKEFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the accounting
for business combinations that will impact the amount of goodwill
recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs,
and future reported results.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 7 form part of the focused response to the
financial crisis and aimed at improved transparency and enhanced
accounting guidance. The improvements also reflect discussions on
measuring and disclosing fair values of financial instruments when
markets are no longer active.

The amendment to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
introduce a three - level hierarchy for fair value measurement
disclosures as follows:

Level 1 quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.

Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. as derived from prices);
and

Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

It also requires entities to provide additional disclosures about the
relative reliability of fair value measurements. These disclosures will
help to improve comparability between entities about the effects of
fair value measurements. In addition, the amendments clarify and
enhance the existing requirements for the disclosures of liquidity risk.
This is aimed at ensuring that the information disclosed enables users
of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the nature and extent of
liquidity risk arising from financial instruments and how the entity
manage the risk. The adoption of the measurements to HKFRS 7 may
result in new or amended disclosures. It is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact on goodwill,
nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the revised standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as
the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other consequential amendments
were made to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 12 Income Taxes,
HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27
(Revised) from 1 January 2010. The changes introduced by these
revised standards must be applied prospectively and will affect future
acquisitions, loss of control and transactions with minority interests.
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(continued)

2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKEFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies how
an entity should report information about its operating segments, based
on information about the components of the entity that is available
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to the segments and assessing their performance. The
standard also requires the disclosure of information about the products
and services provided by the segments, the geographical areas in which
the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major customers.
The Group expects to adopt HKERS 8 from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation and
disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard separates
owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in
equity will include only details of transactions with owners, with all
non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition, this
standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with all
items of income and expense recognised in profit or loss, together with
all other items of recognised income and expense recognised directly in
equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The
Group expects to adopt HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1 January 2009.

The HKAS 32 Amendments provide a limited scope exception for
puttable financial instruments and instruments that impose specified
obligations arising on liquidation to be classified as equity if they fulfil a
number of specified features. HKAS 1 Amendments require disclosure
of certain information relating to these puttable financial instruments
and obligations classified as equity. As the Group currently has no such
financial instruments or obligations, the amendments are unlikely to
have any financial impact on the Group.

The amendment to HKAS 39 addresses the designation of a one-sided
risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a hedged risk
or portion in particular situations. It clarifies that an entity is permitted
to designate a portion of the fair value changes or cash flow variability
of a financial instrument as hedged item. As the Group has not entered
into any such hedges, the amendment is unlikely to have any financial
impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires customer loyalty award credits to be
accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which
they are granted. The consideration received in the sales transaction is
allocated between the loyalty award credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty award credits is
determined by reference to their fair value and is deferred until the
awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise extinguished. The
Group currently has customer loyalty award scheme in place and is in
the process of making an assessment of the impact of this interpretation
upon initial application. So far, it has concluded that this interpretation
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 will replace HK Interpretation 3 Revenue-Pre-
completion Contracts for the Sale of Development Properties. It clarifies
when and how an agreement for the construction of real estate should
be accounted for as a construction contract in accordance with HKAS
11 Construction Contracts or an agreement for the sale of goods or
services in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue. As the Group currently
is not involved in any construction of real estate, the interpretation is
unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 provides guidance on the accounting for a hedge
of a net investment in a foreign operation. This includes clarification
that (i) hedge accounting may be applied only to the foreign exchange
differences arising between the functional currencies of the foreign
operation and the parent entity; (ii) a hedging instrument may be
held by any entities within a group; and (iii) on disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative gain or loss relating to both the net
investment and the hedging instrument that was determined to be
an effective hedge should be reclassified to the income statement as a
reclassification adjustment. As the Group currently has no hedge of a
net investment in a foreign operation, the interpretation is unlikely to
have any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 standardises practice in the accounting for non-
reciprocal distributions of non-cash assets to owners. The Group
expects to apply the interpretation from 1 January 2010 prospectively.
The interpretation clarifies that (i) a dividend payable should be
recognised when the dividend is appropriately authorised and is no
longer at the discretion of the entity; (ii) an entity should measure the
dividend payable at the fair value of the net assets to be distributed; and
(iii) an entity should recognise the difference between the dividend paid
and the carrying amount of the net assets distributed in profit or loss.
Other consequential amendments were made to HKAS 10 Events after
the Balance Sheet Date and HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations. While the adoption of the interpretation
may result in changes in certain accounting policies, the interpretation
is unlikely to have any material financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 clarifies the requirements of HKFRSs for agreements
in which an entity receives from a customer an item of property, plant
and equipment that the entity must then use either to connect the
customer to a network or to provide the customer with ongoing access
to a supply of goods or services.
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2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

The interpretation is issued to provide additional guidance on the
accounting for those transfers of assets from customers. It clarifies:

- the circumstances in which the definition of an asset is met;

- the recognition of the asset and the measurement of its cost on
initial recognition;

- the identification of the separately identifiable services (one or
more services in exchange for the transferred asset);

- the recognition of revenue; and
- the accounting for transfers of cash from customers.

The interpretation is unlikely to have any material financial impact on
the Group.

In October 2008, the HKICPA issued its first Improvements to HKFRSs
which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2009. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard. Those amendments
that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group are as
follows:

(a) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Removes the
reference to “total interest income” as a component of finance
costs.

(b) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies that
assets and liabilities which are classified as held for trading in
accordance with HKAS 39 are not automatically classified as
current in the balance sheet.

(c) HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Replaces the term “net
selling price” with “fair value less costs to sell” and the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment is calculated as the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

In addition, items held for rental that are routinely sold in
the ordinary course of business after rental are transferred to
inventory when rental ceases and they are held for sale.

(d) HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Requires that when a parent entity accounts for a subsidiary at
fair value in accordance with HKAS 39 in its separate financial
statements, this treatment continues when the subsidiary is
subsequently classified as held for sale.
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(continued)

2.3

24

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates: Clarifies that an investment
in an associate is a single asset for the purpose of conducting the
impairment test and that no impairment is separately allocated to
goodwill included in the investment balance.

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: When discounted cash flows
are used to estimate “fair value less cost to sell”, additional
disclosure is required about the discount rate, consistent with the
disclosures required when the discounted cash flows are used to
estimate “value in use”.

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: The reference to there being rarely,
if ever, persuasive evidence to support an amortisation method
of intangible assets other than a straight-line method has been
removed.

HKAS 40 Investment Property: Revises the scope such that
property being constructed or developed for future as an
investment property is classified as an investment property.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and its subsidiaries and attributable share of results and

reserves of its associates (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Bank, directly or
indirectly, controls the composition of the board of directors,
controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than
half of the issued share capital; or over which the Bank has a
contractual right to exercise a dominant influence with respect
to that entity’s financial and operating policies. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the
difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share
of its net assets together with any goodwill or negative goodwill
taken to reserves and which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Bank’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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(continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

2.5

(b)  Associates
An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s interests in associates.

The results of associates are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Bank’s investments in associates are treated as non-current assets
and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

For regulatory reporting, the basis of consolidation is set out in
Note 1 of the “Supplementary Financial Information” section.

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest-bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, an interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6

2.7

Non-interest income

Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Commitment fees for loans that
are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on
the loan. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the
syndication has been completed and the Group retained no part of the
loan package for itself or retained a part at the same effective interest
rate as the other participants. Portfolio and other management advisory
and service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts,
usually on a time-apportionate basis.

Net trading income

Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held
for trading and available-for-sale. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of derivatives to the extent as described in the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.10 are reported as “Net trading income”.

Gains and losses on foreign exchange trading and other transactions are
also reported as “Net trading income” except for those gains and losses
on translation of foreign currencies recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.15.

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and assesses
whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from the
host contract which is not measured at fair value through profit or loss
when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the host
contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7

Financial assets (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonable assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the markerplace.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading or
these financial assets are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement does
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; (ii) the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately recorded.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including cash and short term funds,
placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, trade bills and loans and advances to customers,
banks and other financial institutions, are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Such assets are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity when the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at
amortised cost less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost
is computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between the initially
recognised amount and the maturity amount. This calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the investments
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process. Were the Group to sell or reclassify held-to-maturity
investments other than an insignificant amount, the entire category
would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified in
any of the other three categories. After initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains or
losses recognised as a separate component of equity until the
investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity is included in the income statement. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as “net interest income” and “dividend income from
financial investments”. Losses arising from the impairment of
such investments are recognised in the income statement as
“Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial investments”
and are transferred from the investment revaluation reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the assets, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7

2.8

Financial assets (continued)

(e)  Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including cash-settled option or similar
provision on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset,
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of
the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

() Fair value

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes the fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, a discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
Objective evidence of impairment is a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following loss events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

. the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty granting to the borrower, a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

deterioration in the value of collateral;
downgrading below investment grade level; or

observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in
the group, including adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or national or local economic conditions
that correlate with the defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowances are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised. If a loan, a receivable or held-
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset less costs for obtaining and selling
the collateral, reflects the cash flows that may results from
foreclosure whether or not the foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics
(i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process that considers asset
type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, overdue status
and other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows from groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors” ability to pay all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.



B 285 A M

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 BEGEBORMIE @)

2.8 AflE E WAL (80

(a)

(b)

LIS A TR B (1)

— AR AR A R T BUERT AN 2 S
Z BEBlEHE » iR EEZ 54
Bl 4 i bk M B2 AL ) EAR £ BB
R 2 AR A B TR AR BR A AT o
e 15 A0 B AR ¢ B R T LA 2 ORI
B DU A PR R KRB T R 2 %
SRR B BIA RO B > DN
IR A A 9 T AL B IR SIE S 7 22 e

o

MR B A0 7 P A AL AR B v e
TR kA o Sl R BEUAS (] S ] AR B 2 T B
B S E) (3 WSEMEM% - AR
UL > BCHAL AT BHOR B2 AR A 4H 2 2 T A
PeARRARTE 2 Vst ) Iy o] — B o AL HE
Witget AT AR B a8 2 Tk i
B LA TR A B B 1R 2 T 2 2
BE

R RS ] 2 B FRORTE B Ik (ELAR ) < e
T DA o %A SRR IR ST T A L 2R
T P B 5 e 18 B AR T LA < i FI A%
e [ A 1 T Rl < B - A TEIR AR R
PRECHIR(EHER o

A RE — A 2 JI AT > el (8 2
Do [7] IR % 5 2D 7 1B Hb B 5 (B 1R
Bk 2 R IEA B () S0 (55 A5 S AT A
) o B o R YR TR 8 o R 2 ek
(EARZRHE [ o f5 ] 2 < DARZ I e 2 iR
TET {38 ] 22 1 Sz 2R 208 JEC S i A oy B
R AR R PR

T o P 1 2 B

U SR R A B A 2 BB > TAEE
A 1 W BURUERY > &5 R AT
(B R B R R ]S B AR AR
TATEERE [ RG] 3[R IRF[H] ) IG5 AR )
B o WA TEATATB IR U A ol &
M BURAE  FIH R G R — O A
SRR A-PEE 2550 - B il e A
TR R £ 25 A 8 2 AT Bl (B 1R e —
B FEST RS > IR R AR R A RERR o TR
THEE R N A T A8 B 1R &
AR R f ] o QAR S A
PEEE 2 il TR Z PRI - B
SETIMAES B L R el (R TE TR 2R R
TERBAR B 2 B F - HBL (BRI i 18 45
A pEE

s TR 4RAT (ZH) A BR/AH » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 107

TBA\AEAEH » Annual Report 2008

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

©)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the Group and the historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the
basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical
loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in
the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loan is written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowances for
loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income
statement to the extent that the carrying value of the assets does
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
asset is impaired. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement - is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
income statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement.
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2.9 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception.

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, including our own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives, are designated as such at inception. Financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are carried
at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value
are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of sale in the short term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Any interests charged on these financial liabilities
are included in the income statement under “Interest expense”. It
is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in
fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the
entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

A financial liability is designated as fair value through profit or
loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

. The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial liability or
recognising the gains and losses on financial liability on
them on a different basis;

. the liability is part of a group of financial liabilities which
are managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

. the financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.
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(continued)

2.9

2.10

Financial liabilities (continued)

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The
related interest expense is recognised within “Interest expense” in
the income statement.

(c)  Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or
received) unless the fair value of that instrument is better evidenced
by comparison with other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises
profits on day one.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.
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(continued)

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or unrecognised firm commitments (fair value hedge); or (ii)
hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge
accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided
certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.

(a)  Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to the income
statement over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the equity security.

(b)  Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged
takes place).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported
in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.
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2.10

2.12

2.13

2.14

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (“repos”) are
reclassified in the financial statements as pledged assets when the
transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge
the collateral; the counterparty liability is included in deposits from
banks and other financial institutions or deposits from customers, as
appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse
repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to customers, banks or
other financial institutions, as appropriate. The difference between sale
and repurchase prices is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchase and sale
are recorded with the gain or loss included in the trading income. The
obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as off balance-sheet items and
are stated at fair value. In the recovery of impaired loans and advances,
the Group may take possession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. In
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set out in Note 2.8(a),
impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances are maintained
after taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral assets.
On a sale transaction of repossessed assets, the amount received will be
used to offset the loans and advances first until they are fully recovered,
and any remaining amount will be released to the borrowers.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in
providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business segments. A geographical
segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of segments operating in other economic
environments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.15 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(0

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translations
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equity classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the investment revaluation reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities (none
of which has a functional currency which is the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

. income and expenses for each income statement are

translated at the average exchange rate (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are included in a separate component
of equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2.15 Foreign currency translation (continued)
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(d)  Consolidated cash flow statement
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

2.16 Property, plant and equipment

Bank premises and properties comprise mainly branches and offices.
Bank premises and properties are shown at fair value, based on periodic,
but at least triennial, valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is restated proportionately with the change in the gross
carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset
after revaluation equals its revalued amount. All other items of property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank
premises and properties are credited to the bank premises revaluation
reserves in shareholders’ equity. Decreases that offset previous increases
of the same asset are charged against bank premises revaluation reserves
directly in equity; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Each year the difference between the depreciation amount
based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset expensed in the
income statement and the depreciation amount based on the asset’s
original cost is transferred from the bank premises revaluation reserve
to retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Bank premises Over the remaining lease period of the land
and properties on which the properties are situated or

50 years, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the lease terms of the leased premises
or 10 years whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment 4 to 10 years
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.16

2.17

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, with the amount charged directly to the
income statement.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
earnings as a movement in reserves.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long term yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the consolidated
Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment properties comprise land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
an investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with the guidance issued by
the International Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations are
reviewed annually by external valuers. Investment properties that are
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment properties, or for
which the market has become less active, continues to be measured at
fair value.

The fair value of investment properties reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that
could be expected in respect of the properties. Some of those outflows
are recognised as liabilities, including finance lease liabilities in respect
of land classified as investment properties; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.
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(continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties is classified as property, plant and equipment and stated at
cost until construction or development is completed, at which time
they are reclassified and subsequently accounted for as investment
properties.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold interest in the land held for own use is accounted for as being
held under an operating lease where the fair value of the interest in any
buildings situated on the leasehold land could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold interest in land at the time the lease
was first entered into by the Group. The interest in leasehold land is
stated at cost less impairment loss in the balance sheet and is amortised
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease
term.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiaries at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of an associate
is included in “Investments in associates”. The carrying amount of
goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating units is represented
by each primary reporting segment.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet
date.

Gains or losses from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when
the assets are derecognised.

(a)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of four years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the production of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible
assets. Direct costs include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives (not
exceeding four years).

(b)  Trading rights

Trading rights represent eligibility rights with indefinite useful
lives to trade on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and are tested for impairment annually. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable, if not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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(continued)

2.21

2200

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items that
are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit nor loss, it is not accounted for as deferred
income tax. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.22

2.23

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited
directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Employee benefits

(a)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
“ORSO Scheme”) and another defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for those employees of the Group
who are eligible and have elected to participate in the schemes.
The Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme are made based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic salaries and those
made to the MPF Scheme are made based on a percentage of
the eligible employees’ relevant income as defined in the MPF
Scheme. These contributions are expensed as incurred and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees of the
Group who leave the schemes prior to the contributions vesting
fully. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.
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(continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
(i) the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; (ii) it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and (iii) the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease. The Group’s interests in leasehold land
and land use rights are also accounted as operating leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased out are
included in property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet. They
are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent
with similar owned property, plant and equipment. Rental income (net
of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
Group’s control.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the Group’s control, or a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised either because an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
is not probable or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint
control over the Group;

(b)  the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Bank’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and
income arising thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as
they are not assets of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and judgements that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a
monthly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan
in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or in the national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group of borrowers.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future
cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

(b) Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using various valuation techniques
according to the nature of the financial instruments. These include
third party price quotation, a discounted cash flow and option pricing
models. These models are built by reputable system suppliers and are
widely used in the market. They are reviewed and calibrated by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. Valuation outputs
are generated from these systems using relevant current observable
market parameters and are verified before they are used for financial
reporting purposes.

(c) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or
prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share prices. In
addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of a
deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector
performance, changes in technology, and operating and financing cash
flows.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(®

(g)

(h)

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to classify non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability
to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these
investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances,
for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity, it will
be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale financial
investments. The investments would therefore be measured at fair value
and not at amortised cost.

Fair value of bank premises and properties

The fair value of the bank premises and properties is estimated based on
the valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open
market basis.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy for goodwill. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on the value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates of the discount rate and long term growth rate.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that there is sufficient
future taxable profit. Judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning
strategies.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1

Overall risk management

Pursuant to the implementation of Basel II New Accord since January
2007, the Group practices risk management in increasing congruence
with the principles and requirements of the New Accord. The Board
oversight and a top-down approach permeate through the Group’s risk
management structure, product design, processes, policies and internal
control. For its business plan and activities, the Group identifies,
assesses, monitors, controls, reports and reviews the major risks to
ensure capital adequacy and compliance with regulatory guidelines and
the Board’s risk expectation.

Risk management structure and principles

The Group has established policies and procedures for the
identification, measurement, control and monitoring of risk factors
(including credit, liquidity, market, interest rate, operational, legal and
compliance risks). Central to the Group’s risk management is the Board
oversight, which ultimately endorses all core risk policies and their
subsequent amendments. Two Risk Management Committees, one at
Board level and the other at senior executive level, reinforce the Board
and Management’s oversight in the risk management structure, process
and policies. The management of the Group, the Risk Management
Department and the relevant functional committees review and revise
these policies and procedures on a regular basis, and the Group’s
Internal Audit Department also performs regular checks to ensure due
compliance with policies and procedures.

The Risk Management Department, headed by the Chief Risk
Officer (CRO), is responsible for credit, market and operational risk
management, reporting in turn to the Deputy General Manager in
charge of risk and ultimately to the Risk Management Committee of
the Board of Directors. The following diagram depicts the Group’s risk
management structure under the Basel II regime and compatible with
relevant HKMA guidelines.
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4.1 Overall risk management (continued)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower or counter party of the Group will
be unable or unwilling to honor a repayment obligation. The Group
has standards, policies and procedures and designated functional
departments in place to control and monitor these risks.

The Group devotes considerable resources to maintaining sound credit
risk management. Management has set credit policies and systems to
identify, measure, monitor and control risks inherent in various lending
businesses. This process ensures prudence, minimises operational
omissions in credit matters, and aims at early detection of potential
problems, thereby minimising business loss. With the enlarged lending
operation of the Bank to SMEs, credit policies and practice apposite to
their risk monitoring are adopted or modified to maintain the desired
credit standard as the Bank increasingly penetrates into the SME sector.

High-level credit policies of the Group are set, reviewed and constantly
updated by the relevant functional departments and committees, and for
prominent issues, by the Board of the Directors to take balanced accounts
of dynamic market situation, regulatory requirement, the Group’s usual
prudent lending practices and its latest business strategies. All these
credit policies, processes and practices, as they are developed, updated,
reviewed and revised, are written now and then into Credit Manuals
and supplementary lending product manuals for internal control and
compliance purposes. Given the Basel IT Capital Accord implemented
since January 2007, the Group has been adjusting its credit risk
management practice in line with the relevant guidelines released by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority and for the sake of enhancing internal
credit control processing efficiency and product competitiveness.

Credit authorities are delegated to individual approvers for efficiency and
productivity purposes. Except for taxi loans, small business loans and
consumer loans, no business originating units can singly approve any
loan. Loans singly approved by business originating units are nevertheless
still subject to approval criteria pre-set by the Credit Function or Credit
Committee. Otherwise, the Group generally requires “dual” approval
whereby loan proposals shall require joint approval by the Business Line
and Credit Function. The Bank’s Credit Committee, which approves all
credit policies and large loans, shall not pass any credit related proposal if
its Credit Function approvers disagree. Only the loan proposals approved
by Credit Committee would be submitted to Chief Executive Officer for
signature if and where it is needed.

The Credit Analysis and Administration Department is the centralised
department in the Bank mandated to carry out credit policies. It
performs independent credit assessment, post-approval credit
administration and other credit control functions to ensure that the
credit process complies with credit policies and guidelines laid down
by management. Apart from the independent credit assessment and
matrix approval process, regular post approval inspection by the Risk
Management Department and credit audits are conducted on specific
loan portfolios or operating units in the credit process. To maintain
its independence, the Credit Analysis and Administration Department
of the Bank has a direct reporting line to a Deputy General Manager
independent of business. Same control, supplemented by system
support, regular mark-to-market and case-by-case approval by the Risk
Management Department, also applies to the counter party credit risk
of structured derivative products.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk (continued)

Management spares no efforts in monitoring the quality and behaviour
of the loan portfolio. The Group’s internal credit risk grading system
consisting of 15 grades built on Basel II - compliant attributes is
adopted for credit risk differentiation purposes. With internal data to be
constantly enriched through years of experience, it is expected that the
Group can make further use of the credit statistics to profile and track
down credit risk migration, to measure loan default probabilities and
to practice other credit risk management processes, of which the new
credit rating model is and will substantially be an integral part.

The Group’s quarterly credit guidelines and quarterly loan portfolio
review have been practised for years. In economic bad times, it is basic
to the mechanism for initiating pre-emptive measures to help stabilise
the quality of the Group’s loan asset portfolio. Given that the market
liquidity of investment papers tends to rapidly dry up when global
economic conditions suffer, the Group increases its reliance, too, on the
Credit Function and on the Credit Committee in the approval and risk
monitoring process of these investment papers.

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or

Ny other credit enhancements
AR X3y
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T#L T T Tt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HHEEARENZ Credit risk exposures relating to
e Se B A on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
B4 RARSRATEL AL Cash and balances with banks and
SR 5T other financial institutions 28,678,778 43,666,354 27,649,423 43,160,520
FESRAT R E M4 b s 2 Placements with and advances to banks
FEk R and other financial institutions 844,358 1,005,234 1,660,123 1,620,813
FHER S S REE Financial assets held for trading 52,051 54,256 52,051 54,256
BEUATRAKHG R Financial assets designated at
ARZ MG RE fair value through profit or loss 1,488,003 1,754,742 1,488,003 1,754,742
eI Derivative financial instruments 2,308,702 1,213,738 2,308,702 1,226,446
B~ T R Loans and advances to customers, banks
SRBEZ AR and other financial institutions 137,082,721 121,703,671 128,285,852 114,877,082
s & SR A Available-for-sale financial investments 17,403,075 15,326,911 17,402,458 15,326,248
FHZI M ERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,976,403 3,313,817 1,976,403 3,313,817
HWEREAREUIIZ Credit risk exposures relating to off-
e Se B balance sheet items are as follows:
BARGE LAhfs EEA B R Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 17,994,335 90,836,109 5,752,305 89,765,349
S A % B HCA 5 B AR R R 2 £ Financial guarantees and other credit
related contingent liabilities 71,723,015 6,573,592 71,525,226 6,530,247
RESH At balance sheet date 279,551,441 285,448,424 258,100,546 277,629,520
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4 B B BE () 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 %EELFXAX (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
b) FEEHZF (b)  Credit quality
jow 6k Gross loans and advances
() %5 BVE 2 00 HE 2 A R AR Al (i)  Distribution of gross loans and advances by credit quality
B is summarised as follows:
A4 AHT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T#L T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
%P 2 S Gross loans and advances to customers:
— BRI A B E - neither past due nor impaired 117,918,865 99,331,362 109,378,442 92,578,451
—BEER A - past due but not impaired 1,230,299 808,227 1,226,677 808,227
—BRfH - impaired 888,965 646,603 835,897 646,603
M5t Total 120,038,129 100,786,192 111,441,016 94,033,281
AGH AT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T# TH#T T Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
SRAT oL qth 5 1 Gross loans and advances to banks
ZEHAE and other financial institutions:
— WA AR A (1 - neither past due nor impaired 16,731,818 20,641,536 16,556,691 20,588,784
—CEHEREA - past due but not impaired - - - -
—EBE - impaired - - - -
5t Total 16,731,818 20,641,536 16,556,691 20,588,784
(i)  BEAREHATR R 2 SR AR (ii) Distribution of gross loans and advances that are neither
past due nor impaired
A H IR SR A 8 R (B 2 R The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances
HE 5 B R 2 IS BT IR that were neither past due nor impaired at the balance sheet
AN BB AP RR R ST REAL © dates can be assessed by reference to the internal rating
system adopted by the Group.
ARG AT
Group Bank
MR EE
RhTAL LA 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Eh i Internal S&P’s T T T THT
Credit rating rating Equivalent HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
A Pass Grades A-E AAA to BBB- 34,061,738 38,227,539 33,393,354 37,961,197
F-H BB+to BB 70,190,588 59,275,277 65,952,459 55,345,444
L] BB-to B+ 24,189,154 14,020,010 20,666,337 11,410,522
BYERA Special Mention KL Bto CCC- 6,209,203 8,450,072 5,922,983 8,450,072
A5t Total 134,650,683 119,972,898 125,935,133 113,167,235




128 " TREER T (SEM) A BR/A W » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZE)\4EAEHR » Annual Report 2008

B 285 e Mt

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 SRR B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
42 fEEEEE @) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) FEEZ (45) (b)  Credit quality (continued)

AR (D) Gross loans and advances (continued)

(i) BRI IR R W 2 S R AR A A (ii)  Distribution of gross loans and advances that are neither
(#7) past due nor impaired (continued)
MR TS > ABURE S Ah The various internal and external rating criteria and
ST SR UE T AR P T A A 28 — ] calibration are mapped back to one single internal credit
— NS T AR HE o B E S AT ST rating scale for statistical and regulatory purposes. The
BRI AR A 45 TR 30 40 I A Y 3L 7 Standard & Poor’s (S&P) ratings are based on mapping the
2 R PIELI R FT G individual probability of default of each internal grade with

that of the Standard & Poor’s ratings.
15 S0 M A5 B 2 B & P {8 B The Credit Function and the Credit Committee decide
NG FRTR o {5 BT AR 2 E &= an individual borrower’s credit rating. Credit rating is
T A B M 2 18] ) 7 4 AE R ATE ] B a function of quantitative and management attributes.
o KPR R ~ HRE 48 51 JeA7 R Economic outlook, account conduct and industry risk are
BRI £ 7% BRI 3R o A A [ g R 7Y 0 also the consideration factors. The Group has a different
CINSGUNGE Ha e NGRS 0D rating scale for large corporates and SMEs. The external
RRUET T~ 72 7 HOBAE S1 AL RT AR rating of S&P, Moodys and Fitch will be adopted, if
AAE AT FAE DL T T RAER A available.
T RTIAE B RTR The following table gives a distribution of the Group’s total
AR o AREEMHAAERE T 8 loans and advances by credit rating. The Group calibrates
HAZEOMK » W A —FEFFAFRMEL its borrowing customers into Grade A - Grade O and
5 H Z INREF- 247 %4 % (PD) works out their respective weighted average probability of
KRB RZR (LGD) » default (PD) and loss given default (LGD) since 2005.
40 48 4 A = J Pass Grades A to J
A A A K # L Special Mention Grades K to L
N RS M Z® O Non-Performing M to (0]
Bl (NPL) Loan Grades (NPL)

A—J#F - SN B R BT R e K Grades A - J: Loans where borrowers are currently in
R HAE R R B KA 5 T TR A [ meeting commitment and full repayment of interest and
2K o BUATEIRIY 2y AZ T3 1018 principal is not in doubt. There are 10 grades within the
Bl o performing category from A to J.
K—L &% - Bk i 10 ] R — 18 A Grades K - L: All pass grade accounts which have overdue
Z A A SR F R R AR 2 B loans for a period exceeding one month are subject to being
AT > B IE A AR i B AN downgraded to special mention rating or below, unless
TP RE AR o BN A s & R B with strong justification irrespective of the internal ratings.
it 5 78 2 B AR P SRS J A 8RR — Borrowers exhibiting one or more of the characteristics per
R A E R &I B RMD the HKMA'’s special mention or non-performing grades
Z A B BB 70 o DR A AR definition will also be subjected to downgrading as decided

Al o by the Credit Control and Policy Section of RMD.
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4 PAE R B (0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 %EELFXAE (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
b) FEEZE (4 (b)  Credit quality (continued)
BE AR (4 Gross loans and advances (continued)
(iii) B A E R 2 SR AR (iii) Gross loans and advances which were past due but not
impaired
AR 43 A8 7 ik &6 B 2 e I(E R The analysis below shows the gross loans and advances to
WAEZ B - 847 M H A S R customers, banks and other financial institutions that were
Z B past due but not impaired at the balance sheet date:
A4 AGHUT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
TH#x THIT TH#x TH#IT
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
A AN A 30 H Past due up to 30 days 748,891 717,548 748,891 717,548
A 31-60 H Past due 31-60 days 73,419 72,717 69,797 72,717
i 61-90 H Past due 61-90 days 404,953 12,530 404,953 12,530
oo H LA E Past due over 90 days 3,036 5,432 3,036 5,432
Aat Total 1,230,299 808,227 1,226,677 808,227
A 2 AP EE Fair value of collateral 1,034,412 624,871 1,030,790 624,871
FRECMBHSD » R FFNER Other than gross loans and advances, no financial assets
FRLCFEZEHERR - M BAT o] 5 were past due but not impaired at the balance sheet dates of
B T A R o 2008 and 2007.
b ISR B e A R AR o B Where collateral values are greater than gross loans and
FEA IR 2 7 R i R AR 2 SIS A advances, only the amount of collateral up to the gross
£ loans and advances was included.
Gv) AP E A2 S (iv) Loans and advances individually impaired
A B2 8 2 A 1 28 BOR o 2 30 ot The Group has a policy of downgrading customers to the
90 H 2. % F WK Z NPLAR Al - Zai i NPL grade when overdue is longer than 90 days. Very
120 H BA_E 2 A B B0 (B8 AL 3 seldom would outstandings for over 120 days be retained
A > T IR WA IR in pass grade instead of the impaired. Impaired accounts
o EREIRIE — M 2 R ] are typically transferred to management by the Special
JEE PR B > DA [ g 2 5t K Ty Assets Department, so that the prospect and means of
= BB A B I8 57 T DAREAG - BeE recovery can be more independently evaluated, decided
KB o MR 4 A B 2 & P RE A and implemented. The Special Assets Department may
PREEFS > 102 S5 HEAH o R w5 5 not take any immediate recovery action or even in help in
ZAFRUEET R B E - R AR A circumstances where the customer in question is deemed
P8 T AR ¢ HB A e A R i ol A7 ) to be able to be rehabilitated and the collateral is important
HEGEZAKST - AEBBRG to the customer’s continued business operation. The Group
AR — B0 2 HAbEHE N GRAT may at times join or seek agreement with other creditor
R B A T o I > A banks to stand still in concert. Otherwise, the Group will
AR B PR BUE E 1 il - DMRER take appropriate measures to preserve the customer’s
R FaglE > Sl H KRR assets, to maximise recovery and to fast realise property
75 FA NS B A B4 5 DL B BOH collateral in a timely manner either by private sale or by
AN B 2 1 34 (BT AL 2 AR A 7 DR public auction at prices that are in acceptable proximity
B SEHAR A with the average of several external valuations.
A B2 B R A — T 25 1B 1l el R The Group adopts an objective individual impairment
DLAF & 7 s 6 sl 28 R 55 39 5% 2 policy in compliance with HKAS 39 requirements.
FE o WRAE B E (A0 A7) AT — FE W Impairment requirement, if any, can always be traced back
4 HTE M A AR B N to reasonably expected discounted repayment cash flows

K/ B ESHEAL 2 HEH 5 AT S VR o and/or the assessed net realizable value of collateral.
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4 BB B ca) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 %EELFXAX (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
b) 1FEEZE %) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
AR AERE (%) Gross loans and advances (continued)
(v) A5 AT A A 2 S T K (v)  Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired
AT B A e Restructuring activities include extended payment
LW 2 ST HRGHE  AEHT S 4 arrangements, approved external management plans,
BINTR o R E AR > SERTE R F modification and deferral of payments. Following
MR TE T 558 % 78 B — IR Dl A B restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is
T RRTELAEE AT 8 B o T A1 BOR reset to a normal status and managed together with other
181 07 R B A R A similar accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are
N RE A A 2 TR SR AT - % based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgement
EHUR T A A A B AR - AW of management, indicate that payment will most likely
B R A B ROU R & F LA continue. These policies are kept under continuous
B PR /E+H =+— review. Restructuring is most commonly applied to term
H oo K 55 47 780 30 sR0ek (E 2 3607 ik loans, in particular customer finance loans. Renegotiated
Bk kst 6,651,801 # T (—FF L loans that would otherwise be past due or impaired
4R 1 2,333,013¥50) totalled HK$6,651,801 as at 31 December 2008 (2007:
HK$2,333,013).
(e ETie Debt and equity securities
T AR AR E B 7 2 R A Financial investments by rating agency designation
FERIRA T = — R AR The tables below present an analysis of financial investments by
FE B0 2 SR AT o TR R rating agency designation at 31 December, based on Standard &
2 AR B AR A S B 2 S g SR Poor’s ratings or their equivalent to the respective categories of
AT o IERA L BT BT - A financial investments. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
PR BREEAT NPRAN 2 5TAEE A - rating scale adopted by the issuers are used.
L)) ik HHE
R BFRUE L 8%
Trading Designated Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity it
assets at fair value investments investments Total
A%EH Group T T T T T
“ERNE 2008 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
AAA AAA - - 1,700,548 - 1,700,548
AA-F AA+ AA-to AA+ 628 200,119 2,192,436 1,219,821 3,613,004
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 46,728 399,792 9,051,465 756,582 10,254,567
fEGH A- Lower than A- 4,695 695,092 4241970 - 4,941,757
Ktk Unrated - 193,000 216,656 - 409,636
st Total 52,051 1,488,003 17,403,075 1,976,403 20,919,532
FiEbh it ES
ZHERE ATEE HERE HE
Trading Designated  Available-for-sale ~ Held-to-maturity gt
assets at fair value investments investments Total
AR Group T T T T T
“EEAA 2007 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
AAA AAA - - 432,060 - 432,060
AA-F AA+ AA-to AA+ 14,553 303,416 2,824,413 2,266,860 5,409,242
A-FA+ A-to A+ 39,703 522,790 6,159,406 965,314 7,687,213
fEGHA A- Lower than A- - 928,536 5,312,941 81,643 6,323,120
Atk Unrated - - 598,091 - 598,091

At Total 54,256 1,754,742 15,326,911 3,313,817 20,449,726
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4 RS ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 %EELFXAX (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) (B () (b)  Credit quality (continued)
55 I B B R () Debt and equity securities (continued)

EEE

e itk #¥%

RO EE AR HEHE Held-to-
Trading Designated Available-for-sale maturity A5t
assets at fair value investments investments Total
AT Bank T T T T T#x
ZRBNA 2008 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
AAA AAA - - 1,700,548 - 1,700,548
AA-E AA+ AA-to AA+ 628 200,119 2,192,436 1,219,821 3,613,004
A-EA+ A-toA+ 46,728 399,792 9,051,465 756,582 10,254,567
B A- Lower than A- 4,695 695,092 4241970 - 4,941,757
Ktk Unrated - 193,000 216,039 - 409,039
st Total 52,051 1,488,003 17,402,458 1,976,403 20,918,915

Fef 22

faE fifle 14

o EE ATEE BERE Held-to-
Trading Designated  Available-for-sale maturity gt
assets at fair value investments investments Total
i) Bank T T T T T
e S 2007 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
AAA AAA = = 432,060 = 432,060
AA-B AA+ AA-to AA+ 14,553 303,416 2824413 2,266,860 5,409,242
A-EA+ A-toA+ 39,703 522,790 6,159,406 965,314 7,687,213
&R A- Lower than A- - 928,536 5,312,941 81,643 6,323,120
Ktk Unrated - = 597,428 - 597,428
At Total 54,256 1,754,742 15,326,248 3313817 20,449,063
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4.2 [ EREBE 4

(®)

FEEZ (%)
55 I B B R ()

g G

MoEENEFH=+—H » ARG
EH B RSB 181EH T - FE L
EZ 161 R TLIER11.9% » Hh 45T
AL BB 24.9% KT —EE LA
FIH o A A REH 2 KERAY DAZE I it
JeRHE - EREE AT ~ WoT & B o5 H
fil B MR HE o BEAMEIN S > 4 90% 2 A AE
352 JE\ S AR A AL 8 B S N B (AR S 17

B o R2AH A AR 90% Jag I 1 B AR IR
N o ARRAT 2 A5 AL S AR R e A T At

JEBG B BAEZR AL - NI4T A B A TR SC R E
ZINFBICETET| > A R G T
HEFAEET —EFN - EATERNE
A ERAT I SEFE A K S 2 (TeDOo))
N 5 B0 R AR A% e v o > (HRR AT A T A
H&E T H([SIV ) Je i 2 4% 18 46 4 7% 5
(TCMBS]) °

R EER AR > AR AT STV £ &
234,000,000 ¥ JC B 75% > 3% SIV &
A Z T N4 H B 1 T A Barion
Funding Ltd. % Mazarin Funding Ltd. > ifi
H A5 WA 0 Al B AT — RIS S FE A% 25 BBB
B 2 Hi JE A5 K e AR A S R A — M IR Ak
W g B o ARSRAT IS BT )\ ER% %
STV # &4 — 25 il 33,000,000 ¥ T Bk il
W 11% > A 2 4 AR A e (15 7R % 2 STV 4%
¥ 7 44,000,000 #5 UG o B A RE MO > A
SRAT C A SIV & i & 3L 86% o 4F
N > A ERAT IR ER 5 Al £ 77,000,000 # TG
611,000,000 #5 7T 5 1,000,000 #5762 2 i,
AT IR EEIE - KRS = RBITEITZ
TR EER ST B LR B T 2 R R B SRR
fin 7 HAVE R BB - AERAIT I AE AR
B A E AT 2 AL BOR B B EUR -

AGRAT A AE AR IR AT 4818 {H 253,000,000 7
7T M A8 I 17 {E 239,000,000 #5752 CMBS
% o Hirb 5 98,000,000 7 T HE 1M (B 2 % &
B AAA R (LI A i 2 ZE I ot
By2E) J 141,000,000 ¥ 7 BR 1A {H 2~ % & &
A- B CELHEAL A Ho [ A 2 24 Hi g o
W) - BEFE LIS 2 SRR E
A > HARIA LT K FETTEHE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b)

Credit quality (continued)
Debt and equity securities (continued)

Investment Portfolio

As at 31 December 2008, the Bank’s debt securities portfolio
amounted to HK$18.1 billion, with a 11.9% increase over the
HK$16.1 billion in 2007. HK$4.5 billion or 24.9% of total bond
portfolio will mature in 2009. The majority of total bond portfolio
are denominated in US$ and HK$ whereas the rest are in other
currencies, such as €, A$ and ¥. In terms of classification over 90%
of the outstanding exposures are kept in the available-for-sale
and fair value book categories. Over 90% of total portfolio falls
within the investment grade category. The Bank’s debt securities
portfolio operates under a strict and prudent risk management
framework and is in compliance with all pre-determined internal
investment guidelines, which are reviewed and approved by the
Board of Directors annually. It is noteworthy that the Bank has
no exposure to collateralised debt obligations (“CDOs”) and
US subprime mortgages but has some exposures to structured-
investment vehicles (“SIVs”) and commercial mortgage-backed
securities (“CMBSs”).

In 2007, the Bank took HK$234 million or 75% write-downs for
its SIV investment and this SIV investment was restructured
into two separate entities, namely Barion Funding Ltd. and
Mazarin Funding Ltd. which comprised of one slow pay senior
income notes with credit rating of BBB and one junior income
notes issued by each entity respectively in February 2008. The
Bank took a further HK$33 million or 11% write-downs for SIV
investments in 2008 and ended the year with HK$44 million of
SIV exposures remaining after the impairment. As a result of
the additional write-downs, the Bank has made a total of 86%
write-downs for SIV investments. During the year, the Bank also
made full impairment of a floating rate note issued by Lehman
Brothers, floating rate notes issued by three major banks in
Iceland and minibonds issued by Lehman Brothers of HK$77
million, HK$611 million and HK$1 million respectively to the
income statement. The Bank will continue its diversification as
well as quality policy in its debt securities investment.

The Bank also has exposures on CMBS investments with a
total nominal value of HK$253 million and a carrying value of
HK$239 million at the end of the year. Among these, investments
of carrying value of HK$98 million ranked AAA which include
retail mall properties in Hong Kong and investments of a
carrying value of HK$141 million ranked A-which include retail
mall properties in Mainland China. The majority of them are
denominated in HK$ and US$ under available-for-sale financial
investment portfolios.
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4 RS ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
42 fEEEEE @) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(¢ MiETAR (c)  Derivatives

A S B RSP R AT AR 5 4 SRR AR P22 ) o
AEATIRE ] 7R3 A5 B B < B B DA
AL B 2 TR (B AP (5 IE B %
SEE) BT AFEERGR > SfTET
B 5 FUG G 2 — @85 > sl
DL R AE R TR 2 Wik 2 A4 A -
TR THA 5 B A i S R A 5 TR
A8 o T 4 S R R A R R A
— PRI o WA T H 25 BRI A= AL
AR AT iy A A A S 2R
HT O SRR e 2 ULERA) ©

AT REATH LT

A R BUEEAT 38 5y 22 5 T S 48
BRA A  FEE LA E B R
B o RUFEAEE LA e EEEA
iR R RO (3G > SRR 5
WA o AT > AR ERER S
5 RO AR T e R T PR A R B 2
W05 52 5y 365 75 T A (i S0 452 L 2 H AL
=

15 BB Rty

%A T L 2 o I A DR < ) A
B FETEA T2 A AT R AR A o R
oM A T w8 T AR 4R L B Rt S B Ak [T 9
PR > HERBAS SR BB A2 2 R BB M5 =
AT EAR AR AT > MiRzss TAARA
SLEERA R 2 {5 BE B o BB T 7 215
it o AR A O TR AR P RS =0
T W) 2 e R A 1 A S B BUCRE — T
W2 ARIH > J8 S 3OR ek ) DA 2
PR YIE A AR - R B A £ 2
B -

B E R R RERDAR - PR E &G
45 T e 8 T A A% 5 B 2 R B T
g3 o A B P B AR SRS A5 S > A
2 10 T S TR R R B AN 3 7 R B
AR KRH o SR - RIS 7E Jc SR 155 0L
T HBwHEMNZEE RRAFFRZE
TEARREIN L — SRR E R B EOR AR AEAIR
AR ARG A AR o AR B G il (5
PR Z R A > IR A2 K —
P S F AR A7 R BOR R BE ) £ LB

The Group maintains strict control limits on open derivative
positions. At any one time, the amount subject to credit risk is
limited to the current fair value of instruments that are favourable
to the Group (i.e., assets where their fair values are positive),
which is only a small fraction of the contracts in relation to
derivatives, or is limited to the notional values used to express the
volume of instruments outstanding. This credit risk exposure is
managed as part of the overall lending limits with counterparties
on nominal amounts. Collateral or other security is not usually
obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except
where the Group requires margin deposits from counterparties.

Master netting arrangements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset
of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as transactions are usually
settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk is reduced by
a master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of
default occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated
and settled on a net basis.

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer to settle his obligations as required.
Guarantees and standby letters of credit which represent
irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the
event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties
carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial
letters of credit which are written undertakings by the Group
on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to draw drafts
on the Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms
and conditions are collateralised by the underlying shipments
of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a
direct lending.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments
to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in
an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However,
even the worst scenario, loss is likely to be less than the total
unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit
are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit
standards. The Group monitors the term to maturity of credit
commitments because longer-term commitments generally have
a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

o

()

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to
customers in the forms of mortgages over property, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.
Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to banks,
except when securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and
securities borrowing activities. Collateral held as security for
financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by
the nature of the instrument.

Credit risk stress test

In accordance with HKMA supervisory policy guidelines, the
Group runs counterparty credit risk stress tests periodically in
estimation of the probable credit loss in a mild, moderate and
severe crisis scenario. The Group performs credit risk stress test
on the basis of the empirical data during the Asian financial crisis
spanning 2000 and 2004, including the 2003 SARS epidemic.
The Risk Management Committee reviews the stress test, their
parameters and their impact on the Group’s regulatory capital
adequacy ratio. Contingent measures will be devised to control
possible adversities, if deemed necessary.

The following table summarises the result of the Group’s latest
credit risk stress tests for counterparties.

ZRB)MEFSAZST— SERRLEF A=A

1 B B Crisis scenario 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
B RIEH K (H EHET) Mild NPL (HK$’ million) 5,611 4,242
I B (%) NPL ratio (%) 4.67% 4.22%
TEHAME S48k (A B on) Expected credit loss (HK$’ million) 828 551
AN NBEH) SR (H #ETT) Moderate  NPL (HK$’ million) 6,548 4,876
B H LR (%) NPL ratio (%) 5.45% 4.85%
TEME % (H BHo) Expected credit loss (HK$’ million) 1,158 766
&N ANIE B (1 #HETT) Severe NPL (HK$’ million) 7,497 5,450
AN KRR (%) NPL ratio (%) 6.24% 5.47%
TEIA(E 8K (A Eon) Expected credit loss (HK$’ million) 1,549 1,020

B b E SRR A i E R B
HEAT 7 B i 2 I o i B E AT
AR o A5 R BBOR i BE (N A7) T
DATHAE ~ Ffa ~ SR - KA L%
A TR T 46% 1) S 287 EE SR A IUA R
A SRR A

All the above credit risk reports are reviewed monthly by
the Credit Committee or quarterly by the Risk Management
Committees. Warning signals or policy deviations, if any,
will be investigated, discussed, rectified or dealt with, and, if
necessary, be reported to the Board in due course for information,
instruction or approval.
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4.3 Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that market rates and prices on assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet positions change, thus causing profits or losses.
Generally, the Group’s market risk is associated with its positions
in foreign exchange, money market, debt securities, derivatives and
recently stocks. Most off-balance sheet derivative positions arise
from the execution of customer-related orders and positions taken
for hedging purposes. Structured products are offered to customers
in most cases on a back-to-back basis to maintain the Bank’s market
competitiveness at a minimal market risk, commensurate with the
Group’s risk appetite.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to optimise
return and control market risk in ways consistent with the Group’s
status as a premier provider of financial products and services as well as
the Group’s risk profile.

The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or
non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios include those positions
arising from market-making, proprietary position taking and other
mark-to-market positions so designated. Non-trading portfolios
primarily arise from the effective interest rate management of the
Group’s retail, corporate and commercial banking assets and liabilities.

(a)  Market risk management framework

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions
is managed within risk limits and guidelines approved by
the management and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”), and for prominent issues, by the Board of
Directors. Trading limits are increased for opportunities in the
market. Exposures are measured and monitored against limits on
positions, stop-loss, value-at-risk, sensitivity, delta, gamma, etc.
Daily risk monitoring is carried out by an independent Market
Risk unit of the Risk Management Department, which ensures
all dealing activities are conducted in a proper mode and within
approved limits. The Group’s market risk exposures are reviewed
by ALCO and the Risk Management Committees. All exceptions
to limits are reported to the ALCO. Important derivations, if
any, will be escalated to the Board’s attention. Stress tests are
performed regularly to estimate the possible losses under extreme
circumstances. The Group’s Internal Audit Department also
performs regular review and testing on dealing activities to ensure
compliance with all internal guidelines.

Besides, various reputable treasury systems are being used to
further strengthen the functions of control and monitoring,
supplemented as mentioned by, among others, predetermined
stop-loss limits to keep the risk of increased trading limits at bay.
An enhanced system is in process of installation with a view to
ultimately strengthening the Group’s market risk management
and counterparty credit risk control for structured products.
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4 RS ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TR B B (a1 4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(b) TR (b)  Measurement of market risk
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Measurement techniques used to quantify the market risk
arising from the Bank’s trading and non-trading activities
include sensitivity analysis and stress testing. Sensitivity
measures, concentration and stop-loss limits are used as the risk
management tools. Limits are set for each portfolio, product
and risk type. Stress tests are performed regularly to assess the
potential losses under extreme circumstances. The ALCO and the
Risk Management Commmittees review stress test results on a
regular basis.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group’s position may be
adversely affected by a change in market interest rates. Interest
rate risk arises mainly from the maturity mismatch of interest-
bearing assets and liabilities and yield curve movements. Interest
rate risk exposures are managed within risk limits approved
and monitored by the ALCO with the participation of the
Risk Management Department and the Asset and Liability
Management Department. Interest rate risk exposures in non-
trading portfolio are measured once a month and the results are
reported to the ALCO.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by way of entering into
on or off-balance sheet interest rate risk hedging instruments.
The effectiveness of the hedging activities is assessed regularly
in accordance with HKAS 39. The Group’s interest rate risk
position is further regularly reported to and scrutinised by the
Risk Management Committees.

Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets
is normally hedged using currency swaps or forward exchange
contracts to neutralise foreign exchange risk.

The Group counts and will count on stop loss, management
trigger limits, stress test and a software system in installation to
manage its interest rate risk.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the table are the Group’s assets and liabilities
at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing and maturity dates.
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4 R B ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG AR B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(o) FIZEmE gz (4E) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
~MARK ~Z=HN =212 HA —& ik TNk Fitk
Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest it
1 month months months years years bearing Total
AEM Group T THL T#x T#x T T T#x
ZEEMNFFZH=F-H At31December 2008 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$1000 HKS$000
Kk Assets
BERESTRMERRHEAM  Cashand balances with banks and

SRR SR other financial institutions 28,116,080 - - - - 562,698 28,678,778
TES1T R M & RN Placements with and advances to

ZHH AR banks and other financial institutions - 689,360 154,998 - - - 844358
i T Financial assets held for trading - 50 5,692 25,109 - 21,200 52,051
REDATEASHER  Financial assets designated at fair

NEZ EREE value through profit or loss - - 77,400 923,444 487,159 - 1,488,003
ik EMTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,308,702 2,308,702
K BRI Loans and advances to customers,

SRR SR banks and other financial institutions 95,205,918 30,084,808 11,086,371 466,590 139,535 99,499 137,082,721
fittdERE Available-for-sale investments 1,836,298 4,154,659 1,850,926 6,458,068 1,818947 1,284,177 17,403,075
IHREMRE Held-to-maturity investments 292,086 292852 1,361,659 29,806 - - 1,976,403
K&z Other assets 734,126 - - - - 3,995,892 4730018
b Total assets 126,184,508 35,221,729 14,537,046 7,903,017 2,445,641 8,272,168 194,564,109
Al Liabilities
BITRER AR Deposits from banks and

YA & other financial institutions 6,896,715 12,031,964 778,690 - - 349,387 20,056,756
it EMTR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 3,296,670 3,296,670
AT Deposits from customers 102,133,978 21,024,863 10,973,517 36,087 10,075 4004812 138,183,332
EETE Certificates of deposit issued 250,000 1,220,762 2,261,857 579,742 - - 4,312,361
EUATHEESBEER  Debt securities in issue designated

NEZE#7EH atfair value through profit or loss - 3,146,399 - - - - 3,146,399
PSSR ATRZ Subordinated debts measured

R atamortised cost 3,061,290 3,712,5% 1,782,523 - - - 8,556,348
Hith & Other liabilities 83,761 - - - - 2,990,704 3,074,465
AEHH Total liabilities 112,425,744 41,136,523 15,796,587 615,829 10075 10,641,573 180,626,331
AR A Total interest sensitivity gap 13,758,764 (5,914,794) (1,259,541) 7,287,188 2,435,566 (2,369,405) 13,937,778
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4 R B ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG AR B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(o) FIZEmE gz (4E) (c)  Interest rate risk (continued)
—[iAR —Z=fiA =2+2fA —ZR4 HEYE RitE
Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest st
1 month months months years years bearing Total
KEM Group FHL THL T FT Tt Tl T
“RRLHATH=1—H  At31 December 2007 HK$ 1000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HKS'000
(i Assets
BERAERTRERRIM  Cash and balances with banks and

SRR R other financial institutions 42984966 = = = = 681,388 43,666,354
TR R AR Placements with and advances to

ZHH e banks and other financial institutions = £,826 962,408 = = = 1,005,234
A ke AR Financial assets held for trading - - 14,139 2517 - 37,600 54256
FEUATEESHEE  Financial assets designated at fair

MNEZ B R value through profit or loss 100,006 - - 372,348 1,282,388 - 1,754,742
it eI Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 1,213,738 1,213,738
%F -~ f1 R Loans and advances to customers,

SRRFEZER banks and other financial institutions 74,035,240 27,390,941 16,982,279 2,927,774 294317 73,120 121,703,671
fifksrERE Available-for-sale investments 2,776,506 3,586,122 1,800,386 3,070,317 1,619,352 2473728 15326911
FHEERE Held-to-maturity investments 1,054,165 1,373,291 804718 81,643 - - 3313817
HitgeE Other asses 287,308 = = = = 3,978,029 4265337
i Total assets 121,238,191 32,393,180 20,564,430 6,454,599 3,196,057 8,457,603 192,304,060
fifg Liabilities
SRR Deposits from banks and

V&S other financial institutions 10,370,899 6,294755 2,827,990 = = 742,162 20,235,806
ik EMTR Derivative financial instruments = = = - = 1,351,698 1,351,698
Rt Deposits from customers 109,308,760 20,642,716 2,645,960 30,816 10,141 4,391,834 137,530,227
BE#fTE Certificates of deposit issued 544,084 357,823 1,389,505 1,413,984 - - 3,705,396
BEEUATHEESEGE  Debt securities in issue designated

MNEZEBTTEE atfair value through profit o loss - 3119872 - - - - 3,119,872
ARSI A B2 Subordinated debts measured

iR at amortised cost 2,021,156 3,730,280 1,794,184 S = = 7,545,620
Hihf b Other liabilities 194,760 = = = = 3,612,542 3,807,302
AR Total liabilities 122,939,659 34,145,446 8,657,639 1,444,800 10,141 10,098,236 177,295,921
PUEL T Total interest sensitivity gap (1,701,468) (1,752,266) 11,906,791 5,009,799 3185916 (1,640,633) 15,008,139
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4 R B ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG AR B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(o) FIZEmE gz (4E) (c)  Interest rate risk (continued)
= L = i =&#+2HA —& ik HiAED L Fith
Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest Higt
1 month months months years years bearing Total
ART Bank T#L THL T T TR THL T
ZZFNEFZAZH  At31December 2008 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
(i Assets
BERAERTRERRIM  Cash and balances with banks and

SRR R other financial institutions 27,288,086 - - - - 361,337 27,649,423
TR R &R Placements with and advances to

ZHHBER banks and other financial institutions - 496,415 1,163,708 - - - 1,660,123
G AR Financial assets held for trading - 50 5,692 25,109 - 21,200 52,051
BEUATEESHEE  Financial assets designated at fair

MNEZ R R value through profit or loss - - 77,400 923,444 487,159 - 1,488,003
MM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,308,702 2,308,702
KR RRA AR Loans and advances to customers,

Bz AR banks and other financial institutions 89,223,831 28,606,164 9,737,876 517,074 139,535 61,372 128,285,852
fifksrERE Available-for-sale investments 1,836,298 4,154,659 1,850,926 6,458,068 1,818947 1,283,560 17,402,458
HRERE Held-to-maturity investments 292,086 292852 1,361,659 29,806 - - 1,976,403
Hit&E Other asses 718,899 - - - - 5,614,819 6,333,718
HE Total assets 119,359,200 33,550,140 14,197,261 7,953,501 2,445,641 9,650,990 187,156,733
fifg Liabilities
SRR Deposits from banks and other

&S financial institutions 6,470,722 10,174,632 - - - 355,810 17,001,164
MELHTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 3,324,174 3,324,174
KRt Deposits from customers 99,912,839 20,544,328 12,978,351 915 10,075 4,189,559 137,636,067
BT Certificates of deposit issued 250,000 1,220,762 2,261,857 579,742 - - 4,312,361
DMBRIRA AR Subordinated debts measured

fhEHER atamortised cost 3,061,290 3,712,5% 1,782,523 - - - 8,556,348
Hi & Other liabilities 83,761 - - - - 3,018,033 3,101,794
ARHH Total liabilities 109,778,612 35,652,257 17,022,731 580,657 10075 10,887,576 173,931,908

HREB I A Total interest sensitivity gap 9,580,588 (2,102,117) (2,825,470) 737,844 2,435,366 (1,236,586) 13,4825




140 " TREERTT (SEM) A BR/A R » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZE)\4EAEHR » Annual Report 2008

B 285 e Mt

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 R B ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG AR B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(o) FIZEmE gz (4E) (c)  Interest rate risk (continued)
—[iAR —Z=fiA =2+2fA —ZR4 HEYE RitE
Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest st
1 month months months years years bearing Total
KT Bank T T T T T T T
“EFLEFTHZ4—H  At31 December 2007 HK$ 1000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HKS'000
(i Assets
B% R RATIEE EM  Cashand balances with banks and

SRR R other financial institutions DA79,132 = = = = 681,388 43,160,520
TR R AR Placements with and advances to

ZHH e banks and other financial institutions = 4,826 1,577,987 = = = 1,620,813
A ke AR Financial assets held for trading - - 14,139 2517 - 37,600 54256
FEUATEESHEEE  Financial assets designated at fair

MNEZ B R value through profit or loss 100,006 - - 372,348 1,282,388 - 1,754,742
it eI Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 1,226,446 1,226,446
KF - S 2R Loans and advances to customers,

{748 banks and other financial institutions 72717490 26378942 15,227,859 336,237 143434 73,120 114,877,082
fifksrERE Available-for-sale investments 2,776,506 3,586,122 1,800,386 3,070,317 1,619,352 2473065 15,326,248
HEERE Held-to-maturity investments 1,054,165 1,373,291 804718 81,643 - - 3313817
HitgeE Other asses 27,308 = = = = 5,938,082 6,225,390
W Total assets 119,414,607 31,381,181 19,425,589 3,863,062 3,045,174 10,429,701 187,559,314
fifg Liabilities
R ER AR Deposits from banks and other

V&S financial institutions 9,541,717 5,594,194 321,082 = = 773,147 16,230,140
kSRR Derivative financial instruments = = - - = 1,351,698 1,351,698
KRt Deposits from customers 109,408,954 20,612,716 2,164,784 3,102,982 10,141 4,673,781 139,973,358
BT Certificates of deposit issued 544,084 357823 1,389,505 1,413,984 - - 3,705,396
DMBRIRA AR Subordinated debts measured

R atamortised cost 2,021,156 3,730,280 1,794,184 = = = 7,545,620
Hi & Other liabilities 194,760 = = - = 3,958,175 4152935
ARHH Total liabilities 121,710671 30,295,013 5,669,555 4,516,966 10,141 10,756,801 172,959,147
ARBRBBE B AR Total interest sensitivity gap (2,296,064) 1,086,168 13,756,034 (633904) 3,035,033 (327,100) 14,600,167
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Trading portfolio

The Group’s control of interest rate risk is based on restricting
individual operations to trading within the market risk limits,
and a list of permissible instruments authorised by the Board.
In particular, trading in the derivative products is supported by
robust control systems whereas more complicated derivatives
are mainly traded on a back-to-back basis. Sensitivity measures,
concentration and stop-loss limits are used as the risk
management tools. Risk limits are independently monitored on a
daily basis.

Non-trading portfolio

The principal objective of interest rate risk management of
non-trading portfolios (also known as the “banking book”) is
to optimise net interest income. This is done on a daily basis
by Treasury & Markets Department (“T&M?”) taking over the
interest rate risk in non-treasury business under the supervision
of the ALCO. When the behavioural characteristics of a product
differ from its contractual characteristics, the behavioural
characteristics are assessed to determine their actual underlying
interest rate risk. The ALCO monitors all such behavioural
assumptions and interest rate risk positions to ensure they
comply with interest rate risk limits established by the Board.
Interest rate risk limits are set for the purpose of governing the
interest rate risk arising from non-trading portfolio. The limits
are measured and independently monitored on a regular basis.

There are four primary forms of interest rate risk faced by the
Group with regard to its banking book: re-pricing (or maturity
mismatch) risk, yield curve risk, basis risk and option risk.
Interest rate risk is measured in relation to the impact of changes
in interest rates on earnings or economic values assuming all
other factors to remain constant, e.g. no action taken by T&M or
other business units to mitigate the impact of this interest rate
risk, interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount.
Prepayments, early withdrawal of customer loans or deposits are
usually not entertained or with fees paid.
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4 T RS B 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG AR B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(o) FIZEE gz (4) (c)  Interest rate risks (continued)
RIS i Sensitivity analysis
N REBUNA BIARSRIT 0 B iR =% )\ 4E K The tables below show the last stress tests on the Bank’s trading
CEELHET A mj Lo R MG A and investment portfolios conducted in December 2008 and 2007
AT BRI TR respectively:
TRE)N\E 2008
T 225 5 2 ) 2l B Bk g ) 3k Interest rate risk stress test for interest rate trading
- HiSL A
(HK$’000) Scenario
L300 A Jik T
Light Moderate Extreme
-100fHZERE  +100fFZERE 200 fHIEES  +200 (MRS -500 {FIFEEE;  +500 A5
EYSNiE e ) Yield curve shift -100 bps +100 bps -200 bps +200 bps -500 bps +500 bps
ZRE)N\E December
+—=H 2008 -4,659 -5,787 -9,307 -11,574 -23,165 -28,712
BB HRIE 52 2 ) R B Interest rate risk for investment book debt securities
(HTM R P B EFN B4H) (exclude HTM book and EEN)
o HiSL AR
(HK$’000) Scenario
h A B 5 i 4 BT 35l 4t 5 1
Light Moderate Extreme Yield curve steepen Yield curve flatten
+100f2E2E  +200{H2EEE  +500{HEEE  2001HZEEE  S00MHZERE  200fHZERS 500 fHEERS
EYSNiE S ) Yield curve shift ~ +100 bps +200 bps +500 bps 200 bps 500 bps 200 bps 500 bps
ZRE)N\E December
+—=H 2008 -323,547 -587,275 -1,197,536 -371,198 -689,864 -222,691 -546,558
e 2 2 2007
FIIFAZ Gy Z ) 2 B JoE 7 sk Interest rate risk stress test for interest rate trading
TH T LA
(HK$°000) Scenario
Lt AN &
Light Moderate Extreme
-100fHZERE  +100fHZEEE 200 fHIZEES  +200 (MRS -500{FIFEEE;  +500 A5
EYSNiEE ) Yield curve shift -100 bps +100 bps -200 bps +200 bps -500 bps +500 bps
—ET LA December
+=H 2007 -2,658 -2,879 -5,329 -5,720 -13,420 -14,011
B URTE 2 2 ) A L e Interest rate risk for investment book debt securities
(HTM )5 B¢ EFN B81) (exclude HTM book and EFNs)
THE T DL
(HK$°000) Scenario
R LA & R AR A EdsYiifry S
Light Moderate Extreme Yield curve steepen Yield curve flatten
+100f2E2E  +200{HEEE  +500{HEEE  2001HZEEE  S00MHZERE  200fHZERS 500 fHEERS
EYSNiE S ) Yield curve shift ~ +100 bps +200 bps +500 bps 200 bps 500 bps 200 bps 500 bps
—ET LA December
+—A 2007 -132,145 -257,637 -597,387 -126,735 -289,725 -134,970 -325,119
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4 BB B ca) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
43 TigE RSP () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
d) B (d)  Currency risk
B L g T 4 i L 2 A (R DR e B L i Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
A IR B 2 JE B o will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

A4 B 2 A1 R JE B, E L P AR T
SNMERE 5y B U5 IR A 4 B ARAT 265 2 B
JEBSE = PR I 50 5 2E 75 e A 2 B W T e T

The Group’s foreign exchange exposures mainly comprise
foreign exchange dealing by T&M and currency exposures
originated from the Group’s banking business. Currency

EIEH - DR H I Pt S AR
FRAEATAE P LE R - R G A
AERE BRER - AR TS H AU e R A E
ATHBSL 5% o

exposures arising from non-trading businesses are transferred
to T&M for centralised management within foreign exchange
position limits approved by the Board of Directors. The Board has
set limits on positions by currency. Positions are independently
monitored against the approved limits on a daily basis.

T R A [ 2 AR SRAT T 2 S S
Wt o WA ELAT AN SR B S AR SRAT H AR THI (L5
MR B B AT > TR ROEAT M o

The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure
to foreign currency exchange risk. Included in the tables are the
Group’s and the Bank’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

W E A Hfb A5t
HK$ US$ Other Total

AL Group T T T#i T#L
“RENETHAZT—H At 31 December 2008 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
Y Assets
B4 T AESRATIR] SE 5 Cash and balances with banks and

HoAth G AR 2 &5 77 other financial institutions 650,345 15,530,015 12,498,418 28,678,778
TESRAT M oAb 4 Rl A Placements with and advances to

2R R banks and other financial institutions 23,660 751,747 68,951 844,358
FHERC S ik SRl & Financial assets held for trading 21,828 - 30,223 52,051
TeE VAR ERHH R Financial assets designated at

AR GRE R fair value through profit or loss 300,580 1,187,423 - 1,488,003
B~ 8RAT L A 4 Loans and advances to customers,

etk B banks and other financial institutions 81,987,659 42,033,711 13,061,351 137,082,721
fefit oy g Available-for-sale financial investments 1,616,080 12,757,816 3,029,179 17,403,075
2SS Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,319,509 627,088 29,806 1,976,403
REE AR Z G Investments in associates 184,854 - - 184,854
AR e A T Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,028,060 - 4,878 1,032,938
BEYE Investment properties 25,200 - 14,926 40,126
L ENE ] Property, plant and equipment 186,971 - 89,103 276,074
L b e - A A Leasehold land and land use rights 43,860 - - 43,860
Hopth e Other assets 1,785,619 1,302,506 64,041 3,152,166
B Total assets 89,174,225 74,190,306 28,890,876 192,255,407
fifiE Liabilities
AT IR R Fo At Deposits from banks and other

s 2 A7 3k S A B financial institutions 3,056,158 14,276,836 2,723,762 20,056,756
BFAF Deposits from customers 60,958,666 64,796,200 12,428,466 138,183,332
T T Certificates of deposit issued 2,915,886 1,396,475 - 4,312,361
FRE DA TR ER R R R Debt securities in issue designated

AR B8 1TE% at fair value through profit or loss - 3,146,399 - 3,146,399
DIBESS AR AR 2 Subordinated debts measured

B at amortised cost 1,000,000 7,556,348 - 8,556,348
HA B 6T > ARBAT R Other liabilities, including

IRERTE AR current and deferred tax liabilities 1,800,468 945,427 328,570 3,074,465
£ R B Total liabilities 69,731,178 92,117,685 15,480,798 177,329,661
B AR N A TR Net on-balance sheet position 19,443,047 (17,927,379) 13,410,078 14,925,746
5 BE kit Credit commitments 65,133,066 22,035,266 2,549,018 89,717,350




144 P TREERTT (S5) A PR/A R » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
TR\ D Annual Report 2008

B 285 e Mt

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 BABSREBEAE B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG AR B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
d) B ) (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ESTH ESH HAth st
HK$ US$ Other Total
AAEH Group T Tk R T T
“ZELEFZH=1+—H At 31 December 2007 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Y Assets
B4 T AESRATR] S 52 Cash and balances with banks and

Fofth 4 RS 2 4547 other financial institutions 2,448,553 37,729,764 3,488,037 43,666,354
TESRAT M oAb 4 Rl A Placements with and advances to

AR banks and other financial institutions 50,000 955,234 = 1,005,234
FHESC S R G Financial assets held for trading 38,014 14,139 2,103 54,256
FeE A HRERIH G R Financial assets designated at

AR S RE fair value through profit or loss 466,939 1,287,803 - 1,754,742
B RAT R H AL SR Loans and advances to customers,

R 2 Bk banks and other financial institutions 73,259,040 38,259,605 10,185,026 121,703,671
e & SR E Available-for-sale financial investments 3,592,240 9,182,063 2,552,608 15,326,911
Fh e E Held-to-maturity financial investments 2,197,620 986,054 130,143 3,313,817
AR 2 BE Investments in associates 184,054 - - 184,054
TR R HAh T Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,042,775 - 807 1,043,582
BEYE Investment properties 26,000 = 14,624 40,624
LEN G Property, plant and equipment 166,690 = 91,063 257,753
TR At B A bt A Leasehold land and land use rights 44,604 = = 44,604
HAth ¥ Other assets 1,604,909 324,208 765,603 2,694,720
e Total assets 85,121,438 88,738,870 17,230,014 191,090,322
£ i Liabilities
SRAT IR oA e Deposits from banks and other

WM A S A5 financial institutions 7,532,994 8,865,384 3,837,428 20,235,806
B Deposits from customers 78,763,080 50,322,632 8,444,515 137,530,227
BT Certificates of deposit issued 2,426,154 1,279,242 = 3,705,396

HE AA-FHE RS AL Debt securities in issue designated

ANIEZ BB fTES at fair value through profit or loss - 3,119,872 - 3,119,872
IS AR AR Z Subordinated debts measured

B atamortised cost 1,500,000 6,045,620 = 7,545,620
HAB 6T > ARBAT R Other liabilities, including

REREA R current and deferred tax liabilities 2,565,493 996,568 245,241 3,807,302
LA Total liabilities 92,787,721 70,629,318 12,527,184 175,944,223
P AR N A BT Net on-balance sheet position (7,666,283) 18,109,552 4,702,830 15,146,099
e Bkl Credit commitments 79,186,501 15,893,347 2,329,853 97,409,701
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

Vi E T B Mt
HK$ US$ Other Total

ARGUT Bank T#L T T T
ZRENELZH=E1—H At 31 December 2008 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Y Assets
B4 K AE SRAT ) 2 5 Cash and balances with banks

Hofth 4 i i 2 45 47 and other financial institutions 675,478 15,373,500 11,600,445 27,649,423
TESRAT M oAb 4 A Placements with and advances to

PaZ V&7 banks and other financial institutions 105,999 1,471,216 82,908 1,660,123
FefEsc 5 R G e Financial assets held for trading 21,828 - 30,223 52,051
TEEUATFEMESEGE Financial assets designated at

UN TN fair value through profit or loss 300,580 1,187,423 - 1,488,003
HF ~ SRAT L A A R Loans and advances to customers,

et B banks and other financial institutions 81,848,955 40,394,074 6,042,823 128,285,852
i fikes & SR E Available-for-sale financial investments 1,615,463 12,757,816 3,029,179 17,402,458
e L e o Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,319,509 627,088 29,806 1,976,403
AR 2 BE Investments in associates 152,646 - - 152,646
TR A vl 2 B Investments in subsidiaries 148,403 - 1,760,347 1,908,750
TR e A AT Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 642,109 - - 642,109
BEYE Investment properties 25,200 - - 25,200
L EN G Property, plant and equipment 185,878 - - 185,878
FH B o A 3 5 Leasehold land and land use rights 43,860 - - 43,860
HAth & e Other assets 1,903,151 1,353,394 118,730 3,375,275
B Total assets 88,989,059 73,164,511 22,694,461 184,848,031
fifi Liabilities
AT IR 2 B H A Deposits from banks and other

WA 2 A7 S A5 financial institutions 3,062,581 13,584,245 354,338 17,001,164
EFAEHR Deposits from customers 61,141,628 67,795,705 8,698,734 137,636,067
C BT Certificates of deposit issued 2,915,886 1,396,475 - 4,312,361
DIHESH AR A B2 Subordinated debts measured

HIERE at amortised cost 1,000,000 7,556,348 - 8,556,348
HAt & & > RAEBAT Other liabilities, including

B SR I A [ current and deferred tax liabilities 1,982,109 983,451 136,234 3,101,794
£ R B Total liabilities 70,102,204 91,316,224 9,189,306 170,607,734
Y B AT TR Net on-balance sheet position 18,886,855 (18,151,713) 13,505,155 14,240,297
e Bkl Credit commitments 64,755,918 10,782,238 1,739,375 77,277,531
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4 BABSREBEAE B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TG AR B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(d) EHE (4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ESTH ESH HAth st
HK$ US$ Other Total

AT Bank Tt TF#c T T
“EEEEFHA=+—H At 31 December 2007 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Y Assets
B4 K AE SRAT ) 2 5 Cash and balances with banks

Hofth 4 i i 2 45 47 and other financial institutions 2,454,280 37,557,607 3,148,633 43,160,520
TESRAT M oAl 4 Rl A Placements with and advances to

AR K banks and other financial institutions 329,784 1,291,029 = 1,620,813
FEEsc 5 R i B e Financial assets held for trading 38,014 14,139 2,103 54,256
TREUATFEMESEGE Financial assets designated at

N2 SRR fair value through profit or loss 466,939 1,287,803 - 1,754,742
o~ SRAT LA 4 R Loans and advances to customers,

etk 2 B banks and other financial institutions 72,792,243 37,655,378 4,429,461 114,877,082
fifikes & SR A Available-for-sale financial investments 3,591,577 9,182,063 2,552,608 15,326,248
A SR E Held-to-maturity financial investments 2,197,620 986,054 130,143 3,313,817
AR 2 BE Investments in associates 152,646 - - 152,646
S VNP d Investments in subsidiaries 1,481,160 393,272 = 1,874,432
TR R A AT Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 681,744 - - 681,744
BOEYE Investment properties 26,000 = = 26,000
LEN G Property, plant and equipment 166,690 - - 166,690
T A b R At i A Leasehold land and land use rights 44,604 = = 44,604
HAth & e Other assets 2,079,451 381,294 818,529 3,279,274
B Total assets 86,502,752 88,748,639 11,081,477 186,332,868
£ Liabilities
AT IR 2 B H A Deposits from banks and other

W 2 A7 3k S sk financial institutions 7,414,977 8,775,160 40,003 16,230,140
EFAEHR Deposits from customers 79,032,628 53,409,960 7,530,770 139,973,358
E BT Certificates of deposit issued 2,426,154 1,279,242 - 3,705,396
DIHESH RS AR 2 Subordinated debts measured

BB at amortised cost 1,500,000 6,045,620 - 7,545,620
Hith & > RAEBAT Other liabilities, including

B HER I A [ current and deferred tax liabilities 3,001,188 1,028,024 123,723 4,152,935
£ R B Total liabilities 93,374,947 70,538,006 7,694,496 171,607,449
Y B AT T R Net on-balance sheet position (6,872,195) 18,210,633 3,386,981 14,725,419

5 Bkl Credit commitments 79,004,700 15,834,478 1,456,418 96,295,596
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency exposures include those arising from the
trading position. The net option position is calculated using the
delta equivalent approach.

There was no net structural position in a particular foreign
currency which constitutes (in absolute terms) not less than
10% of its total net structural position in all currencies as at 31
December 2008 and 31 December 2007.

Stress test

The tables below show the last stress tests conducted in December
which calculate the change in dollar term of a reasonable possible
movement of spot rates and foreign exchange volatility for 2008
and 2007 respectively, with all other variables held constant:

F)NAE R

k“& ,ﬂ:
ZRF )4 2008
471 A5 48 R e JE 0k Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
e B
HK$°000 Scenario
2o A Ji T
Light Moderate Extreme
(2%) (5%) (15%)
Worst of spot and 5% volatility change (excluding CNY) A% R & 5% iff i 5 )
(NRMERSD -3,828 -8,895 -21,253
e B
HK$°000 Scenario
2o A Ji T
Light Moderate Extreme
(2%) (5%) (15%)
Worst of spot and 5% volatility change (CNY) T AR B B2 59 i e At B (N R M) -12,165 -30,458 -91,373
— e 2007
—FR LA 5 Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
471 43 o g 0
THIT THULo A
HK$’000 Scenario
L A i
Light Moderate Extreme
(2%) (5%) (15%)
Worst of spot and 5% volatility change (excluding CNY) A% R HH & 5% i1k i 5 )
(ARMEERSM) -16,120 -45,466 -68,789
THIT THBLo A
HK$’000 Scenario
L A i
Light Moderate Extreme
(2%) (5%) (15%)
Worst of spot and 5% volatility change (CNY) SRR A K 50 W g s m) (A RH) -2,150 -2,284 -6,851
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4 R B ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 TR B B (a1 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(e) HEEEEW E (e)  Equity price risk

B SRR SR T ISR AR 5 2 T (LR
SR UK B A A e SR B AL T T P2
JEBE o B ERENET A  AEHD
PR ERTEH AT B 2 B U B B R B
JBetiy 2 B AR DL = 4 FRA S 1k i R
TR B A AT BEOE o B2 T35
Rk DL H il BOAR BT AN

RSP BERE B T 46 A S I B2 5 B &
EFTRMSVERAE > KT 2 RIS B A
B 2 SR A 2 BOE o HABHES TS
mEAWER 2 BT

Ryat FUEASTE R LA ASRAT IR BR AR S
SR I T R A 2 SRS AR A B B o
AR RIFTIR » Bl R HC A B i A 22 A
BLFETE R A A

AR T AR AR P
JEBS: 2 R WIS - 3 AR 27 7
oz [ & Mg | 54 o fhk2s
Pl 2 [ 528 5 ik S B E 1K) 20 A
38 P SR - 32 Wi A P B A e e
B o

A BRI R P 2 Bt o i Al (B
TR PATSER AR B 5 2 5 38 o AR i
HA NS R S ) o

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of the equity
portfolio decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the value of individual stocks. Since the second half of
2006, the Group has begun to take market risk positions in shares
at the time of its respective IPO process. Concentration limits and
stop-loss limits are set for individual shares. Market risk positions
on equity are relatively not sizeable at this stage.

Investments that are held for the purpose of entering into a
strategic cooperation with the investee with a view to leveraging
the respective strengths to enhance the Group’s business are
classified by the Group as strategic investments. Other equity
investments are held for capital gain purposes.

For capital adequacy ratio purpose, the Bank deducts those
equity holdings taken for relationship and strategic reasons from
the core and supplementary capital and includes those equity
holdings taken for other reasons in the risk-weighted assets.

The Group’s equities exposures in 2008 and 2007 are mainly
long-term equity investments which are reported as “available-
for-sale financial investments” set out in Note 27. Equities held
for trading purpose are included under “Financial assets held for
trading” set out in Note 23. These are subject to risk management
control procedures.

Accounting techniques and valuation methodologies applied
for equity investments are detailed in Note 2 of the financial
statements. There are no significant changes during the annual
reporting period.

ARG Bl B AT
Group and Bank
2008 2007
T#0 THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
AR A BB R Y Cumulative realised gains arising
BRI B from sales and liquidations of equity exposure 5,896 370
AEARSRAT WOt A PO T2 Total unrealised gains recognised
(R A BT AR in the Bank’s reserve but
R E B A8 not through the income statement 778,217 1,883,398
Ry wt B AR T e BT AL G A Unrealised gains included in
AR SRAT B B AR P9 B A e the Bank’s supplementary capital
AR BB R for capital adequacy ratio purpose - 145,544




B 285 A M

Notes to the Financial Statements

4

FO 5 R\ B A B )

4.4

T & B

U8 4 L T 9 AR AR F A B S SUAE B S R R
REMLAE 2 Ja B o PRI > Vi) < IRV R A TS 2
AR A S B EL A 78 R 2 B4 0 - 55K LARL AR
R 2 J7 A — M R R B LT AR A A5
FAL - AR Ry — DI RUE o A B )
G Jm b o AR L AR R R e
BOR > MRS AR S RE R B e e - HpE
HEGRERE G - LM 0 IR EEH
e Y 5 Bl U ) 5 SR B S S AT R
REZ B & 4 IR LB B A AT ) o S H R R
AT RESERT R o 7 41 [ e IRF AURE ) K > DARTAl
BAREETREWEEETRZEETRE -
ik AR S LGRS R IDUARH I Aol RO B -
By ISR A SRAT LB B SR EE ] ASRAT A &
RN RS - FELVE A P E RV o A
A AR A R A R MR 2 IR BRI - DA
BB TS o B2 R B TR SR AT 7E N iR
EMNE A e B e AR
STARRESH T - RFR)E+ N
= H s AREEEEAAERA 43 B T O BT
Ak F e B R LA

CRTNEREZ R E SRR T
BN E & R 37% (. E LA
43.9%) > BRI 25% L L EBR o

JRB AR > AEBI B E BB RE
PR B AR PR B AT R E
W A B e 2 ) IR A ST © R% AR T e A4 T
5 40 S A 4 - T B AN 2 U ) < LR PR
W BOR R ARAE > DO GR A% 4 B A0 i B A
W A THL SRR ) B2 2 T B S A — B o 7R A B e 4
PRAE I e v 2 Vi < B A B LR AE
) 15 IR 401 o AN [ A8 AR T i it 0 L
RIS G MR R B B T ) AR
8 2 T JBE ) R S A S LA AT RO AR AT
L) R A E o

TRELHE H R AZI E T FEE 2 2
BT R S AT AR I B AT 2 B S A

A e 1A Y T TR T 52 942 2 i A 3 A 4 1
JETH B EE o RS REHMRAE > H
SRR AAE PR G SRAT 03 52 22 AH T O 15
DUAG AN IR o AR C FR) 17 DL I T RE SR 125 T i
FIRETy > g s bl R R Eh P R

HTA R 52 5 T A 13k 68 5 A0 5 PR 2RI eh 45
R A RRTER BT < W T EIY - &
BN E A IR TR A AR AR B R o
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4.4

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Liquidity risk management is
therefore to ensure adequate cash flows to meet all financial obligations
under both normal and contingency circumstances in a cost-effective
manner and within regulatory requirements. To manage liquidity risk,
the Group has established asset and liquidity management policies that
are reviewed by the relevant functional committees, with prominent
issues approved by the Board. Liquidity is also managed and forecasted
on a daily basis to enable T&M and the relevant functional committees
to act proactively according to changing market conditions and to
implement contingency plans on a timely basis. Stress tests are regularly
performed to assess contingent funding needs and the adequacy of
funds to meet them. In case of shortage identified, corresponding
remedial measures will be planned. To strengthen the Bank’s liquidity
risk control, a software system will be installed in order that the Bank
will be in a better position to predict its funding position. The Group
continues to explore and diversify funding channels to capitalise on
opportunities for the Group’s business expansion. Concrete funding
from the parent company, ICBC, has proven to be effective in
strengthening the Group’s liquidity capability. As at 31 December 2008,
the Group had a total of approximately HK$4.3 billion certificates of
deposit issued to secure longer term funding.

The liquidity position remained affluent throughout 2008 with an
average liquidity ratio of 37% (Average for 2007: 43.9%), that was well
above the statutory requirement of 25%.

Going into 2009, the Group has set up an Asset and Liability
Management Department to support the ALCO in the latter’s
implementation of liquidity risk monitoring and control. Headed
by the Chief Financial Officer, the Department will set up additional
liquidity risk limits, policies and indicators with a view to strengthening
the liquidity risk management in line with new Basel principles. The
Group has always a high vigilance for liquidity risk management,
particularly in volatile times. The Group will continue to take the
necessary measures commensurate with its scale and complexity of
operation to strengthen its liquidity capability, including meeting
various stress scenarios and any new liquidity risk requirements that
will be introduced in 2009.

The table below summarises the Group’s and the Bank’s assets and
liabilities by maturity based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

The matching and controlled mismatching of assets and liabilities are
fundamental to the management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to
be completely matched, as transactions often entail uncertain terms and
are often of different types. While an unmatched position potentially
enhances profitability, it increases the risk of losses and the liquidity risk
of an entity.

As the trading and available-for-sale portfolios may be sold before
maturity or deposit from customers may mature without being
withdrawn, the contractual maturity dates does not represent expected
dates and future cash flows.
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4 RS ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 WH ﬁ S JRBE (a0 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

JREASS 4% (R T P o JE T B s R L B U B
S FRIE DA SR B A AR SR — e
TR =7 e R ek 2R LB o MR Z AR
FE7R i 7R ) 1) B o e O B A A PRI
PR BB W R A AT & (7] 48 B R A4 A B
RIBLEFTR ©

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amounts of the
commitments because the Group does not generally expect its third
parties to draw funds under the agreements. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or be terminated without being funded.

TEREREEE H 2= A A2 B 2 R R R 3
AEEBEARGTRT A=+ —HZEEKA
TEEI AL -

The tables below analyse assets and liabilities of the Group and the
Bank as at 31 December into relevant maturing groupings based on the
remaining period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

AEH Group AR —#H - =3
MR KU ) R et ) ¥ T ) o
Repayable Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5 SR it
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total

ZEBNE Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n T#x Ti#n Ti#n Ti#L Ti#n
+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2008 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$000
{3 Assets
B4 RAESRITIRER Cash and balances with banks

HipGRk 2 51 and other financial institutions 9,182,560 19,496,218 - - - - - 28,678,778
G & Placements with and advances to banks

Wz A & and other financial institutions - - 689360 154,998 - - - 844358
e h ke R B Financial assets held for trading - - 50 5,692 25,109 - 21,200 52,051
FEUATEESHGZR Financial assets designated at fair

MR BRERE value through profit or loss

—HibfES - other debt securities - - - 77400 923444 487,159 - 1,488,003
ik &M TR Derivative financial instruments 5,071 436,272 403,457 661,278 615,555 187,069 - 2,308,702
P BT R Loans and advances to customers,

SRR B3k banks and other financial institutions 13755723 9490067 15242404 19,096,848 52,491,165 27,006,514 - 137,082,721
fEfhE SRR Available-for-sale financial investments

— IR - equity securities - - - - - - LTl 1277921

—Frheh 2 A ik - certificates of deposit held - - - - - 7,931 - 7,931

— b ~ other debt securities - - 115219 2,580,260 11,145,044 2,270,443 6,257 16,117,223
FHEIMSRRE Held-to-maturity financial investments

— W  treasury bills - - - 1,136,282 - - - 1136282

—HtfEs - other debt securities - 15452 - 518228 83,832 83,539 - 80121
REEARZBE Investments in associates - - - - - - 184,854 184,854
[ PEXE A Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 1,032,938 1,032,938
14 CE S Investment properties - - - - - - 40,126 40,126
ESC U Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 276,074 276,074
T L3 S i e Leasehold land and land use rights - - - - - 43,860 - 43,860
Hihz Other assets 41,764 1,567,543 243350 924708 237,377 2301 135123 3,152,166
i) Total assets 22,985,118 31,144,622 16,693,840 25155694 65,521,526 30,088,816 2,974,493 194,564,109
il Liabilities
SRATIRIE R A Deposits from banks and other

s WS financial institutions 840,360 6,405,743 12,031,966 778,687 - - - 20,056,756
AR TR Derivative financial instruments 252 309,961 251479 1,561,999 819,922 353,057 - 3,296,670
KF 3 Deposits from customers 25,332,357 80,805,435 21,024,864 10,973,517 37,084 10,075 - 138,183,332
CETETE Certificates of deposit issued - - 997762 2734857 579,742 - - 4312361
REMUATHEESS R Debt securities in issue designated at

FNEZ BB fair value through profit or loss - - - 3,146,399 - - - 3,146,399
% e IN & 4 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - LI62515 5843813 1,550,020 - 8,556,348
Hibfif > AHFBITR Other liabilities, including current

EERRA and deferred tax liabilities 149279 1,692,613 316781 717,883 130531 - 67,378 3,074,465
fAH Total liabilities 26,322,248 89213752 34,622,852 21,075,857 7,411,092 1913152 67,378 180,626,331
bk g uke Net liquidity gap (3,337,130) (58,069,130) (17,929,012) 4,079,837 58,110,434 28,175,664 2,907,115 13,937,778
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4 BABSREBEAE B () 4
4.4 EE 4 EBE (g0

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

EH Group IR —fEA —% =7
IR Y BT =WA tZEA —ERE DL
Repayable Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 TR gt
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total
ZEERLA T T Tl Tl T Tl Tl i
+=A=+—H At31 December 2007 HKS000  HK§000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
jid: Assets
e RAESRTHER Cash and balances with banks and
BNEE vd other financial institutions 1,598,983 42,067,371 = = = = - 43,666,354
TESRAT R b 4R Placements with and advances to banks
W2 and other financial institutions = = 086 962408 = = - 1,005,034
(Bl v Financial assets held for trading - - 14,139 - 2517 - 37,600 54,256
HEUATEESRGER Financial assets designated at fair
MEZERERE value through profit or loss
— kR 2  certificates of deposit held - 100,006 - - - - - 100,006
—HthfEs - other debt securities = = = = 372,348 1,282,388 - 1654736
firtk 2R Derivative financial instruments - 153,575 101,442 444,175 289,959 224,587 - 1213738
P SR Loans and advances to customers, banks
SRR 85k and other financial institutions 8938589 6,000,707 13,685754 21232446 45,102,686 26,402,701 340,788 121,703,671
it e et E Available-for-sale financial investments
-REEE - equity securities - - - - - - 2467004 2,467,004
—FitE A 2 - certificates of deposit held - = = 296,085 - 25,364 - 321,449
— A - other debt securities - 48 100010 1347441 8414379 2445719 6724 12,538,458
FAZEHERE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— B  treasury bills 1,983,493 - - - = = - 1,983,493
—H it ~ other debt securities - = - 481339 734650 114,335 - 133034
NN BE Investments in associates = = = = = = 184,054 184,054
[ Y ERRIEIA Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - L4358 1,043,582
R Investment properties = = = = - - 40,624 40,624
Y Rkl Property, plant and equipment = = = = - - 257,753 257,753
TG LR b Leasehold land and land use rights - - - - - - 44,604 44,604
Hht g Other assets B0 1534632 871,203 165,266 54,536 199 45840 2694720
By Total assets 12544107 50,080476 14815374 24929160 54971075 30495293 4468575 192,304,060
fifs Liabilities
SRATIRIE R A 2 Deposits from banks and other
& WS financial institutions 2121774 8760048 6438863 2,860,880 54,041 = - 20235806
it EMTA Derivative financial instruments = 176,866 126,138 430,345 382,882 235467 - 135169
ZF Ak Deposits from customers 2,081,366 92,119,154 20,642,724 2,347,686 329,156 10,141 - 137,530,227
BTG Certificates of deposit issued - 471804 418308 1301300 1513984 - - 37053%
$E A T AR Debt securities in issue designated at
FIN 74k (il fair value through profit or loss = = - 3119872 - - 3119872
DABEBSROA A T2 F7 B fR0R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 500,000 = = - 4549364 2,496256 - 7545600
HitE R QfBiTE Other liabilities, including current
IEIEBIE A & and deferred tax liabilities 107859 1724887 1130586 407,176 428,805 4,566 3423 3,807,302
AR Total liabilities 24810999 103,252,959 28756619 7347387 10378104 2746430 3423 177295921
R 250 Net liquidity gap (12266892) (53,172483) (13941245) 17581773 44592971 27748863 4465152 15,008,139
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4 R B ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 EE 4 EBE (g0 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AT Bank AR = )il —% =%
AR EDN =X i I et B T S 1k 3 W R
Repayable Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5 SR it
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total
“ERARE Ti#n Tign T T Tién Tibn T T
== —H At 31 December 2008 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HKS000 HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
{3 Assets
e RAESRTHER Cash and balances with banks and
BNEE vd other financial institutions 8,465,361 19,184,062 - - - - - 27649423
TESRAT R4l Placements with and advances to banks
1 Y& Ve S and other financial institutions - - 496415 1,163,708 - - - 1,660,123
(Bl v Financial assets held for trading - - 50 5,692 25,109 - 21,200 52,051
FEUATEESRGR Financial assets designated at fair
MEZERERE value through profit or loss
—HibfEH - other debt securities - - - 77400 923444 487,159 - 1,488,003
it gmTH Derivative financial instruments 5071 436272 403457 661,278 615555 187,069 - 2,308,702
RF -~ Sk Loans and advances to customers, banks
AR B and other financial institutions 13,714,196 7,571,828 14,081,899 16,984,348 49,046,920 26,886,661 - 128,285,852
it SR E Available-for-sale financial investments
— IR S - equity securities - - - - - - LTl 1277921
— i A 2 ot - certificates of deposit held - - - - - 7,931 - 7,931
— At ~ other debt securities - - 115219 2,580,260 11,145,044 2,270,443 5640 16,116,606
AR RS Held-to-maturity financial investments
— R - treasury bills - - - 1136282 - - - 1136282
—HtfEs - other debt securities - 154522 - 518228 83,832 83,539 - 840121
REEARZBE Investments in associates - - - - - - 152,646 152,646
B A R Z & E Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - 1,908,750 1,908,750
[ Y EHRISIA Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 62109 642,109
R Investment properties - - - - - - 25,200 25,200
ESC U Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 185,878 185,878
THE LR b R Leasehold land and land use rights - - - - - 43,860 - 43,860
Hht g Other assets 41,720 1,627,207 286554 1,049,078 237,377 2301 131,038 3375275
Y {3 Total assets 22026348 28,973,891 15383594 24,176,274 62,077,281 29968963 4,350,382 187,156,733
fifs Liabilities
SRATIRIE R At Deposits from banks and other
& WS financial institutions 851,683 5,974,849 10,174,632 - - - - 17,001,164
fitSRTH Derivative financial instruments 252 309,961 251,479 1,589,503 819,922 353,057 - 3324174
KR Deposits from customers 25,141,505 78,960,802 20,544,329 12,978,351 1,005 10,075 - 137,636,067
EETENE Certificates of deposit issued - - 997762 2734857 579742 - - 4312361
DA R AR 2 5 B R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - 1162515 5843813 1,550,020 - 8,556,348
HAA M - BT Other liabilities, including
KBRS E current and deferred tax liabilities 82,863 1,870,898 329704 698,116 43,583 - 76,630 3,101,794
AAH Total liabilities 26,076,303 87,116,510 32,297,906 19,163,342 7,288,065  1913,152 76,630 173,931,908
I AR NH A Net liquidity gap (3,849,955) (58,142,619) (16914312) 5012932 54789216 28,055,811 4273752 13,224,825
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4 BABSREBEAE B () 4
4.4 EE 4 EBE (g0

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

AT Bank ED —fiA -3 =2
IR Y EUN) =R tZER —ELE LENE
Repayable Upto 13 3-12 1-5 Over 5 TR st
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total
“ERLE Tt T Tl Tl T Tl Tl T
+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2007 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 Assets
B BRI TR R Cash and balances with banks and
HibaRbsi 417 other financial institutions 1,271,553 41,888,967 - - - - - 43160520
T ke Placements with and advances to banks
R EI R and other financial institutions - - 086 1577987 - - - 1620813
T«?M%Fﬁ%@ SRR Financial assets held for trading - - 14,139 - 2517 - 37,600 54,256
HEDATEASRSE Financial assets designated at fair
MEZ ERERE value through profit or loss
— kR 2  certificates of deposit held - 100,006 - - - - - 100,006
—Httfs - other debt securities - - - - 38 1282388 - 1654736
firtk &M IR Derivative financial instruments - 153,575 101442 444175 302,667 204,587 - 1226446
55 S dts Loans and advances to customers, banks
EV3 e and other financial institutions 8,938,589 4715316 12,632,826  19480,655 42,517,091 26,251,817 340,788 114,877,082
il E SR Y Available-for-sale financial investments
-RERE - equity securities - - - - 2467004 2,467,004
—FitE A 2 - certificates of deposit held = = = 296,085 - 25,364 - 321,449
— M - other debt securities - 04185 100010 1347441 8414379 2445719 6,061 12,537,795
HAZEMERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— BB  treasury bills 1,983,493 - - - = = - 1,983,493
HAbfE - other debt securities - - - 481,339 734,650 114,335 - 1330324
E"‘Eyﬁ’féz\ iz B Investments in associates = = = = = = 152,646 152,646
TRHEA ml 2 Tnvestments in subsidiaries - - - - - - 1874430 1874432
YRS AT Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 681,744 681,744
BEmE Investment properties - - - - - - 26,000 26,000
EYE] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 166690 166,69
TG 3t e o i Y Leasehold land and land use rights = = = = = = 44,604 44,604
HA ¥ Other assets 18005 1093778 1878319 168,11 74,361 - 46800 3,279,274
W Total assets 12211,640 48175827 14,769,562 23,795,693 52,418,013 30,344,210 5,844,369 187,559,314
£l Liabilities
RN R Deposits from banks and other
W2 R Bt financial institutions 1,554,616 8760248 5,594,194 321,082 - - - 16,230,140
ik E&MTH Derivative financial instruments - 176,866 126,138 430,345 382,882 235,467 - 1,351,698
KR Deposits from customers 21913573 92,169,089 20,612,724 1,866,509 3,401,322 10,141 - 139,973,358
BB Certificates of deposit issued - 471,804 418308 1,301,300 1,513,984 - - 370539
DA A2 B R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 500,000 - - - 4549364 2,496,256 - 7,545,620
i afE  afFBh Other liabilities, including
RAEAERAA & current and deferred tax liabilities 81,691 1,276,355 1,988,763 394,532 408,171 - 3423 4,152,935
AEAH Total liabilities 24,049,880 102,854,362 28,740,127 4,313,768 10,255,723 2,741,864 3423 172,959,147
L i I Netliquidity gap (1L838240) (54678,535) (13970565) 19481925 42162290 27602346 5840946 14,600,167
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4

Liquidity risk (continued)

The tables below present the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on a gross basis by remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

Those derivatives that will be settled on a net basis include:

- Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter currency options;
and

- Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements and OTC interest rate options

Those derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

- Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;
and

= Interest rate derivatives: cross currency interest rate swaps.
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4 BABSREBEAE B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 EE 4 EBE (g0 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
A%H Group JER I
R =MASUT =2+2MA —& R4 AR L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Ak
on demand or less months years years Total
“EEN\E T THL T T THL THL
+ZH=4—H At 31 December 2008 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
LA Financial liabilities
SRAT S At 53 Deposits from banks and other
Wzt Rt financial institutions 840,528 18,543,148 841,210 4,408 - 20229294
KT Deposits from customers 25,341,896 102,172,660 11,341,091 41,954 10,075 138,907,676
C#TGE Certificates of deposit issued 1,880 1,028,719 2,824,376 606,486 - 4,461,461
A TEE Debt securities in issue
BEGRARZ designated at fair value
TS through profit or loss - 105,637 3,206,075 - - 3,311,712
DIESH AR AR 2 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost
IR - 63,704 1,394,744 6,931,521 2,526,031 10,916,000
HoAth 4R A Other financial liabilities 108,560 1,416,345 453,779 81,368 65,326 2,125,378
SRR Total financial liabilities 26,292,864 123330213 20,061,275 7,665,737 2,601,432 179,951,521
R4 Derivative cash flows
DA ARAS B AR Derivative financial instruments
SRTHE settled on a net basis (4,626) 4,050 21,689 (151,214) (21,202) (151,303)
WAL Total inflow 26,193 1,201,782 8,023,139 15,579,501 6795710 31,626,325
i 4 Total outflow (30,819)  (1,197,732)  (8,001,450)  (15,730,715)  (6,816912)  (31,777,628)
ISR LS B iR Derivative financial instruments
SHITA settled on a gross basis
WAL Total inflow 63,533 46,041,388 44,670,723 4,606,561 - 95,382,205
it th 40 Total outflow (58,714)  (45,777,898)  (45,610,624)  (4,608,657) - (96,055,893)
HEANFEE Off-balance sheet items
A%H Group —AEg T — &4 ARk Ht
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tl Tl T T
“RB)METZHZT—H At 31 December 2008 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHRAE Loan commitments 58,714,921 10,697,995 - 69,412,916
HRE - RiER R Guarantees, acceptances and
L fth A R other financial facilities 17,994,335 - - 17,994,335
G E Forward asset purchases - - - -
B A M Forward forward deposits placed 2,310,099 - - 2,310,099
it Total 79,019,355 10,697,995 - 89,717,350
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4 BABSREBEAE B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 EE 4 EBE (g0 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AEE Group JHEK IR
WFER —@ASUT =2+2M@A —FRE HAEM L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 st
on demand or less months years years Total

ZEEL T T Tkt Tk T T
+=H=+—H At 31 December 2007 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
S Financial liabilities
SRAT S At 53 Deposits from banks and

Wzt Rt other financial institutions 2,125,190 15,329,423 2,986,476 57,058 = 20,498,147
&Pk Deposits from customers 22,094024 113,306,575 2,426,802 562,533 13,430 138,403,364
T Certificates of deposit issued - 921,715 1,392,838 1,513,984 = 3,828,537
HEEUATIEE Debt securities in issue

BEGRARZ designated at fair value

TS through profit or loss - 69,284 96,535 3,211,044 = 3,376,863
DIESH A AR 2 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost

RIERE 500,000 83,418 318,061 4,549,364 2,496,256 7,947,099
HoAth 4R £ Other financial liabilities 89,467 2,022,687 254,275 345,043 4700 2,716,172
WA R Total financial liabilities 24,808,681 131,733,102 7,474,987 10,239,026 2,514,386 176,770,182
AR A Derivative cash flow
DA ARAS BT Derivative financial instruments

SRTHE settled on a net basis = 8,438 (159,022) 72,474 (4,883) (82,993)
WAL Total inflow - 12,880,686 21,209,424 6,131,133 1,158,617 41,379,860
it th A0 Total outflow - (12,872,248)  (21,368,446) (6,058,659) (1,163,500)  (41,462,853)
ISR A B iR Derivative financial instruments

SHITA settled on a gross basis - - - - - -
AL Total inflow = 37,989,537 19,463,768 228,327 = 57,681,632
it th A0 Total outflow - (37,925,294)  (19,305,485) (230,324) - (57,461,103)
HEANFIEE Off-balance sheet items
ALEE Group —AEE T —E A4 TR E Mt

No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
SR Tt Tt Tt

ZEZREETZH=1—H At 31 December 2007 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI Loan commitments 67,906,657 14,847,747 = 82,754,404
HRE - RiER R Guarantees, acceptances and

St A Rl other financial facilities 6,573,592 = = 6,573,592
EHEE R E Forward asset purchases 270,000 - - 270,000
B A I Forward forward deposits placed 7,811,705 - - 7,811,705
it Total 82,561,954 14,847,747 - 97,409,701
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4 R B ) 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 EE 4 EBE (g0 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AgUF Bank BRI
MR =MASUT =2+2MA —& R4 AR L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Ak
on demand or less months years years Total
“EENE T T TL T TL THL
+ZH=4—H At 31 December 2008 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
LA Financial liabilities
SRAT S At 55 Deposits from banks and other
Wzt Rt financial institutions 851,851 16,217,433 - - - 17,069,284
KFETE Deposits from customers 25,150,135 99,835,424 13,324,070 1,043 10,075 138,320,747
CH#TE Certificates of deposit issued 1,880 1,028,719 2,824,376 606,486 - 4,461,461
DIESH A A BR 2 Subordinated debt measured at amortised cost
RIEREE - 63,704 1,394,744 6,931,521 2,526,031 10,916,000
Hofth 47 £ % Other financial liabilities 42,144 1,682,869 460,043 35,482 76,630 2,297,168
ARA L% Total financial liabilities 26,046,010 118,828,149 18,003,233 7,574,532 2,612,736 173,064,660
R4 Derivative cash flow
DB A AT Derivative financial instruments
SRTHR settled on a net basis (4,626) (7,207) 11,306 (151,214) (21,202) (172,943)
AL Total inflow 26,193 1,211,387 11,069,624 15,579,501 6795710 34,682,415
i AR Total outflow (30,819)  (1,218,594)  (11,058,318)  (15,730,715)  (6,816,912)  (34,855,358)
D) AR AR A T A Derivative financial instruments
SHTA settled on a gross basis
AL Total inflow 63,533 46,041,388 44,670,723 4,606,561 ~ 95382205
i AR Total outflow (58,714)  (45,777,898)  (45,610,624)  (4,608,657) - (96,055,893)
HEAFERMEH Off-balance sheet items
ARHAT Bank —AERUT —F R4 AR L Ht
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tt T#L T TL
“ZRNE A At 31 December 2008 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BHRIE Loan commitments 58,616,668 10,598,459 - 69,215,127
R R R Guarantees, acceptances and
HAb B R other financial facilities 5,752,305 - - 5,752,305
R E Forward asset purchases - - - -
B A K Forward forward deposits placed 2,310,099 - - 2,310,099

it Total 66,679,072 10,598,459 - 77,277,531
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4 BABSREBEAE B () 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 EE 4 EBE (g0 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
Agr Bank JHBER I
WFER —@ASUT =Z2+2M@A —FRE HAEM L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 st
on demand or less months years years Total

ZEEL T T Tkt Tk Tk Tk
+=H=+—H At 31 December 2007 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Financial liabilities
SRAT S At 5 Deposits from banks and other

Wzt Rt financial institutions 1,558,032 14,455,144 329,386 = = 16,342,562
KRR Deposits from customers 21926231 113,326,241 1,928,454 3,629,943 13430 140,824,299
LB Certificates of deposit issued - 921,715 1,392,838 1,513,984 = 3,828,537
DIESH AR A BR 2 Subordinated debt measured at amortised cost

RIEREE 500,000 83,418 318,061 4,549,364 2,496,256 7,947,099
Hofth 47 £ % Other financial liabilities 63,299 2,541,278 258,641 324,409 134 3,187,761
ARA LR Total financial liabilities 24047562 131,327,796 4,227,380 10,017,700 2,509,820 172,130,258
R4 Derivative cash flow
DV AT A Derivative financial instruments

SRTHR settled on a net basis = 8,438 (168,242) 75,504 (4,883) (89,183)
A Total inflow - 12,880,686 21,212,304 6,142,143 1,158,617 41,393,750
piargst:it Total outflow - (12,872,248)  (21,380,546) (6,066,639) (1,163,500)  (41,482,933)
DARBRAE I T Derivative financial instruments

SRTA settled on a gross basis - - - - - -
A Total inflow - 37,989,537 19,463,768 228,327 - 57,681,632
piagst:it Total outflow - (37.925294)  (19,305,485) (230,324) - (57,461,103)
HEAFERNEH Off-balance sheet items
AT Bank —EHPIF — B4 AR F Mt

No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
T T T Tkt

“EFLFETZA=1—H At 31 December 2007 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BRI Loan commitments 67,210,076 14,473,568 = 81,683,644
BiRE - BiEER Guarantees, acceptances and

HAb B R other financial facilities 6,530,247 = = 6,530,247
R E Forward asset purchases 270,000 - - 270,000
B IA R Forward forward deposits placed 7,811,705 - - 7,811,705
it Total 81,822,028 14,473,568 = 96,295,596
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.5

4.6

Strategy in using financial instruments

By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to the use of
financial instruments including derivatives. The Group accepts deposits
from customers at both fixed and floating rates, and for various periods,
and seeks to optimise the interest margins by investing these funds in
high-quality assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins generally
by consolidating short term funds and lending for longer periods at
higher rates, while maintaining sufficient liquidity in the process to
meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to raise its interest margins, net of allowances,
through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of
credit standing. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances but also guarantees and other commitments such as
letters of credit and performance and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments by taking positions in
over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments to take advantage of short term
market movements in currencies, interest rates and securities prices. The
Board places trading limits on the level of exposure for trading products.

(a)  Fair value hedges
The Group hedges part of the existing Hong Kong dollar and
foreign currency interest rate risk in its fixed rate assets by means
of interest rate and cross-currency interest rate swaps. The net fair
value of these swaps at 31 December 2008 was HK$271 million
negative (2007: HK$ 0.3 million negative).

(b)  Cash flow hedges
The Group uses a cross-currency swap to protect against
exposures to variability in future cash flows on non-trading assets
which bear interest at variable rates. The fair value of the cross-
currency swap at 31 December 2008 was HK$37 million negative
(2007: Nil).

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation
technique

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the
current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, OTC derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on observable market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date. Dealer quotes are used for debt securities and
structured derivatives. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated
as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value
of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward
exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation
technique (continued)

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the
fair value from other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets, the Group immediately
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a
“Day 1” profit) in “Net trading income”. In cases where data which is
not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and
model value is only recognised in the income statement when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are estimated as follows:

(a)  Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions

The fair values of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits, all of which are less than one year, is
based on the discounted cash flows using prevailing money-
market interest rates and the remaining maturity. Therefore, the
fair value is approximately equal to its carrying value.

(b)  Trade bills and loans and advances to customers, banks and
other financial institutions

Trade bills and loans and advances to customers, banks and other
financial institutions are net of allowances for impairment. All
items, except a very insignificant portion of loans and advances to
customers, bear interest at a floating rate. The Group has assessed
the fair value of trade bills and loans and advances to customers,
bank and other financial institutions, after taking into account the
relevant market interest rates and noted that the total fair value is
not materially different from the total carrying value.

(c)  Held-to-maturity financial investments

The fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities are determined
with reference to the available market value. If quoted market
prices are not available, then fair value is estimated on the
bases of pricing models or discounted cash flows that take
into consideration future earnings streams and valuations of
equivalent quoted securities.

i AV
Carrying value Fair value
2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T T
S B B A AT Group and Bank HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
SR Financial assets
Fifi 2SR BE Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,976,403 3,313,817 1,961,113 3,315,275
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4.6

4.7

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(d)  Deposits and balances from customers, banks and other
financial institutions.

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
maturity is the amount repayable on demand. The fair value of
those balances having an interest at a floating rate is their carrying
value.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits of
banks and deposits from customers without quoted market
price is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for
new debts with similar remaining maturity. As their maturity is
normally less than one year from the balance sheet date, their fair
values are approximately equal to their carrying values.

(e)  Certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debts

The Group has assessed the fair value of certificates of deposit
after taking into account the relevant yield curve and noted
that the total fair value is not materially different from the total
carrying value.

(f)  Other assets and other liabilities

The estimated fair value of the other assets and other liabilities,
which are normally non-interest-bearing, is their carrying value.

Capital management

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to allocate capital in an
efficient and risk based approach to optimise risk adjusted return to
the shareholders. The Group periodically reviews its capital structure
and maintains a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The Group manages its capital to execute its strategic business plans and
support its growth and investments in an efficient way. The Group’s
core capital ratio and capital adequacy ratio were 7.3% and 13.6%
respectively as at 31 December 2008. The Group adjusts its business and
lending strategy from time to time to optimise its risk-return profile. A
capital planning and allocation policy is in place to ensure compliance
with Basel IT and Pillar IT and related HKMA requirements, engineered
by the newly formed Asset and Liability Management Department.

The HKMA requires the Bank to maintain a ratio of total regulatory
capital to the risk-weighted asset (the capital adequacy ratio) at or
above the minimum of 8%. Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject
to statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities,
such as the Securities and Futures Commission. Capital adequacy
and the use of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the
Management, employing techniques based on the Capital Rules. The
required information is filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis. The
disclosure of capital adequacy and capital base are shown in Note 1 of
Supplementary Financial Information.
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4 RS )

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.7 BAREH @) 4.7 Capital management (continued)
LR 3 s A SR AT 0 BB ZE T 1 8 X — 17456 The following exhibits the Bank’s Basel II Pillar I Regulatory Capital
%%Z Eﬁ%ffﬂ-‘ /ﬁ‘LE JER ° 4‘% @ﬂ%ﬁg @?ﬁ%ﬁ Adequacy Ratio (CAR) on a consolidated basis. The Group will perform
f]fg % ﬁé’% . ! ?,% % ﬁﬁﬂ 2 %g 7\/1:); % ?ﬂg % f'é f:iF capital planning and allocation in due course to fulfill Basel II Pillar IT
F o H = — B AR > A RS T standards. During the two years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the
Tk 4 A B R 36 AN 2 BT B A E o Group complied with all of the capital requirements externally imposed

by the HKMA.
2008 2007
G A Capital adequacy ratio 13.6% 13.0%

4.8 EBHRARE b s B 4.8 Operational risk management
P AF R RS Bk Z BUR R Z AR - A A Operational risk is the risk of unexpected financial losses resulting
RSN T R 2 A W B s A from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems and
JEUBiR o 5 5 T SE MR I A A SE T R R > 4> from external events. It is inherent to every business organisation
M 17 B ARAS ] g T © 22 4% BRE 22 22 8 it ik il 2 and covers a wide spectrum of issues. Enhanced efforts in identifying
AR P o A A B SE TS AR A RS o e R B and understanding the underlying operational risks in process are
PR TAE 2 — W00 o FLBR BH S5 45 A g 7 taken. This is part of the job of the Risk Management Department.
ZHETIA PN GR o AR B o A R & B Its capability for handling operational risk management is enhanced.
& - LMBRTHT S IR o B8 AT R R An Operational Risk Committee is in place in forging ahead with the
FEAR TR R R R AT 2 A S o BE initiatives. Such risk is further mitigated through the implementation
5 i 70 A2 R B N i el TR NS AR 1 B - of key risk assessment, key risk indicators, comprehensive internal
RS GTE S WM > RZ RS B — P control systems, adequate insurance cover, offshore computer back-up
1% o oAb > AR [ 2 (N B RS A% BT e A AUE SR sites and contingency plans with periodic drills. The Group’s Internal
HERE PP ZARAMT AR L - 25 W] 8 S i 2 B A Audit Department also plays an important role in detecting any
A BT A B M T ERHTT - 1345 Basel deviations from operating procedures and identifying weaknesses at all
11 G A ) 78 B 7 s < A B 0 6 5 | R R operating levels independently and objectively. The Group will keep on
A A [B0] 1% B RE B AT T B M 1) S R A SR B pursuing active and proactive operational risk management practice
H o in accordance with the relevant Basel II and HKMA guidelines and

principles.
4.9 PHERA B BRI B 4.9 Legal and compliance risk management

TR SR B 5 AR AR ] R S SO A B A
LA S5 B 2 R R LA N ARRBOR
T A REZE 52 2 i Rk L ~ A s 4R B4
BHEK -

TR S A B B I e B B A A B
o L T o By FL ST O~ R T M AR A DA e
TRAF Gk T R L EER o 2SR B o AT
AR > DU AR B RE R AT TR e R
JESI7 e IRy SR R BRI o "% 55k B I A 1 B A
O R ZE D A2 L R I DA 2 R B ik
TR BAE R E 2 sk o Sl R I R iR A
B AT B & e i o

Legal and compliance risk is the prospective risk of legal and regulatory
sanctions, financial loss, or reputation loss that the Group may suffer
as a result for violations of, or non-compliance with, all applicable laws,
regulations, internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

Legal and compliance staff members advise the Management on
the legal and regulatory developments and assist the Management
in establishing policies, procedures and monitoring programme to
ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. They
conduct regular compliance checking so that the Group can identify any
potential non-compliance issue and take remedial action on a timely
basis. They also issue monthly bulletins and arrange training at least
quarterly to enrich the knowledge of all staff in the legal and regulatory
requirements. Furthermore, regular reports on non-compliance issues
and the legal and regulatory developments are made to the Executive
Committee.
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5 ArEbEch 5 SEGMENT REPORTING
() ZEFFEZE (a) Class of business
AR AR [ G5 AR ZEH 0 o P 2EERAT AR The Group comprises five business segments. Commercial banking
EERELEHME - TERITEFHEZTER represents commercial lending and trade financing. Retail banking
AT~ SIS A AL DL AS R 3675 © B represents retail banking, hire purchase and leasing, and credit card
BT IR AN ~ T B A AT B o 4 business. Treasury and markets represents foreign exchange, money
B E SRAT TS E AR A FEMAT - RIME market and capital market activities. Corporate and investment banking
BEART RBERAT o ROFHIEH EEAHE mainly comprise corporate banking, the provision of debt capital
O RS ~ SRATIISE AR A FE A Bl A R E market and investment banking. Unallocated items mainly comprise
SEB A FRIALATIEE - the central management unit, bank premises and any items which
cannot be reasonably allocated to a particular business segment.
ER
% HERA
LB ) Fhy Treasury  Corporate and ARG
Commercial Retail and investment KM Inter-segmental it
banking banking markets banking Unallocated elimination Total
B T#x T#x T#x T T T T#x
“RR\E 2008 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHBMA/ GLit) Net interest income/(expense) 1,120,539 526,553 909,282 43,610 (1,681) - 2,998,303
- YU EAIIN Fee and commission income 24,673 262,365 25,305 26,743 (22,838) - 756,268
kR B Fee and commission expense (21,861) (38,835) (621) (24,048) (7,801) - (93,166)
qﬂg%&ﬂ%ﬂi/\/ (1) 4 Net fee and commission income/(expense) 812 23,530 24,704 222,695 (30,639) - 663,102
AR ) Net trading income 26,366 17,082 183,048 6,373 40,572 - 273,441
TE%WA“HE{E@EE% Net loss on financial assets and liabilities - - (163,835) - (66,785) - (230,640)
}\F&Zﬁ MAERER designated at fair value through profit or loss
R
KH %ﬁ'ﬂﬁg ZIEEMA  Dividend income from financial investments - ) - 943 13,894 - 14,859
HipEEgA /() Other operating income/ (expense) 10,720 13,147 629 1) 8,751 - 33,246
LnililioN Inter-segment income - 253,769 - - 831 (254,600) -
EUN Operating income 1,380,437 1,034,103 953,808 673,620 (35,057) (254,600) 3,752,311
Y Operating expenses (378,002) (557,787) (109,414) (71,106) (135,810) . (1,25,119)
S bIHI Inter-segment expenses - - - - (254,600) 254,600 -
*?ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁi i Operating profit/(loss) before
LR/ (B impairment losses 1,002,435 476,316 844,394 602,514 (425,467) - 2,500,192
B ERR Write-back of/(charge for) impairment
EH’&/ ‘ﬁi@ . losses on loans and advances (273,528) (34,921) (5,174) (101,821) 6,815 - (408,629)
FAZEMEMBARNE  Write-back of impairment losses on
AR held-to-maturity financial investments - - 156 - - - 156
(it AU Charge for impairment losses on
WlEEX available-for-sale financial investments - - (721,390) - (81,490) - (802,880)
?D%@ﬁfﬁ%? Operating profit/(loss)
EERA/ (B after impairment losses 728907 441,395 117,986 500,693 (500,142) - 1,288,839
B{REERR Revaluation gains on investment properties 302 - - - (800) - (498)
i /5/ i Net gain/(loss) from disposal/reversal
PRERGRIHEE T of revaluation deficits of property,
ifﬂ@fﬁ T&ZE;EWLFZ plant and equipment and leasehold land
st/ (EsH8) 1 and land use rights 4 (1,106) m - 6,616 - 5,513
HEGSEE Loss on disposal of loans and advances (11,075) (3,600) (252) (3,493) (10,290) - (28,710)
il %fﬁ %ﬁ%%ﬁwg Net gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale
WA/ () financial investments - 6,560 (214,200) - 5,678 - (201,962)
AR /| Bt Operating proft/(loss) 718,138 443,249 (96,467) 497,200 (498,938) - 1,063,182
Tl R A rlih] Share of profits of associates - - - - 655 - 655
WrBLaT A/ (BR) Profit/(loss) before tax 718,138 44349 (96,467) 497,200 (498,283) - 1,063,837
NEE Segment assets 53,868,112 26,687,406 67,578,982 42,056,048 249,236 - 190439784
ﬁ’:‘%% NG Investments in associates - - - - 184,854 - 184,854
AEGE Unallocated assets - - - - 3939471 - 3939471
g Total assets 53,868,112 26,687,406 67,578,982 42,056,048 4,373,561 - 194,564,109
IR Segment liabilities 44610919 51,232,047 29,059,736 39,174,235 355,348 - 164432285
AEAR Unallocated liabilities - - - - 16,194046 - 16,194046
ARAE Total liabilities 44610919 51,232,047 29,059,736 39,174,235 16,549,394 - 180,626,331
AL Capital expenditure 9,802 42,909 306 100 20,168 - 73,285
il R Depreciation and amortisation charges 1394 2542 2111 545 53,154 - 95,174




164 " TREERTT (35M) A BR/A R » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZE)\4EAEHR » Annual Report 2008

B 785 i B

Notes to the Financial Statements

5  ArEbEdh @ 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) SEHMM (4 (a) Class of business (continued)
MR
b st
B ZERT Treasury ~ Corporate and il
Commercial Retail and investment A4 Inter-segmental gt
banking banking markets banking Unallocated elimination Total
T T T T i T T
T 2007 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FA A Net interest income 810,496 527,977 576,057 321,141 152,334 = 2,388,005
eV EL N Fee and commission income 262,792 285,181 8,478 149,192 13,719 - 719,362
Y Je 4 (2H) /A Fee and commission (expense)/income (11,178) (25,826) 952 (4,965) (2,630) = (43,647)
e YR Net fee and commission income 251,614 259,355 9,430 144227 11,089 = 675,715
ST/ UN Net trading income 7,172 10,215 38215 2,104 127,886 = 185,592

HREUATEEBEGE  Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and
MEZEHBERERAR  liabilities designated at fair

Iedt/ (1R) W value through profit or loss = = 41,989 = (137,697) = (95,708)
REGMAEZBEMA  Dividend income from financial investments - 500 - 164 3,136 - 3,800
HhE A Other operating income 5,449 3,860 1,459 35 10,161 - 21,281
SHEHA Inter-segment income - 312,070 - = 831 (312,901) =
BERA Operating income 1074731 1113977 667,150 467,988 167,740 (312,901) 3,178,685
BT Operating expenses (310,729) (485,704) (156,353) (52,186) (129923) . (1,134,895)
S Inter-segment expenses = = = = (312,901) 312,901 =
AR ERE Operating profit/(loss) before

ZEERH/ (58 impairment losses 764,002 628,273 510,797 415,802 (275,084) - 2,043,790
B ERR Write-back of/(charge for) impairment

% / (SC8) losses on loans and advances (22,343) 19273 (14,777) 72,137 60,576 - 114,866
FHEIMEMBERE  Write-back of impairment losses

N on held-to-maturity financial investments = - 3,131 - - - 3,131
Tl & SRR Y Charge for impairment losses on

RN available-for-sale financial investments - - (234,024) - (17,905) - (251,929)
ARBERLZ Operating profit/(loss)

BERR/ (BH) after impairment losses 741,659 647,546 265,127 487,939 (232,413) - 1,909,858
B E A Revaluation gains on investment properties 2,461 = - - 300 - 2,761
it /B Net gain/(loss) from disposal/reversal

WERBRHRHE LR of revaluation deficits of property,
L2 EfhE4 2 plantand equipment and leasehold

i,/ (5 HH) 4 land and land use rights (3944) 634 i) - 14413 - 11,102
ERIHESMAE  Net gain on disposal of available-

gkl for-sale financial investments = = 15,270 = 1,346 = 16,616
BEEH/ (R Operating profit/(loss) 740,176 648,180 280,396 487,939 (216,354) = 1,940,337

& gp

JE (B R A Share of profits of associates - - - - 11,297 - 11,297
BRBiaiE A/ (B1R) Profit/(loss) before tax 740,176 648,180 280,396 487,939 (205,057) - 1,951,634
HEE Segment assets 44118104 23,832,969 83,969,158 35,273,131 215,456 - 187408818
WEEARZ B E Investments in associates = = = = 184,054 = 184,054
RAFEE Unallocated assets = = = = 4711,188 = 4711,188
HEE Total assets 44118104 23,832,969 83,969,158 35,273,131 5,110,698 - 192,304,060
AR Segment liabilities 47,119378 46,445,828 22,856,188 45311917 285,485 - 162,01879%
FABAR Unallocated liabilities = = = = 15,277,125 = 15,277,125
EEEE Total liabilities 47,119,378 46,445,808 22,856,188 45,311,917 15,562,610 - 177095921
EA Capital expenditure 3,774 31,102 2,691 79 32,962 s 70,608

il R F Depreciation and amortisation charges 10,573 18221 1,832 314 61,666 - 92,606
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5 ArEfEcE 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b)  FacHIE 53 (b) Geographical area
7N A [E] AR U A JES o e R 2E B The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. The geographical
#1732 MR TR analysis, which has been classified by the location of the principal
operations, is as follows:
[ 3)L) e
K
Asia Pacific
83 excluding ¢y | At
Hong Kong Hong Kong Europe Total
T#x T#x T#x T#x
“RZBNE 2008 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
A (FIBRFLE ) Operating income
(net of interest expense) 3,437,069 324,489 (9,247) 3,752,311
GBi A, (FR2%) Profit/(loss) before taxation 867,849 215,036 (19,048) 1,063,837
B Total assets 183,756,501 10,397,781 409,827 194,564,109
AR Total liabilities 172,915,166 7,705,671 5,494 180,626,331
R ROR S Contingent liabilities
and commitments 77,277,530 12,439,819 - 89,717,349
EREA S Capital expenditure during the year 64,577 8,708 - 73,285
FRAEF s LASN 2
BR R HiL [
Asia Pacific
s excluding (&7 A5t
Hong Kong Hong Kong Europe Total
T TUsIC T T
T“EREHE 2007 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
AW (FIRFLE ) Operating income
(net of interest expense) 2,989,075 108,600 81,010 3,178,685
RS i Y ) Profit before taxation 1,792,130 85,018 74,486 1,951,634
MK Total assets 183,848,333 8,028,946 426,781 192,304,060
=Lk Total liabilities 171,800,095 5,490,721 5,105 177,295,921
SR B SR if Contingent liabilities
and commitments 96,295,596 1,114,105 - 97,409,701
AENEAR ST Capital expenditure during the year 67,804 2,804 - 70,608
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6 A EIA 6 NET INTEREST INCOME
2008 2007
T#T THT
HK$’000 HK$°000
PARIEH Z FLEA - Interest income on:
B 4 S RAT B Cash and balances with banks

ﬁﬁé PG 2 S5 17 and other financial institutions 860,645 1,964,141

(T B At 4 ﬁﬂl’f%*ﬁ Placements with and advances to

Z e (GS&sy banks and other financial institutions 175,740 445,676
KF -~ -1 &/EJ’@, Loans and advances to customers,

A AR A 2 B banks and other financial institutions 5,795,131 5,589,240
SR E — ke & Financial investments — available-for-sale 755,224 586,293
SEE — a2 5 Financial investments — held-to-maturity 79,279 164,922

7,666,019 8,750,272
FHESE Y i 2 R Financial assets held for trading 458 652
B DL AR 45 3R AR Financial assets designated at
2 A RE R fair value through profit or loss 87,380 94,134
7,753,857 8,845,058
U\TIE HZ AL - Interest expense on:

A7 e HoAh 4 AR 2 17 R S s Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 766,413 748,146
gﬁ T Deposits from customers 3,387,747 4,700,536
BB T ks Certificates of deposit issued 18,069 186,649
DA A AR 2 12 81 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 292,565 424,241
HoAtb Others 9,617 50,868

4,474,411 6,110,440
808 A B RS 45 R AR Financial liabilities designated at
ZERa fair value through profit or loss 281,143 346,613
4,755,554 6,457,053
B ALE A Net interest income 2,998,303 2,388,005
P B IEE 75 E Ajﬁ (B 45 RlUE 2 RESE 2 A E A Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
45,236,357 W70 (—“FE L4 : 55,225,071 #70) - I of HK$45,236,357 (2007: HK$55,225,071), including unwinding of discounts
B E R F M\Tﬁ?wilﬂ 13,212,853 C (ZFF on loan impairment losses of HK$13,212,853 (2007: HK$915,000).

L4F ¢ 915,000 % 7T) ©
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7 W e 4 W\ A0 7 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2008 2007
T#x T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
B~ B R AER Loans, overdrafts and guarantees 296,175 245,433
eI L KR A Securities and brokerage 128,822 182,803
B oE Trade finance 151,423 140,820
fEHR Credit card 55,480 32,951
P K Remittance 23,413 22,837
17‘1% Fﬁz Insurance 18,242 11,538
A T i SRR AT IS Other retail and commercial banking services 34,722 31,693
ﬁm Others 47,991 51,287
2 AR At A Fee and commission income 756,268 719,362
Wi T A 4 S Fee and commission expense (93,166) (43,647)
s B AR g A 558 Net fee and commission income 663,102 675,715
o Of which:
TR A A R 5 B R 2R IR Net fee income, other than amounts included in
ERFA ~ B IERAESR 5 g ek determining the effective interest rate, arising
1872 IS THEEAR 7 RAE from financial assets or financial liabilities that
4 Tl 7 4 R MR I E AR are not held for trading nor designated at
IR fair value through profit or loss 447,598 386,253
EALL B REE P R G Net fee income on trust and other
B 2 A5 FE S HAh 32 5 TS fiduciary activities where the Group
T A 2 Pl g A holds or invests on behalf of its customers 10,405 9,020
2008 2007
T#x THIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
o Of which:
2 7 i AL AL Wi B A B i A Fee and commission income by product line
AN K AP 4 A AE constitutes not less than 10% of the total amount
[ER P i of fees and commission income, as follows:
— SR K - syndication loan 173,755 137,385
— s gE MR A - securities and brokerage 128,822 182,803
— I EAEK — term loan 85,514 52,005
—HE [ RS — inwards bill 79,440 82,895
8 FRHWA 8 NET TRADING INCOME
2008 2007
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R E Equity investments (16,306) (976)
&5 Debt securities
— X H5HE - trading profolio 1,424 3,591
— s & R E — available-for-sale financial investments 204,484 61,668
ik TE Derivatives (278,089) 56,161
Sl Foreign exchange 361,928 65,213
HAh Others - (65)
RN Total net trading income 273,441 185,592

138 7 WA HE ARG 5 DA 8 A AR 22 46l e i i
501,762 #5 70 ( —“FZF LA : 413,000 #570) °

Included in total net trading income is the gain on financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost of HK$501,762 (2007: HK$413,000).
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P2

9 IREDAPEERHEGR AR Sl 9

Be SR M 4R A

NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS
2008 2007
T#x TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000
i 78 LA-FEE A B 1 RAUR Financial assets designated at
2 A REE fair value through profit or loss (158,763) 51,867
6 LA TE A SR 45 R AR Financial liabilities designated at
2 AR B R fair value through profit or loss (71,877) (147,575)
16 LB SR 45 R AR Total net loss on financial assets
S I A R e 1R AR and liabilities designated at
Z KB fair value through profit or loss (230,640) (95,708)

10 REZHBEZ B

10 DIVIDEND INCOME FROM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

2008 2007
T Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000

R T i Dividend income from listed

2 Ei&mgE 2z EIA financial assets held for trading 1,133 409
TR S SR E Dividend income from listed available-for-sale

Z BRI A financial investments 9,747 -
IF b A L B e < AR Dividend income from unlisted available-for-sale

Z B A financial investments 3,979 3,391
AR H 4 R 2 B A B Total dividend income from financial investments 14,859 3,800

11 Hfthe Bl A

11 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2008 2007

T#0 THIT

HK$°000 HK$000

ERAITA Management fee income 7,500 7,857

A Rental income 79 887

Py A BBA Rental income from investment properties 2,372 963
Wk ER ARSI Z Less: Direct operating expenses arising from investment

a2k HEE ¥ properties that generated rental income during the year (115) (118)
At Others 23,410 11,692
HoAth 2 M A KEEE Total other operating income 33,246 21,281
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12 B¥ELH 12 OPERATING EXPENSES
2008 2007
T# THsIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
B L3 Staff costs:
—Hr e B H A ST H — Salaries and other costs 568,150 526,392
— B - Redundancy payments - 1,125
—iBIRE - Retirement benefit costs 38,491 30,384
606,641 557,901
L ES S B Premises and equipment expenses,
(LTS B iy ) excluding depreciation and amortisation:
— YR - Rental of premises 222,407 151,888
— HAts ~ Others 74,063 65,818
296,470 217,706
HreE KAk s Depreciation and amortisation expenses 95,174 92,606
A% BT <2 Auditors’ remuneration 5,134 4,598
1T General administration expense 35,087 28,062
2 Business promotion expense 43,874 39,648
w2 Communication expense 38,086 42,390
HoAtb g 33 Other operating expenses 131,653 151,984
(= Sk k] Total operating expenses 1,252,119 1,134,895
13 JBIREH 13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

FI B A AT BR 2 AR PR ST A AR SRR SRR PR 2
RG] s A e wt ] ([ 1) ZEAT 2 it o

REEstS > AEEY B TEMGERESHTGE T
PEFRAT R 5B > A4 3 AT 3 e A K DA i I A5
fEK o 4F A E B 4 3 1,450,000 15 oT ( B E LA
4,380,000 #570) Z R W > AASEE H ¥ R 152,000 #s
JC (- FEF-LAE 141,000 #50) BAE H & dnisft sk
)Eﬁ °

RS R SRR A 2 B AR (R R B4R ¢ ) o g
B 2 B SR A B AR B 2 B ) R R o

The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the income statement
represents contributions payable by the Group to the ORSO Scheme and the
MPF Scheme (the “Schemes”).

Under the Schemes, the Group’s contributions are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the Schemes prior to the contributions
vesting fully. Forfeited contributions totalling HK$1,450,000 (2007:
HK$4,380,000) were utilised during the year leaving HK$152,000 (2007:
HK$141,000) available at the year-end to reduce future contributions.

No contributions were payable to the Schemes at the year-end (2007: Nil).
The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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14 BFIEER S () 14 CHARGE FOR/(WRITE-BACK OF) IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES
2008 2007
T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI T R S8 Charge for impairment losses on loans and advances
& Al Individually assessed
— T - New allowances 272,908 115,352
— 45 [ml - Releases (21,655) (145,243)
— il (PfF5E 26) - Recoveries (Note 26) (11,594) (63,719)
{8 B S A B R (B AR O Net charge for/(write-back of) impairment losses on
88, ([ 48) 1A (i 3E 26) individually assessed loans and advances (Note 26) 239,659 (93,610)
AR Collectively assessed
— I — New allowances 168,970 45,988
— - Releases - (67,244)
A0 A FEAG B R (AR Net charge for/(write-back of) impairment losses on
88, ([a148) 1A (FfF 3k 26) collectively assessed loans and advances (Note 26) 168,970 (21,256)
TR AR 2 S8 ([ 45) 134 Net charge for/(write-back of) the income statement 408,629 (114,866)

15 B N s A i 15
13 R 2 A ol At 2 WA Y

NET GAIN FROM DISPOSAL/REVERSAL OF
REVALUATION DEFICITS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

2008 2007
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$000
L0 3 R el 2 WA VR AR Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,503 7,328
RT3 EL Al e At [ ¢ Write-back of revaluation

deficits of bank premises 10 2,921

LR it % bl P RSB HR Write-back of impairment losses on leasehold
o3 (FffaE 33) land and use rights (Note 33) - 853
5,513 11,102

16 HiJH 16

It mmw;%ztvrrmzaﬁﬁzmn%mmmu
FEi % 16.5% ( T F-LAE © 17.5%) ¥edl o A BHIEINMY
ﬁ&&fﬂ%/\w@aﬁmﬁmmmm@%@%@@m
R BT AR AR B BT IR R ~ R A BLGT
ﬁ o

R AR R RSB A

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes
on profits assessable for overseas branch and subsidiaries have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The amount of tax charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

2008 2007
T#x THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
AR TE — 73 s A5 B AR Current tax - provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
FENBIIH for the year 159,332 318,115
— g SN T A AR N B IE - provision for overseas tax for the year 49,315 17,594
FEAR GREABEUERT)  UEMS A 2 (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (83,299) 8,057
RIERIIH Deferred taxation
BT IRF 2 R 2 A ] Origination and reversal of temporary differences (29,960) (920)
Bl R H) 2 5 Effect of change in tax rate (574) -

94,814 342,846
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16 ﬁélﬁ (%) 16 TAX (continued)
A B A [ e i W A1) < 5 VL B bR T A e 2 B The difference between the tax expense for the Group’s profit before tax and
Mt 2 Pm iR 2 22 BT the theoretical amount that would arise using the current tax rate is as follows:
2008 2007
T#x THETT
HK$’000 HK$000
R i i A1 Profit before tax 1,063,837 1,951,634
B % 16.5% Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5%

(ZFFEAE - 17.5%) 5HE (2007: 17.5%) 175,534 341,536
HoAh B K AR B 23 2 R 28 Effect of different tax rates in other countries 3,033 2,791
Bl R 2~ 2 Effect of change in tax rate (574) -
MEIHRRBE Z A Income not subject to tax (43,771) (81,764)
RBLHS I & A Al sl 3 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 43,999 74,203
AT A REA IE 1 4 Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous years (83,299) 8,057
S A A R BLIE Share of tax of associates (108) (1,977)
FiIE S Tax charge 94,814 342,846
17 e BN B 17 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS
(a) WML (a) Directors’ emoluments
HEFPEE _FZT/FE+ A =+—HILF The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December
FERET S AN 2008 is set out below:
AR
(s HHE13)
Contribution
to pension
52 B RfAE 4L “Schemes”
Ha Salaries and Discretionary (as defined in it
Fees allowances bonuses Note 13) Total
T#L T#E T#x T#x T#L
A4 Name of director HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
ZEEHL Dr. Jiang Jianqing 190 - - - 190
ERBLL Ms. Wang Lili 140 - - - 140
KRBTSR Mr. Zhu Qi* - 1,387 - 128 1,515
BRI Mr. Chen Aiping 50 1,041 - 61 1,152
HEREIEE Mr. Wong Yuen Fai - 4,375 300 330 5,005
IRESE Mr. Zhang Yi - 1,724 500 159 2,383
[y Mr. Hu Hao 15 - - - 15
Damis Jacobus Ziengs v sk Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs** - - - - -
FTFWHUR > sBS. » kT4 Prof. Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s85, J.2.%* 250 - - - 250
TRIEHESG A Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alect* 250 - - - 250
RRE T Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George*** 250 - - - 250
1,145 8,527 800 678 11,150
* RZEENFELH =+ HEHME & Resigned on 22 July 2008
b AZFRNFE—H Y H F#HE b Resigned on 24 January 2008

oo ST IF AT ***  Independent Non-executive Directors
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17 EFRLAEEEHEABWME @)

17 DIRECTOR’S AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) A ) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
SEFNEBE_ZFZLET A= —HI4E The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December
JE RS A 2007 is set out below:
YNGR
(238 et 13)
Contribution
to pension
Hid BB Wt fEar “Schemes”
g Salaries and Discretionary (as defined in At
Fees allowances bonuses Note 13) Total
Tt T Tt Tt Tt
HHEA Name of director HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ZEEL Dr. Jiang Jianqing 190 = = = 190
ERBLL Ms. Wang Lili 140 - - - 140
RS Mr. Zhu Qi - 2347 1,600 217 4,164
BRI Mr. Chen Aiping 90 - - - 90
HERBEE Mr. Wong Yuen Fai - 3,310 1,550 305 5,165
IRESSE: Mr. Zhang Yi - 1,723 1,300 159 3,182
Damis Jacobus Ziengs /£ Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs 90 = - - 90
ETWEAT - sbs.» KT L+ Prof. Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s.55.,.2.* 250 - - - 250
TRIREE A + Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec* 250 - - - 250
RETEE Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George* 250 - - = 250
1,260 7,380 4,450 681 13,771
* WAL PUTE S * Independent Non-executive Directors
A TR I 0 = S ) 2 R AT AT < 2 e o There was no arrangement under which any director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.
(b) LABEHMAL (b) Five highest paid individuals

S SN S e Y DR NS Rk e 2
(ZFFL4E =4) > KSR E2+ R
Mo SENE A REA A WA (ZFRLE W

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include three directors (2007: three) whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and

Z) NERIBEAn T payable to the remaining two (2007: two) individuals during the year are
as follows:

2008 2007
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$’000

HARF 4~ R Basic salaries, housing allowances, other
oAb RS K E ) 75 allowances and benefits in kind 4,724 4,439
fEAT Bonuses 632 1,660
NFEEFEHREEEK Contributions to the Schemes 523 492

5,879 6,591
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17 #H R EE B B @ 17 DIRECTOR’S AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) FAFF AL @) (b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
MR T The emoluments fall within the following bands:
R Emolument bands 2008 2007
2,000,001 #IT 2 2,500,000 #5 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
2,500,001 IR 3,000,000 It HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 -
3,000,001 #5 7T % 3,500,000 #5 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - -
3,500,001 #5 7T £ 4,000,000 #5 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
2 2
18 KB 18 DIVIDENDS
(a) AR HEART LS (a) Dividends attributable to the year
2008 2007
T T
HK$’000 HK$000

EIRAS B S IR 028 HEJT  Paid interim dividend of HK$0.28

(ZFFZH4E : 023%70) (2007: HK$0.23) per ordinary share 355,599 262,114
TGS EL AR AR T AR () Final dividend paid in respect of the previous

PSRRI THE 2 ALFIGERME  financial year on shares issued from exercise

R TEEAT A B HE YRS | — AL of bonus warrants subsequent to the balance

AR BB #0663 HIC  sheet date and before the close of the

(FFLM 046 ¥70) Register of Members of the Bank, of
HK$0.63 (2007: HK$0.46) 9,358 -
TERRA AR S A9 IS4 % 0.18 #5JT Proposed final dividend of HK$0.18
(ZZFZL4E 063 WD) (2007: HK$0.63) per ordinary share 231,348 772,350
596,305 1,034,464
(b) TR RURN Z ZAEREATBE. (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year, approved and
paid during the year
2008 2007
T#0 THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
AAE AL TE B IR A 2 47 Final dividend in respect of the prior year,
AR B 48 1% 0.63 W5 T approved and paid during the year, of
(ZFZE4E: 046 HTT) HK$0.63 (2007: HK$0.46) per ordinary share 781,708 515,779
MRZEERJUE=H W H BT &% - # At a meeting held on 24 March 2009, the Board of Directors proposed a
FE @R UR A AR B BCR A BO  B 0.18 5 7T final dividend of HK$0.18 per ordinary share. The final dividend will be
LA A R B A B4 S A i mT B R DU AR, payable in cash with an option to receive new, fully paid shares in lieu of
UREE T R IVERH = = H S R 4 cash, to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members
W2 B AR AT IR 44 Ml 2 IR o GBI A of the Bank at the close of business on 22 May 2009. This proposed
SRS AR ERAT R 2 o - HL A A A BA S dividend is subject to the approval of the Bank’s shareholders and was
HENIIEREST S » A HIEERE =TT N not reflected as dividend payable in these financial statements, but will
FEHTH = HIRFEZ R B AR o be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended

31 December 2008.
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19 FHER

AN J3E 5 S S A L 1) AR T i S T T RO A 4 4 i
7 eI BT 5 o

A BRAAENE B

19 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share amount for the year is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2008 2007
JB R A 165 ] (%5 0) Profit attributable to equity holders (HK$’000) 969,023 1,608,788
ELHEAT 3 i 2 JInRE T35 3 (1) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 1,254,631 1,139,221
T A ] (B s 7T Basic earnings per share HK$0.77 HKS$1.41

H A Z I 1 RAT 2 SRR AR WA < R E LR =%
TN+ —HN R > Bl S e s %%/ \4F
ToA=t— RIREEZ SRR R -

A diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 31 December 2008
has not been disclosed, as the subscription rights attaching to the warrants
previously outstanding lapsed on 6 November 2008.

20 HEHAHE 20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS
708 kR )
e APREAK  MRESE HHEEN BN oA
HHERAME MWK  Designated  Availsble  Held-to-  Loansand Other ib)
Trading  Hedging atfair value forsale  maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
AEH Group T T T T#x T TR THL T
e % 9 i = ol | At31 December 2008 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
(A Assets
B4 RAERTH Cash and balance with banks and

KibERsH Lt other financial institutions - - - - - - BETBTI8 28678778
R R SRR Placement with and advances to

ZHFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 844,358 - 844,358
it s TR Derivative financial instruments 2,305,212 3,490 - - - - - 2,308,702
K TR Loans and advances to customers,

SRR R banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 137,082,721 - 137,082,721
w5 Investment securities 52,051 - 1488003 17403075 1,976,403 - - 20919532
SREEME Total financial assets 2,357,263 3490 1488003 17403075 1976403 137,927,079 28,678,778 189,834,091
FemEeE Non-financial assets 4,730,018
HrE Total assets 194,564,109
i Liabilities
TR Deposits from banks and

SRR ARG other financial institutions - - - - - - 20056756 20,056,756
keI Derivative financial instruments 3,023,284 273,386 - - - - - 329,670
BT Deposits from customers - - 301,26 - - - 137882116 138,183,332
CEifEa R BT Certificates of deposit issued and debt securities in issue - - 6635760 - - - 823,000 7,458,760
DM R A2 14 B RE Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - - - 8556348 8,556,348
SRAEEE Total financial liabilities 3,023,284 273386 6,936,976 - - - 167318220 177,551,866
Femafk Non-financial liabilities 3,074,465
AEAE Total liabilities 180,626,331
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20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

i) BB Ffy
MHE ATHEEAR  RREE RIS BIGUE  CESRE
FEghfE  HWA%E  Designated  Available-  Heldto-  Loansand Other ot
Trading ~ Hedging  at fair value for-sle  maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
RER Group T FHT FHL THL T FHL THL THL
REZELEFZH=F—H At31 December 2007 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
B Assets
ReRAERTE Cash and balance with banks and

HieRgE LR other financial institutions - - - - - - D663 43,666,354
TESRAT B S R Placement with and advances to

ZHFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 1,005,234 - 1,005,234
fEEMTHR Derivative financial instruments 1,181,671 32,067 - - - - - 13738
KF -~ SR Loans and advances to customers,

BRI S banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 121703671 - 121703671
b8 tiv Investment securities 54,256 - 1,754,742 15,326911 3313817 - - 20,449,726
%ﬁ%‘éﬁ@fﬁ Total financial assets 1,235,927 32,067 1,754,742 15,326911 3313817 122,708905 43,666,354 188,038,723
FamgE Non-financial assets 4265337
At Total assets 192,304,060
Al Liabilities
ST RN Deposits from banks and

SRR AR other financial institutions - - - - - - 20035806 20235806
MEEMTHE Derivative financial instruments 1,319,298 32,400 - - - - - 1,351,698
R Deposits from customers - - 298,74 - - - 137231953 137,530,227
BRI ok RE BT Certificates of deposit issued and debt securities in issue - - 6,225,271 - - - 599,997 6,825,268
DABEGH AR A B 15 M fER Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - = - 7545620 7,545,620
SRARAH Total financial liabilities 1,319,298 2400 6523545 - - - 165613376 173488619
Famafk Non-financial liabilities 3,807,302
AR Total liabilities 177,295,921
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20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)

708 ik k )
ffE ATREAK  WREE  RHEEE OBk CRENA
HERAME  HWIE  Designated  Available- Held-to-  Loansand Other 3t
Trading  Hedging atfair value forsale  maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
AR Bank T T T T T T T T
REZBNEF A=A At31 December 2008 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS000
(] Assets
R RAERTE Cash and balance with banks and

RS RgE &R other financial institutions - - - - - - 27649423 27649423
TESRAT LA S R Placement with and advances to

ZHFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 1,660,123 - 1,660,123
MESETHE Derivative financial instruments 2,305,212 3,490 - - - - - 2,308,702
KF -~ SR Loans and advances to customers,

BRI S banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 12828585 - 128285852
Ei8tiv Investment securities 52,051 - 1,488,003 17,402,458 1,976,403 - - 20918915
%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@fﬁ Total financial assets 2,357,263 3,490 1,488,003 17,402,458 1,976,403 129,945,975 27,649,423 180,823,015
FamgE Non-financial assets 6,333,718
AR Total assets 187,156,733
i Liabilities
ST RN Deposits from banks and

SRR AR other financial institutions - - - - - - 17,0064 17,001,164
fitkeHIA Derivative financial instruments 3,050,788 273,386 - - - - - 3
R Deposits from customers - - 301,216 - - - 137,334,851 137,636,067
ER T ok RE BT Certificates of deposit issued and debt securities in issue - - 3,489,361 - - - 823,000 4,312,361
DMBBIRR A2 1R B RE Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - - - 8556348 8,556,348
SRARAH Total financial liabilities 3050788 273386 3,790,577 - - - 163715363 170,830,114
Famafk Non-financial liabilities 3,101,794
AR Total liabilities 173,931,908
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20 &EH B 20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)
i) BB bii)
MHE ATEEAR  FREE RIS BIGUE  CESRE
fEhfe HWA%E  Designated  Available-  Heldto-  Loansand Other st
Trading ~ Hedging  at fair value for-sle  maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
KT Bank T FHT THL THL Tt FHL THL THT
REZELETZH=F—H At31 December 2007 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
B Assets
R RAERTE Cash and balance with banks and

HieRgE 4R other financial institutions - - - - - - BI60S0 4,160,520
TESRAT B R Placement with and advances to

ZHFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 1,620,813 - 1,620,813
AR Derivative financial instruments 1,194,379 32,067 - - - - - 1206446
KF -~ SR Loans and advances to customers,

BRI S banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 114877082 - 114877082
w5 Investment securities 54,256 - 1,754,742 15,326,248 3313817 - - 20,449,063
SHEELE Totalfinancial asses L8635 067 LTS 15326248 33B8Y 116497895 416050 181333924
FamgE Non-financial assets 6,225,390
At Total assets 187,559,314
fifg Liabilities
ST RN Deposits from banks and

SREBZ R R other financial institutions - - - - - - 16230140 16230,140
MEEMTHR Derivative financial instruments 1,319,298 32,400 - - - - - 1,351,698
R Deposits from customers - - 298,74 - - - 139,675,084 139,973,358
ER T ok RE BT Certificates of deposit issued and debt securities in issue - - 3,105,399 - - - 599,997 3,705,396
DABESH AR A B 4 M fER Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - = - 7545620 7,545,620
SRARAH Total financial liabilities 1,319,298 2400 3403673 - - - 164050841 168,806,212
Famafk Non-financial liabilities 4,152,935
AR Total liabilities 172,959,147
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21 Bl& ARG AT BLH i & B 2 4517 21 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
AL AT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T#L T T#L FHso0
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B4 Cash in hand 260,075 214,809 260,061 214,809
L ERAT 2 K5 AF Balances with central banks 924,435 394,824 408,605 249,426
HASRAT I 4 il Balances with other banks and
Wi 2 &5 financial institutions 7,998,042 989,350 7,796,695 807,318
A1 A AR EN 2 Placement with banks and other
SRAT M oAt financial institutions maturity
S R A7 K within one month 19,496,226 42,067,371 19,184,062 41,888,967
28,678,778 43,666,354 27,649,423 43,160,520

22 AESRAT R A4

P A A7k S Bk

22 PLACEMENTS WITH AND ADVANCES TO BANKS AND

OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

A SR M ARG
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T-#IL THT T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
A—F+ A 2z Placements with other banks and

FAt gRAT S HoAth other financial institutions maturing

A BB AR K between one and twelve months 844,358 955,234 1,660,123 1,570,813
GRAT By HAth Gross advances to banks and

G R A B R A other financial institutions - 50,000 - 50,000

844,358 1,005,234 1,660,123 1,620,813
23 FHER G M ERE E 23 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
AR SR [ B AR B AT
Group and Bank
2008 2007
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$000
&% > WAFEME - Debt securities, at fair value:
TR LT Listed in Hong Kong 410 255
I bl Unlisted 30,441 16,401
30,851 16,656
B SERE I o TR Equity securities, at fair value:

RS B Listed in Hong Kong 21,200 37,600
FrVESE 5y 3 4 i & e (e Total financial assets held for trading 52,051 54,256
FRVEZE D) i 2 Rl & e Financial assets held for trading are analysed by

AT NHRI S Hrn R category of issuer as follows:

WNETERE Public sector entities 628 14,553

SRAT B HoAth 4 Fl i A Banks and other financial institutions 51,423 39,703

52,051 54,256
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FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

A4 Bl B A HAT
Group and Bank
2008 2007
TH#x TH#IT
HK$’000 HK$°000
% HATEME - Debt securities, at fair value:
RS LT Listed in Hong Kong 340,506 80,983
AW LASMBIE E T Listed outside Hong Kong 973,906 715,974
E ] Unlisted 173,591 957,785
B LA EEA R RANR Total financial assets designated at fair value through
2 ST A profit or loss 1,488,003 1,754,742
e A B A H R AR Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
BREE AT IEE ¢ are comprised of the following items:
FTRER 2 A7 Certificates of deposit held - 100,006
HAth &4 Other debt securities 1,488,003 1,654,736
1,488,003 1,754,742
578 LA-PEESIER RAMRZ Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
B RE E AT AJEBI TR+ are analysed by category of issuer as follows:
rh R BURT K SRR AT Central governments and central banks 202,890 209,143
N Public sector entities 200,119 203,410
SRATT e HLfth <5 A Banks and other financial institutions 309,333 480,758
i1 Corporate entities 775,661 861,431
1,488,003 1,754,742
25 fiAEEmITH 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A AL FRT LR B AR - W e ) S AH B g A 4
TR 4 AR R B R B i 2

7 N £ K2 15 A R ACHE — F B B AR ARRE o

B W R R R SR ) B B Vit B R R o )
0t R A ] B~ A (] 5 ) R i B 1 )
VBB A AL (N2 SR A e dsi ) o BRICLE i
WSRO - R%SF A5 MR SLRA 4 o

SN ~ I3 % i i it 5 A4 SR 1R A RE A B0 (il
FI7) BE T (FpA J7) SRR A —HiE H s
TSl AR AR — G R 40 1A 92 46 7 P AL A TR (R IR )
T (RRVIIHRE) — o i <5 T O RER (T JF 2R
ity ) 9 — R o 1R A ARG A A A1 5 L gt ) AT
SUTHEE B B 5 (8 B SO SE RO RE R o SR IR
2 BILEF 07 15 35 5 Mith P35 2 B U <2 114 00 28 22 ) i
7 (AR 22 5 I Ed T LB 2 St

The Group enters into the following equity, foreign exchange and interest
rate related derivative financial instruments for trading and risk management
purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currencies on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for
example, fixed rate or floating rate), or a combination of all these (i.e. cross-
currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts, no
exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate and equity options are contractual agreements
under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the rights,
but not an obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at
or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the financial
instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of
foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives a premium from
the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC”) between
the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for
example, exchange-traded stock option).
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25 fiem TR @ -

MR 2 AT TEAH, 2386 K B K
HAPEERIR N - SERER TRN G,/ 4
LU TN EE AR D 2 REM G’ 1
T THZ G/ %3G BERRTREE T — (W5
R B BRI ITHERR A LA A THE (AR S T
HLAE LU o (B > @ M AR BT S 9 R AR A B
S o R BT AP E (L o DRI AN RE S A 42 B p
T B 4 5 PR P B T 355 e o o L A el T L
AR BR 0 T S 1) 2%~ HEE 500 FE {73 MEE 2 ) 0Bl > A1
AR <l TR (B T R AR RAT A I (GBS ) slAA
() BRE - T em TH 2 Gk AR AFE
{E AR A AT RE R 3

A G WEAT 35 N K5 AMT AR T 22 5 A R 2 B
JRF P TS o ANSEEE A S K3 R 36 T 55 AT AR E
B8 7y Y4) 785 S TR R A S ) 11 25 o Jr o /7 LB 5

AT G B P A AR AT HR IO | A B - R A A
WEZE fih 44 B O RO AL E it 07 ATEEAT 28 5 AT
PR (i 22 5 T AR 1A JEBR 7R 35 44 S AR DA S PR o > S
1l 1 22 5 B4 die 1= A R HCAB it 2 A PR AR o
THEFE 22 5y I ZRRE BRI AR B R &% LUERT G
TSGR ~ et P -

TRMBATESR TR P EHEZEAR A =1—

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contractual/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of them provide a
basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the consolidated
balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future
cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore,
do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative
financial instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities)
as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
equity relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
instrument assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly
for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies
in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of derivative
products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book.
A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before
any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control
the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions and
the maximum tenor of the deal and management alert limit in profit or loss
is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for
settlement, mark to market revaluation, reporting and control.

The following tables summarise the contractual/notional amounts of each

HZ G#),/ 2B M significant type of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
ASE
Group
R/ HEEH AT ATRUH
Contractual/ B A
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
T T#x Tt
ZEBNE 2008 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1) FERGRBZAETE 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) SMERTAETHR a)  Foreign exchange derivatives
— Bl - Currency forwards 94,045,118 1,644,821 (2,262,968)
— BRI A - OTC currency options purchased 6,258,859 62,706 (88,640)
— SN R - OTC currency options written 6,080,840 88,640 (62,842)
ST A T LA Total foreign exchange derivatives 1,796,167 (2,414,450)
b) FIRAETH b) Interest rate derivatives
— Fll 44ty — Interest rate swaps 24,958,346 507,065 (568,853)
— R A - Interest rate options purchased 300,000 5,470 -
— PSR HAHE R - Interest rate options written 300,000 - (5,470)
A EfirA: TR AEE Total interest rate derivatives 512,535 (574,323)
o [BAMAETR ¢)  Equity derivatives
— IRAHIHE — Equity options 30,130 - -
FEERS G TRER Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
(BfR) A% held for trading 2,308,702 (2,988,773)
) FHEERRAE LA 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
a) WEAATEEHMZATETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— il ZR 4w - Interest rate swaps 3,185,923 - (270,636)
b) fREAREN RN ATE TR b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
— XK ~ Cross currency swaps 503,757 - (37,261)
FAEEN A& 2 i TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
&/ (B1E) @ held for hedging - (307,897)
B fEsi i TR %/ Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)
(B fE) B 2,308,702 (3,296,670)
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25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AEH
Group
BH/ BEEE NFEE NFEE
Contractual/ B £
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
Fibt Fibt ikt
“TTLAE 2007 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1) FERHMEZATETH 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) SMEMAETHR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— B R - Currency forwards 93,761,244 674,483 (705,905)
— NI A - OTC currency options purchased 14,354,602 97,606 -
— BN R - OTC currency options written 14,111,850 - (106,461)
HMERTA T HARAH Total foreign exchange derivatives 772,089 (812,366)
b) AEAETA b) Interest rate derivatives
— | %45 4 — Interest rate swaps 30,493,902 401,033 (498,197)
—FIHREE A - Interest rate options purchased 4,042,470 6,676 -
— RIS HAHE R - Interest rate options written 4,042,470 - (6,862)
F R fiE T A Total interest rate derivates 407,709 (505,059)
o BAMETR ¢)  Equity derivatives
— A - Equity options 80,852 1,873 (1,873)
R s gz ik TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (B 8% held for trading 1,873 (1,873)
1,181,671 (1,319,298)
2) FEEEM MR AT TR 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
a) TRELATEEEMZAETE a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— 245 — Interest rate swaps 2,266,544 32,067 (32,400)
b) fREAREW RN E TR b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
— X B ~ Cross currency swaps = =
FREE R 2 ik TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (AE) 2% held for hedging 32,067 (32,400)
EfERRATAE TR Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (AfK) A 1,213,738 (1,351,698)
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25 fikEm TR @

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

ARG
Bank
a8/ HELH AT AV
Contractual/ B £
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
Tl T T
BB\ 2008 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1) FERHMEZATETH 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) SMEMAETHR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— B R - Currency forwards 94,045,118 1,644,821 (2,262,968)
— BRI A - OTC currency options purchased 6,258,859 62,706 (88,640)
— NI - OTC currency options written 6,080,840 88,640 (62,842)
ANERTHE T H A Total foreign exchange derivatives 1,796,167 (2,414,450)
b) FlEfiiE TR b) Interest rate derivatives
— | %451 4 — Interest rate swaps 28,058,386 507,065 (596,357)
— R AIREE A - Interest rate options purchased 300,000 5,470 -
— FIRHAHEE - Interest rate options written 300,000 - (5,470)
Fl A A TR AR Total interest rate derivatives 512,535 (601,827)
o BAMETR ¢)  Equity derivatives
— A - Equity options 30,130 - -
FefEse o gz ik LA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (FAfE) A held for trading 2,308,702 (3,016,277)
2) FHEEWMABEZATETR 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
Q) IRERATEEEZAETA a)  Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— 245 - Interest rate swaps 3,185,923 - (270,636)
b) fREAREWEERZAETR b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
— M - Cross currency swaps 503,757 - (37,261)
FEEE R 2 ik TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
&/ (GH) A held for hedging - (307,897)
EfERATE THEE /(A1) 4% Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities) 2,308,702 (3,324,174)
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25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AHRAT
Bank
BH BEEH KPR SRR
Contractual/ G AfH
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
THTT T T
. 2007 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
1) FE S Mgz i TH 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) SMERTETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— B m - Currency forwards 93,761,244 674,483 (705,905)
— MR IRE A - OTC currency options purchased 14,354,602 97,606 -
— A R - OTC currency options written 14,111,850 - (106,461)
HINEAT A T EL AR Total foreign exchange derivatives 772,089 (812,366)
b) A4 TR b) Interest rate derivatives
— 2R3 — Interest rate swaps 33,614,222 413,741 (498,197)
— RIS A — Interest rate options purchased 4,042,470 6,676 -
— F A HEE - Interest rate options written 4,042,470 - (6,862)
FlZR A TR AR Total interest rate derivatives 420,417 (505,059)
o BAMETA ¢) Equity derivatives
— IR AR - Equity options 80,852 1,873 (1,873)
1,873 (1,873)
FrfER o Rz fifE TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (B ) M held for trading 1,194,379 (1,319,298)
2) FREE ARG ATE TR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) TRERATEERMZAETR  a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— |2 d5i — Interest rate swaps 2,266,544 32,067 (32,400)
b) HHEABHERERZATETH b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
— 3 WAL - Cross currency swaps - -
FrfEE e g2 fir e TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
i,/ (AfE) 4 held for hedging 32,067 (32,400)
EERf A TREE /(A A% Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities) 1,226,446 (1,351,698)
BAR R ROR S DA B AT A 4 T HL Y & 4 B4 S A The contractual or notional amounts of contingent liabilities and
PEFRIRTAGE S H AR 58 BUERS 5 > BRI 45 1 AR B commitments and derivative financial instruments provide only an indication
R F e PR 2 o of the volume of business outstanding at the balance sheet date and bear little
relation to the underlying risks of the exposures.
bl A AR A Rl T B 2 TR H Bl s AR T Among the above derivative financial instruments, certain of them were
Ao designated as hedging instruments.
AL ﬁiiﬂ {L\\T‘E {E%T{EF L:J%Bﬁli%%mi% GRS 5 Fair value hedges are used by the Group to protect it against changes in the fair
B %?@/&ﬂ'—féf {BLA ) 2 A PR SR o ORI 2 JE( value of financial assets due to movements in market interest rates. The financial
BT DA B Bl T HL E B SR AR A B B i - A instruments hedged for interest rate risk mainly include available-for-sale debt

SRATHR T 5 dt J 3 i 1) S JL B

securities. The Bank uses interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The effectiveness of the hedge based on changes in fair value of the derivatives
and the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk recognised in the income

oy statement during the year is presented as follows:
ARG B B A AT
Group and Bank
2008 2007
TH#x THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
APEEE G () Gain/(loss) arising from fair value hedge, net:
FHLA N IHHE
—$h T - Hedging instruments (232,635) (56,415)
— Yo R 2 A R A e TE - Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk 204,484 57,786
(28,151) 1,371

BE IR TN LT e 22 AN 1 s B
> AR A G P 6 52 2 B M) 4 S B Bl AR G
JEUBR o 45 1A AT A 7 A 2 Wi B s TR D20 B IR
it A 2 B 4 U o Al A R o S TR < e
R R AL o AT TR &
A 2 Wi B i TR T RV AR 2 e RERE © AR > SR
T8 i 2% A il R B 4 U S o 2 AR 2 MR A (5
%g@ CE) o 2T UM b &5 AR EE— AR
24 -

At B IR AR R AR LA R i A e i TR B AR A
Do BB R < 1

Cash flow hedge consists of a cross-currency swap entered into in 2008
that is used to protect the Group against exposures to the variability of a
floating-rate asset. Gains and losses on the effective portion of the swap are
initially recognised directly in equity, in the cash flow hedge reserve, and
are transferred to the income statement when the forecast cash flows affect
the income statement. The gains and losses on ineffective portions of such
derivatives are recognised immediately in the income statement. During the
year, there was no ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement that
arose from cash flow hedges (2007: Nil). The cross-currency swap will mature
within one year from the balance sheet date.

The aggregate replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the
above contingent liabilities and commitments and derivative financial
instruments are:

ARG B B A AT
Group and Bank
2008 2007
Tk e
5 SE R SR
AR Credit risk A Credit risk
Replacement cost  weighted amount ~ Replacement cost ~ weighted amount
oo T THIT THIT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
R B R Contingent liabilities and
Bk commitments - 14,141,170 - 11,309,108
SNIES %9 Exchange rate contracts
— i - Forwards 1,050,816 611,967 583,692 753,118
— — Swaps 331,641 160,531 49,096 67,133
— it — options 62,635 102,839 97,037 256,932
1,445,092 875,337 729,825 1,077,183
HMEEGH Interest rate contracts
— — Swaps 507,066 502,651 384,005 335,603
— Wit - options 5,476 1,395 7,001 20,748
512,542 504,046 391,006 356,351
A5 4 Equity contracts - 181 1,873 872
1,957,634 15,520,734 1,122,704 12,743,514

bt R B I 2 o AR A i 2 BRI IR
BT EA T -

The replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the exposures do
not have the effects of bilateral netting arrangements.
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26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

(a) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial

institutions
A S AT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T#IT T
HK$000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
% F A Advances to customers 118,428,192 99,220,723 109,838,262 92,468,796
SRAT Fe HoAth 4 il Advances to banks and other
He i 2 B financial institutions 16,731,818 20,641,536 16,556,691 20,588,784
[E 3287 Trade bills 1,609,937 1,565,469 1,602,754 1,564,485
BF BT R Gross loans and advances to
HAth 4 B A customers, banks and other
B AR financial institutions 136,769,947 121,427,728 127,997,707 114,622,065
FEFTFILE Accrued interest 974,129 611,505 920,113 590,579
137,744,076 122,039,233 128,917,820 115,212,644
Wk A Less: impairment allowances
— B &G - Individually assessed (282,506) (125,293) (267,287) (125,293)
— M A AL — Collectively assessed (378,849) (210,269) (364,681) (210,269)
137,082,721 121,703,671 128,285,852 114,877,082
AL AL
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T T Tt T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
MHERS & 6 Gross impaired loans and advances 888,965 646,602 835,897 646,602
AR WA Impairment allowances made in
respect of such loans 282,506 125,293 267,287 125,293
BB LR AR A K Gross impaired loans and advances
HEZ AT as a percentage of total gross
loans and advances 0.65% 0.53% 0.65% 0.56%
HEAT T (B Market value of collateral 806,490 772,453 784,185 772,453

BB O 2 20 PR 1 U RS AR AR B —
B2 AT DL A] SEAL R AR BL G i B A B
ok (R 1) o T 0 T e A7 7E R0
3 A T 290 7 A P B3R

MROEBENEL H=Z+—H R _FERL4E
T A=+ —H > AREEETIRAT L H A S
HERE I 3KTE > A WE S IR A 5
A5 SR AT 181 1 (L M o

Impaired loans and advances are defined as those loans which are
individually determined to have objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the loans that can be reliably estimated.

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
institutions as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007; nor were
there any individual impairment allowances made for them on these
two dates.



186 I TRisR T (SEM) A BR/AF » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZE)\4EAEHR » Annual Report 2008

B 785 i B

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 B~ SRAT R Ath 4 B SR () 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS

AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

(b) BE -~ SRAT I H A4 R Bk 2 B (b) Loan impairment allowances against advances to customers,
8 e banks and other financial institutions
AS
Group
A B0 Al iReg 2
Individual Collective bk
assessment assessment Total
T#x T#x T
“EEBN\E 2008 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EEE ) - Movement in impairment
allowances on loans and advances:
BT NFE—H— H R Balance at 1 January 2008 125,293 210,269 335,562
WAER K (5 14) Impairment losses (Note 14) 239,659 168,970 408,629
TS ASBENR 7] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (79,829) - (79,829)
Ry NS N RS ST A (e Unwind of discount of loan impairment
YEA T (B3 ] allowances recognised as interest income
(FffzEe) (Note 6) (13,213) - (13,213)
A [ e e A E Recoveries of advances written
s Bk (P 5E 14) off in previous years (Note 14) 11,594 - 11,594
[TFE 5, 2 JELAth i 4 Exchange and other adjustments (998) (390) (1,388)
N=EENFE+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2008 282,506 378,849 661,355
kR HE - Deducted from:
KK Advances to customers 279,794 356,201 635,995
SRAT e HoAth 4 Rl A B3k Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 17,589 17,589
[HE5 0 Trade bills 2,712 5,059 7,771
282,506 378,849 661,355
A
Group
B I EE AL R
Individual Collective i
assessment assessment Total
T T T
“ETR4E 2007 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
S ST IER Y T U Movement in impairment
allowances on loans and advances:
REFLE A — HERE Balance at 1 January 2007 201,112 231,525 432,637
AR (Fff5E 14) Impairment losses (Note 14) (93,610) (21,256) (114,866)
AR R[] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (45,022) = (45,022)
TERR 5 BB Y B Unwind of discount of loan impairment
HEA T B (B¢ ] allowances recognised as interest income
(KftsEe) (Note 6) (915) = (915)
WAz [ B A A B Recoveries of advances written
s B (M RE 14) off in previous years (Note 14) 63,719 - 63,719
IV 5, B At 4 2 Exchange and other adjustments 9 - 9
M-EZELHEF—H=1+—H At 31 December 2007 125,293 210,269 335,562
gR A - Deducted from:
HE RN Advances to customers 123,845 191,968 315,813
SRAT S o Ath 4 Rl A 0K Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 15,050 15,050
FISESE R Trade bills 1,448 3,251 4,699
125,293 210,269 335,562
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26 B~ 8RAT M A 4 bR A Bk () 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)
(b) BF -~ RAT e A4 A Bk 2 Bk ik (b) Loan impairment allowances against advances to customers,
M () banks and other financial institutions (continued)
A GRAT
Bank
A B0 Ak iR 2
Individual Collective B
assessment assessment Total
T#IT T#T T#T
ZREN\E 2008 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
S SO IER Y T U Movement in impairment
allowances on loans and advances
AT EEL)NAFE—H — H R Balance at 1 January 2008 125,293 210,269 335,562
RIEREPS Impairment losses 227,913 154,412 382,325
T A R e 2 K Loans written off as uncollectible (79,829) - (79,829)
T8 2 A B A 2 B (A Unwind of discount of loan impairment
AT (A 8 ] allowances recognised as interest income (13,213) - (13,213)
Wiz [ A A B Recoveries of advances written
e EH B off in previous years 7,123 - 7,123
R FENEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2008 267,287 364,681 631,968
kR HE - Deducted from:
KPR Advances to customers 264,575 342,407 606,982
SRAT S oAt 4 Rl A A 50K Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 17,229 17,229
[EE Lt Trade bills 2,712 5,045 7,757
267,287 364,681 631,968
AREAT
Bank
AR FEAL HA AL
Individual Collective HER
assessment assessment Total
T T T
“ETRE 2007 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B BUEER 5T - Movement in impairment
allowances on loans and advances
R ELLFE—H— HERE Balance at 1 January 2007 201,112 213,965 415,077
FEAIERIEPS Impairment losses (33,966) (3,696) (37,662)
TS AS BN 7] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (45,022) - (45,022)
R AR R Z BB Unwind of discount of loan impairment
HEAHT BB [m] allowances recognised as interest income (915) - (915)
g o 2 A 4 Al K Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 4,075 - 4,075
I 5t K A 7 4 Exchange and other adjustments 9 - 9
N FELELZH=1—H At 31 December 2007 125,293 210,269 335,562
kg g : Deducted from:
&R Advances to customers 123,845 191,968 315,813
BRAT Fe HAth 4 R A s K Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 15,050 15,050
e Trade bills 1,448 3,251 4,699
125,293 210,269 335,562
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26 FF - AT R H AR &

26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

(c) HMIZ P ~ RAT M H Ah 4 Bl HE 2 B3k (c) Overdue advances to customers, banks and other financial

ENEUE S YV X E Y

AL AT R A RS - 847 KA
PR A 2 5 R AR (A L4 T 2 552 48 2 R WA ek

institutions (excluding trade bills and receivables)

The gross amount of the Group’s and the Bank’s advances to customers,
banks and other financial institutions (excluding trade bills and

TEH) M an R - receivables) which have been overdue is analysed as follows:
R W e
AR AENSREE  SENARAE Individual
fakim R Market value Amount of Amount of impairment
Gross advances Jittli e 4 b of collateral secured balance  unsecured balance allowance
Tl % of advances T Tl T Tl
A BT Group and Bank HK$'000 to customers HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
“RR\E 2008
ANMAASL T HER=MA Six months or less
but over three months 241,726 0.2 313,680 186,712 55,014 34,592
—SELI T H @A A One year or less but over
six months 35,196 0.0 9,499 9,331 25,865 25,632
B —4 Over one year 13,007 0.0 5,461 3,004 9,783 13,007
289,929 0.2 328,640 199,267 90,662 73,231
“EELE 2007
AMEAZEA T HER = A Six months or less
but over three months 44,540 0.0 39,209 33,079 11,461 10,857
—AEL TR RA One year or less but over
six months 43,07 0.0 27,340 20,284 22,923 21,881
B4 Over one year 14,554 00 9,238 4365 10,189 13215
102,301 0.0 75,787 57,728 44,573 45,953

BT A

The criteria for eligible collateral are as follows:

— T (L A E BT M it % B -

e

— R THEE - BERREB TG T -

B

= AERAT SR AT it B R A R AR R AT -
FMREEAT (T RELBRE 5 J%

— AR A PR B PO AR SR T =

TRAE > SRASRAT AT e A HL T R A o

B RN BB R -~ AR R

The market value of the collateral is readily determinable or can
be reasonably established and verified;

The collateral is marketable and there exists a readily available

secondary market for disposing of the collateral;

The Bank’s rights to repossess the collateral is legally enforceable

and without impediment; and

If the collateral is a moveable asset, it should be under the Bank’s

custody, or its whereabouts can be located by the Bank.

The eligible collateral is mainly properties, deposits and shares.
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26 P~ SR47 K IH A4 RS 2 SR ) 26 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS

AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)
(d) HoAduaasy e e

(d) Other overdue assets

AL B A BT
Group and Bank

2008 2008 2007 2007
AR Hofib 25 s JEGTALE HoAth e
Accrued interest Other assets  Accrued interest Other assets
T T FHTT FHTE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$ 000

A B RA T (A =R A Six months or less but
over three months 25 227 25 -

—AE B DL E RS A One year or less but
over six months - - - _
R —4F Over one year 1,439 1,448
26 1,666 26 1,448
WA ERE Rescheduled assets 2 - 2 -
28 1,666 28 1,448
oA e 4 e 2L Eh8 T B - Other assets refer to trade bills and receivables.
(e) HEHAGK (e) Rescheduled advances
2008 2007
A4 1 B AR AT TH#T T
Group and Bank HK$’000 HK$000
AR NGB Rescheduled advances (excluding overdue loans over three months) 161,662 109,883
=18 H Z @ E5K)

2008 2007
FE AL E A As % of advances to customers 0.1 0.1

Rescheduled advances which have been overdue for more than three

R A A 5T AH AR 8 v 0 e s = 1 A 79 4L

®

LR _F3C (o) B i Sk i e A i &

ATEENEFH=ZF—HE R LF
TZH =1 —H > AT ATERAT S At 4 A
R A AR =W H 5 IR AT R AT K At
SRR B AR B o

e el g

MoEENETFZH=+—H o A5 Bl b &
JEE R Al 51T (B 2 49,023,000 15 7T ( — B & L 4R
+ = H=+—H : 34,360,000 7C) ° %% &&=
o 2 T 0 0 R 3 1 2 N B4 1 A (s i ik
AT R B A N EBE R ) U sk e REZ 9
*®

()

months under the revised repayment terms are included in the analysis
of overdue advances in (c) above.

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions which
were overdue for over three months; nor were there any rescheduled
advances to banks and other financial institutions as at 31 December
2008 and 31 December 2007.

Repossessed assets

At 31 December 2008, the estimated market value of the repossessed
assets of the Group amounted to HK$49,023,000 (31 December 2007:
HK$34,360,000). They only comprise properties which the Group has
acquired access to or control of (e.g. through legal actions or voluntary
actions by the borrowers concerned) for releasing in full or in part on
the obligations of the borrowers.



190 FE TREERTT (SEM) A BR/A R » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZEZE)\4EAEHR » Annual Report 2008

B 785 i B

Notes to the Financial Statements

27 BB SRR

27 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

ARG
Group
2008 2007
T#T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
5 Debt securities
R b Listed in Hong Kong 1,916,434 914,530
T s DL N [ 7 Listed outside Hong Kong 8,752,054 4,998,696
b Unlisted 5,456,666 6,946,262
16,125,154 12,859,488
& e Equity securities
i N i Listed in Hong Kong 1,198,756 2,387,531
E ] Unlisted 79,165 79,892
1,277,921 2,467,423
LS & Sl A Total available-for-sale financial investments 17,403,075 15,326,911
F iR 2 i {H Market value of listed securities 11,867,244 8,300,757
KEEE AR B EIR R Debt securities after taking into account impairment losses are
EFEEUTIEE ¢ comprised of the following items:
e 2 73 Certificates of deposit held 7,931 321,449
HAth {25 Other debt securities 16,117,223 12,538,039
16,125,154 12,859,488
FrAE S B R B B B AT A S Available-for-sale financial investments are analysed by
o category of issuer as follows:
FH SRR K SR AT Central governments and central banks 1,353,598 576,654
B Public sector entities 753,638 811,415
SRAT S HoAth 4 Rl i Banks and other financial institutions 7,401,455 6,495,092
i1 Corporate entities 7,893,403 7,442,304
oA Others 981 1,446
17,403,075 15,326,911
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27 HiALaE LRI E () 27 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
(continued)
ARG
Bank
2008 2007
T#0 T
HK$’000 HK$000
B Debt securities:
RS L Listed in Hong Kong 1,916,434 914,530
FATHE DLA N [ Ti7 Listed outside Hong Kong 8,752,054 4,998,696
b Unlisted 5,456,049 6,945,599
16,124,537 12,858,825
ISR Equity securities:
RS L Listed in Hong Kong 1,198,756 2,387,530
E ] Unlisted 79,165 79,893
1,277,921 2,467,423
R AL 4 Tl 138 Y A Total available-for-sale financial investments 17,402,458 15,326,248
iz E Market value of listed securities 11,867,244 8,300,757
KEEAWEIRRZ 55 Debt securities after taking into account impairment losses are
G TIEE - comprised of the following items:
FrRe G Z A7 Certificates of deposit held 7,931 321,449
HAb S Other debt securities 16,116,606 12,537,376
16,124,537 12,858,825
M S S R B BT A5 Available-for-sale financial investments are analysed by
SIHTIE category of issuer as follows:
Hh BN B R A T Central governments and central banks 1,353,598 576,654
INEERE Public sector entities 753,638 811,415
SRAT S HoAth 4 Rl i A Banks and other financial institutions 7,401,455 6,495,092
{3 Corporate entities 7,893,390 7,442,291
HoAth Others 377 796

17,402,458 15,326,248
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28 FrH 2R SRIE 28 HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
3R I R A AT
Group and Bank
2008 2007
T T
HK$’000 HK$000
& - Debt securities:
AR LT Listed in Hong Kong 78,605 -
A EHE LASM IR T Listed outside Hong Kong 575,811 562,630
E/ i) Unlisted 1,324,366 2,753,722
1,978,782 3,316,352
W BEIRR Less: Impairment losses (2,379) (2,535)
R 2 51 1 4 A 4% AR Total held-to-maturity financial investments 1,976,403 3,313,817
iRz (E Market value of listed securities 630,681 560,972
KEFAWEIRRZ 55 Debt securities after taking into account impairment
AAELLRIEH ¢ losses are comprised of the following items:
[ Treasury bills 1,136,282 1,983,493
FAt e Other debt securities 840,121 1,330,324
1,976,403 3,313,817
A 22 E M BOE T A Held-to-maturity financial investments are analysed by
R AR category of issuer as follows:
— R B B H IR AT Central governments and central banks 1,214,640 2,143,923
— N Public sector entities 83,539 114,335
— SRAT S At 4 A A Banks and other financial institutions 238,354 326,911
— {3 Corporate entities 439,870 728,648
1,976,403 3,313,817
A BRI Sk WA ) Movement in impairment allowances on held-to-maturity financial
investments
A SR B B AR B AT
Group and Bank
2008 2007
T#x THEIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January 2,535 5,666
TAEAR 2K [l 4% Write-back of impairment losses (156) (3,131)

wt+_H=+—H At 31 December 2,379 2,535




| TR 4RAT (Z5) A BR/AH » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 193
TRE)\4EAEH » Annual Report 2008

B 285 i A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

29 R EBAFR ZHE 29 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

AL

Group
2008 2007
T#T Fsoc
HK$’000 HK$’000
JREA Vo 5 Share of net assets 155,068 154,268
G B I AR 2 Goodwill on acquisition 29,786 29,786
184,854 184,054

ARGAT

Bank
2008 2007
T#L FHsoo
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FE BTG 5 HARSIE Unlisted share investments at cost 152,646 152,646

A F A T B N R 2 A i

» %L N A f I

The Group’s interests in its principal associates which are unlisted, are as

ki T follows:
WA,
¥ £l BA (%K) EAEGE o
sk o7 3 2 Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss) HAk
Place of T T# T#T T#IL % of interest
incorporation HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 held
2008
SRR (i) A BRA A i
China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 51,547 22,886 (7,112) (13,743) 25%
Company Limited
i
IEC Investments Limited Hong Kong 207,956 81,549 19,802 14,398 40%
2007
SR B (i) A BR A A i
China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 56,828 14,569 12,885 7,640 25%
Company Limited
IEC Investments Limited Hong Kong 179,960 67,951 5,182 3,657 40%

BT B (i) A PR FIFE R I R 2 — I b
W o IAARAESE > AREE FIHEA 275,000 BEAE T (H 100 5
TCZ LN R A o

China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited is engaged in
general insurance business in Hong Kong. The Group held 275,000 ordinary
shares of HK$100 each of this associate during the year.

IEC Investments Limited 7E A5 HE G HEME - AR
AFBE 5 AR EHEAT 40,000 A S T (1 1 96 U0 2 R
ARER -

IEC Investments Limited is engaged in investment holding in Hong Kong.
The Group held 40,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each of this associate during
the year.
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30 R RO IE B A 30 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
kA 2 Sk
[k Computer Trading b
Goodwill software rights Total
T#L T#IT T#x T
A4 Group HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
P SR T HE Cost or net carrying amount:
A TEN\F—H—H At 1 January 2008 974,805 203,349 1,895 1,180,049
F — T o 2 ) i e Acquired from a subsidiary - 11 - 11
wE (FEE @) & (i) Additions (Notes (i) and (ii)) 24,910 11,270 - 36,180
e Disposal - (3,803) - (3,803)
A FEENE+F T H=+—H At 31 December 2008 999,715 210,827 1,895 1,212,437
SRS - Accumulated amortisation:
B EENFE—H—H At 1 January 2008 - 136,467 - 136,467
R Charge for the year - 46,835 - 46,835
e Disposal - (3,803) - (3,803)
HoEE)E+A=+—H At 31 December 2008 - 179,499 - 179,499
WRTH VR - Net book value:
MNEEZNFE+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2008 999,715 31,328 1,895 1,032,938
A Lo
P Computer Trading G
Goodwill software rights Total
THTT T T T
AL Group HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FRAAE SR T FH - Cost or net carrying amount:
RoEELFE—H—H At 1 January 2007 953,172 183,544 1,895 1,138,611
U (FfF5E (1) A (i) Additions (Notes (i) and (ii)) 21,633 19,805 = 41,438
MoEELET+A=+—H At 31 December 2007 974,805 203,349 1,895 1,180,049
SRR Accumulated amortisation:
W oEELE—H—H At 1 January 2007 = 87,838 - 87,838
AT A J 6 Charge for the year - 48,629 - 48,629
NERELFEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2007 = 136,467 = 136,467
WRTH {FE - Net book value:
NoEELET+A=+—H At 31 December 2007 974,805 66,882 1,895 1,043,582
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30 TR RIMEIEEE @) 30 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Ik P
Lk 4 Computer it
Goodwill software Total
T Tt Tt
ARHUT Bank HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
P E SR T VFE - Cost or net carrying amount:
Mo EENE—H—H At 1 January 2008 615,669 202,513 818,182
E (FFEE () Additions (Note (i)) - 6,082 6,082
i Disposal - (3,803) (3,803)
B oEENFE+—H=+—H At 31 December 2008 615,669 204,792 820,461
SRR Accumulated amortisation:
R EE)N\F—H—H At 1 January 2008 - 136,438 136,438
GRNE: ] Charge for the year - 45,717 45,717
HE Disposal - (3,803) (3,803)
MNZEENE+_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 - 178,352 178,352
PR TA Net book value:
WEELENE+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2008 615,669 26,440 642,109
CSLIgEs
T Computer Gt
Goodwill software Total
RN RN RPN
LN Bank HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
A SR T FHH - Cost or net carrying amount:

RoFREE—H—H At 1 January 2007 615,669 183,503 799,172
WRE (BEE () Additions (Note (i) = 19,010 19,010
RoEZRLET—H =+—H At 31 December 2007 615,669 202,513 818,182

ZUREHESY Accumulated amortisation:
NEZRLFE—H—H At 1 January 2007 - 87,837 87,837
A RS Charge for the year - 48,601 48,601
HoEELFE+H=+—H At 31 December 2007 - 136,438 136,438
PR FE : Net book value:
WEELET A =+—H At 31 December 2007 615,669 66,075 681,744
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30 FE N H AL & E )

30  GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

FRFEE - Notes:
(i) LAV RGIN —BETAE T T8 > HiE (i) The core banking system was upgraded in October 2005 with direct costs
SIS G455 R A D 1 2 B R BB > 3 4 R ERR 2 including software development consultancy fees and employee costs recognised
i 2 AN oY e 2 S s o = B pel & g 5 A as intangible asset as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 respectively.
(i)  AEEE LLERAT AW AT 2 E E Wk s 7.3 8 > H R (i)  In section 7.13 of the sale and purchase agreement of the acquisition of Belgian
Wi B 7 (ASSRAT) 2801 B 07 (5 A8 4RAT ) ST BLHS Bank, Hong Kong Branch, it was agreed that the purchaser (the Bank) shall pay
FPE A R 2E LU AR AT 2 A TE 2 A8 A AT aEE B e to the seller (Fortis Bank) the difference between the payment by the debtor of
Ti B R 2 220 o BUHS AR AR 2.1.2 7T W B 7 1% 1) Belgian Bank’s debt and the amount paid by the purchaser during the period while
B SR SE R H A 2 iR - RERT SRR 2 i the tax deed is in effect. The clause 2.1.2 of the tax deed stipulated that the seller
A~ T R B 2R T E A 2 B B o PR Ak EE LR will pay to the purchaser the tax liability which has arisen in respect of income,
T EHE AN 2 G5 EARBBIES BRI S profits or gains earned, accrued or received on or before the completion date. The
255 - goodwill represents the difference between amount paid on Belgian Bank’s debts
and the amount received from the tax deed.
(i) A R R 3R 4 A i B 2 (I (iii) Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
A 42 (9] 2 S5 430 T A B T 1 B < A A Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) identified
(TH AL ]) anF according to business segment as follows:
2008 2007
T#E TH#TT
HK$°000 HK$000
A BB G IR T Corporate and investment banking 585,715 585,715
PIESRT Commercial banking 230,450 215,053
FERT Retail banking 142,386 132,873
FoAts Others 41,164 41,164
999,715 974,805
B4 A= 7 B A T S R B A I AR SR A P (A5 - The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use
G875 32 i R SR v Y L S LA G B D A calculations. Such calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
Fil o R — AR 0 A R B <5 UL T 2 HO) ik TR A A budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
B o e — ARSI A BB T TE I 2 R RN W] R the one-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates stated below. The
B4R 7 WA T A SRS I RIA T R % © growth rate which applies to the cash flow projections over the one-year period
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the business of which the
CGU operates.
TR FH S I A P B3Ry 2% % 8% (—FFL4E - The discount rates used for value-in-use calculations are ranging from 2% to 8%
4% % 10%) ° (2007: 4% to 10%).
AL 08 A % T i 05 R DA R T O A R Management determined the budgeted financial performance based on the past
Bl o T RSB TR I TR — B - performance and its expectation for market development. The weighted average
growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
31 #EWE 31 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AL ARG
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
TH#T THIT TH#T THIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$000
w—H—H Z iR Carrying amount at 1 January 40,624 - 26,000 -
L E W3 A Transfer from property, plant and
DA KA 5 equipment and - 37,770 - 25,700
i R - i e E leasehold land and
land use rights
A (hsR) W2k A Net revaluation (loss)/gain (498) 2,761 (800) 300
e 52, B HoAth 4 8 Exchange and other adjustments - 93 - -
WA =+—HZIRH(E Carrying amount at 31 December 40,126 40,624 25,200 26,000
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31 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland
China and its net book value are held under the following lease terms:

AR AGAT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
TH#T THE T T TH T
Al Leaseholds HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
TEFERA Held in Hong Kong
RHMHE (504 E) Long term leases (over 50 years) 25,200 26,000 25,200 26,000
FRHAFE S (10 2 50 4F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) - = - =
TER W LS R A Held outside Hong Kong
FRHAFH T (10 2 50 4F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 14,926 14,624 - -
40,126 40,624 25,200 26,000

AT BN —FF ) FE+H=1+—Hh%E
37 TS B A T R A L A R AT A B T 8

I T3 L E J A 7E £ 25,200,000 #5 90 (—FF L
4F 126,000,000 #EI0) o ASERTTBHE 48 F 0BG R
TEBE )M+ A=+ BB EAR R
VEHIITH [0 0 7 A 2 b 5 £ 3 30 A B )
20N BR T 5 B i PR 48 B ME F A 0 £ 14,926,000 75
JC (EE-LAE 1 14,624,000 #ETC) ©

The investment property of the Bank was revalued on 31 December 2008 by
A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$25,200,000 (2007: HK$26,000,000) on an open market, existing use
basis. The investment properties of the Bank’s subsidiary were revalued on 31
December 2008 by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate Appraisal
Consulting Co., Ltd., an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$14,926,000 (2007: HK$14,624,000) on an open market, existing use basis.

&Y EER Particulars of investment properties
EE)NF+_HA=1+—H 31 December 2008
A A 1 2 i S ) it

M ik k] Attributable interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
T Vb S B v Ll 8 SR M T B SR A [GESikd RIS (50 4ELh 1) 100%
Shop B on the Ground Floor Office building Long term lease (over 50 years) 100%
No. 8 Causeway Road
Hong Kong
TRYII T A EH [ P T o % 2010 558 HE ik AR S (10 %2 50 4F) 100%
TR 23
23/F, Dongfeng Building Office building Medium term lease (10-50 years) 100%
No. 2010 Shennan Central Road
Futian District, Shenzhen
TR T4 HH [ A1 BEL s s B T3 e FEM&E AT % (10 % 50 4F) 100%
PR A ~ BJE
Units A&B, 2/F, 4 Blocks Office building Medium term lease (10-50 years) 100%

SEG Technology Park
Zhenxing Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
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32 WYISERGAE 32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
ANAE Group
AT Bk B AR B e i
Bank HEWEEKE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and Bt
properties  improvements equipment Total
TH#L T#L T#L TH#L
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
ME_EFEELFEFT_H=1T—H& At 31 December 2007 and
—ER\F—H—H : 1 January 2008:
BASE B (A Cost or valuation 139,411 192,153 251,664 583,228
iR Accumulated depreciation (42,423) (100,919) (182,133) (325,475)
MoEELE++H=1+—H K& Net book value at 31 December 2007
ZERT)NF—H— H Z IR A and 1 January 2008 96,988 91,234 69,531 257,753
nE Additions 6,766 21,330 33,918 62,014
I — [ B T 2 ) s B Acquired from a subsidiary - - 30 30
s Disposals - (1,212) (238) (1,450)
AL (Bf5E) Revaluation (Note) 7,155 - - 7,155
ERFHESTE Depreciation provided during the year (10,078) (18,867) (18,650) (47,595)
[iE 5, o HAth 5 Exchange rate and other adjustments (2,829) 609 387 (1,833)
M_EENFEFF_H=1T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2008
HR I R 98,002 93,094 84,978 276,074
REEZENFEFZH=1—H At 31 December 2008:
BAE B AN E Cost or valuation 150,720 204,330 233,670 588,720
i Accumulated depreciation (52,718) (111,236) (148,692) (312,646)
W _EENFE+—H=+—H Net book value at 31 December 2008
2 MR T FE 98,002 93,094 84,978 276,074
bl E 2 ARG E TR ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:
WoZFEENFE+_H=+—H : At 31 December 2008:
i A At cost - 204,330 233,670 438,000
F Ak {E At valuation 98,002 - - 98,002
98,002 204,330 233,670 536,002
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32 B R

32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

ASE I (781) Group (continued)
AT EE W2 (39 &3
Bank  MHEWSEEE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and bk
properties improvements equipment Total
T#IT THIT THIT TH#TT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
R EENRNFT_H=Z1T—H K At 31 December 2006 and
ZERFLE-H—H 1 January 2007:
JRAE B A (L Cost or valuation 144,745 169,425 233,841 548,011
Zatires Accumulated depreciation (41,006) (83,820) (173,768) (298,594)

REFENFEF AT H K

Net book value at 31 December 2006

CERBLFE—H— HZHIREEHE and 1 January 2007 103,739 85,605 60,073 249,417
(LS EXCS-CYES Transfer to investment properties (12,716) - - (12,716)
NE Additions = 26,055 24,748 50,803
e Disposals (6,323) (51) (505) (6,879)
HAL Revaluation 13,623 - - 13,623
ERFHESTE Depreciation provided during the year (7,430) (20,916) (14,897) (43,243)
BEE 5, e At 4 R Exchange rate and other adjustments 6,095 541 112 6,748

RoBBLET A=A

Net book value at 31 December 2007

M T 3 96,988 91,234 69,531 257,753
R EEELETH =1+—H At 31 December 2007
BAE B AN (E Cost or valuation 139,411 192,153 251,664 583,228
i Accumulated depreciation (42,423) (100,919) (182,133) (325,475)
M oEFELFEFF—H=+—H Net book value at 31 December 2007

2 MR T FE 96,988 91,234 69,531 257,753
bl E 2 ARG ES TR ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation of

the above assets is as follows:

W oZFEELFE+_H=+—H: At 31 December 2007:
FiE BAE At cost = 192,153 251,664 443,817
F Ak (B At valuation 96,988 = = 96,988

96,988 192,153 251,664 540,805
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32 B R

32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

ABUT Bank
AT Bk B AR B e i
Bank HEWEEKE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and A5t
properties  improvements equipment Total
TH#L T#L T#L TH#L
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
ME_EFEELFEFT_H=1T—H& At 31 December 2007 and
—ER\F—H—H : 1 January 2008:
BASE B (A Cost or valuation 17,261 182,290 244,769 444,320
Zatires Accumulated depreciation (2,139) (97,432) (178,059) (277,630)
MoEELE++H=1+—H K& Net book value at 31 December 2007
ZERT)NF—H— H Z IR A and 1 January 2008 15,122 84,858 66,710 166,690
NE Additions - 27,371 29,917 57,288
i Disposals - (993) (238) (1,231)
A (B Revaluation (Note) 181 - - 181
R FHET Depreciation provided during the year (760) (18,748) (17,201) (36,709)
e 52, B HoAth 8 8 Exchange rate and other adjustments - - (341) (341)
ATEL)FETZA=T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2008
IR () 14,543 92,488 78,847 185,878
MoEZENFE+H=1+—H: At 31 December 2008:
FRASE SN (E Cost or valuation 17,306 203,605 221,788 442,699
S Accumulated depreciation (2,763) (111,117) (142,941) (256,821)
REZFEENFE+_H=+—H2Z Net book value at 31 December 2008
MR T (EL 14,543 92,488 78,847 185,878
ERUEE 2 A SAR(E ST 0 The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:
WEENE+ A =Z+—H At 31 December 2008:
FE R AME At cost - 203,605 221,788 425,393
Fefii{E At valuation 14,543 - - 14,543
14,543 203,605 221,788 439,936
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32 B R

32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

ARBT (40) Bank (continued)

ST EE B AF AL B A

Bank  FHEYEEE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and st
properties improvements equipment Total
T THEIT THEIT THETT
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

M EEERNFEFF A=+ —H & At 31 December 2006 and
ERTEFE A H 1 January 2007:

FRAME A E Cost or valuation 17,057 160,875 228,071 406,003
BEtres Accumulated depreciation (1,335) (82,380) (169,707) (253,422)

RZEERETL A= —H R

Net book value at 31 December 2006

CRBELF—H— HZ IR E and 1 January 2007 15,722 78,495 58,364 152,581
(LS EX S CYES Transfer to investment properties (646) - - (646)
NE Additions = 25,503 23,291 48,794
i Disposals (421) (51) (475) (947)
A Revaluation 1,204 = = 1,204
R EHET Depreciation provided during the year (736) (19,080) (14,471) (34,287)
[T 5, % HoAth 4 Exchange rate and other adjustments (1) ) 1 9)
MoEELE+_H=1+—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2007

W 1A VR 15,122 84,858 66,710 166,690
MoEELFEFF—H=1+—H: At 31 December 2007:

JRAS (B A E Cost or valuation 17,261 182,290 244,769 444,320
ESEi Accumulated depreciation (2,139) (97,432) (178,059) (277,630)
REFEELFE_H=1T—H2Z Net book value at 31 December 2007
MR T (EL 15,122 84,858 66,710 166,690
ERUEE 2 A SAS(E AT ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:
MNoEELFEFF_H=1—H: At 31 December 2007:
i AE At cost = 182,290 244,769 427,059
FefiifE At valuation 15,122 = = 15,122

15,122 182,290 244,769 442,181
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32 B R 32

SRATWER ZEE/FE+ A=+ AR EH B A S
S At (1 A 25 A W AT T4 M 2 8 BRI T B A (B AT E A o
AR AR MR o ) 2 s E B —EFNFE A+ H =+ — HARE
v R A 2 ST A S T YR 1 i [ A A
b 55 b 2 A 1 5 0 A B A W BT AR =2 2 B T 35 A6k (AT B
At o TN 2R (F1BR B R E BT A58 ) T 5t A RHRRE i rp 2 4R
TTHIEEAL AR A o WA S [ R AR SRAT 2 RAT 5 /i ) 2t
FRAS TR 2 FHT R SR B A5 2 AR T (R0 Fil 549,060,000 %5
J6 (ZEE LA ¢ 49,446,000 #570) J% 9,720,000 # 70 (—FE L
4F 10,120,000 #5C) °

ARG 2 W) BE AL B TR LR A RRAT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Note:

The bank premises were revalued at 31 December 2008 based on the open market value
by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer. The
subsidiary’s premises were revalued at 31 December 2008 based on the open market
value by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd.,
independent professionally qualified valuer in Mainland China. The revaluation surplus
net of applicable deferred income taxes was credited to bank premises revaluation reserve
in shareholders’ equity. The carrying amount of the bank premises and properties of
the Group and the Bank would have been HK$49,060,000 (2007: HK$49,446,000) and
HK$9,720,000 (2007: HK$10,120,000) respectively had they been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation.

The Group’s properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland China and are held
under the following lease terms:

A AHUT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T#x TUsIC T#L T
biiNE Leaseholds HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TEFWERA - Held in Hong Kong:
RHE (5042 ) Long term leases (over 50 years) 4,405 4,519 4,405 4,519
REAFH & (10 2 50 4F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 10,138 10,603 10,138 10,603
TEFHE LA M [ 454 Held outside Hong Kong:
FRHAFHE (10 2 504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 83,459 81,866 - -
98,002 96,988 14,543 15,122
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33 FHE 1 Hb % s FRE 33 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

AR AR I R A B AT
Group and Bank
T#x
HK$’000
HRTAIE Carrying amount:
BB NFE—H—H At 1 January 2008 and as at 31 December 2008 54,449
BB A=A
25Tk - Accumulated amortisation:
W EENE—H—H At 1 January 2008 9,845
RN Amortisation for the year 744
RoEENFE+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2008 10,589
MR T A Net carrying amount:
REEEZ)NFE+ZH=1+—H At 31 December 2008 43,860
AR B B AR SRAT
Group and Bank
TH#E T
HK$°000
HRIHIME Carrying amount:
W _EELFE—H—H At 1 January 2007 71,658
LS E  LY/E S Transfer to investment properties (15,990)
& Disposal (1,219)
RoEELFETH=1—H At 31 December 2007 54,449
S A S S E Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
MoEELE—H—H At 1 January 2007 10,231
(LS X d<L7/ES Transfer to investment properties (233)
AR NS Amortisation for the year 734
I AEL [ 5% Write-back of impairment (853)
HE Disposal (34)
REEELFEFFZA=+—H At 31 December 2007 9,845

HE 0

AR LFEZH =+ —H

Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2007

44,604
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33 FHE M M - b FAE s 33 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)
7% B [ A REL 6 3 B = ol T R 22 RE R AR B IR A A The Group’ s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
) S AR EHE AT - operating leases and their net book values are analysed as follows:
2008 2007
Tt RN
HK$°000 HK$°000
ERW > I ERRA In Hong Kong, held on
— FHHAME 4 50 4F — Leases over 50 years 29,380 29,748
— FHHATE 10 % 50 4F 2 [ — Leases between 10 and 50 years 14,480 14,856
43,860 44,604
34 HAWEE 34 OTHER ASSETS
ARLEH AHUT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T-#L Tt T#IL T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
JREW RIS, Interest receivable 498,375 599,164 540,501 659,927
TEAERIE Prepayments 130,557 123,155 124,640 122,117
HEIRE Settlement accounts 1,209,518 851,106 1,390,600 851,106
HoAh Others 1,031,109 1,121,295 1,039,329 1,646,124
2,869,559 2,694,720 3,095,070 3,279,274
35 B ARIZE 35 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
ARHAT
Bank
2008 2007
T#IL T
HK$’000 HK$°000

FE LT AR E > HRRANE Unlisted share investments at cost 1,908,750 1,874,432
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35 JAMHEAFZBE @

IR BARSUTIA —RFNE+ T H =+ — BRefh Z

35 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Bank at 31 December 2008:

NP
AR,
Rl 3 EMHEE A 2
A4 Place of E.2 Particulars of issued shares 2 Hid
Name incorporation Principal activities held/ registered capital Interest held
2008 2007
AT HhE N RALAN B SRATIEHS A E#1,100,780,000 72 100% 100%
Chinese Mercantile Bank* People’s Republic Banking business RMB1,100,780,000
of China
T o B E A R AR i St e RS 1,000,000 5 T (B 135702 - 2 /it 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Hong Kong Provision of asset management 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited services
TEREIH S 2EA RAT Frits A 6,000,000 BT (AL 1785 e 2 3 i 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Hong Kong Inactive 6,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited
oM B R RA T it EEARSRAT 2 S E B 26,000,000 A T {1 ¥ 2 A 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings ~ Hong Kong Management of Bank’s PRC 26,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Limited impaired loan-portfolio
TEREH B AA RAT it S R 7,828,870 e 5 A T {1 1 #5702 B 100% -
ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Hong Kong Provision of asset management 7,828,870 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited services
TARTEPHACHAA PR A it SR AR 100 B BT B 100 75 7T 2 LA 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited =~ Hong Kong Provision of nominee services 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
T HLEE IS PR 7 it {R kIR AL IS 100,000,000 B A I (E 1 C 2 B 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited Hong Kong Provision of securities 100,000,000 ordinary shares
brokerage services of HK$1 each
LREM EEARAT it A= RE RS 30,000 45 FBE 1T L 100 ¥ 7 2 5 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Hong Kong Provision of trustee services 30,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
Limited
ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees it AN 100 FBCAE R T 1 35 70 2 4 100% 100%
Limited Hong Kong Inactive 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited® il g 415,879 B IR T (E 72,14 BOC 2 B8/ 100% 100%
Belgium In liquidation 415,879 ordinary shares of EUR72.14 each
ICBCA (C.I.) Limited FSREE BATROR 2 HB A 7 LB 1 56702 357 100% 100%
Cayman Islands Being a special-purpose 1 ordinary share of US$1
vehicle for bond issuance
TR g I S AT PR S AR SRR AN 5 1T 1 560 2 9 100% 100%
UB China Business Management British Virgin Islands  Inactive 1 ordinary share of US$1

Co. Ltd.

G S EH 2 K Rl 2 ST 2 T S5 T A Bk A A g

P2 A
* LINEE hegives

global network firms
* Foreign-owned enterprise

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young

TAASAEE > 752 [ i i 8 e B A BR A ] 4
R AT Z A o WU 2 TEZ REIGHROA M EE 43 ©

During the year, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of ICBC
(Asia) Investment Management Company Limited. Further details of this
acquisition are included in Note 43.
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36 BT 36 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
ARG B AGHUT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T#T Tt T#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
A AL AR F 1 Demand deposits and current accounts 4,986,854 5,347,433 4,446,744 4,874,797
& Ak Savings deposits 20,034,376 16,564,063 20,383,633 16,927,904
TE A B 28 AR Time, call and notice deposits 113,162,102 115,618,731 112,805,690 118,170,657
138,183,332 137,530,227 137,636,067 139,973,358
37 HRE A PREA R R AIRZ SR 37 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
B B A GAT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T T TH#x THIT
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B FFR (1) Deposits from customers (i) 301,216 298,274 301,216 298,274
B BT 3 (i) Certificates of deposit issued (ii) 3,489,361 3,105,399 3,489,361 3,105,399
BV AT (i) Debt securities in issue (iii) 3,146,399 3,119,872 - -
6,936,976 6,523,545 3,790,577 3,403,673
() FFAERR_FZNF+_H=1—H E(]/\%Z (1)  The fair value of deposits from customers at 31 December 2008 was
(BB E A A 49 258 5 100 #¥ T (CFF L HKS$1 million higher (2007: HK$4 million lower) than the contractual
4+ k400 BVETT) « HfE EJE R iﬁhﬁy«ﬂi A amount at maturity. The amounts of changes in the fair value of the
SR TR {E R 23R 2 B S 3D TR = financial liabilities that were attributable to changes in credit risk are
FENER-_ZELFE T _A=Z+—HZ &5 considered not significant during the year presented and cumulatively
BB SRR A AT - as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.
(i) FHEREE/NETZH=T—HWATE (ii)  The fair value of certificates of deposit issued at 31 December 2008
[ﬁﬁ?”gﬁ%zﬁﬁﬁﬂ% t 4,600 BT (—F % b was HK$46 million higher (2007: HK$19 million higher) than the
AF R 1,900 BV T) o [R5 L A Y 2 contractual amount at maturity. The amounts of changes in the fair
SRR A TE ﬁﬁA ii&ﬁﬁ 2 B B K value of the financial liabilities that were attributable to changes in
REEFNERZFZLFEF_HA=1t—HZ credit risk were considered not significant during the year presented
2 n1’k§ﬂﬁ%’ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ BRI ARE K and cumulatively as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.
(iii) fif % 5 A 45 H%H 400,000,000 £ 6 2 ZL4E > 5%5F (iii)  The debt securities which represented notes with an aggregate principal
SRR R FNY4EJLA B ICBCA (CI ) L1mited amount of US$400,000,000 were issued in September 2004 by ICBCA
(RBATH R E MR A ) 47 > RE R EE (C.I.) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, at a coupon rate
4.125% > R FEESAESLHA N HE - 55 of 4.125% per annum and maturing on 16 September 2009. The fair
RZEE)NE+ZH =+ — HZ A PEEBR value of debt securities at 31 December 2008 was HK$46 million higher
FH H 2 A #0456 5 4,600 B0 (—FE L (2007: HK$447,000 lower) than the contractual amount at maturity.
A 1 K 447,000 9 7T) o [R5 B R 5 B A A The amounts of changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities
il B A ﬂ’—ﬁﬁﬁ/\ AR 2 S R A SR that were attributable to changes in credit risk were considered
e LU ae = o A el S not significant during the year presented and cumulatively as at 31

R B SRR A AT K - December 2008 and 31 December 2007.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The amounts of changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities
that are attributable to changes in credit risk are determined as the
amounts of changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities that are
not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
risk. The credit spread has not changed and the changes in fair value of
the financial liabilities are attributable to the changes in other market
factor components.

38 IEIEFLIE 38 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
TEAERLTEA B & s 5’}[% IRF 25 R i BB 16.5% 5l Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
B( BB liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%).
HERE /(A& 2 BEHUF : The movements on the deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) account are as
follows:
Total

2008 2008 2008 2007

Tt T T T

A Group HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
w—HA—H At 1 January (11,539) (324,717) (336,256) (115,885)
Fi Rt 2 Effect of change in tax rate - 18,556 18,556 =
TEdR fi K re iR Credited to income statement (75) 30,035 29,960 920
TERERE (ZBR) /REER (Debited)/credited to equity (1,744) 427,744 426,000 (221,319)
e 5 S HLAth 4% Exchange and other adjustments (714) 1 (713) 28
R+=H=+—H At 31 December (14,072) 151,619 137,547 (336,256)
2008 2007

T T

AREAT Bank HK$’000 HK$'000
R—H— At 1 January (324,717) (115,885)
%EK“EJZ%L Effect of change in tax rate 18,556 -
TRt Rk Credited to income statement 30,035 189
TEREfToiR /(KR Credited/(debited) to equity 427,744 (209,021)
bt B A R Exchange and other adjustments 1 -
RTZH=+—H At 31 December 151,619 (324,717)
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38 ﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁlﬂ (%) 38 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
SENRERSROIE / (GIR) ZIRGERLIEMN T - The deferred income tax credited/(debited) to equity during the year is as
follows:

B B A GAT

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
ToL T T Tt
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$000

JR R A 2 3 P (B fi Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity

(B3t 42) (Note 42)
—SRITYIE - Bank premises (1,773) (13,922) (29) (1,624)
— ke & SR A - Available-for-sale financial
investments 427,773 (207,397) 427,773 (207,397)
— Pl R A ) 2 5 — Effect of change in tax rate 17,982 - 17,982 =
443,982 (221,319) 445,726 (209,021)
AP A B TS e A e (BELIR] — B B 2 45 R AIK The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
FHET) Z BT offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year
are as follows:
R LB IE B A Deferred income tax assets
A RAER BERE A i InE BT
Collective impairment Investment Accelerated tax Hm
losses revaluation reserves depreciation Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
T THTT T THTT T THIT T THTT
A Group HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
B—H—H At 1 January 14,038 15,233 16,954 - 1,398 - 32,390 15,233
Fi RS E) 2 2 Effect of change in tax rate (802) - (969) - - - (1,771) -
eI R Credited/(charged) to
TR (GZHR) income statement 25,452 (1,195) - = - 1,347 25,452 152
TERESRTOHR Credited to equity - - 245418 16,954 - - 245418 16,954
HEE 5255 Exchange difference - - - - 86 51 86 51
WHZA=+—H At 31 December 38,688 14,038 261,403 16,954 1,484 1,398 301,575 32,390
AR B A
Collective impairment Investment M
losses revaluation reserves Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
T#x T T THIT T#x THETT
ARHT Bank HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
n—H—H At 1 January 14,038 15,233 16,954 - 30,992 15,233
CES T % 4 Effect of change in tax rate (802) - (969) - (1,771) -
fEfR 4 % Credited/(charged) to
WOl (i) income statement 25,452 (1,195) - - 25,452 (1,195)
TERE SR TR Credited to equity - - 245,418 16,954 245,418 16,954

T HA=1+—H  At31 December 38,688 14,038 261,403 16,954 300,091 30,992
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38 ﬂﬁﬁmlﬂ (%) 38 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

IELEFLTE B AR Deferred income tax liabilities
ST TG i B A il I B YT #
Bank premises Investment Accelerated tax M
revaluation reserve revaluation reserves depreciation Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
T THTT T THIT T T T T T
AL Group HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
r—H—H At 1 January 14,976 415 329,595 105,244 24,075 25,459 368,646 131,118
PR 2 5 Effect of change in tax rate (117) = (18,834) - (1,376) - (20,327) -
FEER Charged/(credited)

X/ (FiiR) to income statement 75 616 - - (4,583) (1,384) (4,508) (768)
FEfEts SR/ (GUBR)  Debited/(credited) to equity 1,773 13,922 (182,355) 224,351 - - (180,582) 2387273
e 5t 2 Exchange difference 800 23 - - (1) - 799 23
wr—HA=1+—H At 31 December 17,507 14,976 128,406 329,595 18,115 24,075 164,028 368,646

BAT P2 A i B Akl IR BT
Bank premises Investment Accelerated tax B
revaluation reserve revaluation reserves depreciation Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T T THTT Tl THTT T#i THETC
AGAT Bank HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
m—H—H At 1 January 2,039 415 329,595 105,244 24,075 25,459 355,709 131,118
PR ) 2 Y2 Effect of change in tax rate (117) = (18,834) = (1,376) = (20,327) =
TEfRAR R Credited to

AR income statement - - - - (4,583) (1,384) (4,583) (1,384)
FEfiEs 0%/ (FlfR)  Debited/(credited) to equity 29 1,624 (182,355) 224,351 - - (182,326) 225975
[ 5, 25 Exchange difference - = - = 1) = (1) -
w+r=HA=1+—H At 31 December 1,951 2,039 128,406 329,595 18,115 24,075 148,472 355,709
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38 ARAEBLIA (40) 38

7 45 [ 7 A s 72 2R 2 Bl JE 548 4,300,465 W 00 (. FE
LA ¢ 506,466 #5I0) > AT HERR U DA B E A 2 A
B2 AT Z RARERBLRE A o B %25 18 T2 F 3
I 2 R A T > AN KT BE A R R s 1 AT 44
B 2S5 BT R R DA IR B » WO st b 45 s 1R e 2
RIERITHE 7

REBE)E+H =+ —H > AL S THE
N ) Z AR AR BRI AR 42 [ IR A RE S MR 1 2 B TE &
18 > A 52 [ 51 4 B A 22 T K R e R0 4 ol T B 1
(ZEE LA IE) -

A GRATT 7] HE B SRS A 2 BRI AR B A A A T 45 B A%
.

R EERAERIIR Y SR
LB R AR A BB BIHEE LA A&

DA SO AR I 2 R — BAB B - A1 4R
8 o LAUTRTEAR S B A AR R 2 £ -

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$4,300,465 (2007:
HK$506,466) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

At 31 December 2008, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2007: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the future earnings of
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional
tax should such amounts be received.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends
by the Bank to its shareholders.

The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Ak
Total
2008 2008 2008 2007
T#x T T#L T
ASEH Group HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
RAERIHE R Deferred income tax assets:
R AR A Rk to be recovered after more than 12 months 1,484 299,275 300,759 32,390
e E ATl to be recovered within 12 months - 816 816 -
1,484 300,091 301,575 32,390
EERIEA R Deferred income tax liabilities:
i H A EE to be settled after more than 12 months (15,556) (144,099) (159,655) (358,000)
A iR to be settled within 12 months - (4,373) (4,373) (10,646)
(15,556) (148,472) (164,028) (368,646)
IR G E (A fR) FHE Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities), net (14,072) 151,619 137,547 (336,256)
2008 2007
T#L T
AT Bank HK$’000 HK$'000
IRAEBIHE R Deferred income tax assets:
R AE A AR to be recovered after more than 12 months 299,275 30,992
= AE A Ak to be recovered within 12 months 816 -
300,091 30,992
IRAERLIA A Deferred income tax liabilities:
A AR EE to be settled after more than 12 months (144,099) (345,063)
A R to be settled within 12 months (4,373) (10,646)
(148,472) (355,709)
EIERIEE R/ (B 1E) A Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities), net 151,619 (324,717)
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39 u}%&iﬁﬁjﬁAAH&zféfﬁ’{ﬁIg 39 SUBORDINATED DEBTS MEASURED AT AMORTISED
COST
AR B B AR BT
Group and Bank
2008 2007
F% PR
:Fiﬁi Interest rate :F%fﬁ Interest rate
HKS$’000 % HK$°000 %
AR R Subordinated floating rate notes
— Bk ﬁ/\ F——4FLtH_H ~ with a final maturity on
R 2 July 2011 581,258 0.686% 585,060 4.8500%
— AR 4 - with a final maturity on
A HE 12 December 2011 620,008 2.000% 624,064 4.8463%
— B R4 - with a final maturity on
=H =+ HEH 26 March 2012 542,507 2.000% 546,056 4.8463%
— AR AR - with a final maturity on
+= A /\H 8 December 2012 - - 500,000 4.3507%
— B R A ~ with a final maturity on
lmﬁ Jr/\ H 2131 28 April 2014
(AT —EF LA (callable on 28 April 2009)
L= - Jr/\ H [ 1) 1,162,515 2.250% 1,170,120 5.5963%
— AR RN — with a final maturity on
/\H;ﬁ‘hﬁ@],ﬂﬁ 29 June 2016
(ﬂﬁ/ﬁ:£**¢ (callable on 30 June 2011)
S H =4 H R 620,008 1.925% 624,064 5.7025%
— R =F—) \@ ~ with a final maturity on
+H =+ HE 20 October 2018
(R =& — = 4R (callable on 21 October 2013)
+H = +—H§EE) 1,550,020 2.275% = =
— KA (A A = — T 4F - perpetual (callable on
+= A+ H ) 10 December 2012) 1,000,000 1.451% 1,000,000 3.9507%
— KA (AR F— =4 - perpetual (callable on
LA JLH ) 9 July 2013) 930,012 1.925% 936,096 5.2025%
— KA (] A =R —7R4F - perpetual (callable on
ANH =+ HIgERE) 30 June 2016) 1,550,020 2.025% 1,560,160 6.3025%
8,556,348 7,545,620

RAERTIA TS th ASSRAT ISRV 25 40 R & - i oy de i
PER A T B AT R BGRIE o MR ARI > 2
IRE @I T IIAARRAT Z N EAS

Subordinated debts were raised by the Bank for the development and
expansion of business and have been fully subscribed by the ultimate holding
company and its branch. These notes have been qualified and included as the
Bank’s supplementary capital in accordance with the Capital Rules.
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40 HAbE R 40 OTHER LIABILITIES
ARG AGHUT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
TH#T THIT T#T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
JEAS 1L, Interest payable 821,990 942,930 804,652 965,175
JREASY 3 4 AR Al Salaries and welfare payable 47,171 83,234 47,171 83,234
IR Settlement accounts 1,212,046 478,768 1,398,032 881,407
HoAth Others 969,073 1,831,736 851,939 1,789,805
3,050,280 3,336,668 3,101,794 3,719,621
AR [ B AR SRAT I A A il JF B ARSI A AT 4 A <5 The Group and the Bank have not had any defaults of principal, interest or
FLE B AE R (BT LA - ) other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2007: Nil).
41 JBAK 41 SHARE CAPITAL
WBRE B
IRt H W Ordinary Preference
Number of Ordinary share share
shares shares premium premium
Tk T T Tt
(in thousands) HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
A FEN\E—H—H At 1 January 2008 1,225,952 2,451,904 7,161,786 =
MEE—FELET S Allotment of new shares regarding
E+—HIFEERMBRE the scrip dividend scheme of
ZUMBACE Gt BB B Rk final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2007 29,125 58,250 550,450 -
MR =TT /NEARNA Allotment of new shares regarding
=+ H IR RS the scrip dividend scheme of
ZUMBACE B BL B Rk interim dividend for the period ended
30 June 2008 15,271 30,542 228918 -
CLAT (B R Warrants exercised 14,920 29,840 268,560 -
JRA AT S i Share issue expenses - - (121) -
HoET A =1+—H At 31 December 2008 1,285,268 2,570,536 8,209,593 -
REFEFLE-H—H At 1 January 2007 1,121,259 2,242,518 5,323,893 16,126
MRE —FEANEF A Allotment of new shares regarding
Zt—HIFEERBBE the scrip dividend scheme of
Z VAR AR R B 0 P final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2006 18,368 36,736 287,281 -
HBE—FTLEAA Allotment of new shares regarding
=+ A IR R R the scrip dividend scheme of
Z VAR Bl e interim dividend for the period ended
30 June 2007 9,983 19,966 160,833 -
B A1 R e Warrants exercised 76,342 152,684 1,374,142 -
JRA AT S Share issue expenses = = (489) =
1 i 2 2 i (] Transfer of preference share
premium to ordinary share premium - - 16,126 (16,126)
REFFLEFZA=+—H At 31 December 2007 1,225,952 2,451,904 7,161,786 -
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41  JBA )

TR LB AU 201 B (Z R Z L4 - 20080%) >
JReT (L 208 0T (R F L4 R (E2HT) o BT

BT B A E RV BGK -

g AT IR B IR AR R 2 32 (B (B R L
4E 2328 - IR A ST (S FEELAE -
REmi{Es#T) o R EE/E+H=+—H > i fE
ATAT & 32 5 ] gt IE 2T S B . B B TR

JBe (ZFFAF ) o

ASERAT B AN — TE DA REAC B Sl o R HE R (1)
DI 4 WSO B 5 B (2) MAT U 2 194 5 A A AR B
£ 5 5 (3) Y HUGH 4 B & B A T By o 5 T IR E
BRI HCHT IO E A R, - A3t A #8682 5T (—

TTAAE - 5.04818WT) ©

[l St

REFELE R _FR-LETH I HZSIEOR
4 A1 B8 S S R A LS BB AR 5 — i S PR ) L)
BEAT LA RR SBME RS > 4 T EE AT 126,625,283 173 7 S A
i o OB R B AT B R =R R
75 H AT 54 1 205 70 2 B I LA 0 5 IR MR o o M —

JBeTH {8 2 ¥ ST A A I o

R $£14,919.944 13 ( =T E L 4 ¢ 76,341,234 1)
w0 I R AT M RE > DL 20 W5 T 2 [H A5 wR
14,919,944 7 ( —FE L4 : 76,341,234 %) 45 B T (B 2
TG o FRICHERE HTAE ~ SRIERE O R =2 % )\ 4F

T—HNBE R -
[l
g am A

AR AR BRI o R E T NEF A =+
H o SIEAT AR ) RAT 00 2 RRIBAHE (Z T4 « ) o

AR R B R LAER A ST 2 BOREFER

B B SRAT 2 AU -

PRAN GRS ST B ZE R AR SRAT 2 PB4 ] oh I LR 4RAT

ZIBAHAHESR - T AIARE -
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The total number of authorised ordinary shares is 2,000 million shares (2007:
2,000 million shares) with a par value of HK$2 per share (2007: HK$2 per
share). All issued shares are fully paid.

The total number of authorised convertible non-cumulative preference shares
is 232 million shares (2007: 232 million shares) with a par value of HK$5 per
share (2007: HK$5 per share). There was no preference share in issue as at 31
December 2008 which were converted from the authorised convertible non-
cumulative preference shares (2007: Nil).

The Bank adopted a scrip dividend scheme allowing the shareholders to
have the options to receive (1) dividends in cash; or (2) an allotment of new
shares in lieu of cash; or (3) a combination of cash and new shares. Certain
shareholders have selected to receive new shares as dividends amounted to
HK$868.2 million (2007: HK$504.8 million).

Warrants

In 2007, a bonus issue of warrants was made in the proportion of one warrant
for every nine shares held by members on the Register of Members on 15
October 2007, resulting in 126,625,283 warrants being issued. Each warrant
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$2 per
share at a subscription price of HK$20 per share, from the date of issue to 6
November 2008.

During the year, 14,919,944 warrants (2007: 76,341,234 warrants) were
exercised for 14,919,944 shares (2007: 76,341,234 shares) of HK$2 each at a
price of HK$20 per share. The subscription rights attaching to the warrants
lapsed on 6 November 2008.

Share options

Share Option Scheme
During the year, no option has been granted and at 31 December 2008 (2007:
Nil), there was no option outstanding.

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Bank at the
annual general meeting held on 10 May 2007.

The adoption of the Share Option Scheme is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of ICBC, the holding company of the Bank.
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42 filith 42 RESERVES
AS Group
BLECR T
WRREE KR
ik Convertible Tt &% Rl
Bl non-cumulative Bank Bt HBiti
Ordinary preference premises  Investment Cash flow TES el — Rt 3]
share share  revaluation  revaluation hedge Exchange General Retained st
premium premium reserve reserve Teserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T T Tib T Tin T T Tin
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000
RZZZNF—-H At1 January 2008 7,161,786 - 46,835 1,473,070 - 69,129 323,882 3481,533 12,556,235
Bkl (Rt a) Tssue ofshares (Note 41) 1,047,928 - - - - - - - 1047928
Rl Betostct (k1) Share isue expenses (Note 41) (121) - - - - - (121)
S ELHREL Change in fair value of available-for-sale - - - (3,416,759) - - (3,416,759)
TR financial investments
hERENELRRE Reserve realised on disposal of - - (3,163) - - (3,163)
LEERR available-for-sale financial investments
e R Transfer from available-for-sale financial investments - - 819,504 - - 819,504
SRREESREAREE revaluation reserve to the income statement
onimpairment
ReH AT EESS Change in fair velue of cash flow hedge - - 7853 - 7,853
LR Revaluation surplus on bank premises - 7,289 - - - 7,89
Bt R Exchange diffeences - 1 - I - - 7,778
D Partial transfer of retained earnings - - - - - 20,508 (2,508) -
— ke to the general reserve
AER R Proftfor the year - - - - 969,023 969,023
EIEREEE (H:tas) Change in deferted tax (Note 38) - (1,636) 145,638 - - 4398
BN LEAMIE (HE18) 2007 fine dividend paid (Note 16) - - - - (781,708) (781,708)
B ZE RS (M:18) 2008 interim dividend paid (Note 18 - - - - (355,599) (355,599)
REZENETZA=-H At31 December 2008 §,209593 - 52469 (681,710) 7853 141906 346,390 390741 1136742
(a) AEEEZ — Bl (a)  The general reserve of the Group is comprised of:

(b)

(d)

— AT HOMIR TAE BRG] 5 &

— MBS R 2 R (R 4%
R S A8 T R RE 2 BB ik 48k 2
10%) o UL P S o 61 22 s 1 sl o
% o

RN A H AR R IR A AR 231,348,000 5
JG > A B A I WA A R E T\
A= +— B IR A 2 AR (FHE19) -

MoEENET A =+—H > AEEER
B s A 43 1 781,317,000 J0 ( — F E L4
819,332,000 7 70) 1E [ L E M | o et RS
JRE A 7 s SR AT SE MR R 5T B 2 S B 5 H 9T

AR > ELEE I PR B AR o
A T S B A 22 A5 ik B PP LS A AR SRAT

RS % i L 2 386 1 739,638,000 #5 7T (—FE £
4E 1 1,426,740,000#570) ©

(®)

(c)

(d)

- the transfer of retained earnings which is distributable to the
shareholders of the Group; and

- a statutory surplus reserve of a subsidiary, representing 10%
of the profit after tax appropriation, as required by laws and
regulations in the PRC. This reserve is used to offset accumulated
losses or increase in capital.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$231,348,000 after
the year-end which will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
earnings for the year ended 31 December 2008 (Note 19).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has earmarked a “Regulatory
Reserve” of HK$781,317,000 (2007: HK$819,332,000) from the retained
earnings. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions
of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained
earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Group
includes a profit of HK$739,638,000 (2007: HK$1,426,740,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank.
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42 RESERVES (continued)

AS Group
A 25t
R B It
Bk Convertible Bl ey Wik
& non-comulative Bank B Hibbith
Ordinary preference premises Tnvestment Cash low 5 G ] [REEA
share share revaluation revaluation hedge Exchange General Retained 5t
premium premium Teserve Teserve Teserve reserve Teserve eamings TOGLI
Tk Tk Tr T Thr Tin T Thr T
HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000
REFELE-A-H At January 2007 5,303,893 16,26 38142 495,344 - - 25014 2,734,266 8,842,785
Birlkdy (Rt a) Tssue ofshares (Note 41) 1,822,256 - - - - - - - 182,56
Tl (e (3t 41) Transfe ofshare premium (Note 41) 16,126 (16,126) = = = = = . 5
R (s 41) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (489) = = = = = = = (489)
ftHELRREL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
AFEEZS financial investments - - - 965978 - - - - 965978
HEREAECRRE Reserve realised on disposal of
LEERRE available-for-sale financia investments - - - (14,880) - - - - (14,880)
RREB 4R e Transfer from available-for-sale
RRHEREEARGR financial investments revaluation reserve
to the income statement on impairment - - - 234,04 - - - - 234,04
ERfHE Disposal of bank premise = - (51) - - - - 51 -
RiEERR Revaluation surplus on bank premises - - 20,666 - - - - - 20,666
EstER Exchange differences - - - 1 - 69,129 k) 4817 74319
BEIMRERAE Partal transfr o rtained earnings
i tothe general reserve - - - - - - 88,496 (88,496) -
AERER Proftfor the year - - - - - - - 1,608,788 1,608,788
s DR Change in dferted tax (Note 38) - - (13922) (207,397) - - - - (21319)
B BRRAEARE (B 18) 2006 fialcividend pad (Note 19) - - - - - - - G779 (515779)
ENZZRLEAMRE (He18) 2007 interim dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - - - (262,114) (262,114)
REBBLET A=A At31 December 2007 7,161,786 - 468% 1473070 - 69,129 3388 3153 1556235
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42 fEfE @

42 RESERVES (continued)

AT Bank
MR
BbRER SRk
WA Convertible ilkel &% BaviR
B non-cumulative Bank Bhiitth Skt
Ordinary preference premises  Investment Cash flow WSttt = L] el
share share  revaluation  revaluation hedge Exchange General Retained it
premium premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T T T T T Tix T T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
WERNE—R—H At January 2008 7,161,786 - 9l 14T8T - 82 N0 38967 12148263
B (Wsta1) Isste of shares (Note 41) 1047928 - - - - - - - 1M
BBy (Bt ) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (121) - - - - - - - (121)
filtHERRE, Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATEEES financial investments - - - (3416759) - - - - (3416759)
HEREESRSRE Reserve realised on disposal of
LEEHRE available-for-sale financial investments - - - (3,163) - - - - (3,163)
IR A e Transfer from available-for-sale
SRTATIE GRS R financial investments revaluation
reserve to the income statement
on impairment - - - 819,504 - - - - 819,504
AT A TEERD Change in fair value of cash flow hedge - - - - 7,853 - - - 7,853
RITIEE(RR Revaluation surplus on bank premises - - 171 - - - - - 171
ERER Exchange differences - - 1 - - 2,555 - - 2,556
AL Profit for the year - - - - - - - 739638 739,638
RERIEEY (Bt 30) Change in deferred tax (Note 38) - - 88 445,638 - - - - 45726
ERZEZLERBIE (H718) 2007 final dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - - - (781,708) (781,708)
EFZEZEARE (H318) 2008 interim dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - - - (355,599) (355,599)
REEZNEFZA=T—H At31 December 2008 8,209,593 - 9,871 (680,903) 7,853 3377 219,200 2,885,298 10,654,289
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42 'ﬁ%% (%) 42 RESERVES (continued)
ARAT Bank
i 2t
(e R
3l Convertible Bt &
#ME  non-cumulative Bank Ei ]
Ordinary preference premises Investment RS —fhf (RE A
share share revaluation revaluation Exchange General Retained it
premium premium reserve Teserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Tt Tix T Tt Tin T Tt T
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000
R=FZLE-A—H At 1 January 2007 5,303,893 16,126 1954 496,15 = 21900 2634070 8,691,395
Bk (Ha) Isste of shares (Note 41) 182256 - - - - - - 182,56
ey (S (Wt 1) Transfer of share premium (Note 41) 16,126 (16,126) o o = o o =
BBy (Bt 1) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (489) - - - - - - (489)
Mk ESRRE, Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATEERE financial investments - - - 965,978 - - - 965,978
LERIHESRRE Reserve realised on disposal of
LEEHE available-for-sale financial investments - - - (14,880) - - - (14,880)
RIER AR o et Transfer from available-for-sale
SRGEEHREARGE financial investments revaluation reserve to the
income statement on impairment - - - 234,024 - - - 234024
&R Disposal of bank premise - - (51) - - - 51 -
GRS Revaluation surplus on bank premises = - 9332 - - - - 9,332
AR Exchange differences - - - - 82 - (1) 821
ERER Profit for the year - - - - - - 1426740 1,426,740
RERIEEE (Bt 30) Change in deferred tax (Note 38) - - (1,624) (207,397) = = = (209,021)
ERZEZAEAMIE (H718) 2006 final dividend paid (Note 18) = = = = = = (515,779) (515,779)
BRZEZLFRIE (H18) 2007 interim dividend paid (Note 18) - - - - - - (262,114) (262,114)
REZRLETZAZE=H  At31 December 2007 7,161,786 - 9611 1473877 822 219200 328,967 12,148263
43 Wit — [l Fi Jeg 2 W 43 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

R EE ) HENA =+ H > AT R TR
W& B HAT IR 7 (RS A B S A RA A

B WA F SR EES MRS 2k ERAR) &
HE AT 2 AR RER/NFENH—HE LA
= HEM > SZgl A w7 R4 £ 3,700,000
WIT o S EN T\ FE—H - HE#E %
T AR IS £ 4,800,000 5 T °

FIT WSl 2 e ) e AR M H B 2 P
S AT A ERR BT (B 40

On 31 August 2008, the Bank completed the acquisition of the entired
issued share capital of ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company
Limited (previously known as Worldsec Asset Management Limited), an
unlisted company based in Hong Kong specialising in the provision of asset
management services. The acquired company had made an operating loss
of approximately HK$3.7 million during the period from 1 September to
31 December 2008. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2008, the
operating loss would have been HK$4.8 million.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired at the date of
acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the
acquisition are as follows:
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43 WhE— ] BRI 2 ] () 43 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

ATEME,

MR {E

Fair value/

carrying amount

THETT

HK$000

B4 Je 45 R Bl T H Cash and cash equivalents 8,801
B 5y REWCR I Trade receivable 241
LIEE ] Property, plant and equipment 29
HoAh Other assets 488
HoAth & 5 Other liabilities (137)
PEY N ] Retirement benefit obligations 9)
T s (A Net assets acquired 9,413
7 Goodwill 18,174
EL AT A AR (B4 IR Total purchase consideration paid (discharged by cash) 27,587
HK$000

IS AR Cost of acquisition 27,587
Tk TSR R A ) 2 Less: cash and cash equivalents in a subsidiary acquired (8,801)

B4 Je 45 R Bl H
WS B S T B U R Net cash outflow on acquisition 18,786

7 2 S 2 A 2 TR 1 ) A 2 M

44 BHHEAZ G 44
JA— AR 2E TS U e BRI KRR MR A ) LA e [ 2R o o 2 )
TN TR SL 2 38 ) B - A5 AN ERAT IR 26 2 A7
5o AR BTG REE ARG o S
JITA 22 5 W 145 A B T35 0 2 A8 o S S SR AT o] B 22
7 MESCERE L A 2k R R AL el AR o e %
JAEAZ A = HRARRE » AR A7 48 5t B et
KA HEEA B 2 RIRFHEAT T o (ZFRL4F

The goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the
acquisition.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course of business
with the ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and associates,
including the acceptance of placements of interbank deposits, correspondent
banking transactions and off-balance sheet transactions. The activities were
priced at the relevant market rates at the time of transactions. There have
been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables
or payables. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Bank has not made

f) any provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties
(2007: Nil).
a.  EERATF a.  Ultimate holding company

2008 2007
T THT
HK$’000 HK$°000
FIE YA Interest Income 1,274,954 457,739
FE S H Interest expense 1,079,392 1,493,003
HoAh & LA 12 Other operating Income 2 13,774 6,375
Hpg 23 Other operating expenses * 14,805 13,079
JRE W 5 Amounts due from 19,052,897 22,245,569
JE Ak <238 Amounts due to 21,200,266 20,151,901
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44  BHERR G o) 44 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

a.  IAREERRA ] (80

1. WEFZ-FLtH=HF L2 AEREM &L
CERERAECAMNBM_ZEE/NE_H+=H
RIS Z R A EW R > ASRAT IS G st B
B NS ~ TR SR B T A
JIR 5 11 [l H (B s R AT A 5 AT ([ 4347 1) e
FHBIA - BE-FZLFEIA ZFAHET
SEZ AR R o ASSRAT AR AL I - AT BURAE
F R SE5 IS T 5 38 11 i) e 8 42 R ) W
BIEILA o

2. MIBTETLEIUA M AT Z GEE
Be —RFNGFETH +78 Hal sz 2z i st 5 A
Wbk > ASSRAT F I AR LA R 2 2% Bt AT B o
2N RIEANE ([ op B ) A B A 58 N A A
A RTE R P SN 2 A T B A A AR A
T~ B R SO T i i A 428 BB ) W U
Bt o

3. MR- FTT o H 0 (BRI E
FT R TE) RIS 2 R Tk - B EE /\4E=H
U H BLAERAT 2 Bt B 4 R wT L 2 ARG Tk
e A PR T ) A SRAT M AR GRAT 2 [ IS /A 7
R SR il B RS 11 ) e AR A 7 A 2 TR
%A o

B 5 8 BN ) 2 38 A A AT S R K AR MK
TR WE R AR A R S AT AR R
Mo Mo EENEFH=+—H » RBRITEBIT
100,000,000 3£ JT 7E B A7 78 T I A& e /) (B F
L4 1 100,000,000 FIC) ©

A7 ] ey A S B BEAT Sz o e A P M R B K AT B GR
Wi 2 A AR S R R - R k39 -

H AR 5

i BRAEERA AL 2 Rl
RN AT 2 AN RN = F
L EEAZAEERRELRES - I H

PN R AR RAT SR BT 4 ARRARA
SRATHERF T EAS B kT

a.  Ultimate holding company (continued)

1. In accordance with the collaboration agreement dated 3 July 2001 and
the supplemental collaboration agreements dated 4 February 2005 and
13 February 2008, management fee income was received from the Hong
Kong Branch of ICBC (the “Branch”) for the provision of services such
as accounting and budgeting, internal audit, marketing and back office
settlement and clearing. In accordance with the collaboration agreement
dated 28 September 2007, management fee income was received from
the ultimate holding company for the provision of management,
administrative and marketing services of its credit card business.

2. Inaccordance with the custodian and trustee services agreement dated
4 September 2007 and the supplemental custodian and trustee services
agreement dated 16 May 2008, services fees were paid by the ultimate
holding company to the Bank for providing custodian, settlement and
clearing services in relation to the investments outside the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in certain investment products held by
the customers of the ultimate holding company in connection with the
Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor Scheme of the PRC.

3. Inaccordance with the service levels agreements with the Bank dated
21 February 2002 (as amended and supplemented by supplemental
agreements) and the service levels agreement with a subsidiary of the
Bank dated 19 March 2008, service fee expense was paid to the ultimate
holding company for the provision of data processing services to the
Bank and its subsidiary.

The transactions with ultimate holding company included the issuance
of fixed rate certificates of deposits and subordinated floating rate notes,
which were both fully subscribed by the ultimate holding company and
its branch. As at 31 December 2008, the Bank has issued US$100,000,000
fixed rate certificates of deposits to the ultimate holding company (2007:
US$100,000,000).

Information relating to issuance of subordinated floating rate notes by the
Group, fully subscribed by the ultimate holding company and its branch can be
found in Note 39.

Other material transactions
i Undertaking from the ultimate holding company

To demonstrate its support to the Bank, a letter of comfort dated 3
July 2001 was executed by the ultimate holding company, pursuant to
which it will provide the Bank with such funding as may be required
by the Bank to ensure that the Bank will maintain sufficient capital and
liquidity levels.
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44 BER G @)

T A B A F] ()

44 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

a. a.  Ultimate holding company (continued)

HAEER G (45) Other material transactions (continued)

i BRI FIE 2 AR () i. Undertaking from the ultimate holding company (continued)
REFREAELH = H o RN R AR Simultaneously on 3 July 2001, the ultimate holding company and the
ATHTSL— I ORIk » RUL > RAFERA A [F Bank entered into a guarantee agreement whereby the ultimate holding
T DR AR B 2 M o R B T AR R A T 2 [ K RE company agreed to guarantee to the extent of HK$9,000,000,000 being
JEE | AF H =2 9,000,000,000 #E G2 5 1R Rk the payment obligations of certain customers whose “large exposures”
%55 25— HLE ) i AR 1R R B AR SRATAE G were transferred to the Bank pursuant to a business transfer agreement
fEfRRE - RZFFENETFZA=+—H A4 and to indemnify the Bank in respect of any losses incurred if any
A7 3R % TELIfS DR R AR JUr R e 2 5 7 B i 3R T obligation of such customers becomes unenforceable. The amount
H ¥ M G H7E 39,188,000 ¥ 7T (— 2R L4 of such on-balance sheet large exposures of the Bank covered by
39,444,000 #:IT) © this guarantee as at 31 December 2008 was HK$39,188,000 (2007:

HK$39,444,000).

i,  WEBZEAHK ii.  Sub-participation of loans
AR A o A SR AT B SR A IR R R B AR IR During the year, the Bank entered into various capital market
Al Z A ATRI L2 R E AT B 58 5 o %55 8 5 transactions with the ultimate holding company and the Branch.
355 do AR B K2 5 S AT AR B 2 B GR These transactions included sub-participation in loans of the
12 83 W M %G 3 75 130,793,038,000 Bank by the ultimate holding company and the Branch for a total
JE (= ZF & B AF £ 405,138,954,000 3 0 ) o 75 4k of HK$130,793,038,000 (2007: HK$405,138,954,000) and similar
A RAT DAL 7 AR i 2 B0y 47 2 B> sub-participation in loans of the Branch by the Bank for a total of
Fe 4 80 5 3% 5524,178,687,000 3 7T ( & L HK$24,178,687,000 (2007: HK$112,357,231,000). Fee attributable
A 1 112,357,231,000 46 7G) b4k 52 5 E Ak 2 to the above transactions of HK$48,745,000 was paid in 2008 (2007:
48,745,000 VG ( —FZE L4 © 10,858,000 #570) T HK$10,858,000). These transactions were priced based either on the
AT o BB G TR Bk ek 2 A=k (hnsd terms of the underlying loan agreements, if applicable, or prevailing
Fi) B ] EL i 2 AR SEBAT T E A - B AR R market rates if such comparable rates were available, or on terms that
TR A A 8 S SR P R B 2 AR E [ were no less favourable than those available to other independent loan

members.

b. FHRMEAF b.  Fellow subsidiaries

2008 2007

TH#x THIT

HK$°000 HK$°000

F A Interest income 16,716 8,892

FE S Interest expense 23,457 74,879

JRE Wi < B Amounts due from 476 81,886

HE A} 7 Amounts due to 1,562,725 1,489,040
c BEAF c.  Associates

2008 2007

TH#x TH#IT

HK$’000 HK$000

F B A Interest income 611 8,607

L S Interest expense 596 820

i EAON Commission income 3,510 39

HoAth 7 263 Other operating expenses - 4,955

JE 458 Amounts due from 2,635 1,401

JEAT %A Amounts due to 28,355 51,145
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44 BRHERE 5 (w0 44 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
d. BB R e S 2 A2 5 d.  Transactions with other state-controlled entities
DA [ 5% 428 i B R A A B )y The following state-controlled entities are considered as related parties:
o ] A B - The Ministry of Finance of the PRC
rpUUHE S BB PR AR A A (S ) —  Central SAFE Investments Limited (“Huijin”)
— B RN R 2 Z P BUN R Z 4 - Other banks and financial institutions under the direction of the
T I A ERAT B2 45 R b PRC government in which Huijin has equity interests
2008 2007
T THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
HE N i Amount due from 4,076,075 1.590.651
HERT i Amounts due to 3,819,913 3,925,283
AL A Interest income 91,847 104,754
FE S Interest expense 43,158 91,440
e. TFETHABME e. Key management personnel remuneration
FZATEN B - EAEBERRHGE 17(a) <A Remuneration for key management personnel, including the
SRATEE A K HiE 17(b) 2 4% s A+ emoluments of the Bank’s directors as disclosed in Note 17(a) and five
ZM& >k highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 17(b), is as follows:
2008 2007
TH#x THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
1 B A& A Employee benefits 24,758 22,713
f. BRIEETBABZIEKRLY f.  Material transactions with key management personnel
AR 5 7 A [ L B N FE AE R 2E S ) :|‘ HE During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions
TTZRATZE S - AAEEF FFa H A < Rl A consisting of loans and advances, deposits and other financial related
Wsch » BN L REARITZ EETBA transactions with related parties in the normal course of business.
CRRC VS EE PN £ Fa/NCD The related parties include key management personnel of the Bank,
their close family members and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them.
2008 2007
T THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
B Loans and advances 5,657 6,562
FEK Deposits 21,245 26,734
FLE A Interest income 178 362

FE S H Interest expense 356 1,216
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44  PBREA G () 44 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
g WMTIBRABZER g.  Loans to officers
HRAE AW B 5 161B (4B) T 2 BiAE > 1TIL Particulars of loans made to officers and disclosed pursuant to Section
N B 2 ST 161B(4B) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
R HZE1— HZ R ME R 8 SRR A AR
Balance outstanding at Maximum balance
31 December during the year
2008 2007 2008 2007
T#x THETT T#x Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
AR G ) B AR Aggregate amount outstanding in

respect of principal and interest 5,657 6,562 6,562 16,570
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following are summaries of the contractual amounts of each

&H significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:
2008 2007
BRI A5 ER B I BRI fE RN
Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk
amount weighted amount amount weighted amount
TH#x TH#x THIT THsIC
AL Group HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
B AR Direct credit substitutes 14,701,288 7,777,596 2,746,878 1,161,243
BT G A B 2 sk B 1R Transaction-related contingencies 314,227 101,271 370,190 79,906
SR o) A TR 2 SR B R Trade-related contingencies 2,978,820 534,506 3,456,524 588,696
HoAthk o5 Other commitments:
— A SR R - Unconditionally cancellable 58,436,103 - 66,783,098 -
— I H DA 1 4R - With original maturity 278,817 55,763 1,123,559 223,738
of less than one year
— JEE A B AE 14E & DA B - With original maturity
of over one year 10,697,995 5,210,014 14,847,747 7,423,184
7t 1R E Forward asset purchases - - 270,000 270,000
A AR Forward forward deposits placed 2,310,099 462,020 7,811,705 1,562,341
89,717,349 14,141,170 97,409,701 11,309,108
2008 2007
AR fF BRI HHRER E R E BRI
Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk
amount weighted amount amount Weighted amount
T#T T#T THIT T
RGBT Bank HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
NERESERC AT Direct credit substitutes 2,459,258 1,672,433 2,703,533 1,139,570
BLAE o) A T 2 AR A Transaction-related contingencies 314,227 101,271 370,190 79,906
B 5 A B 2 SR B Trade-related contingencies 2,978,820 534,506 3,456,524 588,696
HoAthR o - Other commitments:
— ] SR AR - Unconditionally cancellable 58,436,103 - 66,783,098 -
— JEEI H AR 14 - With original maturity
of less than one year 180,564 36,113 426,978 84,422
—JEEIAHFE 1 A B - With original maturity
of over one year 10,598,459 5,160,246 14,473,568 7,236,095
gl %E [iFrey Forward asset purchases - - 270,000 270,000
B A B R Forward forward deposits placed 2,310,099 462,020 7,811,705 1,562,341
77,277,530 7,966,589 96,295,596 10,961,030




224 B T84T (BE) A FRA T » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

TR\ D Annual Report 2008

B 285 e Mt

Notes to the Financial Statements

45 R FERIMEER @

45

OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)

(b) BEAARYE (b) Capital commitments
(i) MEFENFER_FZZLFEFA=1— (i) Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment
H 2Z AR BR F 8 i o 2 B sl AR 7 outstanding as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 not provided for in
WEEREEIIT ¢ the financial statements were as follows:
A4 AGAT
Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

TH#x THIT TH#x Tt

HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000

ELRTAMEAR S 2 S Expenditure contracted,
but not provided for 4,268 3,685 4,135 3,606
CRHEI ARG 49 2 3 Expenditure authorised,

but not contracted for 7,505 24 7,505 24

11,773 3,709 11,640 3,630
(i) MAZFEF/NETZH/NH > REEFTEAM (ii) On 18 December 2008, the Bank announced that it entered
o DA B 4 ARE 2L A R 70,965,000 7T 1L into a conditional agreement for the acquisition of an aggregate
KPR A R A R (TR D BUA & of 4.52% of the existing total equity interest in The Tai Ping
3L 4.529% 2 ME 2 5T 3L — TE A WA ek o TR Insurance Company, Limited (“TPI”) for an aggregate cash
WCRETE AR - ASSRAT A5 A AT OR B AR consideration of RMB70,965,000. Upon completion of the
fi L 12.45% © A ZFF/NEFZH =+— acquisition, the Bank will hold 12.45% of the total equity interest
H > Z M v R TE AL - of TPI. As at 31 December 2008, this acquisition had not been

completed.
(c) RBMAARSE (c) Operating lease commitments

KRB NFR-FFLFT A= P —HA
S AR AR TS0 5 B AL T A
) B L 4

At 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Group and the Bank had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases as follows:

A4 ARGAT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T#0 THT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
o3 R Land and buildings
——ERR - Not later than one year 239,993 207,100 236,439 207,031
——4ERLE R TR - Later than one year and
not later than five years 833,255 611,810 830,171 611,787
—HAFERL B - More than five years 48,420 160,048 48,420 160,036
1,121,668 978,958 1,115,030 978,854
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45 HERACRIMEAR @ 45 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)
(d) REHATHE (d) Operating lease arrangements
A B2 [ R A B AR A 2 D H R 8 SR 2 — B\ The Group leases its investment properties (see Note 31) under
EZARA AR B E Y CLMEE31) - AR operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
AR R R AR ZE SIS e 4 - S RT B E from two to eight years. The terms of the leases generally also require
SRR IR T L AL A R e o the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
R EEENFER ZEZLFEF A =1+—H > At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group had total future minimum
A [ e AT 1) 4070 30 R 5 S T Y A 2 A lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
KA PR NSCH AR AR Y B R AR AR I T falling due as follows:
AR AGAT
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Tt TH#IT TH#C TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—4ER Within one year 2,203 2,253 320 480
TR R (EEERWA) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2,814 4,194 - 320
HAEDL | After five years - 549 - -
5,017 6,996 320 800
RN > SR R SEAT ] R e SR ME M R AR (. During the year, the Group had no unrecognised contingent rentals
BT M) o receivable (2007: Nil).
46  FRAAEIBL ] 46 THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
A R N R B G A ST 22 B T R R AT R A PR In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Bank is
NTFTIARGRET 2 AR A ] - Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, which is incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China.
47 HSTHRBRFH 47 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
AT EENE—AILE > TREMBEE AR On 9 January 2009, a total of 10,000,000 shares of HK$1.00 each in the capital
JieAs 4 410,000,000 B 1.009 7T 2 LA L i 88 T of ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited has been allotted
ARERAT o TERERINBE B HA A R AR 2 to the Bank. ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited is a
e AR o wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank.
CFEENAE—H AR AR TE MR HE A On 20 January 2009, the Bank injected additional capital of RMB539,220,000
FIZERGERAT A R A R 539,220,000 7T into Chinese Mercantile Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
48 WABE R Z ik 48 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AP “EFIFE=A A H A
L AZHEEE U o

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 24 March 2009.
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1 BT R AT 1

RETIR =FEF /S A=+ —HZEARLK Ty
T2 R A s 4 T A L) T B o 2 RAT CEAR) AR (T &
AR ]) G o BCEASKR N TIAR R A Hh SR AT ZE M 9155
98 A e IR JEE T it B SE 7T e A o s i il - Sl A
FAE— A — B AR o ARSRAT PR EEAS KR B i FSE 452 R A
[ ({5 S 7 ) oM B8R 2 el g i e
BEE ~ PRAN [ R AR R | RS A R AR A
[ (T ) R IR TS RS - RIS AR
Al > GHEEAR R Sr S IR T IR BE I TS Rt 2 5
R > (HIPREAS RN A 2 5 [ 2R SR E ] (B
TRBg s N T Z M B AT o F > 25 REGEHEZ
Bt A 7] 2 3808 A @A EEARSERRE T FI B o 3% 5 R4
A B8 2 R AREATART Y5 42 S0k o AR BT 4 7 4
KB B ZERS B A BRAF] ~ 4R aH N & A B
o)~ TAREEM S AR R ~ TERE I GEHA FRA
A > TERERIMECAHRA R ~ TEREMEEE AR
N TARERIN G B A FR/A 7] ) ICBC (Asia) Wa

Pei Nominees Limited °

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information to
the financial statements and does not form part of the audited financial statements.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE

The capital ratios as at 31 December 2008 were computed in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules (the “Capital Rules”) issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority under Section 98A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance
for the implementation of “Basel II” with effect from 1 January 2007. In view
of the Capital Rules, the Bank has adopted the “standardised (credit risk)
approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted assets for credit risk, the
“basic indicator approach” for the calculation of the operational risk and
the “standardised (market risk) approach” for the calculation of market risk.
Under the Capital Rules, the basis of consolidation in calculating the capital
ratios follows that of the financial reporting with the exclusion of subsidiaries
which are “regulated financial entities” (e.g. insurance and securities
companies) as defined by the Capital Rules. Accordingly, the investment costs
of these unconsolidated subsidiaries are deducted from the capital base. There
is no capital shortfall of these unconsolidated subsidiaries. Unconsolidated
subsidiaries include UB China Business Management Co. Ltd., ICBC (Asia)
Investment Holdings Limited, ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited,
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited, ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited,
ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Investment
Management Company Limited and ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited.

2008 2007
B EAR R Core capital ratio 7.3% 7.3%
EATE R R Capital adequacy ratio 13.6% 13.0%
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1 EARTR R GEAIRE @) 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND CAPITAL BASE (continued)
I ) AR S B A O AL 4 B L FOEE

The components of the total capital base after deductions include the
following items:

2008 2007
T#x THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
BEA Core capital:
AR L R R A Paid up ordinary share capital 2,570,536 2,451,904
Je A7 Vit A Share premium 8,209,593 7,161,786
it Reserves 621,457 1,476,433
Bk Income statement 407,616 545,763
FIBR PR Deduct: Goodwill (980,154) (973,419)
HoAth JETE & Other intangible assets (31,318) (66,882)
R QU T R A Net deferred tax assets (137,547) =
REFHBOERFEZ 50% 50 per cent of total unconsolidated
KA IE H investments and other deductions (431,507) (459,898)
10,228,676 10,135,687
BRI IEA Eligible supplementary capital:
b Rk T 2 Bl PR (e AR Fair value gains on the revaluation of land and buildings 5,095 5,378
S w8 2 AR Fair value gains on the revaluation of available-for-sale
HAGAFE A AR equities and debt securities - 21,899
8 AA-TEME IR RAMRZ T Unrealised fair value gains arising from equities and debt
I K fETRE R 58 B B (BB i i securities designated at fair value through profit or loss - 37,330
A A B EAR S5 (i Collective impairment allowances and regulatory reserve 1,162,545 1,032,136
IK AR IH Perpetual subordinated debts 3,480,032 3,496,256
DAEGH R AR A BR 2 14 (8 A5 JE Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 4,487,308 3,807,539
HER - REFEHERFHZ 50% Deduct: 50 per cent of total unconsolidated
Je HoAth g 5 H investments and other deductions (431,507) (459,898)
8,703,473 7,940,640
AT 2 B AL AR ER Total capital base before deductions 18,932,149 18,076,327
A BB AR AR R Deductions from total capital base - -
FI A% & B AT R A AR Total capital base after deductions 18,932,149 18,076,327
JEUB N Risk-weighted assets:
R R Credit risk 130,373,943 130,839,560
T35 2 B Market risk 2,937,625 3,120,400
AR Operational risk 6,059,438 4,914,788
JEVB TIRE 4 7 AR Total risk-weighted assets 139,371,006 138,874,748
2 mEESR 2 LIQUIDITY RATIO

ASAP VAL < AR T 4 ] P 3 Va A < LR
B > HL A A A R RO R E DA AR
R AT S A HECERAT G S I % -

The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each calendar
month’s average liquidity ratio, which is computed on the consolidated basis
as required by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority for its regulatory purposes,
and is computed in accordance with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance.

ARG
Group

2008 2007

AR BV i 8 4 LR Average liquidity ratio for the year 37.0% 43.9%
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CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
MARKET RISKS

(a) Credit risk

()

The Group uses the following external credit assessment
institutions (“ECAIs”) to calculate its capital adequacy
requirements under the standardised (credit risk) approach
prescribed in the Capital Rules:

- Moody’s Investors Service and
- Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
- Fitch Ratings

The capital requirements on each class of exposures under the
standardised (credit risk) approach at the balance sheet date are
summarised as follows:

2008 2007
T#0 TH#TT
HK$’000 HK$000

¥R AfREA On-balance sheet
T i Sovereign exposures 31,501 35,594
5 R R Public sector entity exposures 21,211 26,003
2B R ARAT R B Multilateral development bank exposures - -
GRAT B Bank exposures 1,822,690 1,865,951
oB A T AR Securities firm exposures 200 4,642
fioe il Corporate exposures 6,131,348 6,286,855
ALA BB R Collective investment scheme exposures - -
Bl H Cash items 9,704 10,982
R T2 2R Regulatory retail exposures 354,525 431,024
B R Residential mortgage loans 417,416 370,091
HoAh N7 FEa A 2 Ja Other exposures which are not past due exposures 361,290 398,256
Jan 40 L g Past due exposures 31,586 12,552
AR A R R RIE H 2 & AR S AR Total capital charge for on-balance sheet exposures 9,181,471 9,441,950

Yo A ERAMEHA Off-balance sheet
HEGERE Direct credit substitutes 622,208 92,899
HAAZ B A B 2 BRUR B fE Transaction-related contingencies 8,102 6,392
HLE 5 A B 2 sk B fl Trade-related contingencies 42,760 47,096
2 0 Forward asset purchases - 21,600
Tor 82 2 Ay B v 75 Partly paid-up shares and securities - -
A AR Forward deposits placed 36,962 124,987
A AEARAT AR < AR A Unconditionally cancellable commitments - -
HoAth AR 3 Other commitments 421,262 611,754
R A4 Exchange rate contracts 70,027 86,175
FIREH Interest rate contracts 40,324 28,508
IARE R S Equity contracts 14 70

TR AT A0 A P AL T i el PR OTC derivative transactions and credit derivative contracts
BT THAE G Rl S TRA# subject to valid bilateral netting agreements - -
AR FA R >R T A 2 Other off-balance exposures which are not elsewhere specified - -
Hofth ¥ B RSN BB

B AR INERE 2 B AR A Total capital charge for off-balance sheet exposures 1,241,659 1,019,481
5 B Ja\ by 2 B A 3 AE Total capital charge for credit risk 10,423,130 10,461,431

BEATR T LA I phy AR B w5 575 o) 22 Ja B o A
FeLh 8% FHIT o AN WA SR [ B TR A A

The capital requirement is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-
weighted amount derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%.
It does not reflect the Group’s actual regulatory capital.
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3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
MARKET RISKS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(ii) Where exposures have been rated by the above-mentioned
ECAIs, they are categorised under the following class of
exposures:

- Sovereign exposures

- Public sector entity exposures

- Multilateral development bank exposures
- Bank exposures

= Securities firm exposures

- Corporate exposures

- Collective investment scheme exposures

(iii) The process used to map ECAIs issuer ratings or ECAIs issue-
specific ratings in the Group’s banking book is consistent with
those prescribed in the Capital Rules.

Operational risk

The Hong Kong Monetary Authority has granted approval under
Section 24(1)(a) of the Capital Rules for the Group to use the Basel
II Basic Indicator Approach to calculate its operational risk. The
Group thus applies this approach in managing operational risk, but
is simultaneously adopting the relevant supervising guidelines of the
HKMA. As at 31 December 2008, the capital charge for operational risk
amounted to HK$484,755,040 (2007: HK$393,183,040). The Group
targets to apply to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority in 2009 for
switching to the standardised approach to calculate its operational risk.



230 B TR8RAT (BE) A FRA T » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZEZE)\4EAEHR » Annual Report 2008

FhF o B s SR

Supplementary Financial Information

3 [RBTG5 3

H @
(c) Tk

F AT 22 5 SE B HEAT 2 T 35 JaU B i B A B ]
o2 [ HRIE] R [ IR 2 HRIA ]

o R

22 5 BR AL AL A T (L 6 B 32 B 1 2 R
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% A ) A T B SE T A i R R R 2 T B
JEU B R ) TR eS| o i B NFE |
A=+ —HZ X5 REFS RMEZ EARTH
#4235,010,000 %5 70 ( —FZ L4 © 249,632,000 {5
Jt) o MZEFENFER _EBELF A =1
H A B2 5 BRI 2 i S AL T

CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
MARKET RISKS (continued)

(©)

Market risk

Market risk activities currently undertaken by trading businesses can
basically be divided into “Trading Book” and “Non-Trading Book”.

Trading Book:

It consists of proprietary positions in financial instruments and
derivatives which are held for re-sale or which are taken on with the
trading intention of benefiting from actual and/or expected short term
price or interest movements. Proprietary trading activities are relatively
not sizeable at this stage.

The Group applies the “standardised approach” for its market
risk in BASEL II capital rules. The trading book positions as at 31
December 2008 and their capital consumptions were HK$235,010,000
(2007:HK$249,632,000). The market risk capital requirement for
trading books as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are:

i 5 BB A 3 iy

g 2 20 Risk type Market risk capital charges
2008 2007
T#x T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
M) 256 U5 — A B Interest rate exposure — specific risk 334 63
) 2 SR — — e T 35 R B Interest rate exposure — general market risk 137,113 91,330
JBeAS Ja s Equity exposures 3,392 6,016
AR JE\ g Foreign exchange exposures 94,171 152,223
7 it JEU B Commodity exposures - =
Aot Total 235,010 249,632
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3 A ERIRURE - B B i 5 R B 2 AR 3 CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
e MARKET RISKS (continued)
(c) i 35 R B (40) (c) Market risk (continued)
PURFEIRE BR e —F R NE - =1+ — The following histograms show the frequency distribution of daily
HEZZEZLFEFZH=1—HILFEARE revenues related to market risk activities of the Group for the years
Z T35 SRS B A B 2 A H AR 508 o ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.

BEZZZAET AT HIRHE
For the year ended 31 December 2008
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15,040,000 ¥ 70 (—ZFZFL4F 6,330,000 #570) ©
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CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND
MARKET RISKS (continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)

The average daily revenue earned from the Group’s market risk related
activities during the year ended 31 December 2008 was HK$173,542
(2007: HK$311,257) and the standard deviation for such daily revenue
was HK$2,327,709 (2007: HK$1,514,298). An analysis of the frequency
distribution of daily revenue showed that losses were recorded on
110 days out of 244 trading days for the year 2008 (89 days out of
247 trading days for the year 2007). The maximum daily loss was
HK$15.04 million (HK$6.33 million for the year 2007). The highest
daily revenue was HK$28.85 million (HK$8.20 million for the year
2007). In respect of proprietary trading and customers’ expectation, the
Group will gradually increase its market risk activities to complement
its conventional reliance on loan assets for revenue. In the process, the
Group will watch out for the resulting market risk, and counterparty
credit risks, liquidity and capital implications.

Non-Trading Book:

It consists of interest rate risk positions arising from funding and
liquidity management as well as debt securities investment and balance
sheet activities from non-treasury business. Debt securities activities
undertaken by Treasury & Markets Department are largely for
investment and liquidity management purpose.

ASSET SECURITISATION

During the year, the Bank only acted as an investor in all securitisation
exposure. Ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s
and Fitch Ratings are adopted in assessing securitisation exposures. Since
the securitisation exposures held by the Bank are all rated by recognised
ECALI designated by the Capital Rules, the Bank uses the standardised
(securitisation) approach to calculate the weighted credit risk for the
exposures. The Bank closely monitors the risk arising from these exposures.
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ASSET SECURITISATION (continued)

The following table indicates the securitisation exposures as at 31 December

Z BB R B A A 2008 and 2007:
B B R A
Exposures deducted from its
“ERN\E 2008 WRE R YEAHE BOBEAR Hs A
Outstanding Risk-weighted Capital Core  Supplementary
amounts amounts requirements capital capital
T#x T#n T#x T#x T
Ero|a VL v Securitisation exposures HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(C¥secei (e Traditional securitisations
A HEER Instalment loan 106,021 21,204 1,696 - -
FE Y oY Retail mall properties 97,943 19,589 1,567 - -
KCEHHE Franchise - - - - -
oAty Others 44,404 44,025 3,522 190 190
248,368 84,818 6,785 190 190
R R AR
Exposures deducted from its
“ERTLE 2007 i ABIESE EARE BOER WA
Outstanding Risk-weighted Capital Core Supplementary
amounts amounts requirements capital capital
T Tk Tk T T
BRI SR AR A Securitisation exposures HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
(EStiei e Traditional securitisations
in i Instalment loan 101,895 20,379 1,630 = -
TE Y oY Retail mall properties 98,046 19,609 1,569 - -
RS HE Franchise 63,347 31,674 2,534 = -
At Others 78,546 - - 39,273 39,273
341,834 71,662 5,733 39,273 39,273

AT N+ H = — HAREEE (B 21) ik
FHE I R S R B AN ZE K £ 6,785,391 s ot (—F %
H4E 1 5,732,926 #500) o R EENEF_H=Z+—
H AR 7 w8 AL A% 0o % R A B4 T 3 T 2
44,403,566 W5 70 ( —FE LA ¢ 78,546,385 W5 I0) °

The capital requirement of securitisation exposure under the standardised
(securitisation) approach at 31 December 2008 was HK$6,785,391 (2007:
HK$5,732,926). The deductible items from core and supplementary capital
under asset securitisation at 31 December 2008 amounted to HK$44,403,566
(2007: HK$78,546,385).
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RIS R R R RO A BT 0 (5 B A

COUNTERPARTY CREDIT RISK-RELATED EXPOSURE

The Bank has adopted the current exposure method (CEM) to determine the
exposure amount for inter bank counterparty credit risk which arises from
OTC derivative transactions in banking and trading books. As at 31 December
2008, there are no repo-style transactions nor credit derivative contracts in
the Bank (2007: Nil). No recognised collateral including recognised credit
derivative contracts is held as credit protection for counterparty credit risk-
related exposure at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

The following table indicates the information of counterparty credit risk-

4 JE B AR U A R DR related exposures under the standardised approach:
HOERA T RUE 5 B A R 5gE TR 78
Gross total Credit Risk weighted
positive fair value equivalent amount
F#x T#x T
“EZRNE 2008 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REBAMIE T RS OTC derivative transactions:
SRAT Bank 1,477,597 2,519,656 710,873
HoAthy Others 480,037 675,355 668,691
1,957,634 3,195,011 1,379,564
CREAE 2007
LHGIMIAE TR « OTC derivative transactions:
AT Bank 776,997 1,935,964 804,720
HAth Others 345,707 681,282 629,686
1,122,704 2,617,246 1,434,406

BB TR AR A5 B U A TR A ) 5 8055 (SRR I 17
H 2z

6  TAKAE BrJmE FE 6
(a) EHLRHERIWEE TR 2P

AERAT Ol e AR HE SR A R T A U A
JEU B AR (R4 M AR T H 38 ) e AR 1) B3 =
7 {5 BR AR BRI ) i KR AE R R | ittifE L
T % it R AR R PR I BOR o AERAT AR IR
AT AT it AT & B AR SOLBOR - TR
AR FERR 7 25 {7 R 2 B B o
T FAE o A SATIRAE i 15 € % R REE
N o S B R RTAN R D) B o A E R
H i R - AR AR A5 H B RTREAL 1%
T EREE > D8 H —UOEITELR, > mY3EA
TEHAE A o

MEEEARWFEN S - RAEARHRAER
T RERD AR i B DR 7 AT AR 2 S e R LB
WA M o A SRAT I e 5 155 B JRU By i A1 I P
AR U AE Y il B AR o

There is no effect of bilateral netting agreement on the credit equivalent
amounts of the derivative transactions.

CREDIT RISK MITIGATION
(a) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation

The Bank has established policies on managing and recognising credit
risk mitigation, which are approved by Credit Committee, for all types
of credit exposure under standardised approach including counterparty
credit risk related exposure which arises from OTC derivative
transactions. The Bank applies prudent assessments of eligibility and
quality of collateral. Acceptable credit risk mitigations are as defined
by Credit Committee and/or regulatory authorities. The Bank also
adheres to safe custodian of collateral, regular re-valuation and close
monitoring. Marketable securities are marked to market on a daily basis
or, if daily revaluation/marked to market is unavailable, a minimum of
once a month, whilst properties are revalued periodically.

For the regulatory capital calculation, only recognised collateral and
guarantee defined in the Capital Rules are considered as recognised
credit risk mitigations. The Bank applies the simple approach criteria as
stipulated in the Capital Rules in ascertaining credit risk mitigation.
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CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (continued)

(@) BHRHERIRIRAE BT (9 (a) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation
(continued)
R ET A S LR A AR - BLE AR Recognised collateral includes eligible guarantees, cash deposit, gold,
&~ AR~ G R MR R R A A o T shares, debt securities and collective investments in transferable
EREE - EEAHE - IR o BARE securities, commercial real estate, residential real estate, vehicles and
F14 JEL 52 7 395 8 LA o B P AR A B AR 1) A7 equipment. The exposure amount after mitigation is determined by
W BB R A B o MR RS R A applying the standard supervisory haircut laid down by the Capital
e B B KA 7 AL o) R AR A - A - Rules to the current collateral value. Recognised guarantor is any
SRAT B 2 K R S A ) G A R AR 45 IR sovereign entity, public sector entity, banks and regulated securities
i~ A- 5 A _E R SNESRERR I 2 7 o firm with a lower risk weight than the borrower, or company that are
internally rated with a rating equivalent to external rating of A-or
better.
MoERNER TR EFE+H=+—H > The main types of guarantor and their external ratings as at 31
WEOR N BRI J =AM SR AT R December 2008 and 2007 are analysed as follows:
R A BN B A PR
Class of guarantors S & P’s equivalent Guaranteed amount
SRR\ e R
2008 2007
T TH#IT
HK$’000 HK$°000
AT Bank AAA/AA- 48,323 21,531
A+/A- 22,623,042 2,526,378
T HER R Sovereign AAA/AA- 75,196 118,790
22,746,561 2,666,699

A T 45 i A A e (CRE AR
BAEMR) 25 8 R mbdet » tefEErRst >
EC ol R A B 2 23 A T 2 GRAT A
FARMEE T

There are limited credit and market risks concentrations within the
credit risk mitigants (recognised collateral and guarantees) used by
the Group, except for real estate which is extensively relied on for
risk mitigation in lending to non-bank corporate and non-corporate
customers.
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6 ‘{)ﬂZ{[L{%E}ELFﬁE<;.) 6 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (continued)
(b) 5 &R KRl (b) Credit risk exposures
R I AR RS ~ A O R RS S T Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and
A0 T A 4R 1 st AT 25 B T A ol e R ek Fitch Ratings are the ECAISs that the Group uses in relation to the each
TSNS RPN o I ABI R SNBSS 4 and all classes of exposures below. The process it used to map ECAI
R A B S L SR AT A 1A BT A LB A A AT A issuer ratings to exposures booked in its banking book is a process as
RN TR T £ AR IS8 4843 TR E AR ST o prescribed in Part 4 of the Capital Rules.
SRRNE 2008 AR SRR AL
b E LR MRTER  BRTHR
Exposures after recognised BRI RRMEAE  MRRRE  RRRRE
Vs credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts ~ Totalrisk-  Exposure  Exposure
Total  Cif*  AWEe Ol RFE®  weighted  coveredby  covered by
SRR Class of exposures exposures* Rated”  Unrated® Rated”  Unrated®  amounts  collateral  guarantees
BRANETH On-balance sheet
FiE Sovereign 3,334,539 3,151,873 253,342 357,234 36,533 393,767 - -
NEHE Public sector entity 946291 817263 129028 239332 5,806 265,138 - -
ZRURE Mulilateral development bank - - - - - - - -
3] Bank 42,589,791 15978,578 49,099,056 5,150,075 17,633,545 22,783,620 - -
AT Securities firm 6,230 - 5,006 - 2,503 2,503 1,24 -
% Corporate 104,811,051 8,181,907 71,565,661 5,076,186 71,565,661 76,641,847 4,664,413 20,399,070
Anterarsl Collective investment scheme - - - - - - - -
e Cashiitems 262211 - 5619 -y 121299 - -
TRETEEH Regulatory retai 8,024,810 - 5908758 - 4431568 4431568 274105 1841947
{EAE et Residential mortgage loans 12,566,382 - 1254714 - SUTEYT 57697 23,668 -
FUAE Fe e Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 5,054,201 - 4,516,128 - 4,516,128 4,516,128 220,574 317,499
AR Past due expostres 374,653 - IR S8 M85 316205 43m
HEAGAMIE Off-balance Sheet
BRIt LR S5 Off-balance sheet exposures other than
R TRRAMIMY OTC derivative transactions or
KERBFENARRE credit derivative contracts 3169026 1351994 2181708 517959 1363211 14MLIT0 68705 183673
SAMIE TR OTC derivative transactions 3195013 98512 2213501 25158 LI74406 1379564 - -
REMELASGH Credit derivative contracts - - - - - - - -
ARG HMBAT I Other off-balance sheet exposures - - - - - - - -
HibgE A FRDARAE ot elsewhere specified
Ehege Gl anlil sl Exposures deducted from capital base 863,104 - - - - - - -
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6 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION (continued)

(b) fEEEBEARYE @) (b) Credit risk exposures (continued)
“REtE 2007 Rl SRR
AR R ki IRMATER  BERTER
Exposures after recognised RBRMER  RRMESE  MERREE  RRRE
bR credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts ~ Totalrisk- ~ Exposure  Exposure
Total g AdteEe CifE’  AfE®  weighted  coveredby  covered by
JRBAERR Class of exposures exposures* Rated*  Unrated® Rated®  Unrated amounts  collateral  guarantees
BEARE On-balance sheet
T Sovereign 314565 314565 112,881 444930 -0 - -
NEHEE Public sector entity 1467868 1,467,868 35 34978 6 3503 - -
SRYREN Mulilateral development bank - - - - - - - -
i Bank TLT6306 28959483 4583915 781481 15942904 23304385 - -
RFAT Securities firm 116,51 - 116051 - 58,026 58,026 - -
% Corporate 8620235 11376255 69952096 8649532 69936154 78585686 2345118 2,560,766
HABEE Collective investment scheme - - - - - - - -
B4R Cash items 219,397 - 3170619 - 137,073 137,073 - -
TRETEEY Regulatory retail 7591577 S AT L) - 53800 5387800 376085 31760
fEsH Residential mortgage loans 12025731 - 1198829 - 4E6138 4626138 37,501 -
Aot A0 0 e Other exposures which are not past due exposures 5,240,377 - 4978203 - 4978203 4978203 262174 -
R Past due exposures 138,928 - 138,928 - 156,901 156,901 77,97 7,465
BEARFIVER Off-balance Sheet
BRIt THA A5 Exposures other than
Rt TRAALIIMY OTC derivative transactions
B AR R AL or credit derivative contracts 19353569 666527 18687042 666415 10642693 LL309108 L5811 66,708
oM LR OTC derivative transactions 2607046 453933 2163313 106420 1327986 1434406
REMETRAY Credit derivative contracts - - - - - - = =
i AR T A H Other off-balance sheet
Hfb e A FFRINR Rl exposures not elsewhere specified - - - - = - - -
B ARV A Bl Exposures deducted from capital base 919,796 - = = = - = =

AR AR (R A% PR AS B BB AR £ 45 (
WA (U8

BLIE BLAT S A5 ST AR B AT R R AR
4 JEL B 7 38 S B A A S AT AR B R
(R ST 90 25 47 45 A0 L L o (L AR
A5 A B 7 ) LB AR 315 2225 AT B
R AR A L SR AR IS TR0 N B AT A
T AR ERA MRS FERT SRR AL U85 A i A A
LR AR R Y 84T R AR )

AR BLMEST 05 ST AR A BE 47 1 W AR
JRREAHE E RTA FC) SR Bt AR 3

Representing the principal amount or credit equivalent
amount, as applicable, net of individual impairments

Including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures
which do not have an issue-specific rating but whose
risk-weights are determined under the Capital Rules by
reference to an ECALI issuer rating assigned to the obligor
of the exposure or to an ECAI issue rating of any other
exposures of the obligor)

@ Representing exposures which do not have the ECAI issue-
specific rating nor inferred rating
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7 EER 7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(@) BF - 47 RIS g = Bk (a) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions
B~ SRAT B L Ath < P ARG 2 B K — F sk Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions-by
Ui geographical areas
7 B [ 485 BT AT Jal B i A% [R] 2= 4% 2 B % mi b The Group’s gross advances to customers, banks and other financial
[@# B ~ G347 S HoAth 4 Rl M 7 Bk 4 institutions by country or geographical area after taking into account
HNR any risk transfers are as follows:
%P 8T Kb
BB 2 Sk A W =MA
Gross advances VERNEY ¢ WA K A )AL A L DAL R A
to customers, Overdue advances Impaired Individual Collective
banks and other for over three loans and impairment impairment
financial institutions months advances allowance allowance
T T T T#x T#L
)\ 2008 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
B Hong Kong 77,727,521 291,595 808,496 242,859 296,671
i Mainland China 49,801,743 - 80,469 39,647 34,146
Y Macau 1,597,665 - - - 6,024
N Asia Pacific Region

(R (excluding Hong Kong,

A b R YR ) Mainland China and Macau) 2,511,335 - - - 14,718
e United Kingdom 9,563 - - - 93
Hits Others 5,122,120 - - - 27,197

136,769,947 291,595 888,965 282,506 378,849
& 4T R
BRI B i = A

Gross advances DA B (RN R AW EER
to customers, Overdue advances Impaired Individual Collective
banks and other for over three loans and impairment impairment
financial institutions months advances allowance allowance
THTT T THT THTT THIT
“ERTLF 2007 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
il Hong Kong 80,072,327 98,122 640,984 119,703 168,449
A1 Mainland China 25,100,485 5,557 5,548 5,590 15,688
Y Macau 796,440 70 70 - 1,366

N Asia Pacific Region

(R (excluding Hong Kong,

A R ) Mainland China and Macau) 5,461,426 = = = 10,353
¥ United Kingdom 1,188,098 = = = 1,527
Hits Others 8,808,952 = = = 12,886

121,427,728 103,749 646,602 125,293 210,269

Risk transfers are only made if the claims are guaranteed by a party in a
country which is different from that of the counterparty or if the claims
are on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in
another country.

T PR R FL T AE I AN (R T 3 07 N L
PREFR 2R T 1] HL AR 1 5 — B SR X SR AT Y
SMATAE BRSO J7 RS L
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7 SEER @ 7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(b) HEEHEHR (b) Cross-border claims
7 A [ 4 I 43 T 5 5 FH R o RS A AT IR The Group analyses cross-border claims by geographical area. In
AN B B Gt S B 5 T RN IR B R 2 3 — T determining this analysis, the Group has taken into account transfer of
ST VEYE £ 2 SRS R B o A AR S 5 H 2R 10% DA 1 risk with respect to claims guaranteed by a party in a country different
Z USRI from that of the counterparty. Those areas that constitute 10% or more
of the aggregate cross-border claims are as follows:
BAT R
Jofb Sk b
Banks and BERR
other financial ~ Public sector Jifb At
institutions entities Others Total
T AT T AT T H#C T E#L
HKS$’ million  HK$’ million = HK$ million = HKS$ million
RN 2008
CH N7 Asia Pacific
(NEIEEE) (excluding Hong Kong) 32,334 2,617 38,827 73,778
EIE TS| North and South America 8,881 1,104 6,041 16,026
(¢ Europe 10,249 - 565 10,814
—ERELE 2007
CHb N Asia Pacific
(R EFE A ) (excluding Hong Kong) 25,857 2,889 15,323 44,069
BB Europe 40,875 - 884 41,759
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7 SEER @ 7  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(c) MLk ERAT R B 7 4 (c) Non-bank Mainland exposures
A b IE SR AT R RS 2R T 4% IE SRAT T LRI & The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposure is based on the categories
MR 1 4 Rl LR ER AT 25 (B R ) BRI N B8 of non-bank counterparties and the types of direct exposures defined
114 42 JE\ B 7R S T 48 275 I o (6) [ R R > by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority under the Banking (Disclosure)
I EM G AT ZE TR — MA(BS)2A | IR Rules with reference to the completion instructions in note 6 of the
HRAEAT 0T > BTG AR RAT B L1 A1 K JE A 7] K “Returns of Quarterly Analysis of Loans and Advances and Provisions
A3 ATHELER K 1Ay b JEL 5 7R A o - MA(BS)2A”, which includes the Mainland exposures extended by the
Bank and its overseas subsidiary and branch.
WRAMGR  WEARRND LA
B A LS R il Z el
On-balance Off-balance FRIEHH Individually
sheet sheet Total assessed
exposure exposure exposures allowances
T T T T#T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
ZEENF 2008
P H Mainland entities 18,246,241 1,144,763 19,391,004 -
FURER (5 SR st s 1R Y Companies and individuals outside
T L A S e 4 ) R A Mainland where the credit is granted
for use in Mainland 14,747,579 1,104,903 15,852,482 121,849
ARSRAT R FL B R 4 Other counterparties where the exposure is
A I SR AT R R 3 considered by the Bank to be non-bank
Z ATy Mainland exposure 996,813 26,459 1,023,272 24,428
33,990,633 2,276,125 36,266,758 146,277
—FFLF 2007
ABiLYER: Mainland entities 16,100,628 1,329,091 17,429,719 -
FBERAR SR s T 1 Companies and individuals outside
INBAY SIS TS DS DN Mainland where the credit is granted
for use in Mainland 7,660,219 1,093,919 8,754,138 74,657
ARGRATRR A FL R B R Other counterparties where the exposure is
T I SR AT R R 3 considered by the Bank to be non-bank
ZHAMETF Mainland exposure 2,039,396 629,079 2,668,475 5,558

25,800,243 3,052,089 28,852,332 80,215
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8 B~ R4T R A4 A 2 Bk 8 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
(@ FP - BT RHMERMEEZ SR A (a) Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other
B — IR financial institutions - by industry sectors
ALH
Group
2008 2008 2007 2007
ok B
Gross loans I Gross loans AL A
and advances Bl e and advances R
T % of secured T % of secured
HK$’000 advances HK$'000 advances
TAAR A T 2 B3 Loans for use in Hong Kong
T¥ - HELER Industrial, commercial and financial
o E 21 - Property development 8,352,343 40.67% 6,932,715 29.30%
— R - Property investment 20,070,465 76.87% 17,544,326 65.74%
— BT RS RA - Financial concerns 6,932,161 2.95% 5,044,113 2.60%
— B - Stockbrokers 5,429 100.00% 115,996 98.87%
— i E R - Wholesale and retail trade 5,180,477 46.06% 3,730,013 54.47%
—EATHE - Civil engineering works 209,574 65.11% 380,307 31.23%
— S - Manufacturing 4,005,977 51.91% 3,854,159 45.91%
— 1 SR A - Transport and transport equipment 8,102,202 68.01% 7,865,445 59.99%
— BRI - Electricity and gas 42,014 100.00% 60,366 96.76%
—HlRHL - Information technology 1,510,208 0.43% 2,030,657 0.15%
— RS - Recreational activities 2,491 100.00% 7,121 100%
—EJE N B - Hotels, boarding houses and catering 760,375 80.73% 930,369 8.48%
—Hofth - Others 5,632,521 28.90% 4,746,507 26.23%
AR AL Individuals
—E [EEAHE] - Loans for the purchase of flats
EIUN: 235 (D in the Home Ownership Scheme,
[TEEHE | B2 S Private Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme 373,563 90.68% 310,275 84.49%
—WEE b BT 2 B - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 11,823,488 99.89% 11,789,246 97.84%
—fRRRER - Credit card advances 86,965 0.00% 100,844 0.00%
— A - Others 2,096,453 97.08% 1,501,626 96.02%
BoME Trade finance 22,495,570 12.34% 27,688,336 9.92%

TEAHE UM 2 30 Loans for use outside Hong Kong 39,087,671 32.00% 26,795,307 18.04%

136,769,947 44.53% 121,427,728 36.78%
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8 HF - ST KA A Z SR a0

(a)

B~ SRAT M I fth 4 ik BE A > R R AR
B — PR R ()

IR~ SRAT B HA < il B A 2 S0 R A0 10%
B L A SRS AR A A1 A ek > =R A
b AR~ A1 ) T A D s (L £ K
U

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BANKS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

(@

Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other
financial institutions — by industry sectors (continued)

Individually impaired loans, overdue loans and advances over three
months, impairment allowances and impaired loans and advances
written off in respect of industry sectors that constitute 10% or more
of the total loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions are as follows:

AEH
Group
2008 2007
T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
(a) MERE (a) Property investment
(ERIRC AR ¢S Individually impaired loans 244,043 186,068
=MAA YA EZ @ sk Overdue loans and advances over three months 166,530 37,822
A8 7 ol (L 26E Individual impairment allowance 9,738 3,035
A A R R e Collective impairment allowance 62,392 36,460
B i 2 S B 2 ek e New impairment allowance charged to income statement 32,635 21,509
A TA) S ok L B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year - 503
(b) BHRE (b) Trade finance
(ERIRCAIERE ¢ N Individually impaired loans 186,185 70,209
=8 H Lk L 2z i ek Overdue loans and advances over three months 34,490 -
A8 7 ol (26 Individual impairment allowance 93,767 31,636
A4 R R e Collective impairment allowance 33,762 29,830
B i 2 57 B 2 ek e New impairment allowance charged to income statement 66,048 51,643
A TR S ok L B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 43,828 30,366
) AERHE LASME FH 2 SR (c) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
A8 73 9ok 5 Individually impaired loans 195,495 146,581
=R A YA EZ @ sk Overdue loans and advances over three months 56,270 12,924
A8 7 ol (26 Individual impairment allowance 103,922 73,096
A A R R e Collective impairment allowance 108,327 41,282
B i 2 S B 2 e New impairment allowance charged to income statement 97,871 42,749
A TA) S ok B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 24,739 -
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9 HMiEFRiER 9 CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS
T FRAME AR B AR GRAT 2 AN R R o SN The table below summarises the net foreign currency positions of the Group
TRRR S 6% B ISR A A R A AR 2 109 BX and the Bank. The net positions in a foreign currency is disclosed when
DL IRET DABEER o BURRE /3 M e i A FAt S BUR HE 45 the currency constitutes 10% or more of the total net position of all foreign
RRPESRHERFAZ T > 5B &M EREE c2 &3] currencies. A sensitivity analysis calculates the effect of a reasonable possible
REsEEh 2 R o movement in a currency rate against the Hong Kong dollar, with all other
variables in the income statement and equity held constant.
Jefbtehr
e A RW Other foreign At
US$ RMB currencies Total
A Group T T T T
SRR\ 2008 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AR : Non-structural position
BAAE Spot assets 74,119,558 8,794,490 20,082,368 102,996,416
HEAE Spot liabilities (90,047,326) (7,892,910) (8,276,179) (106,216,415)
WIHEA Forward purchases 53,942,597 13,214,944 12,222,094 79,379,635
I Forward sales (37,207,089) (13,231,607) (23,771,758) (74,210,454)
SRR AR Net option position (850) - (8,733) (9,583)
=M/ () B Net long/(short) position 806,890 884,917 247,792 1,939,599
HAb e
EH AR H Other foreign M5t
US$ RMB currencies Total
AL Group THT Tl T T
“FTLE 2007 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FEita R - Non-structural position
B A Spot assets 89,116,280 6,525,871 9,971,669 105,613,820
BEATHE Spot liabilities (70,308,657) (5,781,351) (6,878,080) (82,968,088)
EHEA Forward purchases 36,820,381 20,766,501 4,410,669 61,997,551
I Forward sales (55,872,158) (20,650,376) (7,061,411) (83,583,945)
HREAR R A Net option position 1,113,220 = (910,914) 202,306
ot/ k) 34 Net long/(short) position 869,066 860,645 (468,067) 1,261,644
BINHS JE\ S A9 R 5 ) e e e A 22 AR o SRR B A Foreign currency exposures include those arising from trading position. The
S 4 (7 AR net option position is calculated using the delta equivalent approach.
REFFENF+ A= AR _FFEET A There was no net structural position in a particular foreign currency which
= H o A SN A AR TR AR AR 10% constitutes (in absolute terms) not less than 10% of its total net structural
L HRENE S AR AR T A (PR AR SRR ) position in all currencies as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.
10 AREERT &R 10 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY FOR LIABILITIES

E ) [ BEAS B T 5 > ARBEEREA 2 AT B s
2 FEA 5 22 28T £51,474,106,748 5 70 ( —FF L
AF ) o AN [H i AT AR NI T S A B A A

(=}
HA ©

8 5y VO HR A AR SRR R RO AT

In respect of reverse repurchase transactions, the fair value of collateral
held by the Group which were permitted to be sold or repledged amounted
to HK$1,474,106,748 (2007: Nil). No collateral has been actually sold or
repledged by the Group as at the year end.

The transactions are conducted on terms that are usual and customary to
standard lending activities.
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B s IR B [ 39

op B TR ERA TR R 33

TEnh ¢ 25881188

i S 2 2805 1166

TEafl © 73264 ICBCA HX

A © AU EEAE R (5 46 872 9%
BB T M (S - UBHKHKHH
HHHE - http://www.icbcasia.com

PR H O

Frits BRI 317-319 9
e AE GNEDE:
TERG 3471 8688

AT — T R
VBT

T is VU 2 R KT Y 242-244 5%
TERG ¢ 2559 8166

L3R AT
T its b BRAE ] 1 317-319 5%
JEAERG R R F Al

TERG ¢ 2543 3866

B KEPI1T
Fis PR R 5 K 122-126 9%
TERG 2534 3333

HERMT
Fr it 2 J5 K o 98 1 F

TERG ¢ 2840 5840

BB T
T v B 22 R ELK E M R
TERG 2526 6278

WIT
i BT JE R FE 117-123 9%
TERG 2527 3711

BT
s (1 103-103A JEHL T
R 1 2259 7800

R T
T v S S JE A 468 HE
SR O 24 SEAH
TERG 28346148

HEADQUARTERS

33/F., ICBC Tower

3 Garden Road, Central,

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2588 1188

Facsimile: 2805 1166

Telex: 73264 ICBCA HX

Post Box: GPO Box 872

SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

Website: http://www.icbcasia.com

INVESTMENT SERVICE CENTRE

2/F., Kai Tak Commercial Building,

317-319 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 3471 8688

BRANCHES - HONG KONG ISLAND

West Point Branch

242-244 Queen’s Road West, Sai Ying Pun,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2559 8166

Sheung Wan Branch

Shop F, G/F., Kai Tak Commercial Building,
317-319 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2543 3866

Queen’s Road Central Branch
122-126 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2534 3333

Central Branch

1/F., 9 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2840 5840

Caine Road Branch

G/F., Caine Building, 22 Caine Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2526 6278

Wanchai Branch

117-123 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2527 3711

Wanchai Road Branch

G/F., 103-103A Wan Chai Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2259 7800

Hennessy Road Branch

Shop 2A, G/F. & Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,

468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
Telephone: 2834 6148
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HWAF 4T
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TERG ¢ 2504 5888

BRENAT
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TERh ¢ 2570 0388
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Fr sl A 5 233 5%
IR G PR 85 23 S
TERE ¢ 2887 3811

Bl VD )
b f L 9 436-438 HEHh |
TERh ¢ 2503 2993

il £ 404 T
T b ) £11 JF 2 B2 7 1036-1040 HEHL T
TERG 2563 8724

3

YT
f&»’% i*“‘L 195 5§

A 568 5730

&t m}\ﬂﬂ-

AT — JUBE R

RV E AT
JURE SR VD IH B Rk T 39 %
BB R JE ML B &l

TE5G ¢ 3510 1000

RIS H 54T
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i iR
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Happy Valley Branch

23 King Kwong Street, Happy Valley,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2575 5720

Aberdeen Branch

Shop 7A, G/F,, Site 1, Aberdeen Centre,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2518 5000

Causeway Bay Branch

Shop A, G/F., Jardine Center,

50 Jardine’s Bazaar, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2504 5888

Electric Road Branch
113-115 Electric Road, Tin Hau,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2570 0388

City Garden Branch

Shop Unit 23, G/F., Maximall, City Garden,
233 Electric Road, North Point,

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2887 3811

North Point Branch

G/F., 436-438 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2503 2993

Quarry Bay Branch

G/F., 1036-1040 King’s Road, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2563 8724

Shau Kei Wan Branch
195 Shau Kei Wan Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2568 5730

BRANCHES - KOWLOON

Tsimshatsui East Branch

Shop B, G/F., Railway Plaza,

39 Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon

Telephone: 3510 1000

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch

Shop 1-2, G/F., 35-37 Hankow Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2369 5329

Jordan Branch

1/F., JD Mall,

No 233 Nathan Road,
Jordan, Kowloon
Telephone: 2376 1822

245
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ﬂHE{mﬁﬁiﬂgﬁﬁ?‘i 542 g
Eih 1 2771 6060

I £ 5 47

JURERE £ 52808 721-725 5%
e tlﬁ?EﬁjﬁEiﬂaT

FEEG 1 2309 7700

KNFAT
JURERE A2 5808 777 9%
TEnh ¢ 2380 3008

KRB 1T
jLﬁE “7J<be£zﬁﬁJ 290 i N
HEHG 27255133

AN4T
haﬁ%z&ﬁa%&fﬁ_swﬁ
E(} 1%* B3R Goe BE fi
TERE ¢ 2741 8787

E%é JEE 55— N95A il
TERE 2266 4600

ER

jLﬁE{_D'CEH < I 35 F18-F19 95 &

TEah ¢ 2713 9261

ALY 1T
JUREAT i) 78 R A5 2-34E %
AL 5530 T 2A

TRk 2627 7168

AR 4T
JURE 1IN AR AT 12-14 9%
TEnG ¢ 2714 5151

R
FUREH I ] BE LA 3-23 5%
HF5 Y G105E i

TERh ¢ 2325 5387

FHEANT
JUHE A B A 38 77 9%

TR 355 T 211-214 9540
TEaf 22609688

ﬂﬁééﬁf)ﬁ%mt 58 5%
EEG 2797 2683

Yaumatei Branch

542 Nathan Road, Yaumatei,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2771 6060

Mongkok Branch

G/F., Belgian Bank Building,
721-725 Nathan Road, Mongkok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2309 7700

Prince Edward Branch
777 Nathan Road, Mongkok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2380 3008

Shamshuipo Branch

G/F., 290 Lai Chi Kok Road, Shamshuipo,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2725 5133

Lai Chi Kok Branch

Shop G06, G/F., Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,
833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Lai Chi Kok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2741 8787

Mei Foo Branch

Shop N95A, 1/F., Mount Sterling Mall,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen,

Kowloon

Telephone: 2266 4600

Oi Man Branch

Shop F18 & F19, Oi Man Commercial Complex,
Oi Man Estate, Homantin,

Kowloon

Telephone: 2713 9261

Hung Hom Branch

Shop 2A, G/F., Hung Hom Shopping Mall,
2-34E Tak Man Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2627 7168

Mok Cheong Street Branch

12-14 Mok Cheong Street, Tokwawan,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2714 5151

San Po Kong Branch

Shop G10, Yue Xiu Plaza,

3-23 Ning Yuen Street, San Po Kong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2325 5387

Ngau Tau Kok Branch

Shop Nos. G211-214, G/F,,

Phase II, Amoy Plaza, 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2260 9688

Hong Ning Road Branch

58 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2797 2683
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Kwun Tong Branch

G/F., Lemmi Centre,

50 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2342 0103

BRANCHES - NEW TERRITORIES

Tseung Kwan O Branch

Shop Nos. 2011-2012, Level 2, Metro City, Plaza II,
8 Yan King Road, Tseung Kwan O,

New Territories

Telephone: 3194 3382

Kwai Fong Branch

C63A-C66, 2F., Kwai Chung Plaza,
Kwai Fong,

New Territories

Telephone: 2485 8000

Kwai Chung Branch

Unit G02, Tower A, Regent Centre,
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories

Telephone: 2420 9288

Tsuen Wan Castle Peak Road Branch
G/F., 423-427 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

Telephone: 2492 0167

Sha Tsui Road Branch

Shop 4, G/F., Chung On Building,
297-313 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

Telephone: 2439 9278

Tuen Mun Branch

217 A-F Central Services Building,
Nan Fung Industrial City,

18 Tin Hau Road, Tuen Mun,
New Territories

Telephone: 2466 8161

Tai Hing Branch

Shop 21-23 Tai Hing Commercial Complex,
Tai Hing Estate, Tuen Mun,

New Territories

Telephone: 2462 2400

Yuen Long Branch

G/F., 197-199 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long,
New Territories

Telephone: 2442 5005

Tai Wo Branch

Shop 216, 2/F., Tai Wo Shopping Centre,
Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po,

New Territories

Telephone: 2650 2986

247



248 B T84T (Si) A FR/A 7 » Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZE)\4EAEHR » Annual Report 2008

GrAT ~ B B i 4

Branches, Subsidiaries and Associates

K47
B A R A 9 9E
FERh 1 2638 3199

YW H 54T
SR UD H AL 34 22 SR AR
TERG 2693 3330

HH AT
BH 2R T

P.O. Box 1034

4/F, Harbour Place,

103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

B 24 7

R ERAT

TSR a Y A B PR )
TEREI SR RA A

KTy Eite<egdiia =l T YNEI]

TSR R P A A B A T
TARER AR A AT PR 7

LR BRI GE A BRA A
LEREMETEARA A

ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited
ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited (/& 1)
ICBCA (C.I.) Limited

RN v I S B PR )

Wi 24w

BT IR () A RRA R

IEC Investments Limited

Tai Po Branch

9 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po,
New Territories
Telephone: 2638 3199

Shatin Branch

Shop 22J, Level 3, Shatin Centre,
New Territories

Telephone: 2693 3330

OVERSEAS BRANCH

Cayman Islands Branch
P.O. Box 1034

4/F, Harbour Place,

103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

SUBSIDIARIES

Chinese Mercantile Bank

ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited

ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited

ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited

ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited

ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited

ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited

ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited (in liquidation)

ICBCA (C.I.) Limited

UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.

ASSOCIATES

China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited
IEC Investments Limited
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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33/F, ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong
Hiifi Tel (852) 2588 1188

{83 Fax (852) 2805 1166

4931k Website  http://www.icbcasia.com




	Cover
	2008 Event Highlights
	Contents
	Company Profile
	Corporate Information
	Financial Performance
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management’s Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Supplementary Financial Information
	Branches, Subsidiaries and Associates
	Back Cover



